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STRATEGIC REPORT
Liberty Global is a public limited company organized under the laws of England and Wales.

We are subject to disclosure obligations in the U.S. and the U.K. While some of these disclosure requirements overlap or are
otherwise similar, some differ and require distinct disclosures. Pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act, this document
includes our strategic report, directors’ report and required financial information (including our statutory accounts and statutory
Auditors’ Report for the year ended December 31, 2015), and forms part of our U.K. annual report and accounts for the year ended
December 31, 2015 (the U.K. Report and Accounts), as required by English law.

We are also subject to the information and reporting requirements of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the Exchange Act), and, in accordance with the Exchange Act, file periodic reports and other information with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC), including, without limitation, our 2015 annual report on Form 10-K (2015 10-K) and our proxy
statement on Schedule 14A (the 2016 proxy statement) for our 2016 annual general meeting. We have incorporated by reference
in the U.K. Report and Accounts certain information required by the Companies Act, which information is an important part of
the U.K. Report and Accounts, and is deemed to be part hereof. Investors may obtain any of these documents, without charge,
from the SEC at the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov or from our website at www.libertyglobal.com. The information on our website
is not part of this U.K. Report and Accounts and is not incorporated by reference herein.

The capitalized terms used throughout the U.K. Report and Accounts are defined in the notes to our consolidated financial

statements unless otherwise indicated. In the following text, the terms “we,” “our,” “our company” and “us” may refer, as the
context requires, to Liberty Global (or its predecessor) or collectively to Liberty Global (or its predecessor) and its subsidiaries.

Unless otherwise indicated, convenience translations into U.S. dollars are calculated, and operational data (including subscriber
statistics) are presented, as of December 31, 2015.

For a description of our business (including our model, strategy and competitive strengths), risks associated with our business
and our company and management’s discussion and analysis of our results of operations (including key performance indicators),
see the following sections of the 2015 10-K: Part I, Item 1, Business, Item 1A, Risk Factors, and Part II, Item 7, Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Item 7A, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk, each of which sections are herein incorporated by reference.

Employees, Corporate Responsibility and Environmental Matters

The details of our full-time equivalent directors, senior managers and employees by gender as of December 31, 2015 are as
follows:

Director (a):

A £ (R 11
FOIMALE ...ttt e e e ettt e e e ettt e e e e ——— e et e e e ——teeeeeaa——tteesaa——teeeaeataeeeeeanarteeeeaan 1
12

11 Y TSP 6

Employee (a):
IMLALE ..ottt ettt ettt et b e et b e st e te st e eheeab e Rt e s b e et e e b e et s ea b e et s e bt erteeae e Rt e eReenbeeRtesbeeRtebeesbebeessereensenreenes 25,000
FOMALE .....oeiieiiecie ettt ettt e et e st e e taeeebe e teeetbe e baa et e e baeerbeebaeetbe e taeerbeebeeerbeeteeeabeesaenaren 12,000
37,000

(a) Employees are included in each category, if applicable. Our senior manager group is comprised of our chief executive
officer and our executive vice presidents.
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Our employees’ development, motivation, health and wellbeing are critical to our business. We aim to create a dynamic,
talented workforce that reflects our diverse customers and a culture of innovation in which our 37,000 employees can grow and
feel supported. At the heart of this commitment to our employees is ‘The People Agenda,” Liberty Global’s multi-year people
strategy. The People Agenda sets forth our vision for developing and investing in our people across four key areas: Talent,
Leadership, Reward and Culture. The People Agenda ensures our employees are supported in their careers, have the tools to work
and develop and are engaged in our business, because engaged employees deliver superior business performance. Through the
activities of The People Agenda, we aim to provide all our employees with the skills, opportunities, rewards and support they need
to reach their full potential at all levels of the organization.

We have a range of employee development programs, such as Fast Forward, focusing on our emerging leaders. Through this
program we develop leaders who enable growth, are innovative and able to embrace the opportunities and challenges of this
amazing industry. In 2014, we also launched Lead Forward, which focuses on developing our senior management. Lead Forward
provides a platform and tools for our senior management to improve their personal leadership effectiveness while building a
framework for a common culture within the company despite its locations in several different countries. In addition, we provide
graduate training and ongoing personal development programs, reflecting our commitment to employee development as a top
priority. At Liberty Global, we encourage an inspiring and supportive culture that enables our employees to give their best. We
strive to ensure thatall of our employees are engaged, informed and aligned with our corporate development goals by communicating
often with all employees through email, newsletters and employee meetings.

We give full and fair consideration to all applications for employment, including those from persons with disabilities where
the requirements of the job can be adequately fulfilled by a person with disabilitiecs. Where existing employees become disabled,
to the extent practicable, we provide continuing employment under normal terms and conditions and provide training and career
development and promotion as appropriate.

For more information regarding our corporate responsibility initiatives, including with respect to social, community and
human rights issues and environmental matters, see the Directors’ Report.

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors on April 25, 2016 and was signed on its behalf by:

/s/ BRYAN H. HALL
Bryan H. Hall

Executive Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

Company registered number: 8379990
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Political Donations

We did not make any political contributions during 2015. Our code of business conduct prohibits the use of company funds
and assets for political contributions to political parties, political party officials and candidates for office, unless approved by our
general counsel. Additionally, our charitable giving programs available to employees prohibit political contributions by our
company. At our 2016 annual general meeting, however, we are requesting that our company and its subsidiaries generally and
unconditionally be authorized, for purposes of Part 14 of the Companies Act, to make or incur payments not to exceed $1 million
in the aggregate for political donations (including donations to political organizations and political parties) and political
expenditures, during the period beginning on the date of the 2016 annual general meeting and expiring at the next annual general
meeting of Liberty Global. If approved, the making of any political donation or the incurring of any political expenditure will be
at the sole discretion of the board of directors and still be subject to our code of business conduct as stated above. For further
information on this proposal to our shareholders, please see our 2016 proxy statement.

Dividends

We have not paid any cash dividends on our ordinary shares, and we have no present intention of so doing. Payment of cash
dividends, if any, in the future will be determined by our board of directors in light of our earnings, financial condition and other
relevant considerations, including applicable laws in England and Wales. Except as noted below, there are currently no contractual
restrictions on our ability to pay dividends in cash or shares. The credit facilities to which certain of our subsidiaries are parties
restrict our ability to access their cash for, among other things, our payment of cash dividends.

On July 1, 2015, following required approvals by our board of directors and shareholders, we made a distribution in the form
of a share dividend (the LiLAC Distribution), which constitutes a bonus issue under our articles of association and under English
law, of our LiLAC Class A, LiILAC Class B and LiLAC Class C shares. Pursuant to the LiLAC Distribution, each holder of Class
A, Class B and Class C Old Liberty Global Shares remained a holder of the same amount and class of Liberty Global Shares and
received one share of the corresponding class of LILAC Shares for each 20 outstanding Old Liberty Global Shares.

Share Repurchases

The following table provides details of our share repurchases during 2015:

Class C Liberty Global
Shares and Class C Old
Liberty Shares
Average price % of
Shares paid per share
purchased share (a) Total cost (a)  capital
in millions
Shares purchased pursuant to repurchase programs during the
VAT (D) vttt et 49,984,562 §$ 4691 § 23445 5.6%

(a)  Includes direct acquisition costs and the effects of derivative instruments, where applicable.

(b)  Amounts include repurchases of (i) Old Liberty Global Shares from January 1 through June 30, 2015 and (ii) Liberty Global
Shares from July 1 through December 31, 2015.

Payment to Creditors - Policy and Practice

We follow the requirements of our vendors for payment, which normally requires payment within 30 to 90 days. We also
owe amounts pursuant to interest-bearing vendor financing arrangements that are generally due within one year.

I-5



Charitable Giving

We measure the impact of our community investment programs using the globally recognized London Benchmarking Group
model. This methodology records the outputs and positive community impacts of our investments in cash, time and in-kind.

During 2015, our total community contribution was $14.4 million, of which $6.6 million was in the form of cash donations.
These figures cover our corporate organization and all of our operations in Europe and Latin America and the Caribbean.

Corporate Responsibility

Our corporate responsibility (CR) strategy focuses on the issues that are most important to our stakeholders, as well as those
issues that have a material impact on the future competitiveness of our business. In 2014, we consulted with internal and external
stakeholders in the most extensive materiality assessment we have performed to date. The process involved several stages including:

A comprehensive review of CR topics identified in our business sector;
A review of topics that were reported in the media and attracted public interest;

Personal interviews with sustainability experts from within and outside the company, including the ranking of global
mega trends based on relative importance, risk and opportunity to Liberty Global;

A CR-related employee survey across all Liberty Global markets;
A review of our RepTrak™ consumer reputation survey results, based on 6,000 consumers surveyed; and

Several workshops and consultation sessions with senior management.

The outcome of this engagement process enabled the prioritization of the issues that are most material to our business and to
our stakeholders. The issues that ranked highest include:

Privacy and data security;

Improving energy efficiency;

Protection of children while online and watching TV;
Digital inclusion and education;

Electronic waste reduction; and

Reducing greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions.

These material issues are grouped into four key issue areas, as laid out in our CR Framework:

Promoting a digital society;
Building trust with our customers;
Managing our environmental impacts; and

Being a responsible business.

Further details are available at www.libertyglobal.com/cr



Managing our Environmental Impacts

As a global corporate citizen, we are committed to addressing the environmental impacts generated through our business.
The environmental priorities we have identified with our stakeholders are energy efficiency, GHG emissions and electronic waste.
Further details on Liberty Global’s environmental statement and performance are available at www.libertyglobal.com/cr.

Energy Consumption

Gigawatt-hours

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013 2012

Non-renewable fuel

DHIESCL vttt ettt ens 154.00 176.00 168.00 84.00
POLIOL ... ns 50.00 50.00 55.00 42.00
NAUTAL GAS ..ottt ettt e eeete b v 47.00 49.00 56.00 58.00
AVIAtioN FUCL........ccooiiiiiieiiceeceee e 11.00 11.00 13.00 13.00
GAS Ol ettt 0.40 0.29 0.50 0.85
FUCT Ol ..ottt es 0.36 0.60 0.76 2.59
BUurning Ol c.....ooviivieiiiieeeceeeeeeee et 0.02 0.03 0.00 0.05
CNG ettt et ae et e st e e e st ebaesabe e beesnaeenree s 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
TOtAL.......oiiiiiiie e et 262.79 286.93 293.27 200.50
Electricity, heating & cooling

EIECHICIEY .ttt ettt ettt ettt ea e e veeas v e 1,230.00 1,204.00 1,182.00 1,180.00
Heating & COOLING ........ccivviiiieiieiieiieieie et 5.00 7.00 1.00 0.00
Electricity SOIA ......covieviiiiieiiciieieeteeeeeeete ettt 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.05
Total energy consumption (2).............cceeveriieneeniienienie e 1,497.78 * 1,497.92 1,476.26 1,380.45

(a)  Represents the total energy consumption from non-renewable fuel and electricity, heating and cooling, minus electricity
sold.

GHG Emissions

Our GHG emissions are expressed in metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO2e), a universal measure that allows the
global warming potential of different GHGs to be compared. In 2015, the GHG Protocol changed its guidelines for reporting Scope
2 emissions from purchased electricity. For companies like Liberty Global, this change has meant that Scope 2 emissions should
now be reported as two numbers instead of one.

The first number is total Scope 2 emissions using the “location-based” methodology. The location-based method involves
applying a “grid average” emissions factor which is an average that relates to the grid on which energy consumption occurs. In
Europe, this usually relates to a country-level electricity emissions factor, and is effectively the same as the method required in
the original GHG Protocol Corporate Standard.

The second number is total Scope 2 emissions using the “market-based” methodology. The market-based method involves
using supplier-specific emissions information wherever it is available and then applying the relevant “residual mix” emissions
factor to any electricity that does not have supplier-specific emissions information. The market-based method has been designed
to better reflect electricity purchasing decisions, including accounting for the impact of green or low-carbon electricity. In 2015,
for the first time, we collected supplier-specific emission factors from our global operations. For our 2014, 2013 and 2012 data,
we have used the residual mix emission factor.
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Metric tons of CO2e

2015 2014 2013 2012 (base year)
SCOPE 1 (DITECL) ..vvvreieviieeieeieeieie et 84,400 * 88,300 91,600 88,500
Scope 2 market-based (Indirect) .........cccevvevveieieieieieiereeneane, 409,500 * 469,000 471,600 531,700
Scope 2 location-based (Indirect).........cccceeveereereereenerieieenne 516,400 * 524,300 488,900 498,800
Total Scope 1 & 2 market-based emissions...........cccceceeueeuennene 493,900 557,300 563,200 620,200
Total Scope 1 & 2 location-based emissions...........ccceecveueeee. 600,800 612,600 580,500 587,300
Total market-based emissions per terabyte (TB) of data
USAZE (@) vevervevevenerreneerenieteeeteneeteseeseseeseseesestesessesesseneeseneeseneas 0.031 * 0.050 0.075 0.116
Scope 3 emissions (Indirect) (b)......ccoevverveveerierierieresierieeenens 54,800 * 49,800 11,900 12,200
Total Scope 1, 2 & 3 market-based emissions.........c.ccccceueeee. 548,700 607,100 575,100 632,400
Total Scope 1, 2 & 3 location-based emissions........................ 655,600 662,400 592,400 599,500
Carbon Credits .........ccoovviiiiiiiicice (0.01) — — —

(a) In order to provide a meaningful target to measure our energy usage against our business operations, we measure our GHG
emissions per TB of data traffic generated as we run our network and customers use our services. This calculation reflects
internet protocol (IP) based data traffic from fixed broadband services, such as web browsing, IP streaming voice and video
services, from all our market operations that we can reliably measure. Approximately 50% of our total revenue is IP based.
For more information, please see our full ‘Environmental Reporting Criteria’ at www.libertyglobal.com/cr/cr-report-2015.

(b) Our Scope 3 indirect emissions include business air and land travel (includes flights taken by employees and travel in rental
cars, taxis and public transportation); water and waste; emissions arising from water, waste (which includes the impact of
recycling customer premises equipment) and travel by our third-party service and installation vehicles. In 2015 and 2014,
emissions from travel by our third-party service and installation vehicles were included as part of our Scope 3 emissions. This
data was excluded in our 2013 and 2012 data.

Environmental reporting criteria

All data in this U.K. Report and Accounts covers the period January 1 to December 31, 2015, unless otherwise stated. This
is the first year where we include information on our Ziggo operation which was acquired in November 2014, although we are
excluding two immaterial subsidiaries in the Netherlands due to data collection difficulties. For comparative purposes and to create
new base-year values for our environmental targets, we have also made adjustments to our environmental results for 2012 through
2014 to include representative pre-acquisition values for Virgin Media, which we acquired on June 7, 2013, and Ziggo, which we
acquired on November 11, 2014.

Liberty Global’s reported environmental data follows the World Resources Institute and World Business Council on Sustainable
Development’s GHG Protocol Corporate Standard using the operational control approach. This covers all global operations,
including Virgin Media, Ziggo, operations under the UPC brand, Unitymedia, Telenet, VTR and Liberty Puerto Rico. We have
reported 100% of the emissions from Telenet and Liberty Puerto Rico, in which we had ownership interests of 56.9% and 60.0%,
respectively, as of December 31, 2015. Emissions from businesses in which we have non-controlling equity stakes are not included
within our reported figures.

Our policy is to include any new subsidiaries that have been entered into in the first six months of the reporting period.
Therefore, we include the recent acquisition of Ziggo in the Netherlands (completed in November 2014) and Choice in Puerto

Rico (completed in June 2015) in our 2015 reporting.

For more information, please see our full ‘Environmental Reporting Criteria’ at www.libertyglobal.com/cr/cr-report-2015.
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External assurance

We engaged KPMG LLP to undertake independent limited assurance, reporting to Liberty Global plc, using the assurance
standards ISAE 3000 and ISAE 3410, over the energy consumption and GHG emissions that have been highlighted on pages I-7
and [-8 with *. Their full statement is available on our website at www.libertyglobal.com/cr/cr-report-2015 and they have provided
an unqualified opinion on this data.

The level of assurance provided for a limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than a reasonable assurance
engagement. In order to reach their opinion they performed a range of procedures, which included interviews with management,
examination of reporting systems, site visits to four operating companies, as well as specific data testing at our corporate offices.
A summary of the work they performed is included within their assurance opinion.

Non-financial performance information, GHG quantification in particular, is subject to more inherent limitations than financial
information. It is important to read the GHG emissions information in the context of the full KPMG LLP limited assurance statement
and our reporting criteria as set out in the Liberty Global ‘Environmental Reporting Criteria’ available at www.libertyglobal.com/
cr/cr-report-2015.

Qualifying Indemnity Provisions

Under our articles of association, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, we may, broadly, (i) indemnify to any extent
any person who is or was a director, or a director of any associated company, directly or indirectly against any liability incurred
by him or her whether in connection with negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust or otherwise by him or her in
relation to Liberty Global or any associated company, or in connection with that company’s activities as a trustee of an occupational
pension scheme and (ii) purchase and maintain insurance for any person who is or was a director, or a director of an associated
company, against any loss or liability or any expenditure he or she may incur, whether in connection with any proven or alleged
negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust by him or her, in relation to Liberty Global or any associated company.

We enter into deeds of indemnity with directors, executive officers and certain other officers and employees (including
directors, officers and employees of subsidiaries and other affiliates). These deeds of indemnity require that we indemnify such
persons, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, against all losses suffered or incurred by them in the event that they are
a party to or involved in any claim arising in connection with their appointment as director, officer, employee, agent or fiduciary
of Liberty Global or another corporation at the request of Liberty Global.

Directors of the Company during 2015

The following persons were directors of Liberty Global during the year ended December 31, 2015 and up to the date of
issuance of the U.K. Report and Accounts:

John C. Malone (Chairman)
Michael T. Fries (Vice Chairman)
Andrew J. Cole

John P. Cole

Miranda Curtis

John W. Dick

Paul A. Gould

Richard R. Green

David E. Rapley

Larry E. Romrell

JC Sparkman

J. David Wargo

Directors’ Remuneration Report
Details of the directors’ compensation (remuneration) and their interests in the shares of Liberty Global are set out in the

Directors’ Remuneration Report and sections of the 2016 proxy statement (including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis
section). For additional information, see Table of Contents.
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Disclosure of Information to Auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there
is no relevant audit information of which Liberty Global’s auditors are unaware; and each director has taken all the steps that they
ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that Liberty Global’s
auditors are aware of that information.

Re-Appointment of the Auditors

In accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act, a resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG LLP (U .K.) as statutory
auditors of the company has been proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Directors’ Report was approved by the Board of Directors on April 25, 2016 and was signed on its behalf by:

/s BRYAN H. HALL
Bryan H. Hall

Executive Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

Company registered number: 8379990



STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE 2015 U.K. COMPANIES ACT ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable U.K. law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have elected to
prepare the group financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP and applicable law, and have elected to prepare the parent
company financial statements in accordance with U.K. Accounting Standards and applicable law (U.K. Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 101, Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period. In preparing each of the
group and parent company financial statements, the directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
*  make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

»  state whether applicable U.S. GAAP has been followed in the group financial statements, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

+ state whether applicable U.K. Accounting Standards have been followed in the parent company financial statements, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

»  prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and the parent
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company and enable them to
ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They have general responsibility for taking such steps
as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the company’s

website. Legislation in the U.K. governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions.

II-1



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC

We have audited the group financial statements of Liberty Global plc for the year ended December 31, 2015 set out on pages 11-3
to [I-142. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP).

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page II-1, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit, and
express an opinion on, the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the group financial statements:
+ give atrue and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at December 31, 2015 and of its loss for the year then ended;
* have been properly prepared in accordance with US GAAP; and

*  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the group financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our
opinion:

+  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

*  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Liberty Global plc for the year ended December 31,
2015 and on the information in the Directors” Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.

/s/ JOHN CAIN

John Cain (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square, London, E14 5GL
April 25,2016
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2015 2014
Liberty Liberty
Global Companies Global Companies
10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a)
in millions
ASSETS
Fixed assets:
Intangible assets not subject to amortization (note 9) ............. $ 6905 §$ 690.5 $ 5570 $ 557.0
Intangible assets subject to amortization, net (notes 9
AN 21) oo 7,092.5 7,092.5 9,189.8 9,189.8
GOOdWIIL (NOLE D) ..t 27,020.4 27,020.4 29,001.6 29,001.6
Total intangible assets and goodwill............ccccceeevrirnncns 34,803.4 34,803.4 38,748.4 38,748.4
Property and equipment, net (notes 9 and 21) .........ccccecevenenene 21,684.0 21,684.0 23,840.6 23,840.6
Investments (including $2,591.8 million and $1,662.7 million,
respectively, measured at fair value) (notes 6 and 21)........... 2,839.6 2,839.6 1,808.2 1,808.2
Total fixed aSSets......c.eeruieierieieieeere e 59,327.0 59,327.0 64,397.2 64,397.2
Current assets:
Trade receivables, Net..........coccvireririinierieeeieeeee e 1,467.7 1,467.7 1,499.5 1,499.5
Other assets: amounts recoverable in less than one year......... 215.8 215.8 262.7 262.7
Other assets: amounts recoverable in more than one year
(0tes 2, 7 a0d 11)..veieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 5,180.6 5,180.6 4,519.4 4,519.4
Derivative instruments (NOt€ 7) ....c.ecvveverververeerieeieneeseeneenenes 421.9 421.9 446.6 446.6
Deferred income taxes (notes 2 and 11) ......ccceecveeeeerieenieennn. — — 290.3 290.3
Prepaid eXPenses .........coceveririerienenienieieieeteeeeeee e 144.2 144.2 189.7 189.7
Total debtors and other assets..........c.cceceerervereriieneeieneens 7,430.2 7,430.2 7,208.2 7,208.2
Cash and cash equivalents..........ccccceecveeveeriieneenieeie e 982.1 982.1 1,158.5 1,158.5
Restricted cash........ccocevirininininicccccceeee 127.9 127.9 78.0 78.0
Total CUITENt ASSELS ....eevereieiieiieiieierie et 8,540.2 8,540.2 8,444.7 8,444.7
Total ASSELS.....cvevvereeieieicicicecece e $§ 67,8672 $§ 67,8672 $§ 72,8419 § 72,8419

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS — (Continued)

LIABILITIES

Creditors — amounts falling due within one year:

Current portion of debt (note 10)........ccecvrvierievierieierieieeee

Current portion of capital lease obligations (note 10).............

Total current portion of debt and capital lease

ODLIZAtIONS ...
Accounts payable.........cooceiiiieiieeee e

Provisions for liabilities (notes 14 and 21).......ccccceevveevueennenn.

Deferred revenue and advance payments from subscribers

ANA OthETS ...
Derivative instruments (NOt€ 7) ....c.ecvveververiereerieeeenieeeenaenenen

ACCIUEA INTEIEST....vviiiiiiieieee et eenaes
Accrued INCOME tAXES........oeevuviiieeeeeeereeeeeeee e eeeeeeeeee e e
Accrued capital expenditures ............cocceveevinieneiiene e

Other accrued and current liabilities (note 2).........cccoeeverveeenn.

Deferred revenue, derivatives, accruals and other

current Habilities ........coeveiirireneneeeee e
Total creditors: amounts falling due within one year.....
Net current liabilities. ......cccevererereriineneneieieeeceerceeese e

Total assets less current liabilities..........cccoovevvvieeiiviinieeeieineeen.

Creditors — amounts falling due after one year:

Long-term debt (note 10).......ccevivieniiiiiiniiinieeeeceeeeeeen
Long-term capital lease obligations (note 10).......c..ccccueneenne..

Total long-term debt and capital lease obligations........

Other non-current liabilities (notes 2, 7 and 11).........ccceeueee
Deferred income and deposits .........cceecvevvecierieriencieneeierieennn

Total creditors: amounts falling due after one year.......
Provisions for liabilities (notes 11, 14, 15 and 21) ........cceuvueeee

Total HabIlities .......coovveeeereieeieee e

Commitments and contingencies (notes 4, 7, 10, 11, 15, 17
and 20)

December 31,

2015 2014
Liberty Liberty
Global Companies Global Companies
10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a)
in millions
2,382.1 $ 2,382.1 § 1,3524 § 1,352.4
155.8 155.8 198.5 198.5
2,537.9 2,537.9 1,550.9 1,550.9
1,050.1 1,050.1 1,039.0 1,039.0
226.5 226.5 389.6 389.6
1,393.5 1,393.5 1,452.2 1,452.2
346.3 346.3 1,043.7 1,043.7
832.8 832.8 690.6 690.6
483.5 483.5 413.7 413.7
441.8 441.8 412.4 412.4
1,845.5 1,845.5 2,198.2 2,198.2
5,343.4 5,343.4 6,210.8 6,210.8
9,157.9 9,157.9 9,190.3 9,190.3
(617.7) 617.7) (745.6) (745.6)
58,709.3 58,709.3 63,651.6 63,651.6
43,352.4 43,352.4 43,259.0 43,259.0
1,167.0 1,167.0 1,349.1 1,349.1
44,519.4 44,519.4 44,608.1 44,608.1
3,173.1 3,173.1 4,011.2 4,011.2
130.0 130.0 158.6 158.6
47,822.5 47,822.5 48,7779 48,7779
712.5 712.5 757.7 757.7
57,6929 § 57,6929 $§ 58,7259 § 58,7259

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS — (Continued)

December 31,

2015 2014
Liberty Liberty
Global Companies Global Companies
10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a)

in millions
EQUITY
Equity (note 12):
Liberty Global shareholders:
Liberty Global Shares — Class A, $0.01 nominal value. Issued and

outstanding 252,766,455 and nil shares, respectively..................... $ 25§ 25 8§ — $ —
Liberty Global Shares — Class B, $0.01 nominal value. Issued and

outstanding 10,472,517 and nil shares, respectively..........cc.coeu... 0.1 0.1 - -
Liberty Global Shares — Class C, $0.01 nominal value. Issued and

outstanding 584,044,394 and nil shares, respectively..........c..c...... 5.9 5.9 - -
LiLAC Shares — Class A, $0.01 nominal value. Issued and

outstanding 12,630,580 and nil shares, respectively..........ccocvenenn. 0.1 0.1 - —

LiLAC Shares — Class B, $0.01 nominal value. Issued and
outstanding 523,423 and nil shares, respectively........ccccceevvreennnne - -

LiLAC Shares — Class C, $0.01 nominal value. Issued and

outstanding 30,772,874 and nil shares, respectively........c..ccccecue.e 0.3 0.3 - -
Old Liberty Global Shares — Class A, $0.01 nominal value. Issued
and outstanding nil and 251,167,686 shares, respectively .............. - — 25 25
Old Liberty Global Shares — Class B, $0.01 nominal value. Issued
and outstanding nil and 10,139,184 shares, respectively................ - - 0.1 0.1
Old Liberty Global Shares — Class C, $0.01 nominal value. Issued
and outstanding nil and 630,353,372 shares, respectively .............. - - 6.3 6.3
Additional paid-in capital ..........cccoeeerieiirierie e 14,908.1 17,070.8
Share premium reserve (component of additional paid-in capital in
L0-K) oottt 6,580.8 6,496.8
Share option and other reserves (component of additional paid-in
capital i 10-K) ....o.ooivieieieiceeeeee e 8,327.3 10,574.0
Accumulated defiCit.........coviviriririnieiecccc e (5,160.1)  (5,160.1) (4,007.6) (4,007.6)
Accumulated other comprehensive earnings, net of taxes.................. 895.9 895.9 1,646.6 1,646.6
Treasury shares, at COSt.......ooirriirirriirieieeiere e 0.4) 0.4) 4.2) 4.2)
Total Liberty Global shareholders ............ccceveevieniivineenenenene. 10,652.4 10,652.4 14,714.5 14,714.5
Noncontrolling INtEIESES .........cveveeierieieeieeeee e (478.1) (478.1) (598.5) (598.5)
TOtal @QUILY ...eeveeeieeiriericeier e 10,174.3 10,174.3 14,116.0 14,116.0
Total liabilities and qUILY .........ccveverirreeneineinieencereeee $ 67,8672 § 67,867.2 § 72,8419 § 72,841.9

(a)  Inorder to comply with the Companies Act, amounts have been reclassified in the case of the Liberty Global 10-K columns
and further adjusted in the case of the Companies Act columns from those that were presented in our December 31, 2015
Form 10-K. See note 1.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on April 25, 2016 and were signed on its behalf by:

/s/ MICHAEL T. FRIES
Michael T. Fries

President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director
Company registered number: 8379990

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

Liberty Liberty Liberty

Global Companies Global Companies Global Companies

10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a)

in millions, except share and per share amounts
Revenue (note 18) ....ceevvveievieeiiieeeeee, $ 18,280.0 $ 18,280.0 $ 18,2483 $ 182749 $ 144742 $ 14,882.8
Operating costs and expenses:
Operating (other than depreciation and

amortization) (including share-based

compensation) (note 13).........cecvevvevenenne. 6,764.0 6,764.0 6,845.9 6,864.7 5,434.8 5,716.1
Depreciation and amortization...................... 5,825.8 5,825.8 5,500.1 5,500.1 4276.4 4305.5

Cost of revenue..........cocveevveieverieieieiennne 12,589.8 12,589.8 12,346.0 12,364.8 9,711.2 10,021.6
5,690.2 5,690.2 5,902.3 5,910.1 4,763.0 4,861.2
Administrative expenses including selling,

general and other expenses (SG&A)

(MOt 13).eiiiiieieiice e 3,166.9 3,166.9 3,137.3 3,144.6 2,599.4 2,679.7
Release of litigation provision...................... — — — — (146.0) (146.0)
Impairment, restructuring and other

operating items, net (notes 4, 9, 14

AN 17) oo 174.1 174.1 536.8 536.7 297.5 309.1

Other operating income...........c.cceceeveeuee 174.1 174.1 536.8 536.7 151.5 163.1
15,930.8 15,930.8 16,020.1 16,046.1 12,462.1 12,864.4
Operating iNCOME ............cceverueerreneennns 2,349.2 2,349.2 22282 2,228.8 2,012.1 2,018.4
Interest, financial and other items:
INLEreSt EXPENSE ...vvvenverierenierereeiiereeieieeeeienns (2,441.4) (2,441.4) (2,544.7) (2,544.8) (2,286.9) (2,285.7)
Interest and dividend income...........cccoceeuen. 35.9 35.9 31.7 31.6 113.1 34.8
Financial and other items:
Gains (losses) on derivative instruments,
NEt (NOLE 7) e 847.2 847.2 88.8 88.9 (1,020.4) (1,022.4)
Foreign currency transaction gains
(1088€8), Nt ..neeieeeiieeeeeee e (1,149.2) (1,149.2) (836.5) (837.9) 349.3 346.1
Gains (losses) due to changes in fair
values of certain investments, net
(notes 6 and 8).......ceeevveereininieeenen, 124.5 124.5 205.2 (39.5) 524.1 (62.9)
Losses on debt modification and
extinguishment, net (note 10) ................ (388.0) (388.0) (186.2) (186.2) (212.2) (212.2)
Settlement of equity-related derivative
instrument (note 21).......cocoeveverrerernnnnn. — — — 258.4 — —
Gains due to changes in ownership
(MO 21) i — — — 671.7 — —
Gain on disposal of discontinued
OPETALION ...vveevieivieeieereieieeve e — 3335 —
Other income (expense), net (note 21)....... (62.8) (62.8) (42.4) (111.2) (5.6) 40.8
(628.3) (628.3) (771.1) 177.7 (364.8) (910.6)
Loss from continuing operations before
INCOME tAXES .....veevveeereereeeeeeereeereereennean (684.6) (1,055.9) (526.5)
Loss before income taxes........................ (684.6) (106.7) (1,143.1)
Income tax benefit (expense) (note 11)........... (364.9) (364.9) 75.0 74.9 (355.5) (378.2)
Loss from continuing operations............. $  (1,049.5) $ (980.9) $ (882.0)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS — (Continued)

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013

Liberty Global Companies Liberty Global Companies Liberty Global Companies
10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a)

in millions, except share and per share amounts

Discontinued operation (note 5):

Earnings (loss) from discontinued

operation, net of taxes................ $ — $ 0.8 $ (23.7)
Gain on disposal of discontinued

operation, net of taxes................ — 332.7 —

— 3335 (23.7)
NEt10SS ...oeeevveeeirieeerreicces (1,049.5) (1,049.5) (647.4) (31.8) (905.7) (1,521.3)

Net earnings attributable to
noncontrolling interests ................ (103.0) (103.0) (47.6) (47.6) (58.2) (58.2)
Net loss attributable to Liberty

Global shareholders.............. $ (1,152.5) § (1,152.5) $ (695.0) $ (79.4) $ (963.9) $ (1,579.5)

Basic and diluted earnings (loss)
attributable to Liberty Global
shareholders per share (notes 1
and 3):

Liberty Global Shares................. $ 0.19) $ (0.19)
LiLAC Shares $ 039 § 0.39
Old Liberty Global Shares:

Continuing operations............... $ (1.13) $ (1.29) $ (1.39)
Discontinued operation............. _ 0.42 (0.04)
$ (1.13) § (1.13) § 0.87) $ (0.10) $ (1.43) § (2.35)

(a) In order to comply with the Companies Act, amounts have been reclassified in the case of the Liberty Global 10-K columns and further
adjusted in the case of the Companies Act columns from those that were presented in our December 31, 2015 Form 10-K. See note 1.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Liberty . Liberty . Liberty .
Global Companies Global Companies Global Companies
10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a)

in millions

NEtLOSS oot $ (1,049.5) § (1,049.5) § (647.4) § (31.8) $ (905.7) $ (1,521.3)

Other comprehensive earnings (loss), net of
taxes (note 16):

Foreign currency translation adjustments..... (732.9) (732.9) (935.9) (932.6) 900.8 897.5
Reclassification adjustments included in net
LOSS ot L5 L5 124.4 124.4 0.7) 0.7)
Pension-related adjustments and other ......... (18.8) (18.8) (71.2) (71.2) 11.3 11.3
Other comprehensive earnings (loss)....... (750.2) (750.2) (882.7) (879.4) 9114 908.1
Comprehensive earnings (10sS)................ (1,799.7) (1,799.7)  (1,530.1) 911.2) 5.7 (613.2)
Comprehensive earnings attributable to
noncontrolling interests ..............ccccoevevennee. (103.5) (103.5) (47.1) (47.1) (41.3) (41.3)
Comprehensive loss attributable to
Liberty Global sharcholders................. $ (1,903.2) $ (1,903.2) $ (1,577.2) $ (958.3) § (35.6) $ (654.5)

(a)  Inorder to comply with the Companies Act, amounts have been reclassified in the case of the Liberty Global 10-K columns
and further adjusted in the case of the Companies Act columns from those that were presented in our December 31, 2015
Form 10-K. See note 1.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:

INEE L0SS -ttt e a et b bbb ean

Loss (earnings) from discontinued Operation..............cc.ceeeeeereeeeereereeereeseeereeeneenean

Loss from continuing OPErations ............ceccuerveeruerieeiesreesseeeesseeeesseesesseesesseessessees

Adjustments to reconcile loss from continuing operations to net cash provided

by operating activities:

Share-based COMPENSAtION EXPENSE ...ecuvrervrerrierireeieerireesreenreeereeseesseessneesseenes
Depreciation and amortiZation ............c.eecveeeereeriereereseeneseeseseesessesseeneneeens
Release of 1itigation ProvisSion..........cceceeeeerierierieniene et
Impairment, restructuring and other operating items, net .........c.ccecceerererennns
Amortization of deferred financing costs and non-cash interest accretion .......
Losses (gains) on derivative inStruments, Net...........cceeeveruerverervereereneeneneens
Foreign currency transaction 10sses (gains), Net.........coccevereerereenieneenienieenienns

Gains due to changes in fair values of certain investments, including impact
OF AIVIAENAS....ceeiiiiiiiiiei e s

Losses on debt modification and extinguishment, net.............ccocevevvereereennene
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)..........ccevveieviiiiieniiiieniiieecesieeeiens
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation.............ccceeeeeveeeerieeeennnne

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of the effects of acquisitions
and dispositions:

Receivables and other operating assets ...........cocevveeeverieecieseenieneesieeeeneenes
Payables and aCCruals ...........ceecvievieeiierieciiciecieceeee et

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities of discontinued operation...........
Net cash provided by operating activities ...........ceccevueererierenieneeieeeceeeee

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital EXPENAITUIES ......ecvvervieeieiieieieeie sttt ettt e e e b e eeeebeeseesseesaesreessesseessesseas
Investments in and loans to affiliates and others ............ccocceeeerieiinieiieeeee
Cash paid in connection with acquisitions, net of cash acquired ..............cccovvennenee.

Proceeds received upon disposition of discontinued operation, net of disposal

Other InVesting aCtiVItIes, NEL .......ecuerieriiiieieitieie e

Net cash used by investing activities of discontinued operation, including
deconsolidated Cash .........oooveiiiiiiieeee e

Net cash used by investing aCtiVities .........cceevvereerierierieniereeieie e eeeee e

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
in millions
(1,049.5) $ (647.4) $ (905.7)
— (333.5) 23.7
(1,049.5) (980.9) (882.0)
318.2 257.2 300.7
5,825.8 5,500.1 4,276.4
— — (146.0)
174.1 536.8 297.5
80.8 84.3 78.0
(847.2) (88.8) 1,020.4
1,149.2 836.5 (349.3)
(121.4) (203.7) (523.1)
388.0 186.2 212.2
(50.1) (350.6) 18.6
(26.7) (7.0) (41.0)
566.5 860.5 866.7
(701.9)  (1,017.8)  (1,208.1)
— 9.6) 10.3
5,705.8 5,603.2 3,931.3
(2,499.5) (2,684.4) (2,481.5)
(999.6)  (1,016.6)  (1,350.3)
(385.8) (73.3) (4,073.4)
— 988.5 —
55.5 (13.8) (44.9)
— (3.8) (14.9)

(3,8294) $ (2,803.4) $ (7,965.0)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — (Continued)

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013
in millions

Cash flows from financing activities:

BOrrowings Of debt ........c.ciiviiiiiieiiiercectceteeee ettt $ 152304 $ 95724 $ 9,670.3
Repayments and repurchases of debt and capital lease obligations ...........cc.cceeue.e. (13,881.4)  (11,316.1) (8,318.6)
Repurchase of Liberty Global ordinary shares .............c.cccveeenecinecinennenncnneenn (2,320.5) (1,584.9) (1,157.2)
Payment of financing costs, debt premiums and exchange offer consideration....... (423.3) (379.8) (389.6)
Net cash received (paid) related to derivative inStruments............cccceceeeeecercncnennens (301.2) (221.0) 524.5
Purchase of additional shares of subsidiaries .............ccccoccricicinnicieniccce (142.4) (260.7) (461.3)
Net cash received (paid) associated with call option contracts on Liberty Global
OTAINATY SHATES ......vvveveveieeticieiete et (78.3) (41.7) 59.6
Change in cash collateral..........cccoueoiiirinininininceeeeeee e (56.1) (58.7) 3,593.8
Distributions by subsidiaries to noncontrolling interest OWners..........cc.cocceeevenuennene (11.3) (12.1) (541.0)
Decrease in restricted cash related to the Telenet Tender..........c.ccovveeveeivieiieennennne. — — 1,539.7
Other financing activities, NEt..........coceiviiiiiiiiiiiiiic s (53.7) 42.5 103.1
Net cash used by financing activities of discontinued operation..........c..c.cceccvvenuenee. — (1.2) (7.4)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities ..........cccceeeeeeeeererereneneenn (2,037.8) (4,261.3) 4,615.9
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash — continuing operations..........c..cccceccveruene. (15.0) (81.9) 85.4

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents:

CoNtiNUING OPEIALIONS ..c..eveteiiriitenterteteiertet ettt ettt ettt ebe s sbe b b saeseeneen (176.4) (1,528.8) 679.6
Discontinued OPEration ........c..ccceceeerereriinienerienienienieeerereeeeeese e seeanes — (14.6) (12.0)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents...............cccevevuvennnnen. (176.4) (1,543.4) 667.6
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning 0f YEar........ccevuirieiiieiiieiteereeee e 1,158.5 2,701.9 2,038.9
ENd Of YAT ...ttt e 982.1 1,158.5 2,706.5
Less cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operation at end of year ...... — — (4.6)
Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations at end of year ........... $ 982.1 $ 11,1585 § 2,701.9
Cash paid for interest — cONtiNUING OPETAtIONS.......ccververuereeriereeieieieieeieeeeeeeeeeesieseens $ 21704 $ 23767 $ 2,1488
Net cash paid for taxes:
COoNtiNUING OPETALIONS......c.veveveeiiiaietiaietetetetet ettt ettt ettt ettt sbe e $ 2363 $ 973 § 97.5
DiscontinuUEd OPEIatION .....c.ccveuieuieiieiietiiiieieeteste sttt ettt ettt st — 2.2 11.7
] | USSP $ 2363 $ 995 $ 109.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

a Basis of Presentation

Liberty Global plc (Liberty Global) is a public limited company organized under the laws of England and Wales. In these

notes, the terms “we,” “our,” “our company” and “us” may refer, as the context requires, to Liberty Global or collectively to
Liberty Global and its subsidiaries.

We are an international provider of video, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services, with consolidated
operations at December 31, 2015 in 14 countries. Through our wholly-owned subsidiary Virgin Media Inc. (Virgin Media), we
provide video, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services in the United Kingdom (U.K.) and Ireland. Through
Ziggo Group Holding B.V. (Ziggo Group Holding) and Unitymedia GmbH (Unitymedia), each a wholly-owned subsidiary, and
Telenet Group Holding N.V. (Telenet), a 56.9%-owned subsidiary, we provide video, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony
and mobile services in the Netherlands, Germany and Belgium, respectively. Through our wholly-owned subsidiary UPC Holding
B.V. (UPC Holding), we provide (i) video, broadband internet and fixed-line telephony services in seven other European countries
and (ii) mobile services in four other European countries. The operations of Virgin Media, Ziggo Group Holding, Unitymedia,
Telenet and UPC Holding are collectively referred to herein as the “European Operations Division.” In Chile, we provide video,
broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services through our wholly-owned subsidiary VTR GlobalCom SpA (VTR).
In Puerto Rico, we provide video, broadband internet and fixed-line telephony services through Liberty Cablevision of Puerto
Rico LLC (Liberty Puerto Rico), an entity in which we hold a 60.0% ownership interest. The operations of VTR and Liberty
Puerto Rico are collectively referred to herein as the “LiLAC Division.”

On July 1, 2015, we completed the approved steps of the “LiLAC Transaction” whereby we (i) reclassified our then
outstanding Class A, Class B and Class C Liberty Global ordinary shares into corresponding classes of new Liberty Global ordinary
shares (collectively, the Liberty Global Shares) and (ii) capitalized a portion of our share premium account and distributed as a
dividend (or a “bonus issue” under U.K. law) our LiLAC Class A, Class B and Class C ordinary shares (collectively, the LILAC
Shares). In these notes, the term “Old Liberty Global Shares” may refer, as the context requires, to (a) our previously-outstanding
Class A, Class B and Class C Liberty Global ordinary shares and/or (b) the previously-outstanding Series A, Series B and Series
C common stock of Liberty Global, Inc. (LGI) (the predecessor to Liberty Global). Pursuant to the LiLAC Transaction, each
holder of Class A, Class B and Class C Old Liberty Global Shares remained a holder of the same amount and class of Liberty
Global Shares and received one share of the corresponding class of LiILAC Shares for each 20 Old Liberty Global Shares held as
of the record date for such distribution. Accordingly, we issued 12,625,362 Class A, 523,626 Class B and 30,776,883 Class C
LiLAC Shares. Cash was issued in lieu of fractional LiLAC Shares. The impact of the LILAC Transaction on our capitalization
and earnings (loss) per share presentation has been reflected in these consolidated financial statements prospectively from July 1,
2015. Accordingly, (1) our net earnings (loss) attributed to Liberty Global Shares and LiLAC Shares relates to the period from
July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 and (2) our net loss attributed to Old Liberty Global Shares relates to periods prior to
July 1, 2015.

The Liberty Global Shares and the LiLAC Shares are tracking shares. Tracking shares are intended by the issuing company
to reflect or “track” the economic performance of a particular business or “group,” rather than the economic performance of the
company as a whole. The Liberty Global Shares and the LiLAC Shares are intended to track the economic performance of the
Liberty Global Group and the LiLAC Group, respectively (each as defined and described below). While the Liberty Global Group
and the LiLAC Group have separate collections of businesses, assets and liabilities attributed to them, neither group is a separate
legal entity and therefore cannot own assets, issue securities or enter into legally binding agreements. Holders of tracking shares
have no direct claim to the group’s assets and are not represented by separate boards of directors. Instead, holders of tracking
shares are shareholders of the parent corporation, with a single board of directors, and are subject to all of the risks and liabilities
of the parent corporation. We and our subsidiaries each continue to be responsible for our respective liabilities. Holders of Liberty
Global Shares, LILAC Shares and any other of our capital shares designated as ordinary shares from time to time will continue
to be subject to risks associated with an investment in our company as a whole, even if a holder does not own both Liberty Global
Shares and LiLAC Shares.

The “LiLAC Group” comprises our businesses, assets and liabilities in Latin America and the Caribbean and has attributed
to it (i) VTR Finance B.V. (VTR Finance) and its subsidiaries, which include VTR, (ii) Lila Chile Holding B.V., which is the
parent entity of VTR Finance, (iii) LILAC Holdings Inc. (LiLAC Holdings) and its subsidiaries, which include Liberty Puerto
Rico, (iv) LGE Coral Holdco Limited and its subsidiary, which were formed in anticipation of the acquisition of CWC (as described
and defined in note 4), and (v) prior to July 1, 2015, the costs associated with certain corporate employees of Liberty Global that
are exclusively focused on the management of the LiLAC Group (the LILAC Corporate Costs). Effective July 1, 2015, these
corporate employees were transferred to LILAC Holdings. The “Liberty Global Group” comprises our businesses, assets and
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

liabilities not attributed to the LiLAC Group, including Virgin Media, Ziggo Group Holding, Unitymedia, Telenet, UPC Holding,
our corporate entities (excluding the LiLAC Corporate Costs) and certain other less significant entities.

For additional information regarding our tracking share capital structure, including unaudited attributed financial information
of the Liberty Global Group and the LILAC Group, see Exhibit 99.1 to our December 31, 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K
(2015 10-K) as filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

OnlJanuary 31,2014, we completed the sale of substantially all of the assets (the Chellomedia Disposal Group) of Chellomedia
B.V. (Chellomedia) (the Chellomedia Transaction). Chellomedia held certain of our programming interests in Europe and Latin
America. We have accounted for the sale of the Chellomedia Disposal Group as a discontinued operation in our consolidated
financial statements. For additional information regarding our discontinued operation, see note 5.

Unless otherwise indicated, ownership percentages and convenience translations into United States (U.S.) dollars are calculated
as of December 31, 2015.

The directors have elected to prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (GAAP) for purposes of our 2015, 2014 and 2013 U K. statutory annual reports, as permitted by
the U.K. Companies Act 2006 (Companies Act) to the extent that those principles do not contravene with any provisions of the
Companies Act. Accordingly, in order to comply with the Companies Act, we have revised the presentation of our consolidated
balance sheets, statements of operations, statements of comprehensive loss and statements of equity from that which we included
in our 2015 10-K. In addition, we have included Companies Act columns or tables in these statements, as applicable, that have
been further adjusted (i) to account for our investment in Ziggo (as defined in note 4) under the equity method of accounting
instead of the fair value method prior to the Ziggo Acquisition (as defined in note 4), (which resulted in a (a) $615.6 million
decrease to our net loss and a $3.3 million decrease to our other comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2014 and
a $615.6 million increase to our net loss and a $3.3 million decrease to our other comprehensive earnings for the year ended
December 31, 2013 and (b) $618.9 million decrease to the December 31, 2013 carrying value of our investment in Ziggo), (ii) to
re-present our discontinued operation (the Chellomedia Disposal Group at December 31, 2013 and for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013) from discontinued to continuing operations and (iii) to add notes 21 and 22, which contain certain
supplemental disclosures required by the Companies Act, including information with respect to the application of the equity method
of accounting to our Ziggo investment. Due to materiality considerations, we have not adjusted our footnote disclosures to re-
present the Chellomedia Disposal Group to continuing operations. Under GAAP, we do not amortize goodwill. Instead goodwill
is carried at cost less impairment, as described in note 3. The Companies Act, in accordance with the Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Group (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, also requires that goodwill be carried at cost, as reduced by
provisions for depreciation calculated to write off the goodwill systematically over a period chosen by the directors, which does
not exceed its useful economic life. However, the directors consider that this would fail to give a true and fair view of our results
for the year and that the economic measure of performance in any period is properly made by reference only to any impairment
that may have arisen. It is not practicable to quantify the effect on the financial statements of this departure. Any impairment
charge would be included in operating income (loss).

2) Accounting Changes and Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting Changes

In November 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No.
2015-17, Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes (ASU 2015-17). To simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes,
ASU 2015-17 requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be classified as noncurrent. ASU 2015-17 is effective for interim and
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, with early adoption permitted. We early adopted ASU 2015-17 effective
December 31, 2015 and, accordingly, all of our deferred tax balances are reflected as noncurrent in our December 31, 2015
consolidated balance sheet. Our December 31, 2014 deferred tax balances have not been retroactively revised.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (ASU 2016-02), which, for most leases, will result in lessees
recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet with additional disclosures about leasing arrangements. ASU
2016-02 will replace existing lease guidance when it becomes effective for annual and interim reporting periods beginning after
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

December 15, 2018. ASU 2016-02 requires lessees and lessors to recognize and measure leases at the beginning of the earliest
period presented using a modified retrospective approach. The modified retrospective approach also includes a number of optional
practical expedients an entity may elect to apply. We expect to adopt ASU 2016-02 no later than January 1, 2019 and we are
currently evaluating the effect that ASU 2016-02 will have on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASU 2014-09), which requires
an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers. ASU 2014-09, as amended by ASU No. 2015-14, will replace existing revenue recognition guidance when it becomes
effective for annual and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. Early application is permitted for annual
and interim reporting periods that begin after December 15, 2016. This new standard permits the use of either the retrospective or
cumulative effect transition method. We will adopt ASU 2014-09 effective January 1, 2018, and we are currently evaluating the
effect that ASU 2014-09 will have on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. We have not yet selected a
transition method nor have we determined the effect of the standard on our ongoing financial reporting.

A3) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates and assumptions are used in accounting for, among other things, the valuation
of acquisition-related assets and liabilities, allowances for uncollectible accounts, programming and copyright expenses, deferred
income taxes and related valuation allowances, loss contingencies, fair value measurements, impairment assessments, capitalization
of internal costs associated with construction and installation activities, useful lives of long-lived assets, share-based compensation
and actuarial liabilities associated with certain benefit plans. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include our accounts and the accounts of all voting interest entities where
we exercise a controlling financial interest through the ownership of a direct or indirect controlling voting interest and variable
interest entities for which our company is the primary beneficiary. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash equivalents consist of money market funds and other investments that are readily convertible into cash and have maturities
of three months or less at the time of acquisition. We record money market funds at the net asset value reported by the investment
manager as there are no restrictions on our ability, contractual or otherwise, to redeem our investments at the stated net asset value
reported by the investment manager.

Restricted cash consists of cash held in restricted accounts, including cash held as collateral for debt and other compensating
balances. Restricted cash amounts that are required to be used to purchase long-term assets or repay long-term debt are classified
as long-term assets. All other cash that is restricted to a specific use is classified as current or long-term based on the expected
timing of the disbursement. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, our aggregate current and long-term restricted cash balances
aggregated $127.9 million and $78.0 million, respectively.

Our significant non-cash investing and financing activities are disclosed in our consolidated statements of equity and in notes
4,7,9, and 10.
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Trade Receivables

Our trade receivables are reported net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Such allowance aggregated $115.7 million and
$116.1 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based upon our assessment
of probable loss related to uncollectible accounts receivable. We use a number of factors in determining the allowance, including,
among other things, collection trends, prevailing and anticipated economic conditions and specific customer credit risk. The
allowance is maintained until either payment is received or the likelihood of collection is considered to be remote.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited due to the large number of customers and their dispersion
across many different countries worldwide. We also manage this risk by disconnecting services to customers whose accounts are
delinquent.

Investments

We make elections, on an investment-by-investment basis, as to whether we measure our investments at fair value. Such
elections are generally irrevocable. With the exception of those investments over which we exercise significant influence, we
generally elect the fair value method. For those investments over which we exercise significant influence, we generally elect the
equity method.

Under the fair value method, investments are recorded at fair value and any changes in fair value are reported in gains or
losses due to changes in fair values of certain investments, net, in our consolidated statements of operations. All costs directly
associated with the acquisition of an investment to be accounted for using the fair value method are expensed as incurred. Under
the equity method of accounting, investments are recorded at cost and are subsequently increased or reduced to reflect the share
of income or losses of the investee. All costs directly associated with the acquisition of an investment to be accounted for using
the equity method are included in the carrying amount of the investment. For additional information regarding our fair value and
equity method investments, see notes 6 and 8.

Dividends from publicly-traded investees are recognized when declared as dividend income in our consolidated statements
of operations. Dividends from privately-held investees generally are reflected as reductions of the carrying values of the applicable
investments.

Under the equity method, investments, originally recorded at cost, are adjusted to recognize our share of net earnings or losses
of the affiliates as they occur rather than as dividends or other distributions are received, with our recognition of losses generally
limited to the extent of our investment in, and advances and commitments to, the investee. The portion of the difference between
our investment and our share of the net assets of the investee that represents goodwill is not amortized, but continues to be considered
for impairment. Intercompany profits on transactions with equity affiliates for which assets remain on our or our investee’s balance
sheet are eliminated to the extent of our ownership in the investee.

We continually review our equity method investments to determine whether a decline in fair value below the cost basis is
other-than-temporary. The primary factors we consider in our determination are the extent and length of time that the fair value
ofthe investment is below our company’s carrying value and the financial condition, operating performance and near-term prospects
of the investee, changes in the stock price or valuation subsequent to the balance sheet date, and the impacts of exchange rates, if
applicable. If the decline in fair value of an equity method investment is deemed to be other-than-temporary, the cost basis of the
security is written down to fair value.

Realized gains and losses are determined on an average cost basis. Securities transactions are recorded on the trade date.
Financial Instruments
Due to the short maturities of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, short-term liquid investments, trade and other
receivables, other current assets, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, subscriber advance payments and deposits and other current
liabilities, their respective carrying values approximate their respective fair values. For information concerning the fair values of

certain of our investments, our derivatives and debt, see notes 6, 7 and 10, respectively. For information concerning how we arrive
at certain of our fair value measurements, see note 8.
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Derivative Instruments

All derivative instruments, whether designated as hedging relationships or not, are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value.
If the derivative instrument is not designated as a hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument are recognized in
earnings. If the derivative instrument is designated as a fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument
and of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in earnings. If the derivative instrument is designated as a
cash flow hedge, the effective portions of changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument are recorded in other comprehensive
earnings or loss and subsequently reclassified into our consolidated statements of operations when the hedged forecasted transaction
affects earnings. Ineffective portions of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges are recognized in earnings. With the exception
of a limited number of our foreign currency forward contracts, we do not apply hedge accounting to our derivative instruments.
For information regarding our derivative instruments, including our policy for classifying cash flows related to derivative
instruments in our consolidated statements of cash flows, see note 7.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. We capitalize costs associated with the construction
of new cable transmission and distribution facilities and the installation of new cable services. Capitalized construction and
installation costs include materials, labor and other directly attributable costs. Installation activities that are capitalized include
(1) the initial connection (or drop) from our cable system to a customer location, (ii) the replacement of'a drop and (iii) the installation
of equipment for additional services, such as digital cable, telephone or broadband internet service. The costs of other customer-
facing activities such as reconnecting customer locations where a drop already exists, disconnecting customer locations and
repairing or maintaining drops, are expensed as incurred. Interest capitalized with respect to construction activities was not material
during any of the periods presented.

Capitalized internal-use software is included as a component of property and equipment. We capitalize internal and external
costs directly associated with the development of internal-use software. We also capitalize costs associated with the purchase of
software licenses. Maintenance and training costs, as well as costs incurred during the preliminary stage of an internal-use software
development project, are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the underlying asset. Equipment
under capital leases is amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life of the asset.
Useful lives used to depreciate our property and equipment are assessed periodically and are adjusted when warranted. The useful
lives of cable distribution systems that are undergoing a rebuild are adjusted such that property and equipment to be retired will
be fully depreciated by the time the rebuild is completed. For additional information regarding the useful lives of our property and
equipment, see note 9.

Additions, replacements and improvements that extend the asset life are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance are charged to
operations.

We recognize a liability for asset retirement obligations in the period in which it is incurred if sufficient information is available
to make a reasonable estimate of fair values. Asset retirement obligations may arise from the loss of rights of way that we obtain
from local municipalities or other relevant authorities. Under certain circumstances, the authorities could require us to remove our
network equipment from an area if, for example, we were to discontinue using the equipment for an extended period of time or
the authorities were to decide not to renew our access rights. However, because the rights of way are integral to our ability to
deliver broadband communications services to our customers, we expect to conduct our business in a manner that will allow us
to maintain these rights for the foreseeable future. In addition, we have no reason to believe that the authorities will not renew our
rights of way and, historically, renewals have been granted. We also have obligations in lease agreements to restore the property
to its original condition or remove our property at the end of the lease term. Sufficient information is not available to estimate the
fair value of our asset retirement obligations in certain of our lease arrangements. This is the case for long-term lease arrangements
in which the underlying leased property is integral to our operations, there is not an acceptable alternative to the leased property
and we have the ability to indefinitely renew the lease. Accordingly, for most of our rights of way and certain lease agreements,
the possibility is remote that we will incur significant removal costs in the foreseeable future and, as such, we do not have sufficient
information to make a reasonable estimate of fair value for these asset retirement obligations.

Asof December 31,2015 and 2014, the recorded value of our asset retirement obligations was $63.9 million and $65.1 million,
respectively.
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Intangible Assets

Our primary intangible assets relate to goodwill, customer relationships and cable television franchise rights. Goodwill
represents the excess purchase price over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired in a business combination. Customer
relationships and cable television franchise rights were originally recorded at their fair values in connection with business
combinations.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but instead are tested for impairment at
least annually. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their respective estimated useful lives
to their estimated residual values, and reviewed for impairment.

We do not amortize our franchise rights and certain other intangible assets as these assets have indefinite lives. For additional
information regarding the useful lives of our intangible assets, see note 9.

Impairment of Property and Equipment and Intangible Assets

We review, when circumstances warrant, the carrying amounts of our property and equipment and our intangible assets (other
than goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets) to determine whether such carrying amounts continue to be recoverable.
Such changes in circumstance may include (i) an expectation of a sale or disposal of a long-lived asset or asset group, (ii) adverse
changes in market or competitive conditions, (iii) an adverse change in legal factors or business climate in the markets in which
we operate and (iv) operating or cash flow losses. For purposes of impairment testing, long-lived assets are grouped at the lowest
level for which cash flows are largely independent of other assets and liabilities, generally at or below the reporting unit level (see
below). If the carrying amount of the asset or asset group is greater than the expected undiscounted cash flows to be generated by
such asset or asset group, an impairment adjustment is recognized. Such adjustment is measured by the amount that the carrying
value of such asset or asset group exceeds its fair value. We generally measure fair value by considering (a) sale prices for similar
assets, (b) discounted estimated future cash flows using an appropriate discount rate and/or (c) estimated replacement cost. Assets
to be disposed of are carried at the lower of their financial statement carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

We evaluate the goodwill, franchise rights and other indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment at least annually on
October 1 and whenever other facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of goodwill and other indefinite-lived
intangible assets may not be recoverable. For impairment evaluations with respect to both goodwill and other indefinite-lived
intangibles, we first make a qualitative assessment to determine if the goodwill or other indefinite-lived intangible may be impaired.
In the case of goodwill, if it is more-likely-than-not that a reporting unit’s fair value is less than its carrying value, we then compare
the fair value of the reporting unit to its respective carrying amount. A reporting unit is an operating segment or one level below
an operating segment (referred to as a “component”). In most cases, our operating segments are deemed to be a reporting unit
either because the operating segment is comprised of only a single component, or the components below the operating segment
are aggregated as they have similar economic characteristics. If the carrying value of a reporting unit were to exceed its fair value,
we would then compare the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill to its carrying amount, and any excess of the carrying
amount over the fair value would be charged to operations as an impairment loss. With respect to franchise rights or other indefinite-
lived intangible assets, if it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset is less than its carrying
value, we then estimate its fair value and any excess of the carrying value over the fair value of the franchise right or other indefinite-
lived intangible asset is also charged to operations as an impairment loss.
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Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and income tax basis of assets
and liabilities and the expected benefits of utilizing net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards, using enacted tax rates in effect
for each taxing jurisdiction in which we operate for the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled. We recognize the financial statement effects of a tax position when it is more-likely-than-not, based on technical merits,
that the position will be sustained upon examination. Net deferred tax assets are then reduced by a valuation allowance if we
believe it is more-likely-than-not such net deferred tax assets will not be realized. Certain of our valuation allowances and tax
uncertainties are associated with entities that we acquired in business combinations. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities
of a change in tax rates is recognized in earnings in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax liabilities related to
investments in foreign subsidiaries and foreign corporate joint ventures that are essentially permanent in duration are not recognized
until it becomes apparent that such amounts will reverse in the foreseeable future. Interest and penalties related to income tax
liabilities are included in income tax expense in our consolidated statements of operations. For additional information on our
income taxes, see note 11.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

The reporting currency of our company is the U.S. dollar. The functional currency of our foreign operations generally is the
applicable local currency for each foreign subsidiary and equity method investee. Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries
(including intercompany balances for which settlement is not anticipated in the foreseeable future) are translated at the spot rate
ineffectatthe applicable reporting date. With the exception of certain material transactions, the amounts reported in our consolidated
statements of operations are translated at the average exchange rates in effect during the applicable period. The resulting unrealized
cumulative translation adjustment, net of applicable income taxes, is recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
earnings or loss in our consolidated statements of equity. With the exception of certain material transactions, the cash flows from
our operations in foreign countries are translated at the average rate for the applicable period in our consolidated statements of
cash flows. The impacts of material transactions generally are recorded at the applicable spot rates in our consolidated statements
of operations and cash flows. The effect of exchange rates on cash balances held in foreign currencies are separately reported in
our consolidated statements of cash flows.

Transactions denominated in currencies other than our or our subsidiaries’ functional currencies are recorded based on exchange
rates at the time such transactions arise. Changes in exchange rates with respect to amounts recorded in our consolidated balance
sheets related to these non-functional currency transactions result in transaction gains and losses that are reflected in our consolidated
statements of operations as unrealized (based on the applicable period end exchange rates) or realized upon settlement of the
transactions.

Revenue Recognition

Service Revenue — Cable Networks. We recognize revenue from the provision of video, broadband internet and fixed-line
telephony services over our cable network to customers in the period the related services are provided. Installation revenue
(including reconnect fees) related to services provided over our cable network is recognized as revenue in the period during which
the installation occurs to the extent these fees are equal to or less than direct selling costs, which costs are expensed as incurred.
To the extent installation revenue exceeds direct selling costs, the excess revenue is deferred and amortized over the average
expected subscriber life.

Sale of Multiple Products and Services. We sell video, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and, in certain markets, mobile
services to our customers in bundled packages at a rate lower than if the customer purchased each product on a standalone basis.
Revenue from bundled packages generally is allocated proportionally to the individual services based on the relative standalone
price for each respective service.

Mobile Revenue — General. Arrangement consideration from mobile contracts is allocated to the airtime service element and
the handset service element based on the relative standalone prices of each element. The amount of arrangement consideration
allocated to the handset is limited to the amount that is not contingent upon the delivery of future airtime services. Certain of our
operations that provide mobile services offer handsets under a subsidized contract model, whereby upfront revenue recognition
is limited to the upfront cash collected from the customer as the remaining monthly fees to be received from the customer, including
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fees that may be associated with the handset, are contingent upon delivering future airtime services. At certain of our operations,
mobile customers may choose to enter into two distinct contractual relationships: (i) a mobile handset contract and (ii) a mobile
airtime services contract (a Split-contract Program). Under the mobile handset contract, the customer takes full title to the handset
upon delivery and typically has the option to either (a) pay for the handset in cash upon delivery or (b) pay for the handset in
installments over a contractual period. Under these arrangements, the handset installment payments are not contingent upon
delivering future airtime services and the arrangement consideration allocated to the handset is not limited to the upfront cash
collected.

Mobile Revenue — Airtime Services. We recognize revenue from mobile services in the period the related services are provided.
Revenue from pre-pay customers is recorded as deferred revenue prior to the commencement of services and revenue is recognized
as the services are rendered or usage rights expire.

Mobile Revenue — Handset Revenue. Arrangement consideration allocated to handsets is recognized as revenue when the
goods have been delivered and title has passed. For customers under a mobile handset installment contract that is independent of
amobile airtime services contract, revenue is recognized upon delivery only if collectibility is reasonably assured. Our assessment
of collectibility is based principally on internal and external credit assessments as well as historical collection information for
similar customers. To the extent that collectibility of installment payments from the customer is not reasonably assured upon
delivery of the handset, handset revenue is recognized on a cash basis as customer payments are received.

Business-to-Business (B2B) Revenue. We defer upfront installation and certain nonrecurring fees received on B2B contracts
where we maintain ownership of the installed equipment. The deferred fees are amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis
over the term of the arrangement or the expected period of performance.

Promotional Discounts. For subscriber promotions, such as discounted or free services during an introductory period, revenue
is recognized only to the extent of the discounted monthly fees charged to the subscriber, if any.

Subscriber Advance Payments and Deposits. Payments received in advance for the services we provide are deferred and
recognized as revenue when the associated services are provided.

Sales, Use and Other Value-Added Taxes (VAT). Revenue is recorded net of applicable sales, use and other value-added taxes.
Share-Based Compensation

We recognize all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee share incentive awards, based on their
grant date fair values and our estimates of forfeitures. We recognize the grant date fair value of outstanding awards as a charge to
operations over the vesting period. The cash benefits of tax deductions in excess of deferred taxes on recognized share-based
compensation expense are reported as a financing cash flow. Payroll taxes incurred in connection with the vesting or exercise of
our share-based incentive awards are recorded as a component of share-based compensation expense in our consolidated statements
of operations.

We use the straight-line method to recognize share-based compensation expense for our outstanding share awards that do not
contain a performance condition and the accelerated expense attribution method for our outstanding share awards that contain a
performance condition and vest on a graded basis.

We have calculated the expected life of options and share appreciation rights (SARs) granted by Liberty Global to employees
based on historical exercise trends. The expected volatility for Liberty Global options and SARs is generally based on a combination
of (i) historical volatilities of Liberty Global ordinary shares for a period equal to the expected average life of the Liberty Global
awards and (ii) volatilities implied from publicly-traded Liberty Global options.

We generally issue new shares of Liberty Global ordinary shares when Liberty Global options or SARs are exercised and
when restricted share units (RSUs) and performance-based restricted share units (PSUs) vest. Although we repurchase Liberty
Global ordinary shares from time to time, the parameters of our share purchase and redemption activities are not established solely
with reference to the dilutive impact of our share-based compensation plans.

For additional information regarding our share-based compensation, see note 13.
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Litigation Costs
Legal fees and related litigation costs are expensed as incurred.
Earnings or Loss per Share

Basic earnings or loss per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net earnings or loss by the weighted average number of shares
(excluding restricted shares) outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings or loss per share presents the dilutive effect, if any, on
a per share basis of potential shares (e.g., options, SARs, performance-based share appreciation rights (PSARs), restricted shares,
RSUs and convertible securities) as if they had been exercised, vested or converted at the beginning of the periods presented.

The details of our net earnings (loss) attributable to holders of Liberty Global Shares, LiLAC Shares and Old Liberty Global
Shares are set forth below:

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013
in millions

Net earnings (loss) attributable to holders of:

Liberty Global Shares (&) ........oovoveveueieeeeerieeeeeeeeeeeeete ettt $ (167.5) $ — $ —

LILAC SRATES () ..eveevvivieiiieieeiieeeeie ettt ettt et eveete v e e e veeasesaeenaesreensesveas 17.2 — —
Old Liberty Global Shares (b):

Loss from continuing OPerations............c.ecueeveeeueeeerueeeeireesresreereereesreeseesseeseesseenns (1,002.2) (1,028.5) (937.6)

Earnings (loss) from discontinued Operation ..............ccecvevvereerieeeerieneenieeeenneenes — 333.5 (26.3)

(1,002.2) (695.0) (963.9)

Net loss attributable to Liberty Global shareholders............cccocoeeevveviereennnnen. $ (1,1525) $ (695.0) $ (963.9)

(a)  The amounts presented for the year ended December 31, 2015 relate to the period from July 1, 2015 through December 31,
2015.

(b)  The amounts presented for the year ended December 31, 2015 relate to the period from January 1, 2015 through June 30,
2015.

The details of our weighted average shares outstanding are set forth below:

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Liberty Global Shares — basic and diluted (a) .........cccoevveviirieniicieniciereeieee 864,721,483
LiLAC Shares (a): -
BASIC ..ttt bbbt b et st sttt s b tens 43.915,757
DHIUEEM 1o 44235275
Old Liberty Global Shares — basic and diluted (b) ...........oerveeevreerrrreeererrern. 884,040,481 798,869,761 672,348,540

(a)  The amounts presented for the year ended December 31, 2015 relate to the period from July 1, 2015 through December 31,
2015.

(b)  The amounts presented for the year ended December 31, 2015 relate to the period from January 1, 2015 through June 30,
2015.
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Liberty Global Shares. We reported a loss from continuing operations attributable to holders of Liberty Global Shares for the
period from July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015. Therefore, the potentially dilutive effect at December 31, 2015 of the
following items was not included in the computation of diluted loss per share attributable to holders of Liberty Global Shares
because their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive to the computation or, in the case of certain PSUs and Performance Grant
Units (PGUs), because such awards had not yet met the applicable performance criteria: (i) the aggregate number of shares issuable
pursuant to outstanding options, SARs, PSARs and RSUs of approximately 43.3 million, (ii) the aggregate number of shares
issuable pursuant to PSUs and PGUs of approximately 4.5 million and (iii) the aggregate number of shares issuable pursuant to
obligations that may be settled in cash or shares of approximately 2.7 million.

LiLAC Shares. The details of the calculation of EPS with respect to LILAC Shares for the period from July 1, 2015 through
December 31, 2015 are set forth in the following table:

Numerator:
Net earnings attributable to holders of LiLAC Shares (basic and diluted EPS computation) (in millions) ...... $ 17.2
Denominator:
Weighted average ordinary shares (basic EPS computation).............cccccvevuieiiiieieieeieciecreeeeereeeeere e 43,915,757
Incremental shares attributable to the assumed exercise of outstanding options, SARs and PSARs and the
release of share units upon vesting (treasury stock Method) .........cceueururucuiururececececececececececeeeeeeececececeseeeeee 319,518
Weighted average ordinary shares (diluted EPS computation)...........ccecvvierieriesieeienieeiee e 44,235,275

A total of 0.7 million options, SARs, PSARs and RSUs were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share
during the period from July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 because their effect would have been anti-dilutive.

Old Liberty Global Shares. We reported losses from continuing operations attributable to holders of Old Liberty Global Shares
for the period from January 1, 2015 through June 30, 2015 and the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. Therefore, the
potentially dilutive effect at June 30, 2015, December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 of the following items was not included
in the computation of diluted loss per share attributable to holders of Old Liberty Global Shares because their inclusion would
have been anti-dilutive to the computation or, in the case of certain PSUs and PGUs, because such awards had not yet met the
applicable performance criteria: (i) the aggregate number of shares issuable pursuant to outstanding options, SARs, PSARs and
restricted shares and RSUs of approximately 42.1 million, 39.1 million and 40.3 million, respectively, (ii) the aggregate number
of shares issuable pursuant to PSUs and PGUs of approximately 5.3 million, 5.4 million and 3.7 million, respectively, and (iii)
the aggregate number of shares issuable pursuant to obligations that may be settled in cash or shares of approximately 2.6 million
for each of the respective dates.

“) Acquisitions
Pending 2016 Acquisition

CWC. On November 16, 2015, we announced, pursuant to Rule 2.7 of the U.K. City Code on Takeovers and Mergers, the
terms of a recommended acquisition pursuant to which we would acquire Cable & Wireless Communications Plc (CWC) for
shares of Liberty Global in a scheme of arrangement. Under the terms of the transaction, CWC shareholders will be entitled to
receive up to, in the aggregate: 31,651,616 Class A Liberty Global Shares, 77,488,978 Class C Liberty Global Shares, 3,648,524
Class A LiLAC Shares and 8,939,328 Class C LiLAC Shares. Further, CWC shareholders would be entitled to receive a special
dividend in the amount of £0.03 ($0.04) per CWC share at the closing of the transaction, which would be in lieu of any previously-
announced CWC dividend. We expect that the dividend and estimated fees and expenses will be funded from CWC liquidity,
including incremental debt borrowings, and LiLAC Group liquidity. Completion of the acquisition, which is expected to occur
during the second quarter of 2016, is subject to, among other conditions, Liberty Global and CWC shareholder approvals, certain
regulatory approvals and court sanction of the scheme of arrangement. In connection with the proposed acquisition, we entered
into an agreement with CWC to, among other things, provide our reasonable co-operation to CWC to complete the acquisition.
If the acquisition of CWC is not completed as expected, under certain limited circumstances, we could be required to pay CWC
a termination fee of $50 million.
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Following completion of the acquisition of CWC, we intend to attribute CWC to the LILAC Group, with the Liberty Global
Group being granted an inter-group interest in the LILAC Group. Based on the fully-diluted numbers of Liberty Global Shares,
LiLAC Shares and CWC shares outstanding on November 16, 2015, after giving effect to the acquisition and such attribution,
and treating the Liberty Global Group’s inter-group interest in the LILAC Group as being represented by additional LiLAC Shares,
Liberty Global Group shareholders would have had an approximate 67.4% ownership interest in the LILAC Group.

For information regarding an acquisition we completed subsequent to December 31, 2015, see note 20.
2015 Acquisition

On June 3, 2015, pursuant to a stock purchase agreement with the parent of Puerto Rico Cable Acquisition Company Inc.,
dba Choice Cable TV (Choice) and following regulatory approval, one of our subsidiaries, together with investment funds affiliated
with Searchlight Capital Partners, L.P. (collectively, Searchlight), acquired 100% of Choice (the Choice Acquisition). Choice is
a cable and broadband services provider in Puerto Rico. We acquired Choice in order to achieve certain financial, operational and
strategic benefits through the integration of Choice with Liberty Puerto Rico. The combined business is 60.0%-owned by our
company and 40.0%-owned by Searchlight.

The purchase price for Choice of $276.4 million was funded through (i) Liberty Puerto Rico’s incremental debt borrowings,
net of discount and fees, of $259.1 million, (ii) cash of $10.5 million and (iii) an equity contribution from Searchlight of $6.8
million.

We have accounted for the Choice Acquisition using the acquisition method of accounting, whereby the total purchase price
was allocated to the acquired identifiable net assets of Choice based on assessments of their respective fair values, and the excess
of the purchase price over the fair values of these identifiable net assets was allocated to goodwill. A summary of the purchase
price and the preliminary opening balance sheet for the Choice Acquisition at the June 3, 2015 acquisition date is presented in the
following table. The preliminary opening balance sheet is subject to adjustment based on our final assessment of the fair values
of the acquired identifiable assets and liabilities. Although most items in the valuation process remain open, the items with the
highest likelihood of changing upon finalization of the valuation process include property and equipment, goodwill, intangible
assets associated with franchise rights and customer relationships and income taxes (in millions):

Cash and Cash EQUIVAIETILS............ccuiiiiiiiiii ettt ettt aete st teebeeseebebessessesbessessessessessassasaeseeseesensenns $ 3.6
ONET CUITENE ASSELS .....veueeuteuieuienieiieiiettete et e etteteetestesteetetetenten e e s eeneeseeseeseese et e eaesae et e seasensemsenseneaneeneeneeneeseeneeeeeseaeenes 7.8
Property and €qUIPIMENE, NMET.......c.ccieiiieieiiieieieeiesteete sttt e st ete e etesteesbesseesseeseesseeseenseeseessesnsessesssesseensessennsensenns 79.8
GOOAWILL () 1.veeuvieeiiiieiieete ettt ettt ettt ettt et e e te et e ete e b e ess e beessesbeessesseessesssesbesssesseessesseessasseessenseessenseeses 51.6
Intangible assets subject to amortization, NET (D) .......ccecercieririierieiesieieeieie ettt et e e eaesseense e ensenneens 59.1
FranchiSe FINTS .......oouiiiiiiiiicieceeciee ettt ettt et et e st e e b e beesbeeteesbeeteesseeseesbeeseeseessesseessesssessesseessenseans 147.8
ONET @SSELES, TIET.....vviieiieeeiiieeeeecete et e e et eeeeeeee et teeeseeaaeeeesesaaateeeesaaaasaeessessaseeessssasseeesesassseeessansassseesesasseeesssnnnnes 0.3
Other accrued and current HADIIItIES ............eoviiieriiiieiticieieee ettt st et s re b s reebeete e b e essebeessesseessasseenes (13.2)
Non-current deferred tax HADIILIES .......c..cccviiiiiiiiieiic ettt et er e st e e reesaeeebeesaseeveesaneenreees (60.4)
TOtal PUICHASE PIICE (€)...vievvieveeiiereeitieieiteete st ettt et e e e et e eteebeereesteesaesaeessesseessesssesseessasseessesseensesseensessnesseaseas $ 276.4

(a) Thegoodwillrecognized in connection with the Choice Acquisition is primarily attributable to (i) the ability to take advantage
of Choice’s existing advanced broadband communications network to gain immediate access to potential customers and
(i1) synergies that are expected to be achieved through the integration of Choice with Liberty Puerto Rico. The entire amount
of goodwill is expected to be deductible for U.S. tax purposes.

(b)  Amount primarily includes intangible assets related to customer relationships. As of June 3, 2015, the weighted average
useful life of Choice’s intangible assets was approximately ten years.

(¢)  Excludes direct acquisition costs of $8.5 million incurred through December 31, 2015, which are included in impairment,
restructuring and other operating items, net, in our consolidated statement of operations.
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2014 Acquisition

On November 11, 2014 (the Ziggo Acquisition Date), pursuant to a merger protocol (the Ziggo Merger Protocol) with
respect to an offer to acquire all of the shares of Ziggo Holding B.V. (Ziggo) that we did not already own (the Ziggo Offer), we
gained control of Ziggo through the acquisition of 136,603,794 additional Ziggo shares, which increased our ownership interest
in Ziggo to 88.9% (the Ziggo Acquisition). From November 12, 2014 through November 19, 2014, we acquired 18,998,057
additional Ziggo shares, further increasing our ownership interest in Ziggo to 98.4% (the Ziggo NCI Acquisition). Ziggo is a
provider of video, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services in the Netherlands. We acquired Ziggo in order
to achieve certain financial, operational and strategic benefits through the integration of Ziggo with with our existing operations
in the Netherlands and our other European operations.

Pursuant to the Ziggo Merger Protocol, Ziggo shareholders who tendered their Ziggo shares received an offer price of (i)
0.2282 Class A Old Liberty Global Shares, (ii) 0.5630 Class C Old Liberty Global Shares and (iii) €11.00 ($13.71 at the applicable
rates) in cash for each Ziggo share that they tendered. In connection with the completion of the Ziggo Acquisition and the Ziggo
NCI Acquisition, we (a) issued an aggregate of 35,508,342 Class A and 87,603,842 Class C Old Liberty Global Shares and (b)
paid aggregate cash consideration of €1,711.6 million ($2,133.6 million at the applicable rates) to holders of Ziggo ordinary shares.

On December 3, 2014, we initiated a statutory squeeze-out procedure in accordance with the Dutch Civil Code (the Statutory
Squeeze-out) in order to acquire the remaining 3,162,605 Ziggo shares not tendered through November 19, 2014. Under the
Statutory Squeeze-out, which was completed during the second quarter of 2015, Ziggo shareholders other than Liberty Global
received cash consideration of €39.78 ($44.91 at the applicable rates) per share, plus interest, for an aggregate of €125.9 million
($142.2 million at the applicable rates). This amount was approved in April 2015 by the Enterprise Court in the Netherlands.

For accounting purposes, (i) the Ziggo Acquisition was treated as the acquisition of Ziggo by Liberty Global and (ii) the Ziggo
NCI Acquisition and the Statutory Squeeze-out were treated as the acquisitions of a noncontrolling interest.

In connection with the completion of the Ziggo Acquisition, we obtained regulatory clearance from the European Commission
on October 10, 2014, subject to the following commitments:

*  our commitment to divest our Filml channels to a third party and to carry Filml on our network in the Netherlands for
aperiod of three years. Accordingly, on July 21,2015, we sold our FilmI channels to Sony Pictures Television Networks.
Under the terms of the agreement, all five Film/ channels will continue to be carried on certain of our networks for a
period of at least three years; and

*  ourcommitment for a period of eight years with respect to our network in the Netherlands (i) not to enforce certain clauses
currently contained in carriage agreements with broadcasters that restrict the ability of broadcasters to offer their channels
and content via over-the-top services, (ii) not to enter into carriage agreements containing such clauses and (iii) to maintain
adequate interconnection capacity through at least three uncongested routes into our network in the Netherlands, at least
one of which must be with a large transit provider.

In July 2015, the Dutch incumbent telecommunications operator filed an appeal against the European Commission regarding
its decision to approve the Ziggo Acquisition. We are not a party to the appeal and we do not expect that the filing of this appeal
will have any impact on the ongoing integration and development of our operations in the Netherlands.

For accounting purposes, the Ziggo Acquisition was treated as the acquisition of Ziggo by Liberty Global. In this regard, the
equity and cash consideration paid to acquire Ziggo plus the fair value of our pre-existing investment in Ziggo on the Ziggo
Acquisition Date is set forth below (in millions):

Class A Old Liberty Global SHares (@)........cceeeeeuerierierierieeiesieeeesteetesieetesseestesseesessaensesssesseessessesssessesssessesssessees $ 1,448.7
Class C Old Liberty Global Shares () ........c.ccveviiieiiieieriieeeieeeeste et steeeesteeaesteesesteeseereeseessesseessesseessesseessesses 3,457.1
L7 1] o) I PSR UTRP 1,872.9
Fair value of pre-existing inveStment in ZiZEO (C).....ceueveururururueueeerereeeesceeseeeeeseseseseaeaeseseseseaesesesesesesesesesesesssesesesas 2,0154

TOAL .ottt a bbbttt bttt ettt b b e nas $ 8,794.1
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(a)  Represents the value assigned to the 31,172,985 Class A and 76,907,936 Class C Old Liberty Global Shares issued to Ziggo
shareholders in connection with the Ziggo Acquisition through the Ziggo Acquisition Date. These amounts are based on
(1) the exchange ratios specified by the Ziggo Merger Protocol, (ii) the applicable closing per share prices of Class A and
Class C Old Liberty Global Shares and (iii) 136,603,794 ordinary shares of Ziggo tendered in the Ziggo Offer through the
Ziggo Acquisition Date.

(b)  Represents the cash consideration paid in connection with the Ziggo Acquisition.

(¢)  Represents the fair value of the 41,329,850 shares of Ziggo held by Liberty Global and its subsidiaries immediately prior
to the Ziggo Acquisition.

We have accounted for the Ziggo Acquisition using the acquisition method of accounting, whereby the total purchase price
was allocated to the acquired identifiable net assets of Ziggo based on assessments of their respective fair values, and the excess
of the purchase price over the fair values of these identifiable net assets was allocated to goodwill. A summary of the purchase
price and the preliminary opening balance sheet for the Ziggo Acquisition as of the Ziggo Acquisition Date is presented in the
following table. The opening balance sheet presented below reflects our final purchase price allocation (in millions):

Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS (Q) ......c.ccviiuiiiiirieiiiieeiecte ettt ettt ettt e et este e e e s te et e s teesbesteeabesssenseeseenseessenseenes $ 1,889.7
OhET CUITENE ASSELS ...e.vveuvieeietieierteeierteetesteetesteetesteesteeseesseaseesseeseessesseesseassesseassesseassesseessenseensenssensesseensenseensenses 69.7
Property and €qUIPIMENT, NET.........ccieiiiuieiieiecii ettt ettt ete et e te et eebe et e teesseeteesseeseessesseesseeseesseessesseessenseessenseans 2,714.9
GOOAWIIL (D)« ettt ettt ettt ettt a e st st et e saes e et e st et e st et ent et ent et et et e sesesaesessenessaneas 7,866.5
Intangible assets subject to aMOrtization, NEt (C) ......c.ecvieieriieieerieieere et eete e ete et e ste et e st beeteebeereeveeteeseeaeeseens 4,857.0
(011 113 g T £ 1 1 SRR 382.8
Current portion of debt and capital lease OblIAtIONS..........c.cceecvieieriiiiiiiieeecte ettt (604.0)
Other accrued and CUITENt THADIIITIES ........c..ccviiiviiiiiieiicciie ettt ettt et ere et eveeeaeeeeveeeaseeeseestseereeseean (461.8)
Long-term debt and capital 1ease ODIIZAtIONS............cceecuiiiiiiiirieieeieieei ettt ere e eteesbe s e steessebeeenenreens (5,351.5)
Other 10NZ-terM LHADIIITIES .......eeieriieieieeiecieeiecieeie ettt ettt e b et este s e e sbeesaesseessesseessaeseessesssensenseensenseessenses (1,488.6)
NONCONLrOING INEEIEST () ...veiviiuiiiiiiiiiiieiecteet ettt ettt et e e e st te et e ets et e eteebeessesbeesaeereessesreensesseas (1,080.6)
TOtal PUICHASE PIICE (€)...vvevverievieiieriirieiieteiteetist et et et estestesteseereeseeteeteeseeseesassessesbessessessessessessesaessesseseesessessasss $ 8,794.1

(a)  The Ziggo Acquisition resulted in $16.8 million of net cash acquired after deducting the cash consideration paid.

(b)  Thegoodwill recognized in connection with the Ziggo Acquisition is primarily attributable to (i) the ability to take advantage
of Ziggo’s existing advanced broadband communications network to gain immediate access to potential customers and
(i1) synergies that are expected to be achieved through the integration of Ziggo with our existing operations in the Netherlands
and our other European operations.

(¢)  Amountprimarily includes intangible assets related to customer relationships. As of the Ziggo Acquisition Date, the weighted
average useful life of Ziggo’s intangible assets was approximately ten years.

(d)  Represents the fair value of the noncontrolling interest in Ziggo as of the Ziggo Acquisition Date.

(e)  Excludes direct acquisition costs of $84.1 million incurred through December 31, 2014, which are included in impairment,
restructuring and other operating items, net, in our consolidated statement of operations.
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We have accounted for the Ziggo NCI Acquisition as an equity transaction, with the carrying amount of the noncontrolling
interest adjusted to reflect the change in ownership of Ziggo. The difference between the fair value of consideration paid and the
amount by which the noncontrolling interest was adjusted has been recognized as additional paid-in capital in our consolidated
statement of equity. The impact of the Ziggo NCI Acquisition is summarized in the following table (in millions):

Reduction of noncoONtrolling INTETESES .........c.ccviiiiiiiiieiieiieie ettt ettt te e e eteeaesreeaeereesbeersesbeessesseesseseans $ 927.2
Additional paid-In CAPILAL.........eccveriieiiiieiiet ettt ettt et ettt este e b e sreebeere e beetaebeessereesaenseans 235
Fair value of consideration Paid (&) .........c.cceeveeuieiiiiieiiecie ettt sttt ettt et ete s ete e eveeaaesreensesreeaneereas $ 950.7

(@)  Represents (i) the value assigned to the 4,335,357 Class A and 10,695,906 Class C Old Liberty Global Shares issued to
Ziggo shareholders and (ii) cash consideration of €209.0 million ($260.7 million at the applicable rates) paid to Ziggo
shareholders, based on the 18,998,057 ordinary shares of Ziggo tendered in connection with the Ziggo NCI Acquisition.

The cash consideration paid in the Ziggo Acquisition and the Ziggo NCI Acquisition was funded with a combination of debt
and our existing liquidity. For information regarding the various debt financing arrangements that we entered into in connection
with the execution of the Ziggo Merger Protocol and the completion of the Ziggo Acquisition and the Ziggo NCI Acquisition, see
note 10.

2013 Acquisition

On June 7, 2013, pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the Virgin Media Merger Agreement) with Virgin Media
and following receipt of regulatory and shareholder approvals, we acquired Virgin Media in a stock and cash merger (the Virgin
Media Acquisition). Virgin Media is one of the U.K.’s largest providers of residential video, broadband internet, fixed-line
telephony and mobile services in terms of number of customers. We acquired Virgin Media in order to achieve certain financial,
operational and strategic benefits through the integration of Virgin Media with our existing European operations.

Pursuant to the Virgin Media Merger Agreement:

*  Each share of common stock of Virgin Media was converted into the right to receive (i) 0.2582 Class A Old Liberty
Global Shares, (ii) 0.6438 Class C Old Liberty Global Shares and (iii) $17.50 in cash; and

*  Each share of Series A common stock of LGI was converted into the right to receive one Class A Old Liberty Global
Share; each share of Series B common stock of LGI was converted into the right to receive one Class B Old Liberty
Global Share; and each share of Series C common stock of LGI was converted into the right to receive one Class C Old
Liberty Global Share.

In connection with the completion of the Virgin Media Acquisition, we issued 70,233,842 Class A and 175,122,182 Class C
Old Liberty Global Shares to holders of Virgin Media common stock and 141,234,331 Class A, 10,176,295 Class B and 362,556,220
Class C Old Liberty Global Shares to holders of LGI Series A, Series B and Series C common stock, respectively.

In connection with the execution of the Virgin Media Merger Agreement, we entered into various debt financing arrangements.

Inatransaction that did not impact our cash and cash equivalents, the net proceeds (after deducting certain transaction expenses)
from the February 2013 issuance of the April 2021 VM Senior Secured Notes and 2023 VM Senior Notes (each as defined and
described in note 10) of $3,557.5 million (equivalent at the transaction date) were placed into segregated escrow accounts (the
Virgin Media Escrow Accounts) with a trustee. Such net proceeds were released in connection with the closing of the Virgin
Media Acquisition.

The Virgin Media Acquisition and related refinancing transactions were funded with a combination of (i) the proceeds from

the Virgin Media Escrow Accounts, (ii) borrowings under the VM Credit Facility (as defined and described in note 10) and (iii)
our and Virgin Media’s existing liquidity.
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For accounting purposes, the Virgin Media Acquisition was treated as the acquisition of Virgin Media by Liberty Global (as
the successor to LGI). In this regard, the equity and cash consideration paid to acquire Virgin Media is set forth below (in millions):

Class A Old Liberty GIobal Shares (@).........cceieeiuiiieiiieiiiieeieereee ettt ete et eaesreete s e e saeereesveessesbeesseseessesseenns $ 2,735.0
Class C Old Liberty Global Shares () ........c.ecerverieriierieeiesieeiesieiesteeeesseessesseessesseessesssessesssessesssessesssessesssessesses 6,369.9
CASN (D) 1ttt t ettt ettt bt e a et e b et e b e st b e s e s en s e b est et et et e b et e s eseebeseebeseebeneeseneas 4,760.2
Fair value of the vested portion of Virgin Media stock incentive awards (C).......c.ceeveruereerieierieienenieneneneneneens 270.4

Total equity and cash CONSIACTALION.............ccveuiiuiiiiiitieiectecteee ettt ettt ettt te et te b e e reebeeaseereens $ 14,135.5

(a)  Represents the value assigned to the 70,233,842 Class A and 175,122,182 Class C Old Liberty Global Shares issued to
Virgin Media shareholders in connection with the Virgin Media Acquisition. These amounts are based on (i) the exchange
ratios specified by the Virgin Media Merger Agreement, (ii) the closing per share price on June 7, 2013 of Series A and
Series C LGI common stock of $38.94 and $36.37, respectively, and (iii) the 272,013,333 outstanding shares of Virgin
Media common stock at June 7, 2013.

(b)  Represents the cash consideration paid in connection with the Virgin Media Acquisition. This amount is based on (i) the
$17.50 per share cash consideration specified by the Virgin Media Merger Agreement and (ii) the 272,013,333 outstanding
shares of Virgin Media common stock at June 7, 2013.

(c)  Represents the portion of the estimated fair value of the Virgin Media stock incentive awards that are attributable to services
provided prior to the June 7, 2013 acquisition date. The estimated fair value is based on the attributes of the 13.03 million
outstanding Virgin Media stock incentive awards at June 7, 2013, including the market price of the underlying Virgin Media
common stock. The outstanding Virgin Media stock incentive awards at June 7, 2013 include 9.86 million stock options
that have been valued using Black Scholes option valuations. In addition, Virgin Media’s stock incentive awards at June 7,
2013 included 3.17 million restricted stock units that included performance conditions and, in certain cases, market
conditions. Those restricted stock units with market conditions have been valued using Monte Carlo simulation models.

We have accounted for the acquisition of Virgin Media using the acquisition method of accounting, whereby the total purchase
price was allocated to the acquired identifiable net assets of Virgin Media based on assessments of their respective fair values,
and the excess of the purchase price over the fair values of these identifiable net assets was allocated to goodwill. A summary of
the purchase price and opening balance sheet for the Virgin Media Acquisition at the June 7, 2013 acquisition date is presented in
the following table. The opening balance sheet presented below reflects our final purchase price allocation (in millions):

Cash and Cash EQUIVALEIES ...........cciiviiiuiiiiiicciece ettt ettt et te et e eteeteeteeteeteeteereebeessereetseseensenseenns $ 694.6
ONET CUITEIE ASSELS ...veutiuteuienieiietiet ettt et ettt ettt st et e et e e s e st eseebeeb e eaeebeebeebesb e et e besa e e emsententeneenteseebeebeebesbeeeeebeee 932.2
Property and €qQUIPIMENT, NMET..........ceciuiiiiiiiereieti ettt eete et e ete et e e e et e eteeteeteeteeteeseeseeeseeseeeseesseeseessesssessesssessesseens 9,863.1
GOOAWILL () 1.vveuvieeieiieiett ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e b e e te et e et e e beese e seessaseessesseessesseessesseessesseesseessessanssensesssansenssansenses 9,000.8
Intangible assets subject t0 aMOrtiZation (D) .........ccocveeuieiiiieiieeei ettt ettt ettt vt ereens 3,925.8
(011 11 g LIt TN 1 1 SRR 42594
Current portion of debt and capital lease ODIIAtIONS..........c..ccveevieiiieriiiiiericie ettt ev e (1,184.5)
Other accrued and current 1iabilitieS (C) (A) ..oovevvervirieriieierieeiere ettt re b e ese b e e e ebeessesreens (1,892.2)
Long-term debt and capital 1ease ODIIZAtIONS. ........c..ccueiuiiiiiuieieiteeiecteeie ettt ettt et ere et eae et eteeaeeveeseereeseeseens (8,477.4)
Other 10Ng-terM LHADIIITIES (C)...euviivieiiriieiiieierieiieieetesie et ete et e st et este et e steesaesteesbesseessesseesbesssessasssessesssansenssesenses (1,326.3)
Additional paid-IN CAPILAL (€) ..veeveeveerierieirierecete ettt ettt ettt et et e it e te et e eteeteeteeeteeateeteereeeteerseereenbeereenreereens (1,660.0)
Total PUrchase PriCe (£).....ccvicieriiieriieieieee ettt ettt et ettt e steebeste e b e s taesbeessesseessesseessasseensesseessesseas $ 14,135.5

(a)  The goodwill recognized in connection with the Virgin Media Acquisition is primarily attributable to (i) the ability to take
advantage of Virgin Media’s existing advanced broadband communications network to gain immediate access to potential
customers and (ii) synergies that were expected to be achieved through the integration of Virgin Media with our other
broadband communications operations in Europe.
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Amount primarily includes intangible assets related to customer relationships. At June 7, 2013, the weighted average useful
life of Virgin Media’s intangible assets was approximately seven years.

No amounts were allocated to deferred revenue with respect to the then ongoing performance obligations associated with
Virgin Media’s B2B service contracts, as the remaining fees to be received under these contracts approximated fair value
given our estimates of the costs associated with these performance obligations.

Amount includes a $35.6 million liability that was recorded to adjust an unfavorable capacity contract to its estimated fair
value. This amount was amortized through the March 31, 2014 expiration date of the contract as a reduction of Virgin
Media’s operating expenses so that the net effect of this amortization and the payments required under the contract
approximated market rates. During the period from June 8, 2013 through December 31, 2013 and the year ended
December 31,2014, $22.8 million and $12.8 million, respectively, of this liability was amortized as a reduction of operating
expenses in our consolidated statements of operations.

Represents the equity component of the 6.50% convertible senior notes (the VM Convertible Notes). During the period
from June 7, 2013 through December 31, 2013, 94.4% of the VM Convertible Notes were exchanged for Class A and Class
C Old Liberty Global Shares and cash pursuant to the terms of the indenture underlying the VM Convertible Notes.

Excludes direct acquisition costs of $51.5 million incurred through December 31, 2014, which are included in impairment,
restructuring and other operating items, net, in our consolidated statements of operations.
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Pro Forma Information

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated operating results give effect to (i) the acquisition of 100% of Ziggo and (ii)
the Choice Acquisition, as if they had been completed as of January 1,2014. These pro forma amounts are not necessarily indicative
of the operating results that would have occurred if these transactions had occurred on such date. The pro forma adjustments are
based on certain assumptions that we believe are reasonable. In the following table, we present the revenue that is attributed to
the Liberty Global Group and the LiILAC Group as if such revenue had been attributed to each group at the beginning of each
period presented. However, our presentation of net earnings (loss) and basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share attributed to (a)
Liberty Global Shares, (b) LILAC Shares and (c) Old Liberty Global Shares only includes the results of operations for the periods
during which these shares were outstanding. Accordingly, (1) our net earnings (loss) attributed to Liberty Global Shares and LILAC
Shares relates to the period from July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 and (2) our net loss attributed to Old Liberty Global
Shares relates to periods prior to July 1, 2015.

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
in millions, except per
share amounts

Revenue:
Liberty Global Group:
CONINUING OPEIALIONS ...c.euuteiteiteiieiieieeteeteete sttt et st sttt et et et et et ebeebeebeebeebesbesbe et esbesbesbenbeseneennen $ 17,062.7 $ 18,890.1
DiSCONtINUEd OPETALION ..ottt ettt sttt ettt ettt et be et saeenae st e nbeeseenbeas — 26.6
Total Liberty GLODAl GIOUD........ccveruieierieeiesieeiesieetesteie sttt et steeteeseesaesneesseesaesseensessesssensens 17,062.7 18,916.7
LALLAC GIOUD 1ttt ettt ettt ettt et h et st b e b et b e be st et st et et ettt et et ebenaebeneebens 1,254.4 1,291.9
TOAL .ottt ettt $ 18317.1 § 20,208.6
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Liberty Global shareholders:
Liberty GIODAI SNATES..........ovevivieieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eneeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeea $  (167.5) $ —
LILAC SRATES......c.e vttt ettt sttt ettt ettt b e en e enes 17.2 —
O1d Liberty Global SHAres...........ccerieuirieirieirieieieieie ettt sttt st sttt et ebeseeneseenens (1,000.4) (1,181.0)
TOTAL ..ottt ettt $ (1,150.7) § (1,181.0)
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) attributable to Liberty Global shareholders per share:
Liberty GLODaAl SRATES.........c.oveviieeiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt seesene e eneerenseseasesenseseaseneesans $ (0.19)
LALAC SHATES.....ooreeeeee e $ 039
O1d LADEIEY GIODAL SRATES....ooeeeeeeeeoeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoe oo eeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ (1.13) $  (1.30)

Our consolidated statement of operations for 2015 includes revenue and net earnings of $52.1 million and $4.6 million,
respectively, attributable to Choice.
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The following unaudited pro forma consolidated operating results give effect to (i) the acquisition of 100% of Ziggo and (ii)
the Virgin Media Acquisition, as if they had been completed as of January 1, 2013. These pro forma amounts are not necessarily
indicative of the operating results that would have occurred if these transactions had occurred on such date. The pro forma
adjustments are based on certain assumptions that we believe are reasonable. In the following table, we present the revenue that
is attributed to the Liberty Global Group and the LiLAC Group as if such revenue had been attributed to each group at the beginning
of each period presented. However, our presentation of net loss and basic and diluted loss per share attributed to (a) Liberty Global
Shares, (b) LiLAC Shares and (c¢) Old Liberty Global Shares only includes the results of operations for the periods during which
these shares were outstanding. Accordingly, our net loss for 2014 and 2013 is entirely attributed to Old Liberty Global Shares.

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013
in millions, except per
share amounts

Revenue:
Liberty Global Group:
CONtINUING OPEIALIONS ... ouvureureireuieiieieeieettete sttt este st bttt e st et eseeaeeaeebeebe s bt saeebeebesaeseesensensennen $ 18,890.1 $ 18,013.7
DiSCONINUEA OPETALION .....e.veeiiieeieniieeiesiieieeteete et estestestessaesseesaeseessesseessesseesseessessesssessesssessesssensens 26.6 408.6
Total Liberty Global GrOUP........ccoevuevierieieieiiieieieenc sttt aene 18,916.7 18,422.3
LILAC GIOUP ..ttt ettt ettt ettt sttt b et a et eneneenis 1,204.6 1,288.8
INtErgroup ClIMINAIONS. .......cveivieriierieieeteee ettt ettt ettt eve et et et ereeaeeeteeaeeeseesaeeteensesaeessenseas — (1.3)
TOAL .ottt ettt $ 20,1213 § 19,709.8
Net loss attributable to Liberty Global shareholders — Old Liberty Global Shares.......................... $ (1,180.6) $ (1,573.6)
Basic and diluted loss attributable to Liberty Global shareholders per share — Old Liberty Global
SRATES ...ttt ettt $ (1.30) § (1.71)

Our consolidated statement of operations for 2014 includes revenue and net loss of $272.0 million and $98.7 million,
respectively, attributable to Ziggo.

5) Discontinued Operation

On January 31, 2014, we completed the sale of the Chellomedia Disposal Group to AMC Networks Inc. for €750.0 million
($1,013.1 million at the applicable rate) in cash. Accordingly, the Chellomedia Disposal Group is reflected as a discontinued
operation in our consolidated statements of operations and cash flows for 2014 and 2013. The assets disposed of pursuant to the
Chellomedia Transaction exclude Chellomedia’s premium sports and film channels in the Netherlands. In connection with the sale
of the Chellomedia Disposal Group, we recognized a pre-tax gain of $342.2 million. This pre-tax gain is net of a $64.0 million
cumulative foreign currency translation loss, which was reclassified to net loss from accumulated other comprehensive earnings.
The associated income tax expense of $9.5 million differs from the amount computed by applying the U.K. statutory income tax
rate in effect at the time of 21.5% primarily due to the fact that (i) the transaction was not subject to taxation in the U.K. and (ii)
most elements of the transaction were not subject to taxation in the Netherlands or the U.S. The net after-tax gain of $332.7 million
is included in gain on disposal of discontinued operation, net of taxes, in our consolidated statement of operations.

Certain of our broadband communications operations will continue to receive programming services from the Chellomedia
Disposal Group through contracts that were negotiated as part of the disposal. As such, Liberty Global will have continuing cash
outflows associated with the Chellomedia Disposal Group through at least 2017. However, our involvement as an ongoing customer
of'the Chellomedia Disposal Group does not disqualify discontinued operations classification because (i) the ongoing cash outflows
are not considered significant to the Chellomedia Disposal Group and (ii) Liberty Global does not possess any rights within the
ongoing contractual arrangements that would allow us to exert influence over the Chellomedia Disposal Group.
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The operating results of the Chellomedia Disposal Group are classified as a discontinued operation in our consolidated
statements of operations and are summarized in the following table:

Year ended December 31,
2014 (a) (b) 2013 (b)
in millions

REVEIIUC ...ttt ettt sttt sttt ettt et et et et e e e b e e eb e e ebe s esessesesseneesenenee $ 266 $ 408.6
OPETALING INCOIMIE ......vveeveeeeteeeteeeeeeee ettt et eae et e s et e e et et e s e s eseesene et eneeseneesessesessese s enseseneeseneeseneene $ 06 § 12.1
Earnings (loss) before income taxes and noncontrolling interests ...........cocveverreeveerreerveneenenne. $ 09 § (1.0)
INCOME tAX EXPEIISE ....vovveeereeeeteeeeteteteetete et ete et ese et eseesese et ensese s et easesessese et eseeseseeseneeseneeseneeseneeseneens $ 0.1) $ (22.7)
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operation attributable to Liberty Global shareholders, net

OF BAXES 1.ttt te e te ettt et e ettt ettt et e s et et et et et et et e s et et et et et et et et esetesetetetet et et et eteteteseteteaetesenena $ 08 $ (26.3)

(@) Includes the operating results of the Chellomedia Disposal Group through January 31, 2014, the date the Chellomedia
Disposal Group was sold.

(b)  Excludes the Chellomedia Disposal Group’s intercompany revenue and expenses that are eliminated within Liberty Global’s
consolidated financial statements.

6) Investments

The details of our investments are set forth below:

December 31,
Accounting Method 2015 2014

in millions

Fair value:
ITV — SUDJECt 10 TE-USE TIZILS ..veuvereinieieieieitete ettt $ 1,624.1 $ 871.2
8100 L0} T J SRS POUSORRPt 471.1 473.1
LIOMSZALE. ...ttt b bbbt b e bbbt ettt et e be bbbt bbbt et nee 162.0 —
ITT INCOVISION . ..cteteeiteeteete et ettt ettt ettt et e st e et e s bt et e e bt e e ebeembe e st eteene e st emeesaeeneeeneeneesneensesnean 120.0 154.1
OLRNCT ettt h bbbt b e bbbttt e b e bbbt b e bbb 214.6 164.3
Total — fAIT VAIUC ..ottt st 2,591.8 1,662.7
EUQUILY ettt b e bbb bbbt et ettt h bbbt bt nen 2474 145.1
01 SRS SPRRRR 0.4 0.4
TOAL ...ttt $ 2,839.6 $ 1,808.2
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Fair Value Investments

ITV. On July 17, 2014, we acquired an aggregate of 259,820,065 shares of ITV plc (ITV), a commercial broadcaster in the
U.K., at a price of £1.85 ($3.14 at the transaction date) per share, for an investment of £480.7 million ($816.3 million at the
transaction date) (the Initial ITV Investment). On July 30, 2015, we acquired an additional 138,695,445 shares of ITV at a per
share price of £2.716 ($4.23 at the transaction date), for an additional investment of £376.7 million ($587.0 million at the transaction
date) (the Additional ITV Investment), which together with the Initial ITV Investment constitutes our total investment in ITV
(the Total ITV Investment). The aggregate purchase price paid to acquire the Total ITV Investment was financed through
borrowings under secured borrowing arrangements (the ITV Collar Loan). The Total ITV Investment comprises 398,515,510
shares, or approximately 9.9% of the total outstanding shares of ITV as of June 30, 2015, the most current publicly-available
information. All of the ITV shares we hold are subject to a share collar (the ITV Collar) and pledged as collateral under the ITV
Collar Loan. Under the terms of the ITV Collar, the counterparty has the right to re-use all of the pledged ITV shares. For additional
information regarding the ITV Collar, see note 7.

Sumitomo. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, we owned 45,652,043 shares of Sumitomo Corporation (Sumitomo) common
stock. Our Sumitomo shares represented less than 5% of Sumitomo’s outstanding common stock at December 31, 2015. These
shares secure the Sumitomo Collar Loan, as defined and described in note 7.

Lionsgate. On November 12, 2015, we acquired an aggregate of 5.0 million shares of Lions Gate Entertainment Corp.
(Lionsgate), at a price of $39.02 per share, for an investment of $195.1 million. The aggregate purchase price of the Lionsgate
shares was financed using working capital, including $70.9 million of cash received pursuant to a variable prepaid forward
transaction with respect to 2.5 million Lionsgate shares (the Lionsgate Forward). The Lionsgate Forward has economic
characteristics similar to a collar plus aloan that is collateralized by a pledge of the aforementioned 2.5 million shares (the Lionsgate
Loan). Under the terms of the Lionsgate Forward, the counterparty does not have the right to re-use the pledged Lionsgate shares
without permission from Liberty Global. In connection with our acquisition of the Lionsgate shares, we also agreed, among other
things and subject to certain exceptions, not to sell or transfer any of our Lionsgate shares (other than pursuant to the Lionsgate
Forward) until November 2016. Our Lionsgate shares represented less than 5% of the total outstanding shares of Lionsgate as of
the acquisition date. For additional information regarding the Lionsgate Forward, see note 7.

ITI Neovision. At December 31,2015 and 2014, we owned a 17.0% interest in ITI Neovision S.A. (ITI Neovision) (formerly
Canal+ Cyfrowy S.A.), a privately-held direct-to-home (DTH) operator in Poland.

Equity Method Investments

All3Media. As of December 31,2015, our most significant equity method investment is our investment in All3Media Holdings
Limited (All3Media), an independent television, film and digital production and distribution company in the U.K. Our investment
in All3Media is held through our 50.0% interest in DLG Acquisition Limited (DLG), a joint venture between one of our subsidiaries
and a subsidiary of Discovery Communications, Inc. (Discovery). In September 2014, we and a subsidiary of Discovery each
contributed £90.0 million ($147.2 million at the transaction date) to DLG in connection with DLG’s acquisition of 100% of
All3Media. The December 31, 2015 carrying value of our investment in DLG, including a loan to DLG, was $132.1 million.

7 Derivative Instruments

In general, we seek to enter into derivative instruments to protect against (i) increases in the interest rates on our variable-rate
debt and (ii) foreign currency movements, particularly with respect to borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the borrowing entity. In this regard, through our subsidiaries, we have entered into various derivative
instruments to manage interest rate exposure and foreign currency exposure with respect to the U.S. dollar ($), the euro (€), the
British pound sterling (£), the Swiss franc (CHF), the Chilean peso (CLP), the Czech koruna (CZK), the Hungarian forint (HUF),
the Polish zloty (PLN) and the Romanian lei (RON). With the exception of a limited number of our foreign currency forward
contracts, we do not apply hedge accounting to our derivative instruments. Accordingly, changes in the fair values of most of our
derivative instruments are recorded in gains or losses on derivative instruments, net, in our consolidated statements of operations.
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The following table provides details of the fair values of our derivative instrument assets and liabilities:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Current Long-term (a) Total Current Long-term (a) Total
in millions

Assets:

Cross-currency and interest rate
derivative contracts:

Liberty Global Group.................... $ 263.6 $ 1,5185 $§ 1,782.1 § 4436 $ 8125 § 1,256.1

LiLAC Group....ccceeeveeveneneneenne 11.8 291.7 303.5 — 101.2 101.2
Total cross-currency and interest

rate derivative contracts (b)..... 275.4 1,810.2 2,085.6 443.6 913.7 1,357.3

Equity-related derivative
instruments - Liberty Global

GIOUP (C) eenvreneeeieieeieeie e 135.5 273.0 408.5 — 400.2 400.2
Foreign currency forward contracts:
Liberty Global Group.................... 6.2 — 6.2 1.4 — 1.4
LiLAC Group.....ccccceeevevvercnuennene 4.2 — 4.2 1.1 — 1.1
Total foreign currency forward
CONLIACES ..voveeercee e 10.4 — 10.4 2.5 — 2.5
Other - Liberty Global Group............. 0.6 1.0 1.6 0.5 0.9 1.4
Total assets:
Liberty Global Group.........c..c.ceeueueeee. 405.9 1,792.5 2,198.4 445.5 1,213.6 1,659.1
LiLAC Group.....cccoeeevereeeeneseneenes 16.0 291.7 307.7 1.1 101.2 102.3
Total...coeeiiiee $ 4219 $ 2,0842 § 2,506.1 § 446.6 $ 1,3148 § 1,761.4
Liabilities:

Cross-currency and interest rate
derivative contracts:

Liberty Global Group.................... $ 3049 S 1,1947 $§ 1,499.6 $ 9879 § 1,4439 $ 24318

LiLAC Group......cccoeeereenecrenenn — 13.8 13.8 39.5 — 39.5
Total cross-currency and interest

rate derivative contracts (b)..... 304.9 1,208.5 1,513.4 1,027.4 1,443.9 2,471.3

Equity-related derivative
instruments - Liberty Global

GIOUP (C) -eenveeneeieeieeieeee e 34.7 39.7 74.4 15.3 73.1 88.4
Foreign currency forward
contracts:
Liberty Global Group.................... 1.1 — 1.1 0.6 — 0.6
LiLAC Group.....ccceceveeveneenreinnns — — — 0.2 — 0.2
Total foreign currency forward
CONLIACES ...voeoeeeeeceee e 1.1 — 1.1 0.8 — 0.8
Other - Liberty Global Group ............ 5.6 0.1 5.7 0.2 0.1 0.3
Total liabilities:
Liberty Global Group........cccccccueveuueee. 346.3 1,234.5 1,580.8 1,004.0 1,517.1 2,521.1
LiLAC Group......cecceceverenenerenennenn — 13.8 13.8 39.7 — 39.7
Total oo $ 3463 $ 1,2483 $§ 1,5946 $ 11,0437 $ 1,517.1 $§ 2,560.8

(a)  Our long-term derivative assets and liabilities are included in other assets: amounts recoverable in more than one year, and
other non-current liabilities, respectively, in our consolidated balance sheets.
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(b)  We consider credit risk in our fair value assessments. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, (i) the fair values of our cross-
currency and interest rate derivative contracts that represented assets have been reduced by credit risk valuation adjustments
aggregating $64.0 million and $30.9 million, respectively, and (ii) the fair values of our cross-currency and interest rate
derivative contracts that represented liabilities have been reduced by credit risk valuation adjustments aggregating
$86.5 million and $64.6 million, respectively. The adjustments to our derivative assets relate to the credit risk associated
with counterparty nonperformance, and the adjustments to our derivative liabilities relate to credit risk associated with our
own nonperformance. In all cases, the adjustments take into account offsetting liability or asset positions within a given
contract. Our determination of credit risk valuation adjustments generally is based on our and our counterparties’ credit risks,
as observed in the credit default swap market and market quotations for certain of our subsidiaries’ debt instruments, as
applicable. The changes in the credit risk valuation adjustments associated with our cross-currency and interest rate derivative
contracts resulted in net gains (losses) of ($9.3 million), ($120.9 million) and $15.3 million during 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. These amounts are included in gains (losses) on derivative instruments, net, in our consolidated statements of
operations. For further information regarding our fair value measurements, see note 8.

(¢)  Our equity-related derivative instruments include the fair value of (i) the ITV Collar, (ii) the share collar (the Sumitomo
Collar) with respect to the shares of Sumitomo Corporation held by our company, (iii) the Lionsgate Forward (at December
31, 2015 only), and (iv) the Virgin Media Capped Calls (as defined and described below). The fair values of the ITV Collar,
the Sumitomo Collar and the Lionsgate Forward, each as further described below, do not include credit risk valuation
adjustments as we assume that any losses incurred by our company in the event of nonperformance by the respective
counterparty would be, subject to relevant insolvency laws, fully offset against amounts we owe to such counterparty pursuant
to the related secured borrowing arrangements.

The details of our gains (losses) on derivative instruments, net, are as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013

in millions

Cross-currency and interest rate derivative contracts:

LibErty GLODAl GIOUD ....cuvuvveveeiiieieiesiieteteetstste et eseeaes et s et sese s s sese et ebesesesesesesenenns $ 8557 § 2525 § (600.2)
LILAC GIOUP ottt ettt st e bt et s be et s bt et sbeebeebeenteene 217.0 41.1 13.7
Total cross-currency and interest rate derivative Contracts..........c.ceceecevereererercnennenn 1,072.7 293.6 (586.5)
Equity-related derivative instruments - Liberty Global Group:
ITV COLLAT ...ttt (222.6) (77.4) —
SUMItOmMO COILAT ...ttt e e (20.3) (46.0) (206.4)
LionSgate FOrWard .........coeviiiiiiiiiiiiicece ettt 14.5 — —
Z1ZEO0 COLIAT (B) .euveviiiieieieieieieeete ettt st — (113.3) (152.5)
L 71113 PSPPSR 0.7 0.4 3.4
Total equity-related derivative INSIrUMENTS. ........c.evveeerieerieirieinieinieeeeneeeseeereeeneenens (227.7) (236.3) (362.3)
Foreign currency forward contracts:
Liberty GLObal GIOUD ..c..c.evveuirieiirieiirieiirieiet ettt ettt et 9.0) 29.0 (73.9)
LILAC GIOUP ..ttt ettt sttt bttt eb et sbe et et nenaens 10.3 2.6 1.0
Total foreign currency forward CONLIACES.........coveuerieerieerieirieirieerieeneneeeseereseee e 1.3 31.6 (72.9)
Other - Liberty Global GIOUP .......ccceeeruireriiriiniinienienieteteteteiteeeeete e 0.9 0.1) 1.3
Total Liberty Global GIOUP .......cccceeruiriiriririintinientertetet ettt 619.9 45.1 (1,035.1)
TOtal LAILAC GIOUP...cutieutiitieiieieete ettt ettt ettt st nae st e b et e b eaenaeas 2273 43.7 14.7
TOAL ..ttt $ 8472 $ 88.8 § (1,020.4)

(a)  Upon completion of the Ziggo Acquisition, the Ziggo Collar (as defined and described below) was terminated.
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The net cash received or paid related to our derivative instruments is classified as an operating, investing or financing activity
in our consolidated statements of cash flows based on the objective of the derivative instrument and the classification ofthe applicable
underlying cash flows. For foreign currency forward contracts that are used to hedge capital expenditures, the net cash received or
paid is classified as an adjustment to capital expenditures in our consolidated statements of cash flows. For derivative contracts that
are terminated prior to maturity, the cash paid or received upon termination that relates to future periods is classified as a financing
activity. The classification of these net cash inflows (outflows) is as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013

in millions

Operating activities:

LibErty GLODAl GIOUD ....cvvuvveveiiiieieiesiieieteeieeste et seeaes et s sttt ss et sessebeseseseseseseneenns $ (2259) § (4252) $§ (358.1)
LIALAC GIOUP vttt ettt (28.8) (20.5) (44.0)
Total OPETating ACTIVILIES .....eeververtirterieriestetertet ettt e (254.7) (445.7) (402.1)
Investing activities:
Liberty GIobal GIOUP .....cc.evviieieieieiieiteieeitei sttt sttt ettt ettt naens 15.6 (30.2) (66.5)
LILAC GIOUD 1evtentieiiiieiieeiteerite et eteeetesteessteeveestaeesseessaesssaesseesssaenssassseesssesssesnsessssesnseens 2.2 — —
Total INVESHING ACHIVITIES .....eevervirtirteriertentetertert ettt ettt st et e 17.8 (30.2) (66.5)
Financing activities:
Liberty GIODal GIOUP .....cc.evverieieieiieiieieieeitet ettt ettt ettt ettt naens (301.2) (183.6) 524.5
LILAC GIOUP ..ttt sttt sttt ettt st et a e — (37.4) —
Total fINANCING ACTIVILIES .....eevervirtieterteriertetertee ettt st e (301.2) (221.0) 524.5
Total cash outflows:
Liberty GloDal GIOUP .....cc.evvirieieieieiieteieeitei ettt ettt ettt (511.5) (639.0) 99.9
LILAC GIOUP vttt ettt sttt (26.6) (57.9) (44.0)
TOAL ... e $ (538.1) § (696.9) $ 55.9

Counterparty Credit Risk

We are exposed to the risk that the counterparties to the derivative instruments of our subsidiary borrowing groups will default
on their obligations to us. We manage these credit risks through the evaluation and monitoring of the creditworthiness of, and
concentration of risk with, the respective counterparties. In this regard, credit risk associated with our derivative instruments is
spread across a relatively broad counterparty base of banks and financial institutions. Collateral is generally not posted by either
party under the derivative instruments of our subsidiary borrowing groups. At December 31, 2015, our exposure to counterparty
credit risk included derivative assets with an aggregate fair value of $2,025.2 million.

Each of our subsidiary borrowing groups have entered into derivative instruments under master agreements with each
counterparty that contain master netting arrangements that are applicable in the event of early termination by either party to such
derivative instrument. The master netting arrangements under each of these master agreements are limited to the derivative
instruments governed by the relevant master agreement within each individual borrowing group and are independent of similar
arrangements of our other subsidiary borrowing groups.

Under our derivative contracts, it is generally only the non-defaulting party that has a contractual option to exercise early
termination rights upon the default of the other counterparty and to set off other liabilities against sums due upon such termination.
However, in an insolvency of a derivative counterparty, under the laws of certain jurisdictions, the defaulting counterparty or its
insolvency representatives may be able to compel the termination of one or more derivative contracts and trigger early termination
payment liabilities payable by us, reflecting any mark-to-market value of the contracts for the counterparty. Alternatively, or in
addition, the insolvency laws of certain jurisdictions may require the mandatory set off of amounts due under such derivative
contracts against present and future liabilities owed to us under other contracts between us and the relevant counterparty. Accordingly,
it is possible that we may be subject to obligations to make payments, or may have present or future liabilities owed to us partially
or fully discharged by set off as a result of such obligations, in the event of the insolvency of a derivative counterparty, even though
it is the counterparty that is in default and not us. To the extent that we are required to make such payments, our ability to do so
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will depend on our liquidity and capital resources at the time. In an insolvency of a defaulting counterparty, we will be an unsecured
creditor in respect of any amount owed to us by the defaulting counterparty, except to the extent of the value of any collateral we
have obtained from that counterparty.

In addition, where a counterparty is in financial difficulty, under the laws of certain jurisdictions, the relevant regulators may
be able to (i) compel the termination of one or more derivative instruments, determine the settlement amount and/or compel, without
any payment, the partial or full discharge of liabilities arising from such early termination that are payable by the relevant counterparty
or (ii) transfer the derivative instruments to an alternative counterparty.

Details of our Derivative Instruments

In the following tables, we present the details of the various categories of our subsidiaries’ derivative instruments. For each
subsidiary with multiple derivative instruments that mature within the same calendar month, the notional amounts are shown in the
aggregate, and interest rates are presented on a weighted average basis. In addition, for derivative instruments that were in effect
as of December 31, 2015, we present a single date that represents the applicable final maturity date. For derivative instruments that
become effective subsequent to December 31, 2015, we present a range of dates that represents the period covered by the applicable
derivative instruments.

Cross-currency and Interest Rate Derivative Contracts

Cross-currency Swaps:

The terms of our outstanding cross-currency swap contracts at December 31, 2015 are as follows:

Notional Notional

amount amount Interest rate Interest rate
Subsidiary / due from due to due from due to
Final maturity date counterparty counterparty counterparty counterparty

in millions

Virgin Media Investment

Holdings Limited

(VMIH), a subsidiary of

Virgin Media:
January 2023................ $ 400.0 € 339.6 5.75% 4.33%
June 2023........cccceenee $ 1,855.0 £ 1,198.3 6 mo. LIBOR + 2.75% 6 mo. GBP LIBOR + 3.18%
February 2022.............. $ 1,400.0 £ 873.6 5.01% 5.49%
January 2023................ $ 1,000.0 £ 648.6 5.25% 5.32%
January 2021............... $ 500.0 £ 308.9 5.25% 6 mo. GBP LIBOR + 2.06%
October 2022 ............... $ 450.0 £ 272.0 6.00% 6.43%
January 2022................ $ 4250 £ 255.8 5.50% 5.82%
April 2019......cccveneee. $ 191.5 £ 122.3 5.38% 5.49%
November 2016 (a)...... $ 55.0 £ 27.7 6.50% 7.03%
October 2019 ............... $ 50.0 £ 30.3 8.38% 8.98%
October 2019 -

October 2022............ $ 50.0 £ 30.7 6.00% 5.75%
UPC Broadband Holding

B.V. (UPC Broadband

Holding), a subsidiary

of UPC Holding:
January 2023................ $ 1,140.0 € 1,043.7 5.38% 3.71%
July 2021 ..o $ 440.0 € 337.2 6 mo. LIBOR + 2.50% 6 mo. EURIBOR + 2.87%
January 2017 - July

2021 $ 262.1 € 194.1 6 mo. LIBOR + 2.50% 6 mo. EURIBOR +2.51%

January 2020................ $ 2525 € 192.5 6 mo. LIBOR +4.93% 7.49%
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Notional Notional
amount amount Interest rate Interest rate
Subsidiary / due from due to due from due to
Final maturity date counterparty counterparty counterparty counterparty
in millions
November 2019 ........... $ 250.0 € 181.5 7.25% 7.74%
November 2021 ........... $ 250.0 € 181.4 7.25% 7.50%
October 2020 ............... $ 125.0 € 91.3 6 mo. LIBOR + 3.00% 6 mo. EURIBOR + 3.04%
January 2020................ $ 122.5 € 93.4 6 mo. LIBOR + 4.94% 6 mo. EURIBOR + 4.87%
December 2016............ $ 340.0 CHF 370.9 6 mo. LIBOR + 3.50% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR +4.01%
July 2016 (@) ..ccveneenee $ 225.0 CHF 206.3 6 mo. LIBOR + 4.81% 1.00%
July 2016 - January

20200 $ 225.0 CHF 206.3 6 mo. LIBOR +4.81% 5.44%

July 2021 e $ 200.0 CHF 186.0 6 mo. LIBOR + 2.50% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR + 2.55%
January 2017 - July

2023 e, $ 200.0 CHF 185.5 6 mo. LIBOR + 2.50% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR + 2.48%
November 2019 ........... $ 175.0 CHF 158.7 7.25% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR + 5.01%
January 2017 - July

2021 i $ 100.0 CHF 92.8 6 mo. LIBOR + 2.50% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR + 2.49%
July 2016 (@) ..ccveeenee $ 201.5 RON 489.3 6 mo. LIBOR + 3.50% 1.40%

July 2016 -

July 2020.................. $ 201.5 RON 489.3 6 mo. LIBOR + 3.50% 11.34%

January 2021................ € 720.8 CHF 877.0 6 mo. EURIBOR +2.50% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR + 2.62%
January 2017 -

September 2022 ....... € 383.8 CHF 477.0 6 mo. EURIBOR +2.00% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR +2.22%
January 2017................ € 360.4 CHF 589.0 6 mo. EURIBOR +3.75% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR + 3.94%
October 2016................ € 285.1 CHF 346.7 10.51% (0.73)%

October 2016 - April
2018 € 285.1 CHF 346.7 10.51% 9.87%
January 2020................ € 175.0 CHF 258.6 7.63% 6.76%
July 2020 ....coveiennee € 107.4 CHF 129.0 6 mo. EURIBOR +3.00% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR + 3.28%
July 2023 ..o € 85.3 CHF 95.0 6 mo. EURIBOR +2.21% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR + 2.65%
July 2021 .o € 76.1 CHF 92.1 6 mo. EURIBOR +2.50% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR + 2.88%
January 2017................ € 75.0 CHF 110.9 7.63% 6.98%
January 2020................ € 3189 CZK 8,818.7 5.58% 5.44%
January 2017................ € 60.0 CZK 1,703.1 5.50% 6.99%
July 2017 e € 39.6 CZK 1,000.0 3.00% 3.75%
July 2016 (@) ................ € 260.0 HUF  75,570.0 5.50% 5.00%
July 2016 - January

1) € 260.0 HUF  75,570.0 5.50% 10.56%
December 2016............ € 150.0 HUF  43,367.5 5.50% 2.00%

July 2018 .o € 78.0 HUF 19,500.0 5.50% 9.15%
January 2017................ € 245.0 PLN 1,000.6 5.50% 9.03%
September 2016........... € 200.0 PLN 892.7 6.00% 3.91%
January 2020................ € 144.6 PLN 605.0 5.50% 7.98%
July 2017 e € 82.0 PLN 318.0 3.00% 5.60%
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Notional Notional

amount amount Interest rate Interest rate
Subsidiary / due from due to due from due to
Final maturity date counterparty counterparty counterparty counterparty

in millions

Amsterdamse Beheer-en
Consultingmaatschappij
B.V.(ABCB.V.), a

subsidiary of Ziggo
Group Holding:
January 2022................ $ 2,350.0 € 1,819.0 6 mo. LIBOR + 2.75% 4.56%
January 2023................ $ 400.0 € 339.0 5.88% 4.58%
Unitymedia Hessen GmbH

& Co. KG (Unitymedia
Hessen), a subsidiary of

Unitymedia:

January 2023................ $ 2,450.0 € 1,799.0 5.62% 4.76%
VTR:

January 2022................ $ 1,400.0 CLP 951,390.0 6.88% 6.36%

(a)  Unlike the other cross-currency swaps presented in this table, the identified cross-currency swaps do not involve the exchange
of notional amounts at the inception and maturity of the instruments. Accordingly, the only cash flows associated with these
derivative instruments are interest payments and receipts.

Interest Rate Swaps.

The terms of our outstanding interest rate swap contracts at December 31, 2015 are as follows:

Interest rate due from Interest rate due to
Subsidiary / Final maturity date Notional amount counterparty counterparty
in millions
VMIH:
October 2018.....ccovvieieieieeeeeeeee e £ 2,155.0 6 mo. GBP LIBOR 1.52%
October 2018 - June 2023 ..................... £ 1,200.0 6 mo. GBP LIBOR 2.49%
January 2021 ....ccovivininininenceeee £ 650.0 5.50% 6 mo. GBP LIBOR + 1.84%
January 2021 ...cooviiiiiiiiieiceee, £ 650.0 6 mo. GBP LIBOR + 1.84% 3.87%
APTIL 2018 ..o £ 300.0 6 mo. GBP LIBOR 1.37%
UPC Broadband Holding:
January 2022 .....ccccooeveieiiiiieeeeeiene $ 675.0 6.88% 6 mo. LIBOR + 4.90%
July 2020 ..o € 750.0 6.38% 6 mo. EURIBOR + 3.16%
July 2016 e € 503.4 6 mo. EURIBOR 0.20%
July 2016 - January 2021 .........c.ccuveneee. € 250.0 6 mo. EURIBOR 2.52%
July 2016 - January 2023 ..........ccceeneee € 210.0 6 mo. EURIBOR 2.88%
November 2021 .......ccevvevcvereeieriinrennen. € 107.0 6 mo. EURIBOR 2.89%
July 2016 - July 2020 ......ccoveevrereerienenns € 43.4 6 mo. EURIBOR 3.95%
July 2016 e CHF 900.0 6 mo. CHF LIBOR 0.05%
January 2022 .....coccoviriiiniiiiieeeeee CHF 711.5 6 mo. CHF LIBOR 1.89%
July 2016 - January 2021 .........ceeueeeeene CHF 500.0 6 mo. CHF LIBOR 1.65%
July 2016 - January 2018 ...................... CHF 400.0 6 mo. CHF LIBOR 2.51%
December 2016 ......ccoooeveeieiieieiens CHF 370.9 6 mo. CHF LIBOR 3.82%
November 2019......ccceevivinenenieeene CHF 226.8 6 mo. CHF LIBOR +5.01% 6.88%
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Interest rate due from Interest rate due to
Subsidiary / Final maturity date Notional amount counterparty counterparty
in millions

ABCB.V.:

January 2022 ......coevieviiiiieieeeeee, € 1,566.0 6 mo. EURIBOR 1.66%

January 2016 .....cocovieieiieeeeeee € 689.0 1 mo. EURIBOR + 3.75% 6 mo. EURIBOR + 3.59%

January 2016 - January 2017 ................ € 689.0 1 mo. EURIBOR + 3.75% 6 mo. EURIBOR + 3.57%

January 2021 ..o € 500.0 6 mo. EURIBOR 2.61%

July 2016 .evieeiiieieeeeceeecee e € 461.3 6 mo. EURIBOR 0.20%

July 2016 - January 2023 ...................... € 290.0 6 mo. EURIBOR 2.84%

March 2021 .....coeeevieieiieiecieeeiee € 175.0 6 mo. EURIBOR 2.32%

July 2016 - January 2022 ...................... € 171.3 6 mo. EURIBOR 3.44%
Telenet International Finance S.a.r.l

(Telenet International), a subsidiary

of Telenet:

July 2017 o € 800.0 3 mo. EURIBOR (0.17)%

June 2023 ..o, € 500.0 3 mo. EURIBOR 0.42%

July 2017 - June 2022 ......ccoevvevrenrennenns € 420.0 3 mo. EURIBOR 2.08%

June 2021 ..o, € 400.0 3 mo. EURIBOR 0.41%

July 2017 - June 2023 ......cccovvieiins € 382.0 3 mo. EURIBOR 1.89%

June 2022 ....ooeiiiii e, € 55.0 3 mo. EURIBOR 1.81%
Liberty Puerto Rico:

October 2016 - January 2022 ................ $ 506.3 3 mo. LIBOR 2.49%

October 2016 - January 2019 ................ $ 168.8 3 mo. LIBOR 1.96%

Interest Rate Caps

Our purchased and sold interest rate cap contracts with respect to EURIBOR at December 31, 2015 are detailed below:

December 31, 2015
. Notional EURIBOR
Subsidiary / Final maturity date amount cap rate

in millions
Interest rate caps purchased (a):
Liberty Global Europe Financing B.V. (LGE Financing), the immediate parent of

UPC Holding:
JANUATY 2020 ...ttt ettt sbe e bt et saeen € 735.0 7.00%
Telenet International:
JUNE 2017 oottt ettt ettt et e st e et e te b e te b e tb e b e ra e bt e raeereenbesreenbeeraenbeernens € 50.0 4.50%
Telenet N.V., a subsidiary of Telenet:
DECEMDBET 2017 ..ttt ettt st sbe et saeens € 0.5 6.50%
DECEMDET 2017 ...ttt ettt e et e et e e be e e tbe e teesabeebaeeabe e aaeeabe e raeeaeeree e € 0.5 5.50%

Interest rate cap sold (b):
UPC Broadband Holding:

JANUATY 2020 .....eciiiiiiiiiiceeeee et € 735.0 7.00%

11-41



LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

(a)  Our purchased interest rate caps entitle us to receive payments from the counterparty when the relevant EURIBOR exceeds
the EURIBOR cap rate during the specified observation periods.

(b)  Our sold interest rate cap requires that we make payments to the counterparty when the relevant EURIBOR exceeds the
EURIBOR cap rate during the specified observation periods.

Interest Rate Collars

Our interest rate collar contracts establish floor and cap rates with respect to EURIBOR on the indicated notional amounts at
December 31, 2015, as detailed below:

December 31, 2015
. . . Notional EURIBOR EURIBOR
Subsidiary / Final maturity date amount floor rate (a)  cap rate (b)
in millions
UPC Broadband Holding:
July 2016 - January 2020 .........cccueeveeieriieieniieiesieete st eee e eae e ese e ese s eseeseeseees € 1,135.0 1.00% 3.54%

(a)  We make payments to the counterparty when the relevant EURIBOR is less than the EURIBOR floor rate during the specified
observation periods.

(b)  We receive payments from the counterparty when the relevant EURIBOR is greater than the EURIBOR cap rate during the
specified observation periods.

Equity-related Derivative Instruments

ITV Collar and Secured Borrowing. The ITV Collar is comprised of (i) purchased put options exercisable by Liberty Global
Incorporated Limited (Liberty Global Limited), our wholly-owned subsidiary, and (ii) written call options exercisable by the
counterparty. The ITV Collar effectively hedges the value of our investment in ITV shares from losses due to market price decreases
below the put option price while retaining a portion of the gains from market price increases up to the call option price. For additional
information regarding our investment in ITV, see note 6.

The ITV Collar and related agreements also provided Liberty Global Limited with the ability to effectively finance the purchase
of its ITV shares pursuant to the ITV Collar Loan. In July 2014 and in connection with the Initial ITV Investment, Liberty Global
Limited borrowed £446.9 million ($764.5 million at the transaction date) under the ITV Collar Loan. In July 2015 and in connection
with the Additional ITV Investment, Liberty Global Limited (i) modified the purchased put option and written call option strike
prices within the ITV Collar and (ii) increased its borrowings under the ITV Collar Loan, resulting in net cash received of $92.0
million. The amount received in connection with the Additional ITV Investment includes $77.5 million of cash borrowings under
the ITV Collar Loan that were not required to fund the Additional ITV Investment and $14.5 million related to the ITV Collar Loan
modifications. Immediately prior to the completion of these modifications, the fair value of the ITV Collar was a $270.5 million
liability. In connection with the ITV Collar modifications, this liability was effectively transferred on a non-cash basis to the principal
amount of the ITV Collar Loan. At December 31, 2015, borrowings under the ITV Collar Loan were secured by all 398,515,510
of our ITV shares, which have been placed into a custody account. The ITV Collar Loan was issued at a discount with a zero coupon
rate and has an average implied yield of 139 basis points (1.39%). The ITV Collar Loan, which has an average maturity of three
years and contains no financial covenants, provides for customary representations and warranties, events of default and certain
adjustment and termination events. Under the terms of the ITV Collar, the counterparty has the right to re-use the pledged ITV
shares held in the custody account, but we have the right to recall the shares that are re-used by the counterparty subject to certain
costs. In addition, the counterparty retains dividends on the ITV shares that the counterparty would need to borrow from the custody
account to hedge its exposure under the ITV Collar (an estimated 390 million shares at December 31, 2015).

Sumitomo Collar and Secured Borrowing. The Sumitomo Collar is comprised of purchased put options exercisable by Liberty
Programming Japan LLC (Liberty Programming Japan), our wholly-owned subsidiary, and written call options exercisable by
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the counterparty with respect to all of the common shares of Sumitomo owned by Liberty Programming Japan. The Sumitomo
Collar effectively hedges the value of our investment in Sumitomo shares from losses due to market price decreases below a per
share value of ¥2,118.50 ($17.62) while retaining gains from market price increases up to a per share value of ¥2,787.50 ($23.19).
At December 31, 2015, the market price of Sumitomo common stock was ¥1,240.50 ($10.32) per share. The Sumitomo Collar
provides for a projected gross cash ordinary dividend to be paid per Sumitomo share during the term of the Sumitomo Collar. If
the actual dividend paid does not exactly match the projected dividend, then an adjustment amount shall be payable between the
parties to the Sumitomo Collar depending on the dividend actually paid by Sumitomo. The Sumitomo Collar may, at the option of
Liberty Programming Japan, be settled in Sumitomo shares or in cash. The Sumitomo Collar also includes a purchased fair value
put option, which effectively provides Liberty Programming Japan with the ability to sell the Sumitomo shares when the market
price is trading between the put and call strike prices. The Sumitomo Collar matures in five equal semi-annual installments beginning
on May 22, 2016. The fair value of the Sumitomo Collar as of December 31, 2015 was a net asset of $345.6 million, of which
$120.6 million is classified as current in our consolidated balance sheet.

The Sumitomo Collar and related agreements also provide Liberty Programming Japan with the ability to borrow funds on a
secured basis. Borrowings under these agreements, which are secured by a pledge of 100% of the Sumitomo shares owned by
Liberty Programming Japan, bear interest at 1.883% and mature in five equal semi-annual installments beginning on May 22,2016,
areincluded in our current and long-term debt in our consolidated balance sheets. During 2007, Liberty Programming Japan borrowed
¥93.660 billion ($757.6 million at the transaction date) under these agreements (the Sumitomo Collar Loan). The pledge
arrangement entered into by Liberty Programming Japan provides that Liberty Programming Japan will be able to exercise all
voting and consensual rights and, subject to the terms of the Sumitomo Collar, receive dividends on the Sumitomo shares.

Lionsgate Forward and Secured Borrowing. The Lionsgate Forward has the economic equivalent of (i) purchased put options
exercisable by Liberty Global Limited and (ii) written call options exercisable by the counterparty. The Lionsgate Forward effectively
hedges the value of a portion of our investment in Lionsgate shares from losses due to market price decreases below the put option
price while retaining a portion of the gains from market price increases up to the call option price. For additional information
regarding our investment in Lionsgate, see note 6.

The Lionsgate Forward and related agreements also provided Liberty Global Limited with the ability to effectively finance a
portion of the purchase of its Lionsgate shares pursuant to the Lionsgate Loan. In November 2015, Liberty Global Limited borrowed
$69.7 million under the Lionsgate Loan. At December 31, 2015, borrowings under the Lionsgate Loan were secured by 2.5 million
of our Lionsgate shares, which have been placed into a custody account. The Lionsgate Loan was issued at a discount with a zero
coupon rate and an average implied yield of 350 basis points (3.5%). The Lionsgate Loan, which has an average maturity of five
years and contains no financial covenants, provides for customary representations and warranties, events of default and certain
adjustment and termination events. Under the terms of the Lionsgate Forward, the counterparty does not have the right to re-use
the pledged Lionsgate shares without permission from Liberty Global. In addition, Liberty Global Limited is obligated to share
with the counterparty the economic benefit of any dividends paid during the term of the pledge based on a formula that takes into
account a theoretical hedging position by the counterparty under the Lionsgate Forward (an estimated 1.7 million shares at
December 31, 2015).

Ziggo Collar and Secured Borrowing. In July 2013, Liberty Global Limited paid a net option premium of €38.6 million ($51.0
million at the transaction date) to enter into a share collar (the Ziggo Collar) and secured borrowing arrangement (the Ziggo Collar
Loan) with respect to the then owned 24,957,000 Ziggo shares. The Ziggo Collar was comprised of (i) purchased put options
exercisable by Liberty Global Limited and (ii) sold call options exercisable by the counterparty. Prior to the Ziggo Acquisition, the
Ziggo Collar effectively hedged the value of a portion of our investment in Ziggo shares from significant losses due to market price
decreases below the put option price while retaining a portion of the gains from market price increases up to the call option price.

The Ziggo Collar and related agreements also provided Liberty Global Limited with the ability to effectively finance the
purchase of certain of its Ziggo shares pursuant to the Ziggo Collar Loan. In this regard, in July 2013, we borrowed €617.1 million
($816.4 million at the transaction date) under the Ziggo Collar Loan, including €486.4 million ($643.5 million at the transaction
date) of non-cash borrowings that were used to finance the acquisition of Ziggo shares. Upon completion of the Ziggo Acquisition
(see note 4), the Ziggo Collar was terminated and the Ziggo Collar Loan was settled.

Virgin Media Capped Calls. During 2010, Virgin Media entered into conversion hedges (the Virgin Media Capped Calls) in
order to offset a portion of the dilutive effects associated with the exchange of certain exchangeable notes of Virgin Media. During
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2013, and in connection with the exchange of certain exchangeable notes of Virgin Media, we settled 93.8% of the notional amount
of the Virgin Media Capped Calls for cash proceeds of $534.8 million.

Foreign Currency Forwards

The following table summarizes our outstanding foreign currency forward contracts at December 31, 2015:

Currency Currency
. purchased sold .
Subsidiary forward forward Maturity dates

in millions

LGE Financing...........ccceeveveveeenirueeeseniseesesneneenas $ 2151 € 194.6 January 2016 - June 2016
LGE Financing...........ccceeevevevverenieenieenieeneeenenes £ 202§ 30.7 January 2016 - May 2016
LGE Financing...........cceceeevenievienieneeinencnenennene £ 23.0 € 31.2 January 2016

UPC Broadband Holding............ccccccceiniiiinnnnn. $ 2.5 CZK 60.0 January 2016 - December 2016
UPC Broadband Holding...........cccccoeveivveincnnnnee. € 64.1 CHF 68.6 January 2016 - December 2016
UPC Broadband Holding.........c.cccccecvririninennenn. € 149 CZK 405.0 January 2016 - September 2016
UPC Broadband Holding.........c..cceevrverirnrennnnnen. € 19.0 HUF 6,000.0 January 2016 - December 2016
UPC Broadband Holding.........c.ccccccecvvirininennenn. € 36.0 PLN 154.3 January 2016 - December 2016
UPC Broadband Holding...........ccccoeveivveincnnnee. € 13.6 RON 61.6 January 2016 - March 2016
UPC Broadband Holding.........c.ccccccecvvirininennenn. £ 36 € 4.9 January 2016 - December 2016
UPC Broadband Holding........c.ccccecceveercrcnennnn CHF 81.0 € 74.9 January 2016

UPC Broadband Holding.........c.ccccccecvvirininennenn. CZK 4350 € 16.1 January 2016

UPC Broadband Holding.........c.cccecvvrverirerennnnnen. HUF 6,600.0 € 21.1 January 2016

UPC Broadband Holding.........c.ccccccecvvirininennenn. PLN 39.0 € 9.2 January 2016

Telenet NoV...oovvrrrrrrr e $ 496 € 45.1 January 2016 - December 2016
VTR o $ 143.1 CLP 100,022.5 January 2016 - November 2016
) Fair Value Measurements

We use the fair value method to account for (i) certain of our investments and (ii) our derivative instruments. The reported
fair values of these investments and derivative instruments as of December 31, 2015 likely will not represent the value that will
be paid or received upon the ultimate settlement or disposition of these assets and liabilities. In the case of the investments that
we account for using the fair value method, the values we realize upon disposition will be dependent upon, among other factors,
market conditions and the forecasted financial performance of the investees at the time of any such disposition. With respect to
our derivative instruments, we expect that the values realized generally will be based on market conditions at the time of settlement,
which may occur at the maturity of the derivative instrument or at the time of the repayment or refinancing of the underlying debt
instrument.

GAAP provides for a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into
three broad levels. Level 1 inputs are quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting
entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted market prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability. We record transfers of assets or liabilities into or out of Levels 1, 2 or 3 at the beginning of the quarter during
which the transfer occurred. During 2015, no such transfers were made.

All of our Level 2 inputs (interest rate futures, swap rates and certain of the inputs for our weighted average cost of capital
calculations) and certain of our Level 3 inputs (forecasted volatilities and credit spreads) are obtained from pricing services. These
inputs, or interpolations or extrapolations thereof, are used in our internal models to calculate, among other items, yield curves,
forward interest and currency rates and weighted average cost of capital rates. In the normal course of business, we receive market
value assessments from the counterparties to our derivative contracts. Although we compare these assessments to our internal
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valuations and investigate unexpected differences, we do not otherwise rely on counterparty quotes to determine the fair values
of our derivative instruments. The midpoints of applicable bid and ask ranges generally are used as inputs for our internal valuations.

For our investments in ITV, Sumitomo and Lionsgate, the recurring fair value measurements are based on the quoted closing
price of the respective shares at each reporting date. Accordingly, the valuations of these investments fall under Level 1 of the fair
value hierarchy. Our other investments that we account for at fair value are privately-held companies, and therefore, quoted market
prices are unavailable. The valuation technique we use for such investments is a combination of an income approach (discounted
cash flow model based on forecasts) and a market approach (market multiples of similar businesses). With the exception of certain
inputs for our weighted average cost of capital calculations that are derived from pricing services, the inputs used to value these
investments are based on unobservable inputs derived from our assumptions. Therefore, the valuation of our privately-held
investments falls under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Any reasonably foreseeable changes in assumed levels of unobservable
inputs for the valuations of our Level 3 investments would not be expected to have a material impact on our financial position or
results of operations.

The recurring fair value measurement of our equity-related derivative instruments are based on binomial option pricing models,
which require the input of observable and unobservable variables such as exchange-traded equity prices, risk-free interest rates,
dividend yields and forecasted volatilities of the underlying equity securities. The valuations of our equity-related derivative
instruments are based on a combination of Level 1 inputs (exchange traded equity prices), Level 2 inputs (interest rate futures and
swap rates) and Level 3 inputs (forecasted volatilities). As changes in volatilities could have a significant impact on the overall
valuations, we have determined that these valuations fall under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. For the December 31, 2015
valuation of the ITV Collar, we used estimated volatilities ranging from 25.7% to 27.6%. At December 31, 2015, the valuations
of the Sumitomo Collar, the Virgin Media Capped Calls and the Lionsgate Forward were not significantly impacted by forecasted
volatilities.

As further described in note 7, we have entered into various derivative instruments to manage our interest rate and foreign
currency exchange risk. The recurring fair value measurements of these derivative instruments are determined using discounted
cash flow models. Most of the inputs to these discounted cash flow models consist of, or are derived from, observable Level 2
data for substantially the full term of these derivative instruments. This observable data includes most interest rate futures and
swap rates, which are retrieved or derived from available market data. Although we may extrapolate or interpolate this data, we
do not otherwise alter this data in performing our valuations. We incorporate a credit risk valuation adjustment in our fair value
measurements to estimate the impact of both our own nonperformance risk and the nonperformance risk of our counterparties.
Our and our counterparties’ credit spreads represent our most significant Level 3 inputs, and these inputs are used to derive the
credit risk valuation adjustments with respect to our various interest rate and foreign currency derivative valuations. As we would
not expect changes in our or our counterparties’ credit spreads to have a significant impact on the valuations of these derivative
instruments, we have determined that these valuations fall under Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. Our credit risk valuation
adjustments with respect to our cross-currency and interest rate swaps are quantified and further explained in note 7.

Fair value measurements are also used in connection with nonrecurring valuations performed in connection with impairment
assessments and acquisition accounting. These nonrecurring valuations include the valuation of reporting units, customer
relationship intangible assets, property and equipment and the implied value of goodwill. The valuation of private reporting units
is based at least in part on discounted cash flow analyses. With the exception of certain inputs for our weighted average cost of
capital and discount rate calculations that are derived from pricing services, the inputs used in our discounted cash flow analyses,
such as forecasts of future cash flows, are based on our assumptions. The valuation of customer relationships is primarily based
on an excess earnings methodology, which is a form of a discounted cash flow analysis. The excess earnings methodology requires
us to estimate the specific cash flows expected from the customer relationship, considering such factors as estimated customer
life, the revenue expected to be generated over the life of the customer, contributory asset charges, and other factors. Tangible
assets are typically valued using a replacement or reproduction cost approach, considering factors such as current prices of the
same or similar equipment, the age of the equipment and economic obsolescence. The implied value of goodwill is determined
by allocating the fair value of a reporting unit to all of the assets and liabilities of that unit as if the reporting unit had been acquired
in a business combination, with the residual amount allocated to goodwill. All of our nonrecurring valuations use significant
unobservable inputs and therefore fall under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. During 2015, 2014 and 2013, we performed
nonrecurring valuations for the purpose of determining the acquisition accounting for the Choice Acquisition, the Ziggo Acquisition
and the Virgin Media Acquisition, respectively. We used discount rates of 11.75%, 8.50% and 9.00%, respectively, for our valuations
of the customer relationships acquired as a result of these acquisitions. For the Choice Acquisition, the discount rate used to value
franchise marketing rights acquired as a result of this acquisition was approximately 12.25%.
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A summary of our assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis is as follows:

Fair value measurements at
December 31, 2015 using:

Quoted prices  Significant

in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
December 31, identical assets inputs inputs
Description 2015 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in millions
Assets:
Derivative instruments:
Cross-currency and interest rate derivative contracts............. $ 2,085.6 $ — $ 2,0856 $ —
Equity-related derivative inStruments.........c..cecceceeerereerennenn 408.5 — — 408.5
Foreign currency forward contracts............cocceceverenenieneennenee 10.4 — 10.4 —
L 114 1<) TSP 1.6 — 1.6 —
Total derivative InStruments.............cocceceeerererenerenennenee 2,506.1 — 2,097.6 408.5
INVESTMENLS ...coveeiiiiiiiiiiieeiteecetc e 2,591.8 2,257.2 — 334.6
TOtAl @SSCLS....veivierieiieiietiete ettt $ 50979 $ 2,2572 $ 2,097.6 $ 743.1

Liabilities - derivative instruments:

Cross-currency and interest rate derivative contracts............. $ 1,5134 $ — $ 15134 $ —
Equity-related derivative inStruments............cccoeeerveerueernenns 74.4 — — 74.4
Foreign currency forward contracts.........c..cocceererenenneneennn 1.1 — 1.1 —
ORET ..ot 5.7 — 5.7 —

Total HabIlItIES....ccoivieeiiieiieiieiee e $ 1,594.6 $ — $ 15202 § 74.4

11-46



LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Fair value measurements
at December 31, 2014 using:

Quoted prices  Significant

in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
December 31, identical assets inputs inputs
Description 2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in millions
Assets:
Derivative instruments:
Cross-currency and interest rate derivative contracts ............ $ 1,357.3 $ — $ 13573 § —
Equity-related derivative instruments ...........coccoceeeeereenuennnne 400.2 — — 400.2
Foreign currency forward contracts ...........c.cceceverenvereneennene. 2.5 — 2.5 —
OthET .. 1.4 — 1.4 —
Total derivative InStruments ............cocceevererenenrenenennn 1,761.4 — 1,361.2 400.2
TNVESTMENLES ..ot 1,662.7 1,344.3 — 318.4
TOtAl ASSELS ....vveeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt $ 34241 $ 1,3443 § 1,361.2 $ 718.6
Liabilities - derivative instruments: -
Cross-currency and interest rate derivative contracts ............ $ 24713 $ — §$ 24713 § —
Equity-related derivative InStruments ...........cocceeeeeerveneennnne 88.4 — — 88.4
Foreign currency forward contracts ...........c.ccocevevevveneeneennenn. 0.8 — 0.8 —
ONET .. 03 — 0.3 —
Total Habilities......cecveiriririnirininencreeeeeeeee $ 2,560.8 $ — § 24724 % 88.4

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of our assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
using significant unobservable, or Level 3, inputs is as follows:

Equity-related
derivative
Investments instruments Total

in millions

Balance of net assets at January 1, 2015.........cccoovveiiieiiieieieieeeereeereeeve e $ 3184 § 311.8  § 630.2
Losses included in net loss (a):

Losses on derivative InStruments, Net ...........cceveeeeereeeneeerereneeneeeneesnenennene — (227.7) (227.7)

Losses due to changes in fair values of certain investments, net..................... (5.9) — (5.9)
Adjustments resulting from the modification of the terms of the ITV Collar,

TR () J SOOI — 256.0 256.0

Foreign currency translation adjustments and other, net...............cccoceeeeneenes 22.1 (6.0) 16.1
Balance of net assets at December 31, 2015......ccooiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeeeeceeeeeee e $ 3346 $ 334.1 $ 668.7

(@)  Most of these net losses relate to assets and liabilities that we continue to carry on our consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2015.

(b)  On July 30, 2015, we modified the terms of the ITV Collar in connection with our acquisition of additional ITV shares. In
connection with these modifications, we effectively transferred a liability associated with the ITV Collar to the ITV Collar
Loan and received cash from the counterparty. For additional information regarding these adjustments, see note 7. For
additional information regarding our investment in ITV, see note 6.
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(&) Long-lived Assets

Property and Equipment, Net

The details of our property and equipment and the related accumulated depreciation are set forth below:

Estimated useful December 31,
life at
December 31, 2015 2015 2014

in millions

Distribution systems: 3 to 30 years
Liberty GLODAl GIOUD ...c..c.erieuiriiiiriiiiiiietetet ettt sttt ettt ettt ettt bens $§ 244472 $§ 249856
LILAGC GIOUP ..tentieiieieeiieettete ettt tte et e st eseesteeseesseessessaensesssenseessenseessenseensesssensesssensesssensenssens 1,037.8 1,026.9
TOTAL ..t ettt bbbttt 25,485.0 26,012.5
Customer premises equipment: 3 to 5 years
Liberty Global GIOUP .......cceeieuiririiiiiiinieetetetet ettt ettt 5,651.1 5,437.3
LALAC GIOUP ..ttt ettt ettt et ettt b sttt et ettt ebeebe b 801.4 776.6
TOTAL ..ttt bbbttt 6,452.5 6,213.9
Support equipment, buildings and land: 3 to 50 years
Liberty Global GIOUP .......cceeieuiririiiiieienientetetee ettt sttt 4,461.4 3,953.3
LIALAC GIOUP ..ttt ettt ettt ettt et et b et b et ettt et e et ebe b eaes 341.0 345.1
TOTAL ..t ettt bbbt st 4,802.4 4,298.4
Total property and equipment, gross:
Liberty GlObal GIOUD ....coveoeriiririiiiienieienieieneet sttt ettt ettt sttt 34,559.7 34,376.2
LILAGC GIOUP .ttt ettt sttt ettt ettt et esseesaesseensesseensesseensesssensesseensenseensenseenes 2,180.2 2,148.6
TOTAL .ottt ettt ettt et et e et e et e et e teeabeere e b e ereebeereenbeeraenteeneens 36,739.9 36,524.8
Accumulated depreciation:
Liberty Global GIOUP .......cceeiruiririiitinierieetetetee ettt sttt (13,719.2) (11,360.2)
LIALAC GIOUP ..ttt aeees (1,336.7) (1,324.0)
TOTAL ..ttt bbbttt st (15,055.9) (12,684.2)
Total property and equipment, net:
Liberty GlObal GIOUD ....cc.eoeriiririiriiienieienieie ettt ettt sttt 20,840.5 23,016.0
LILAC GIOUP ..ttt ettt ettt sttt ettt ese bbb e 843.5 824.6
TOTAL .ttt bbbttt $§ 21,684.0 $ 23,840.6

Depreciation expense of our continuing operations related to our property and equipment was $4,501.4 million, $4,401.6
million and $3,499.6 million during 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Depreciation expense of our discontinued operation related
to our property and equipment was nil during 2015 and 2014 and $11.5 million during 2013.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the amount of property and equipment, net, recorded under capital leases was $1,262.5
million and $1,580.8 million, respectively. Most of these amounts relate to assets included in our distribution systems category.
Depreciation of assets under capital leases of our continuing operations is included in depreciation and amortization in our
consolidated statements of operations.

During 2015, 2014 and 2013, we recorded non-cash increases related to vendor financing arrangements of $1,481.5 million,
$975.3 million and $573.5 million, respectively, which exclude related VAT of $189.3 million, $114.9 million and $46.0 million,
respectively, that were also financed by our vendors under these arrangements. In addition, during 2015, 2014 and 2013, we
recorded non-cash increases to our property and equipment related to assets acquired under capital leases of $106.1 million, $127.2
million and $143.0 million, respectively.
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Most of our property and equipment is pledged as security under our various debt instruments. For additional information,
see note 10.

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we recorded an impairment charge of $68.7 million to reduce the carrying amount of certain
of Ziggo’s internal-use software assets to zero following our determination that these assets would have no future service potential
for our combined operations in the Netherlands.

In May 2012, we began offering mobile services in Chile through a combination of our own wireless network and a third-
party wireless access arrangement. During the second quarter of 2013, we began exploring strategic alternatives with respect to
VTR’s mobile operations, including alternatives that involved the use of expanded mobile virtual network operator (MVNQ)
arrangements. Effective April 1, 2013, we reduced the useful lives of certain of VTR’s network equipment to reflect our then
expectation that we would enter into a new MVNO arrangement and cease commercial use of VTR’s mobile network during the
fourth quarter of 2013. In September 2013, VTR (i) completed the process of migrating its mobile traffic to a third-party wireless
network pursuant to its existing roaming agreement and (ii) ceased commercial use of its mobile network, which resulted in a
further reduction in the useful lives of the aforementioned network equipment. As a result of these reductions in useful lives, VTR
recognized aggregate incremental depreciation expense of $98.3 million during 2013. In connection with the foregoing, we recorded
restructuring charges totaling $84.9 million during the third and fourth quarters of 2013. These restructuring charges include the
fair value of (a) the remaining payments due under certain tower and real estate operating leases of $71.5 million and (b) certain
other required payments associated with VTR’s mobile network. In December 2013, VTR amended its existing roaming agreement
with an agreement that provides for a full MVNO relationship. For information regarding our restructuring charges, see note 14.
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Goodwill

Changes in the carrying amount of our goodwill during 2015 are set forth below:

Foreign
currency
Acquisitions translation
January 1, and related adjustments December 31,
2015 adjustments and other 2015
in millions
Liberty Global Group:
European Operations Division:
U.K/Ireland.......ooocooiiiiiieieeeeeee e $ 9,245.1 $ 587 $ (513.1) $ 8,790.7
The Netherlands...........cccoeceveineiinenerneicececece 8,605.0 142.2 (895.9) 7,851.3
GOITNANY ...ttt 3,456.9 — (352.5) 3,104.4
BelGIUM ..ot 1,978.9 — (201.8) 1,777.1
Switzerland/Austria ........ocoeeveeierieierieeeee e 3,591.9 — 91.5) 3,500.4
Total Western EUrope..........coceeeverenenenenieneieiececeee, 26,877.8 200.9 (2,054.8) 25,023.9
Central and Eastern Europe 1,302.1 73 (122.5) 1,186.9
Total European Operations Division ..........cccccceeeeeuenene 28,179.9 208.2 (2,177.3) 26,210.8
Corporate and Other..........cccecevirinenenincnecieccceeee 34.4 — (0.4) 34.0
Total Liberty Global Group.........c.cccecerevereeneenenennen 28,214.3 208.2 (2,177.7) 26,244.8
LiLAC Group:
LiLAC Division:
ChIlE ..o 440.3 — (63.3) 377.0
PUETto RICO ....eveviieiiiciricircnceeceeececee e 226.1 51.6 — 277.7
Total LILAC DiviSION......cccevveririerrenieieieieieeeieeeceiene 666.4 51.6 (63.3) 654.7
Corporate and Other (2).........cceeveeveereecieneeieneeie e seeenns 120.9 — — 120.9
Total LILAC GIoUp.....ccceoevveririenierinieienieienieeneeeseeeaene 787.3 51.6 (63.3) 775.6
TOtal ..o $ 29,0016 $ 2598 $  (2,241.00 $ 27,0204

(a)  Represents enterprise-level goodwill that is allocated to our Puerto Rico segment for purposes of our impairment tests.

If, among other factors, (i) our equity values were to decline significantly or (ii) the adverse impacts of economic, competitive,
regulatory or other factors were to cause our results of operations or cash flows to be worse than anticipated, we could conclude
in future periods that impairment charges are required in order to reduce the carrying values of our goodwill and, to a lesser extent,
other long-lived assets. Any such impairment charges could be significant.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014 and based on exchange rates as of those dates, the accumulated goodwill impairments of
our continuing operations were $186.8 million and $209.7 million, respectively. These amounts represent accumulated impairments
related to our broadband communications operations in Romania, which operations are included within the European Operations
Division’s Central and Eastern Europe segment.
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Changes in the carrying amount of our goodwill during 2014 are set forth below:

Foreign
currency
Acquisitions translation
January 1, and related adjustments December 31,
2014 adjustments and other 2014
in millions
Liberty Global Group:
European Operations Division:
UK/Ireland........coeceveinieiniiniieceieeeeneeeneeesneeeneens $ 9,8442 § 21§ (601.2) $ 9,245.1
The Netherlands.........ccoceeieiriiiiinireeee e 1,260.4 7,724.3 (379.7) 8,605.0
GEIMANY ..ottt ettt eanens 3,9394 — (482.5) 3,456.9
Belium .....ocooiiiiiiiiiicecceee e 2,255.1 (276.2) 1,978.9
Switzerland/AUStria .......ccceceeeveririneneneeeeeeeeeee 4,031.1 2.3 (441.5) 3,591.9
Total Western Europe...........ccoevveeneeeeienoenceecceeen 21,330.2 7,728.7 (2,181.1) 26,877.8
Central and Eastern Europe..........cccocevevenencniencnncncnenn, 1,520.1 8.3 (226.3) 1,302.1
Total European Operations Division ............cccceeeeeruennee. 22,850.3 7,737.0 (2,407.4) 28,179.9
Corporate and Other..........cccvcevivenerinenenereeeeeceeee 43.0 — (8.6) 344
Total Liberty Global Group.........c.ccccceveeveveveenenenncnn 22,893.3 7,737.0 (2,416.0) 28,214.3
LiLAC Group:
LiLAC Division:
ChIle ..o 508.5 — (68.2) 440.3
PUerto RiCO ..o 226.1 — 226.1
Total LILAC DIVISION .....co.ecvvueieeiieiieerinieieneeneeenieennenns 734.6 — (68.2) 666.4
Corporate and Other (8)........cccevveeererreneeeneee e 120.9 — 120.9
Total LILAC GIOUP.....cccoouveririeieieneeienecnreeneeenieeenee 855.5 — (68.2) 787.3
AV D $ 237488 $ 77370 $ (24842) $ 29,0016

(a)  Represents enterprise-level goodwill that is allocated to our Puerto Rico segment for purposes of our impairment tests.
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Intangible Assets Subject to Amortization, Net

The details of our intangible assets subject to amortization are set forth below:

Estimated December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
useful life at Gross Net Gross Net
December 31, carrying  Accumulated carrying carrying  Accumulated carrying
2015 amount amortization amount amount amortization amount

in millions

Customer relationships: 4 to 15 years
Liberty Global Group.........ccccoeevrerueueenenne $10,2853 § (3,410.7) § 6,874.6 $12,052.5 § (3,037.0) $ 9,015.5
LiLAC GIroup....c.cocvevveveirinieieicineieicenennens 149.0 (31.7) 117.3 90.0 (19.3) 70.7
TOtal.eiieeeeeeee e 10,434.3 (3,442.4)  6,991.9 12,1425 (3,056.3)  9,086.2

Other: 2 to 15 years
Liberty Global Group.........ccceveereeeruennnee 205.3 (104.8) 100.5 234.8 (131.2) 103.6
LiLAC GIroup....c.cocovveveerineieicirieieieenennens 0.2 0.1) 0.1 0.6 (0.6) —
TOtal e 205.5 (104.9) 100.6 2354 (131.8) 103.6

Total intangible assets subject to
amortization, net:

Liberty Global Group............cccceoeeveeeeree. 10,490.6 (3,515.5)  6,975.1 122873 (3,1682)  9,119.1
LiLAC GIOUD vevovreerveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeseeeees 149.2 (31.8) 117.4 90.6 (19.9) 70.7
TOL .o $10,639.8 $ (3,547.3) $ 7,092.5 $12,377.9 $ (3,188.1) $ 9,189.8

In December 2013, Telenet’s management determined that it would no longer be able to utilize its spectrum rights as a result
of the conclusion of negotiations with network operators in Belgium and the absence of regulatory alternatives. This resulted in
a triggering event with respect to the intangible asset related to Telenet’s spectrum rights and, after performing an impairment
analysis, Telenet recorded an impairment charge of $73.0 million during the fourth quarter of 2013 to reduce the carrying amount
of this intangible asset to zero.

Amortization expense related to intangible assets with finite useful lives of our continuing operations was $1,324.4 million,
$1,098.5 million and $776.8 million during 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Amortization of intangible assets with finite useful
lives of our discontinued operation was nil during 2015 and 2014, respectively, and $17.6 million during 2013. Based on the
amortizable intangible asset balances of our continuing operations at December 31, 2015, we expect that amortization expense
will be as follows for the next five years and thereafter. The U.S. dollar equivalents of such amortization expense amounts as of
December 31, 2015 are presented below (in millions):

2016 ettt ettt ettt $  1,250.6
20 L7 ettt h ettt e teeteeteeete et e ate et e abe e b e ate e beateeabe bt eateeateteeasebeeateeteeabeebeenteetsenteeteebeeteereens 1,138.5
2018 ettt ettt e ettt e et 1,092.6
2009 ettt ettt ete et e ate et e ate e b e ate e beate e beettete et s e beeateabeeateeteeabeebeenteetsenbeeteebeeteereens 1,052.8
2020 ..ttt ettt ettt ettt e et e te e b e et e et e et e et e et e e bt aRte b e ante b e este ke eRse ke en b et e enseaReenseeRe e st enteseenteeseenseesaenseeseenseeseenseans 713.6
BN 0TS o DS GRS 1,844.4

TOLAL L.ttt ettt ettt ettt b et e et e et e et e e tt et e e st et e ena e et e e s b e eR e e be st e b e eRt e b e et b eteesbeeseenseaseenseeseenreeseeseenaereas $ 7,092.5

Other Indefinite-lived Intangible Assets
At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the franchise rights of Liberty Puerto Rico and other indefinite-lived intangible assets

aggregating $690.5 million and $557.0 million, respectively, were included in intangible assets not subject to amortization in our
consolidated balance sheets.
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The U.S. dollar equivalents of the components of our consolidated third-party debt are as follows:

Debt:
Liberty Global Group:
VM NOtES ..c..eoeirieierrenene
VM Credit Facility ............
Ziggo Credit Facilities.......
Ziggo SPE Notes...............
Ziggo Notes.......cceevveeevenene
Unitymedia Notes..............

Unitymedia Revolving
Credit Facilities..............

UPCB SPE Notes...............

UPC Holding Senior
NOtES ..o

UPC Broadband Holding
Bank Facility..................

Telenet SPE Notes.............
Telenet Credit Facility.......
ITV Collar Loan (f)...........
Sumitomo Collar

Total Liberty Global
Group....cocceveeveenceeenne.

LiLAC Group:

VTR Finance Senior
Secured Notes................

VTR Credit Facility...........

Liberty Puerto Rico Bank
Facility .....cccoovveverirerenene

Total LiLAC Group.......

Total third-party
debt..c.ooiiiiiiinn

Total capital lease obligations (i)

Total debt and capital lease obligations

December 31, 2015
. U d b i
‘nggtgid nlzzlt;)acﬁ;r((;)v)vmg Estimated fair value (c) Carrying value (d)
interest  Borrowing US. $ December 31, December 31,
rate (a) currency  equivalent 2015 2014 2015 2014
in millions
5.61% — 3 — §$ 10,5941 § 8461.0 $ 10,582.6 $ 8,060.7
3.73% (e) 777.2 3,413.7 4,734.9 3,455.0 4,804.0
3.64% € 800.0 869.3 5,161.0 4,663.0 5,222.5 4,710.8
4.47% — — 1,582.7 — 1,703.9 —
6.82% — — 955.1 1,082.3 960.1 1,077.0
5.00% — — 7,631.6 7,869.3 7,682.0 7,400.9
— € 500.0 543.3 — 319.4 — 338.8
5.82% — — 3,131.7 4,279.0 3,140.4 4,009.4
6.59 % — — 1,601.4 2,603.6 1,486.7 2,391.6
325% € 990.1 1,075.8 1,284.3 3,156.4 1,302.4 3,179.2
5.48% — — 2,155.8 2,450.4 2,097.2 2,299.0
341% € 381.0 414.0 1,443.0 1,633.4 1,471.8 1,638.6
1.38% — — 1,547.9 678.2 1,538.7 667.0
1.88 % — — 805.6 818.0 787.6 787.7
3.30% — — 1,688.9 946.4 1,688.9 946.4
7.35% — — 395.0 350.2 280.8 228.3
4.69 % 3,679.6 43,391.8 44,045.5 43,400.6 42,5394
6.88 % — — 1,301.1 1,439.4 1,400.0 1,400.0
— (h) 191.0 — — — —
511% $ 40.0 40.0 913.0 666.2 933.9 672.0
6.17% 231.0 2,214.1 2,105.6 2,333.9 2,072.0
4.77% $ 39106 $ 456059 §$ 46,151.1 45,734.5 44,611.4
...................................................................................................... 1,322.8 1,547.6
.......................................................................................... 47,057.3 46,159.0
CUITENE NALUTTEICS ...evvivieiiieeieie et eete et eete et e eteeeteeteeteeteeteeaeebeereesseesaesseessesteessesssessesssenseessenseesseseenes (2,537.9) (1,550.9)
................................................................................. $ 445194 $ 44,608.1

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d
(e)

Represents the weighted average interest rate in effect at December 31, 2015 for all borrowings outstanding pursuant to
each debt instrument, including any applicable margin. The interest rates presented represent stated rates and do not include
the impact of derivative instruments, deferred financing costs, original issue premiums or discounts and commitment fees,
all of which affect our overall cost of borrowing. Including the effects of derivative instruments, original issue premiums
or discounts and commitment fees, but excluding the impact of financing costs, our weighted average interest rate on our
aggregate variable- and fixed-rate indebtedness was 4.9% (including 4.8% for the Liberty Global Group and 6.0% for the
LiLAC Group) at December 31, 2015. For information regarding our derivative instruments, see note 7.

Unused borrowing capacity represents the maximum availability under the applicable facility at December 31, 2015 without
regard to covenant compliance calculations or other conditions precedent to borrowing. At December 31, 2015, based on
the applicable leverage covenants, the full amount of unused borrowing capacity was available to be borrowed under each
of the respective subsidiary facilities and there were no restrictions on the respective subsidiary's ability to make loans or
distributions to other Liberty Global subsidiaries or Liberty Global, except as shown in the table below. In the following
table, for each facility that is subject to limitations on borrowing availability, we present the actual borrowing availability
under the respective facility and, for each subsidiary where the ability to make loans or distributions is limited, we present
the amount that can be loaned or distributed to other Liberty Global subsidiaries or to Liberty Global. The amounts presented
below assume no changes from December 31, 2015 borrowing levels and are based on the applicable covenant and other
limitations in effect within each borrowing group at December 31, 2015, both before and after considering the impact of
the completion of the December 31, 2015 compliance requirements.

Limitation on availability

Upon completion of
relevant December 31, 2015
compliance reporting

December 31, 2015 requirements
Borrowing US. $ Borrowing US.$
currency equivalent currency equivalent

in millions

Limitation on availability to be borrowed under:

Ziggo Credit FacCilities .........cceeeveerierieiecieecceeeeee s € 5702 § 619.6 € 601.6 $ 653.7
Unitymedia Revolving Credit Facilities (1).........c..cccoveneene. € 4352 $ 4729 € 5000 $ 5433
UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility..........c.ccccccevcencnnenne. € 7164 § 7784 € 8583 § 932.6

Limitation on availability to be loaned or distributed by:
ZIZLO oottt ettt ettt st e st b e be b e te s e ereenns € 2163 $ 2350 € 2462 3 267.5
19.2 € 230.1 $ 250.0

c
=
=.
<
=
[}
&
()
—_~
—
SN
a
—_
=
~
&+

(1)  Amounts include the impact of the 10% redemption of the 2022 UM Senior Secured Notes and the January 2023
5.125% UM Euro Senior Secured Notes (as defined and described below under Unitymedia Notes), which was
completed in January 2016.

The estimated fair values of our debt instruments are determined using the average of applicable bid and ask prices (mostly
Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy) or, when quoted market prices are unavailable or not considered indicative of fair value,
discounted cash flow models (mostly Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy). The discount rates used in the cash flow models
are based on the market interest rates and estimated credit spreads of the applicable entity, to the extent available, and other
relevant factors. For additional information concerning fair value hierarchies, see note 8.

Amounts include the impact of premiums and discounts, where applicable.

The VM Revolving Facility (as defined and described under VM Credit Facility below) is a multi-currency revolving facility
with maximum borrowing capacity equivalent to £675.0 million ($994.5 million). The outstanding balance at December 31,
2015 was borrowed in euros.
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For information regarding the ITV Collar Loan and the Sumitomo Collar Loan, see note 7.

Represents amounts owed pursuant to interest-bearing vendor financing arrangements that are used to finance certain of
our property and equipment additions, and to a lesser extent, certain of our operating expenses. These obligations are
generally due within one year. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the amounts owed pursuant to these arrangements include
$189.0 million and $101.7 million, respectively, of VAT that was paid on our behalf by the vendor. Repayments of vendor
financing obligations are included in repayments and repurchases of debt and capital lease obligations in our consolidated
statements of cash flows.

The VTR Credit Facility is the senior secured credit facility of VTR and certain of its subsidiaries and comprises a $160.0
million U.S. dollar facility (the VTR Dollar Credit Facility) and a CLP 22.0 billion ($31.0 million) Chilean peso facility
(the VTR Peso Credit Facility), each of which were undrawn at December 31, 2015. The VTR Dollar Credit Facility and
the VTR Peso Credit Facility have fees on unused commitments of 1.1% and 1.34% per year, respectively. The interest rate
for the VTR Dollar Credit Facility is LIBOR plus a margin of 2.75%. The interest rate for the VTR Peso Credit Facility is
the applicable interbank offered rate for Chilean pesos in the relevant interbank market plus a margin of 3.35%. Borrowings
under the VTR Dollar Credit Facility and the VTR Peso Credit Facility mature in January 2020 and January 2019, respectively.

The U.S. dollar equivalents of our consolidated capital lease obligations are as follows:

December 31,
2015 2014

in millions

Liberty Global Group:
UNIEYMEAIA (1) 1ivievieietiietieietiee ettt ettt se et st st s sseseseesessesessesessete s esennas $ 703.1 $ 810.1
TRICTIEE (2)..vvevieeiecteeie ettt ettt ettt ettt et ettt s te et e te e b e ete et e esaeebeeaseebeenseeseensesesesseasseteesnans 371.1 4134
VLGN MEAIA.....cciiiieieiieie ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e sbeesseesaesbeesaenseessenseensesseaneas 159.5 2553
Other SUDSIQIATIES ....c.veeveivieeieiieeicete ettt ettt ettt ettt et e eteeeteeasesteesseeseesesteeseerseseesnens 88.2 67.3
Total — Liberty GLobal GIOUD........cccvevverierieiieieseeie ettt sre e esaesseennas 1,321.9 1,546.1

LiLAC Group:

Liberty PUITO RICO.....ccviiieiieiieieeiieieete ettt eae e saaebesnnesbaesnens 0.6 1.0
VTR .ottt ettt ettt st sa et s b s e b e st e b e st eb e st e b e st et e st ebe e e be s ete s eseeseseeseneebens 0.3 0.5
TOtal — LALAC GIOUP ..c.vveniieeieiieeieiietesieete et eaesteeaeseessessaessesssesseessesseessenseessesseessesseensas 0.9 1.5
TOAL .ttt ettt ettt ettt s et et ettt e s te s et e eb et e eaeseebese b e st et ese et ent et enserennas $ 1,3228 $ 1,547.6

(1)  Primarily represents Unitymedia’s obligations under duct network lease agreements with Telekom Deutschland
GmbH (Deutsche Telekom), an operating subsidiary of Deutsche Telekom AG, as the lessor. The original contracts
were concluded in 2000 and 2001 and have indefinite terms, subject to certain mandatory statutory termination rights
for either party after a term of 30 years. With certain limited exceptions, the lessor generally is not entitled to terminate
these leases. For information regarding litigation involving these duct network lease agreements, see note 17.

(2) At December 31, 2015 and 2014, Telenet’s capital lease obligations included €329.3 million ($357.8 million) and
€328.6 million ($357.1 million), respectively, associated with Telenet’s lease of the broadband communications
network of the four associations of municipalities in Belgium, which we refer to as the pure intercommunalues or
the “PICs.” All capital expenditures associated with the PICs network are initiated by Telenet, but are executed and
financed by the PICs through additions to this lease that are repaid over a 15-year term. These amounts do not include
Telenet’s commitment related to certain operating costs associated with the PICs network. For additional information
regarding this commitment, see note 17.
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General Information

AtDecember 31,2015, all of our outstanding debt had been incurred by one of our seven "borrowing groups." These borrowing
groups include the respective restricted parent and subsidiary entities within Virgin Media, Ziggo Group Holding, Unitymedia,
UPC Holding, Telenet, VTR Finance and Liberty Puerto Rico.

Credit Facilities. Each of our borrowing groups has entered into one or more credit facility agreements with certain financial
institutions. Each of these credit facilities contain certain covenants, the more notable of which are as follows:

*  Our credit facilities contain certain consolidated net leverage ratios, as specified in the relevant credit facility, which are
required to be complied with on an incurrence and/or maintenance basis;

*  Our credit facilities contain certain restrictions which, among other things, restrict the ability of the members of the
relevant borrowing group to (i) incur or guarantee certain financial indebtedness, (ii) make certain disposals and
acquisitions, (iii) create certain security interests over their assets, in each case, subject to certain customary and agreed
exceptions and (iv) make certain restricted payments to their direct and/or indirect parent companies (and indirectly to
Liberty Global) through dividends, loans or other distributions, subject to compliance with applicable covenants;

*  Our credit facilities require that certain members of the relevant borrowing group guarantee the payment of all sums
payable under the relevant credit facility and such group members are required to grant first-ranking security over their
shares or, in certain borrowing groups, over substantially all of their assets to secure the payment of all sums payable
thereunder;

* In addition to certain mandatory prepayment events, the instructing group of lenders under the relevant credit facility
may cancel the commitments thereunder and declare the loans thereunder due and payable after the applicable notice
period following the occurrence of a change of control (as specified in the relevant credit facility);

*  Our credit facilities contain certain customary events of default, the occurrence of which, subject to certain exceptions
and materiality qualifications, would allow the instructing group of lenders to (i) cancel the total commitments, (ii)
accelerate all outstanding loans and terminate their commitments thereunder and/or (iii) declare that all or part of the
loans be payable on demand;

*  Our credit facilities require members of the relevant borrowing group to observe certain affirmative and negative
undertakings and covenants, which are subject to certain materiality qualifications and other customary and agreed
exceptions; and

* In addition to customary default provisions, our credit facilities generally include certain cross-default and cross-
acceleration provisions with respect to other indebtedness of members of the relevant borrowing group, subject to agreed
minimum thresholds and other customary and agreed exceptions.

Senior and Senior Secured Notes. Certain of our borrowing groups have issued senior and/or senior secured notes. In general,
our senior and senior secured notes (i) are senior obligations of each respective issuer within the relevant borrowing group that
rank equally with all of the existing and future senior debt of such issuer and are senior to all existing and future subordinated debt
of each respective issuer within the relevant borrowing group, (ii) contain, in most instances, certain guarantees from other members
of the relevant borrowing group (as specified in the applicable indenture) and (iii) with respect to our senior secured notes, are
secured by certain pledges or liens over the assets and/or shares of certain members of the relevant borrowing group. In addition,
the indentures governing our senior and senior secured notes contain certain covenants, the more notable of which are as follows:

*  Our notes contain certain customary incurrence-based covenants. In addition, our notes provide that any failure to pay
principal prior to expiration of any applicable grace period, or any acceleration with respect to other indebtedness of the
issuer or certain subsidiaries, over agreed minimum thresholds (as specified under the applicable indenture), is an event
of default under the respective notes;

«  Our notes contain certain restrictions which, among other things, restrict the ability of the members of the relevant
borrowing group to (i) incur or guarantee certain financial indebtedness, (ii) make certain disposals and acquisitions, (iii)
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create certain security interests over their assets, in each case, subject to certain customary and agreed exceptions and
(iv) make certain restricted payments to its direct and/or indirect parent companies (and indirectly to Liberty Global)
through dividends, loans or other distributions, subject to compliance with applicable covenants;

» Ifthe relevant issuer or certain of its subsidiaries (as specified in the applicable indenture) sells certain assets, such issuer
must offer to repurchase the applicable notes at par, or if a change of control (as specified in the applicable indenture)
occurs, such issuer must offer to repurchase all of the relevant notes at a redemption price of 101%; and

+  Oursenior secured notes contain certain early redemption provisions including the ability to, during each 12-month period
commencing on the issue date for such notes until the applicable call date, redeem up to 10% of the principal amount of
the notes to be redeemed at a redemption price equal to 103% of the principal amount of the notes to be redeemed plus
accrued and unpaid interest.

SPE Notes. From time to time, we create special purpose financing entities ("SPEs"), which are 100% owned by third parties,
for the primary purpose of facilitating the offering of senior and senior secured notes, which we collectively refer to as the "SPE
Notes." In this regard, SPE Notes have been issued, and are outstanding at December 31, 2015, by Ziggo Bond Finance B.V.
(Ziggo Bond Finance) and Ziggo Secured Finance B.V. (Ziggo Secured Finance), collectively the "Ziggo SPEs", UPCB Finance
IV Limited (UPCB Finance IV), UPCB Finance V Limited (UPCB Finance V) and UPCB Finance VI Limited (UPCB Finance
VI), collectively the "UPCB SPEs", and Telenet Finance III Luxembourg S.C.A. (Telenet Finance III), Telenet Finance IV
Luxembourg S.C.A. (Telenet Finance IV), Telenet Finance V Luxembourg S.C.A. (Telenet Finance V) and Telenet Finance VI
Luxembourg S.C.A. (Telenet Finance VI), collectively the "Telenet SPEs."

The SPEs used the proceeds from the issuance of SPE Notes to fund term loan facilities under their respective borrowing
group (as further described below), each a “Funded Facility” and collectively the “Funded Facilities”. Each SPE is dependent
on payments from the relevant borrower under the applicable Funded Facility in order to service its payment obligations under
each respective SPE Note. Although none of the respective borrowing entities under the Funded Facilities have any equity or
voting interest in any of the relevant SPEs, each of the Funded Facility term loans creates a variable interest in the respective SPE
for which the relevant borrowing entity is the primary beneficiary. As such, each borrowing entity under the relevant Funded
Facility and its parent entities, including Liberty Global, are required to consolidate the relevant SPEs. As a result, the amounts
outstanding under the Funded Facilities are eliminated in the respective borrowing group’s and Liberty Global’s consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to the respective indentures for the SPE Notes (the SPE Indentures) and the respective accession agreements for
the Funded Facilities, the call provisions, maturity and applicable interest rate for each Funded Facility are the same as those of
the related SPE Notes. The SPEs, as lenders under the relevant credit facility for each respective borrowing group, are treated the
same as the other lenders under the respective credit facility, with benefits, rights and protections similar to those afforded to the
other lenders. Through the covenants in the applicable SPE Indentures and the applicable security interests over (i) all of the issued
shares of the relevant SPE and (ii) the relevant SPE’s rights under the applicable Funded Facility granted to secure the relevant
SPE’s obligations under the relevant SPE Notes, the holders of the SPE Notes are provided indirectly with the benefits, rights,
protections and covenants granted to the SPEs as lenders under the respective credit facility. The SPEs are prohibited from incurring
any additional indebtedness, subject to certain exceptions under the SPE Indentures.
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VM Notes

The details of the outstanding notes of Virgin Media as of December 31, 2015 are summarized in the following table:

Outstanding principal

Original amount
Interest issue Borrowing US. $ Estimated  Carrying
VM Notes Maturity rate amount currency equivalent  fair value  value (a)
in millions
VM Senior Notes (b):
2022 VM Senior Notes:
2022 VM 4.875% Dollar Senior
NOES. .o February 15,2022 4875% $ 1187 $ 118.7 $ 1187 $ 1081 $ 1194
2022 VM 5.25% Dollar Senior
NOLES. e seieieeees February 15,2022 5250% §$ 950 $§ 95.0 95.0 88.4 95.7
2022 VM Sterling Senior Notes...... February 15, 2022 5125% £ 441 £ 441 65.0 63.6 65.4
2023 VM Senior Notes:
2023 VM Dollar Senior Notes ........ April 15,2023 6.375% $ 5300 $ 530.0 530.0 539.9 530.0
2023 VM Sterling Senior Notes...... April 15,2023 7.000% £ 2500 £ 250.0 368.4 388.1 368.4
2024 VM Senior Notes:
2024 VM Dollar Senior Notes ........ October 15, 2024 6.000% $ 5000 $ 500.0 500.0 498.4 500.0
2024 VM Sterling Senior Notes...... October 15, 2024 6.375% £ 3000 £ 300.0 442.0 448.9 442.0
2025 VM Senior Notes:
2025 VM Euro Senior Notes........... January 15, 2025 4.500% € 4600 € 460.0 499.8 476.4 499.8
2025 VM Dollar Senior Notes ........ January 15, 2025 5.750% $ 4000 $ 400.0 400.0 389.3 400.0
VM Senior Secured Notes (c):
January 2021 VM Senior Secured
Notes:
January 2021 VM Sterling Senior
Secured NOtES.......ooveveeerererenan January 15, 2021 5500% £ 6284 £ 628.4 925.9 984.9 936.2
January 2021 VM Dollar Senior
Secured NOteS.....ovvoveveeerererenan January 15, 2021 5250% $ 4479 $ 4479 4479 472.5 458.0
April 2021 VM Senior Secured
Notes:
April 2021 VM Sterling Senior )
Secured NOtes.........cooovvverervrnens April 15,2021 6.000% £1,100.0 £  990.0 1,458.7 1,515.1 1,458.7
April 2021 VM Dollar Senior
Secured NOLES........cevevevevererernanes April 15,2021 5375% $1,000.0 $ 900.0 900.0 932.6 900.0
2025 VM Senior Secured Notes:
2025 VM 5.5% Sterling Senior
Secured NOteS.......oovevereerererenan January 15, 2025 5.500% £ 4300 £ 387.0 570.2 560.6 570.2
2025 VM 5.125% Sterling Senior
Secured NOES...........covverrerrrennn. January 15, 2025 5.125% £ 300.0 £ 3000 442.0 4235 442.0

2025 VM Dollar Senior Secured

January 15, 2025 5.500% $§ 4250 § 425.0 425.0 425.5 425.0
January 15, 2026 5250% $1,0000 $ 1,000.0 1,000.0 971.9 1,004.8
January 15, 2027 4.875% £ 5250 £ 525.0 773.5 712.6 773.5
March 28, 2029 6.250% £ 4000 £ 400.0 589.4 593.8 593.5

.......................................................................................................................................... $ 10,551.5 $10,594.1 $10,582.6
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(a)

(b)

(©)

Amounts include the impact of premiums, where applicable, including amounts recorded in connection with the acquisition
accounting for Virgin Media.

The VM Senior Notes were issued by Virgin Media Finance PLC (Virgin Media Finance), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Virgin Media.

The VM Senior Secured Notes were issued by Virgin Media Secured Finance PLC (Virgin Media Secured Finance), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Virgin Media.

Subject to the circumstances described below, the VM Notes are non-callable prior to the applicable call date (VM Call Date)

as presented in the below table. At any time prior to the respective VM Call Date, Virgin Media Secured Finance or Virgin Media
Finance may redeem some or all of the applicable notes by paying a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of all
remaining scheduled interest payments to the applicable VM Call Date using the discount rate (as specified in the applicable
indenture) as of the redemption date plus 50 basis points (25 basis points in the case of the January 2021 VM Senior Secured

Notes).
VM Notes VM Call Date
2022 VM SENIOT INOTES .....cutinieiiieiineeiert ettt sttt et ettt st ettt st sttt st b et b et b e bt be e b e b neene (a)
2023 VM SCIIOT INOLES ....eeuvieuietieiiietieteetietteeesteetesteeneesseeaesseessesseensesseenseeseenseeneenseeneesseensesseensesseensesseesesseans April 15,2018
2024 VM SEIIOT INOLES ....veuvieereiieirisiietietteteetesteestesseestesseessesseessesssessasseesseessessesssesseessesseessessesssesssessesseessensenns October 15, 2019
2025 VM SeNIOr NOES ....cooviiiiiiiiiiiieieicce st January 15, 2020
January 2021 VM Senior SECUTed NOTES ......c.coeiriiirieririininieieeneeienteteneete ettt ettt (a)
April 2021 VM Senior SECUIEA NOTES .......ocuieuieriieieriieiesieeiesieee st et stee e esee et eee st eeesseensesseensesseesesseensesseens April 15,2017
2025 VM 5.5% Sterling Senior Secured NOTES ........cocoreririerirenirenieineenecrreenteesreeeree et January 15, 2019
2025 VM Dollar Senior SECUIEd INOLES .........ccueruieiereieiertieieseeesteetesseeteeseeeeeeesseeeesseensesseesesseesesseessesseens January 15, 2019
2025 VM 5.125% Sterling Senior SEcured NOLES .......c.ccererueriruerieerieinieinieenteetnteesieesreseereeereseereseeseseeneseene January 15, 2020
2026 VM Senior SECUIEA INOLES .....oouieiieeieiieiieie ettt ete st e et e e sttete et e eteesee et eneenseeneesseeneesseensesseensesseesesneens January 15, 2020
2027 VM Senior SECUTEA NOTES ......coveuirieuirieirieirieinieteteteietetese ettt sttt st sae sttt be e b e ebe e January 15, 2021
2029 VM Senior SECUIEA INOLES .....oeuieiieeieiieiierieeierteete st eeestee e seeete et teteesee et eneenseeneesseeneesseensesseensesseensesseens January 15, 2021
(a)  The 2022 VM Senior Notes and the January 2021 VM Senior Secured Notes are non-callable. At any time prior to maturity,

some or all of these notes may be redeemed by paying a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of all remaining
scheduled interest payments to the respective maturity date.
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Virgin Media Finance or Virgin Media Secured Finance (as applicable) may redeem some or all of the VM Senior Notes and
the VM Senior Secured Notes (with the exception of the 2022 VM Senior Notes and the January 2021 VM Senior Secured Notes)
at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid interest and
additional amounts (as specified in the applicable indenture), if any, to the applicable redemption date, as set forth below:

Redemption price

2023 VM 2023 VM 2024 VM 2024 VM 2025 VM 2025 VM
Dollar Senior Sterling Dollar Senior Sterling Dollar Senior  Euro Senior
Notes Senior Notes Notes Senior Notes Notes Notes
12-month period commencing..... April 15 April 15 October 15 October 15 January 15 January 15
2016 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A N.A
2017 it N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A N.A
2018t 103.188% 103.500% N.A. N.A. N.A N.A
2019 102.125% 102.333% 103.000% 103.188% N.A N.A
2020 e 101.063% 101.667% 102.000% 102.125% 102.875% 102.250%
20271 i 100.000% 100.000% 101.000% 101.063% 101.917% 101.500%
2022 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.958% 100.750%
2023 N.A. N.A. 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000%
2024 and thereafter .........c..c..c...... N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 100.000% 100.000%

Redemption price

April 2021  April 2021 2025 VM 2025 VM
VM VM 5.5% 2025 VM 5.125%
Dollar Sterling Sterling Dollar Sterling 2026 VM 2027 VM 2029 VM
Senior Senior Senior Senior Senior Senior Senior Senior
Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured
Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes
12-month period
commencing............. April 15 April 15 January 15 January 15 January 15 January 15 January 15 January 15
2016, N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
20 102.688% 103.000% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
A0 R 101.344% 101.500% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
A0 L 100.000% 100.000% 102.750% 102.750% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2020 i, 100.000% 100.000% 101.833% 101.833% 102.563% 102.625% N.A. N.A.
2021 e, N.A. N.A. 100.000% 100.000% 101.708% 101.313% 102.438% 103.125%
2022 ., N.A. N.A. 100.000% 100.000% 100.854% 100.656% 101.219% 102.083%
2023 ., N.A. N.A. 100.000%  100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.609% 101.042%
2024 and thereafter... N.A. N.A. 100.000%  100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000%

2015 Refinancing Transactions. On January 28, 2015, in connection with the UPC Ireland Transfer (as defined and described
under UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility — 2015 Transactions below), (i) Virgin Media Secured Finance issued the 2025
VM 5.125% Senior Secured Notes and (ii) Virgin Media Finance issued the 2025 VM Senior Notes. A portion of the proceeds
from the 2025 VM 5.125% Senior Secured Notes and the 2025 VM Senior Notes were ultimately used to redeem certain amounts
outstanding under the UPC Holding Senior Notes and the UPCB SPE Notes, each as defined and described below.

On March 30, 2015, Virgin Media Secured Finance issued (i) $500.0 million principal amount of 5.25% senior secured notes
due January 15, 2026 (the Original 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes) and (ii) the 2027 VM Senior Secured Notes. On April 30,
2015, Virgin Media Secured Finance issued $500.0 million principal amount of 5.25% senior secured notes due January 15, 2026
(the Additional 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes and, together with the Original 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes, the 2026 VM
Senior Secured Notes). The Additional 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes were issued at 101% of par. The net proceeds from the
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2026 VM Senior Secured Notes and the 2027 VM Senior Secured Notes were used to (a) redeem 10% of the principal amount of
each of the following: (1) the April 2021 VM Sterling Senior Secured Notes, (2) the April 2021 VM Dollar Senior Secured Notes
and (3) the 2025 VM 5.5% Sterling Senior Secured Notes, each at a redemption price equal to 103% of the applicable redeemed
principal amount in accordance with the indentures governing each of the notes, (b) prepay in full the £375.0 million ($552.5
million) outstanding principal amount of term loan A under the VM Credit Facility (as defined and described below) and (¢) prepay
$900.0 million of the then existing $2,755.0 million outstanding principal amount of term loan B (VM Facility B) under the VM
Credit Facility, and roll the remaining outstanding term loans under VM Facility B into a new term loan VM Facility F (as described
below). In connection with these transactions, we recognized a loss on debt modification and extinguishment, net, of $44.3 million.
This loss includes (I) the write-off of $28.6 million of deferred financing costs, (II) the payment of $10.7 million of redemption
premium, (IIT) the write-off of $4.2 million of unamortized discount and (IV) the payment of $0.8 million of third-party costs.

2014 Refinancing Transactions. During 2014, we completed a number of refinancing transactions that generally resulted in
lower interest rates and extended maturities. In connection with these transactions, we recognized a gain on debt modification and
extinguishment, net, of $32.3 million. This gain includes (i) the write-off of $170.9 million of unamortized premium, (ii) the
payment of $123.0 million of redemption premium and (iii) the write-off of $15.6 million of deferred financing costs.

VM Credit Facility

The VM Credit Facility is the senior secured credit facility of certain subsidiaries of Virgin Media. The details of our borrowings
under the VM Credit Facility as of December 31, 2015 are summarized in the following table:

Facility amount Unused
(in borrowing borrowing Carrying
VM Facility Maturity Interest rate currency) capacity value (a)

in millions

D o June 30, 2022 LIBOR +3.25% (b) £ 100.0 $ — § 1470
E oo, June 30, 2023 LIBOR +3.50% (b) £ 849.4 — 1,248.8
F o June 30, 2023 LIBOR +2.75% (b) § 1,855.0 — 1,841.9
VM Revolving Facility (c)........ December 31, 2021 LIBOR + 2.75% (d) 777.2 217.3

TOTAL. e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ———————————teteeeeaeeeaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa $ 7772 $ 3,455.0

(a)  The carrying values of VM Facilities D, E and F include the impact of discounts.
(b) VM Facilities D, E and F each have a LIBOR floor of 0.75%.
(c)  The VM Revolving Facility has a fee on unused commitments of 1.1% per year.

(d)  The VM Revolving Facility is a multi-currency revolving facility with maximum borrowing capacity equivalent to £675.0
million ($994.5 million). The outstanding balance at December 31, 2015 was borrowed in euros.

2015 Refinancing Transactions. In June 2015, (i) the then outstanding $1,855.0 million of commitments under the existing
VM Facility B were effectively rolled into a new dollar denominated term loan (VM Facility F) and (ii) we amended the terms
of our VM Revolving Facility to extend the maturity to December 31, 2021, reduce the margin from 3.25% to 2.75% and increase
the commitments by £15.0 million ($22.1 million).
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Ziggo Credit Facilities

The Ziggo Credit Facilities are the senior secured credit facilities of certain subsidiaries of Ziggo Group Holding. The details

of our borrowings under the Ziggo Credit Facilities as of December 31, 2015 are summarized in the following table:

Facility amount Unused
(in borrowing borrowing Carrying
Ziggo Credit Facility Maturity Interest rate currency) (a) capacity (b)  value (¢)

in millions

Ziggo Dollar Facility .................... January 15, 2022 LIBOR +2.75% (d) $ 2,350.0 $ — $ 23197

Ziggo Euro Facility ...................... January 15,2022 EURIBOR +3.00% (e) € 2,000.0 — 2,153.9
Ziggo Proceeds Loans:

Ziggo Senior Secured Proceeds

Loan (f) coceveviiieicieeeieee, January 15, 2025 3.750% € 800.0 — 869.3

Ziggo Senior Proceeds Loans:

Ziggo Euro Senior Proceeds

Loan (f) c.oeveeveeeeeeeeeeeeeean January 15, 2025 4.625% € 400.0 — 434.6
Ziggo Dollar Senior Proceeds
Loan (f) ccoevevireereeecenn January 15, 2025 5.875% $ 400.0 — 400.0
New Ziggo Credit Facility............ March 31, 2021 EURIBOR +3.75% € 689.2 — 748.9
Ziggo Revolving Facilities............ June 30, 2020 (2) € 800.0 869.3 —
Elimination of the Ziggo Proceeds Loans in consolidation ............cccocceeeerieenieeneeneeneinecneceenenne — (1,703.9)
] | TP USRS $ 869.3 $§ 52225

(a)
(b)

(©)
(d
(e)
®

(2

Except as described in (f) below, amounts represent total third-party facility amounts at December 31, 2015.

At December 31, 2015, our availability under the Ziggo Credit Facilities was limited to €570.2 million ($619.6 million).
When the relevant December 31, 2015 compliance reporting requirements have been completed, and assuming no changes
from December 31, 2015 borrowing levels, we anticipate that our availability under the Ziggo Credit Facilities will be
limited to €601.6 million ($653.7 million).

The carrying values of the Ziggo Dollar Facility and the Ziggo Euro Facility include the impact of discounts.

The Ziggo Dollar Facility has a LIBOR floor of 0.75%.

The Ziggo Euro Facility has a EURIBOR floor of 0.75%.

As further discussed in the below description of the Ziggo SPE Notes, the amounts outstanding under the Ziggo Senior
Secured Proceeds Loan, the Ziggo Euro Senior Proceeds Loan and the Ziggo Dollar Senior Proceeds Loan are eliminated
in Liberty Global’s consolidated financial statements.

The Ziggo Revolving Facilities include (i) a €750.0 million ($815.0 million) facility that bears interest at EURIBOR plus

a margin of 2.75% and has a fee on unused commitments of 1.1% per year and (ii) a €50.0 million ($54.3 million) facility
that bears interest at EURIBOR plus a margin of 2.00% and has a fee on unused commitments of 0.8% per year.
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Ziggo SPE Notes

The details of the Ziggo SPE Notes as of December 31, 2015 are summarized in the following table:

Outstanding principal
amount
. . Interest Borrowing US. $ Estimated Carrying
Ziggo SPE Notes Maturity rate currency  equivalent  fair value value

in millions

Ziggo 2025 Senior Secured Notes........... January 15,2025 3.750% € 800.0 $ 8693 § 8052 $ 869.3
Ziggo 2025 Senior Notes:
Ziggo 2025 Euro Senior Notes............. January 15,2025 4.625% €  400.0 434.6 405.0 434.6
Ziggo 2025 Dollar Senior Notes .......... January 15,2025 5.875% $  400.0 400.0 372.5 400.0

TOL oo eeeeeseeeeese e eeseeseeeeeeseeeeesseeeeeeeeseeeseeessseeeeeeseeesseeesssseeeeenee $ 1,7039 $ 1,5827 $ 1,703.9

Subject to the circumstances described below, the Ziggo SPE Notes are non-callable until January 15, 2020. If, however, at
any time prior to January 15, 2020, all or a portion of the loans under the related Ziggo Proceeds Loans are voluntarily prepaid (a
Ziggo Early Redemption Event), then the applicable Ziggo SPE will be required to redeem an aggregate principal amount of its
Ziggo SPE Notes equal to the aggregate principal amount of the loans so prepaid under the relevant Ziggo Proceeds Loan. In
general, the redemption price payable will equal 100% of the principal amount of the applicable Ziggo SPE Notes to be redeemed
and a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of all remaining scheduled interest payments to the first call date using
the discount rate (as specified in the applicable indenture) as of the redemption date plus 50 basis points.

Upon the occurrence of a Ziggo Early Redemption Event on or after January 15, 2020, the applicable Ziggo SPE will redeem
an aggregate principal amount of its Ziggo SPE Notes equal to the principal amount of the related Ziggo Proceeds Loans prepaid
at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount), plus accrued and unpaid interest and
additional amounts (as specified in the applicable indenture), if any, to the redemption date, as set forth below:

Redemption price

Ziggo 2025 Ziggo 2025 Ziggo 2025
Dollar Euro Senior
Senior Notes Senior Notes Secured Notes

12-month period commencing January 15:

2020 ..ttt ettt et e e te et e et et e et e et et et et et et et eteernereereas 102.938% 102.313% 101.875%
2021 ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e eae et e e beebe b et esbe st esbesbessesteteesaeteeseas 101.958% 101.542% 101.250%
2022 ettt ettt e te et e et et e et et et et et et rn et eteernereereas 100.979% 100.771% 100.625%
2023 and ther@after........c.eecveriieiieieie ettt 100.000% 100.000% 100.000%

2015 Refinancing Transactions. On January 29, 2015, Ziggo Bond Finance issued (i) the Ziggo 2025 Dollar Senior Notes and
(i) the Ziggo 2025 Euro Senior Notes, the proceeds of which were used to fund the Ziggo Senior Proceeds Loans, with UPC
Nederland Holding I B.V. as the borrower.

On February 4, 2015, Ziggo Secured Finance issued the Ziggo 2025 Senior Secured Notes and used such proceeds to fund
the Ziggo Senior Secured Proceeds Loan, with UPC Nederland Holding III B.V. as the borrower.

In connection with the Ziggo Services Transfer (as defined and described under UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility —

2015 Transactions below), the proceeds from the Ziggo Proceeds Loans were ultimately used to redeem certain amounts outstanding
under the UPC Holding Senior Notes and the UPCB SPE Notes, each as defined and described below.
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Ziggo Notes

The details of the Ziggo Notes as of December 31, 2015 are summarized in the following table:

Outstanding principal

amount

. . Interest  Borrowing US. $ Estimated  Carrying

Ziggo Notes Maturity rate currency  equivalent  fair value  value (a)
in millions

Ziggo 2020 Euro Senior Secured

NOES (D) .eveveenieiieiieeeeeeeceeeee e March 27, 2020 3.625% € 71.7 °$ 779 $ 775 % 79.8
Ziggo 2024 Euro Senior Notes (C).......... May 15, 2024 7.125% €  743.1 807.5 8717.6 880.3

TOLAL ...ttt ettt ettt ere $ 8854 $§ 9551 § 960.1

(a)  Amounts include the impact of premiums.

(b)  The Ziggo 2020 Euro Senior Secured Notes were issued by Ziggo B.V., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ziggo Bond Company
B.V. (Ziggo Bondco), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ziggo Group Holding.

(¢)  The Ziggo 2024 Euro Senior Notes were issued by Ziggo Bondco.

The Ziggo 2024 Euro Senior Notes are non-callable until May 15, 2019. At any time prior to May 15, 2019, Ziggo Bondco
may redeem some or all of the Ziggo 2024 Euro Senior Notes by paying a “make-whole” premium. Ziggo Bondco may redeem
some or all of the Ziggo 2024 Euro Senior Notes at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal
amount) plus accrued and unpaid interest and additional amounts (as specified in the applicable indenture), if any, to the redemption
date, as set forth below:

Redeqlption
price
12-month period commencing May 15:
2019 ettt h e bt et bt e a e bt e ekt e a et bt et e eh e e teeatenbeehteebeente bt enteebeenteebeenteene 103.563%
2020ttt sttt h e et h e e b e h e et e b e st ea e e et s ae bt eaeenheea s e bt e b e bt e b e ebeennene 102.375%
202 ] ettt h et eh e bt e h e bt e et e bt e Rt ekt eateeh e et e eh e e teeatenbe e et e ebeenteebeenteebeenteebeenteene 101.188%
2022 AN thETEATIET ..ottt sttt et et ettt b e bbbt et be st sa b tene 100.000%
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Unitymedia Notes

The details of the Unitymedia Notes as of December 31, 2015 are summarized in the following table:

Outstanding principal
amount
Original
Interest issue Borrowing US. $ Estimated Carrying
Unitymedia Notes Maturity rate amount currency  equivalent  fair value value

in millions

UM Senior Notes (a):
2025 UM Senior Notes....  January 15, 2025 6.125% $ 900.0
2027 UM Senior Notes....  January 15, 2027 3.750% € 700.0

&~

900.0 § 9000 § 8938 § 900.0
700.0 760.6 657.0 760.6

a

UM Senior Secured
Notes (b):

2022 UM Senior Secured
NOES oo September 15, 2022 5.500% € 650.0 € 585.0 635.7 675.4 635.7

January 2023 UM Senior
Secured Notes:

January 2023 UM

Dollar Senior Secured
Notos . HOTSECUIEC ponuary 15,2023 5.500% $1,000.0  $ 1,0000  1,000.0 9963 1,000.0

January 2023 5.75%

UM Euro Senior
Secured Notes January 15, 2023 5.750% € 500.0 € 405.0 440.1 467.6 440.1

January 2023 5.125%
UM Euro Senior

Secured Notes............ January 21, 2023 5.125% € 500.0 € 450.0 489.0 513.7 489.0
April 2023 UM Senior
Secured Notes .............. April 15,2023 5.625% € 350.0 € 280.0 304.2 322.7 304.2
2025 UM Senior Secured
Notes:
2025 UM Euro Senior
Secured Notes............ January 15, 2025 4.000% €1,000.0 € 1,000.0 1,086.6 1,050.6 1,086.6
2025 UM Dollar Senior
Secured Notes............ January 15, 2025 5.000% $ 550.0 $ 550.0 550.0 529.0 550.0
2026 UM Senior Secured
NOES oo February 15, 2026 4.625% € 420.0 € 4200 456.4 455.5 456.4
2027 UM Senior Secured
NOES .. January 15, 2027 3.500% € 500.0 € 500.0 5433 502.9 543.3
2029 UM Senior Secured
NOES oo January 15, 2029 6.250% € 475.0 € 475.0 516.1 567.1 516.1
TOTAL ..ottt e e e et e et e e et e e e bt e e ee it e e saaaeesaaeeaans $ 76820 $ 7,631.6 $7,682.0

(a)  The UM Senior Notes were issued by Unitymedia.

(b)  The UM Senior Secured Notes were issued by Unitymedia Hessen and Unitymedia NRW GmbH, each a subsidiary of
Unitymedia (together, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers).

Subject to the circumstances described below, the Unitymedia Notes are non-callable prior to the applicable call date (UM
Call Date) as presented in the below table. At any time prior to the respective UM Call Date, Unitymedia or the UM Senior Secured
Notes Issuers may redeem some or all of the applicable notes by paying a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of
all remaining scheduled interest payments to the applicable UM Call Date using the discount rate (as specified in the applicable
indenture) as of the redemption date plus 50 basis points.
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Unitymedia Notes UM Call Date
2025 UM SeNIOT NOTES......cueeuiiiiiiiriiitieiesie sttt ettt ettt ettt s et eae e ebesaeene b e January 15, 2020
2027 UM SEIIOT INOLES.....veeveetieitetietesteeteettesteetessestesseeaesseensesseessesseessesseesseeneesseensessessesseensessesssesseens January 15, 2021
2022 UM Senior SECUEd NOTES........coueeriiiriiiriiinieirictetereetert ettt sttt be sttt September 15, 2017
January 2023 UM Dollar Senior Secured NOES .........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicicccc s January 15,2018
January 2023 5.75% UM Euro Senior Secured NOES .........ccoueireireireineineeneeneneeenesieseee e January 15, 2018
January 2023 5.125% UM Euro Senior Secured NOES ..........cccvviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicccccs January 21, 2018
April 2023 UM Senior SCUred NOLES .......co.eceriiirieririiriiienieienieeneeesteie ettt eb e ene e April 15,2018
2025 UM Senior SECUIEA NOLES ......eeiiriietieieieeiesteetesteete st ete st etesseeteeseeseeseesseeseesseensesseensessesnsesseans January 15, 2020
2026 UM Senior SECUIEd NOTES........coueeriiiriiiriiinieietctetertetert ettt sttt ettt sttt February 15,2021
2027 UM Senior SECUIEA NOLES ......eeiteeiieiieierieeierteetesteete st ete st etesseeseeseeseeseesseeneesseensesseensesseesesseens January 15, 2021
2029 UM Senior SECUIEd NOTES........coueeriiiriiiriiirieintetetertetert ettt sttt sttt et January 15, 2021

Unitymedia or the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers (as applicable) may redeem some or all of the Unitymedia Notes at the
following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid interest and additional
amounts (as specified in the applicable indenture), if any, to the applicable redemption date, as set forth below:

Redemption price

January 2023  January 2023

January 2023 5.75% 5.125% UM
2022 UM UM Dollar UM Euro Euro
2025 UM 2027 UM Senior Senior Senior Senior
Senior Notes Senior Notes Secured Notes Secured Notes Secured Notes Secured Notes
12-month period
commencing ................... January 15 January 15 September 15 January 15 January 15 January 21
2016, N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2017 e N.A. N.A. 102.750% N.A. N.A. N.A.
2018 e, N.A. N.A. 101.833% 102.750% 102.875% 102.563%
2019 i, N.A. N.A. 100.917% 101.833% 101.917% 101.708%
2020, 103.063% N.A. 100.000% 100.917% 100.958% 100.854%
2021 e, 102.042% 101.875% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000%
2022 e, 101.021% 100.938% N.A. 100.000% 100.000% 100.000%
2023 e 100.000% 100.469% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2024 and thereafter........... 100.000% 100.000% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
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Redemption price

April 2023 2025 UM 2025 UM 2026 UM 2027 UM 2029 UM
UM Senior Euro Senior Dollar Senior Senior Senior Senior
Secured Notes Secured Notes Secured Notes Secured Notes Secured Notes Secured Notes

12-month period

COMMENCING ........voveeree. April 15 January 15 January 15 February 15 January 15 January 15
2016, N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2017 e N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2018 i, 102.813% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2019 i 101.875% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2020 i 100.938% 102.000% 102.500% N.A. N.A. N.A.
2021 e 100.000% 101.333% 101.667% 102.313% 101.750% 103.125%
2022 i 100.000% 100.667% 100.833% 101.156% 100.875% 102.083%
2023 e N.A. 100.000% 100.000% 100.578% 100.438% 101.042%
2024 and thereafter............. N.A. 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000%

2015 Refinancing Transactions. On March 11,2015, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers issued the 2027 UM Senior Secured
Notes. The net proceeds from the 2027 UM Senior Secured Notes were used to (i) redeem 10% of the principal amount of each
of the following series of notes: (a) the 2022 UM Senior Secured Notes, (b) the January 2023 5.75% UM Euro Senior Secured
Notes, (c) the January 2023 5.125% UM Euro Senior Secured Notes and (d) the April 2023 UM Senior Secured Notes, each at a
redemption price equal to 103% of the applicable redeemed principal amount in accordance with the indentures governing each
of the notes, and (ii) prepay the then outstanding balance under the UM Senior Secured Facility (as defined and described under
Unitymedia Revolving Credit Facilities below). In connection with these transactions, we recognized a loss on debt modification
and extinguishment, net, of $8.1 million. This loss includes (1) the payment of $6.4 million of redemption premium and (2) the
write-off of $1.7 million of deferred financing costs.

On March 16, 2015, Unitymedia issued the 2027 UM Senior Notes. The net proceeds from the 2027 UM Senior Notes were
used to fully redeem the €618.0 million ($671.5 million) principal amount 0f 9.5% senior notes issued by Unitymedia. In connection
with this transaction, we recognized a loss on debt modification and extinguishment, net, of $91.2 million. This loss includes (i)
the payment of $89.8 million of redemption premium and (ii) the write-off of $1.4 million of unamortized discount.

On December 23, 2015, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers issued the 2026 UM Senior Secured Notes. The net proceeds
from the 2026 UM Senior Secured Notes were used to (i) redeem 10% of the principal amount of each of the following series of
notes: (a) the 2022 UM Senior Secured Notes, (b) the January 2023 5.75% UM Euro Senior Secured Notes, (¢) the January 2023
5.125% UM Euro Senior Secured Notes and (d) the April 2023 UM Senior Secured Notes, each at a redemption price equal to
103% of the applicable redeemed principal amount in accordance with the indentures governing each of the notes, and (ii) prepay
the outstanding balance under the UM Senior Secured Facility. As the 10% redemptions of the 2022 UM Senior Secured Notes
and the January 2023 5.125% UM Euro Senior Secured Notes were not completed until January 2016, the related proceeds from
the issuance of the 2026 UM Senior Secured Notes of €108.2 million ($117.6 million) were held in escrow at December 31, 2015
as cash collateral. In connection with the redemption of the January 2023 5.75% UM Euro Senior Secured Notes, the April 2023
UM Senior Secured Notes and the prepayment of the outstanding balance under the UM Senior Secured Facility, we recognized
a loss on debt modification and extinguishment, net, of $3.1 million in 2015. This loss includes (1) the payment of $2.6 million
of redemption premium and (2) the write-off of $0.5 million of deferred financing costs.

2014 and 2013 Refinancing Transactions. During 2014 and 2013, we completed a number of refinancing transactions that
generally resulted in lower interest rates and extended maturities. In connection with these transactions, we recognized losses on
debt modification and extinguishment, net, of $130.8 million and $112.5 million during 2014 and 2013, respectively. These losses
include (i) the payment of redemption premiums of $115.1 million and $75.0 million, respectively, (ii) the write-off of deferred
financing costs of $14.0 million and $21.6 million, respectively, (iii) the write-off of unamortized discounts of $12.3 million and
$15.9 million, respectively, and (iv) the write-off during 2014 of $10.6 million of unamortized premium.
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Unitymedia Revolving Credit Facilities

The Unitymedia Revolving Credit Facilities are the senior secured credit facilities of certain subsidiaries of Unitymedia. The
details of our borrowings under the Unitymedia Revolving Credit Facilities as of December 31, 2015 are summarized in the
following table:

Facility amount Unused
(in borrowing borrowing Carrying
Unitymedia Facility Maturity Interest rate currency) capacity (a) value

in millions

UM Senior Secured

Facility (b) (d) c.oveeeeeeeeeceeecenee. December 31, 2020 EURIBOR +2.75% € 420.0 $ 4564 $ —
UM Super Senior Secured

Facility (€) c.ovoveeveeereceereceererana. December 31,2020 ~ EURIBOR +2.25% € 80.0 86.9 —

TORAL e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e —————e—etet et eaaaaaaaeraaaaaaaaa e ———— $ 5433 $ —

(a) At December 31, 2015, our availability under the Unitymedia Revolving Credit Facilities was limited to €435.2 million
($472.9 million). When the relevant December 31, 2015 compliance reporting requirements have been completed, and
assuming no changes from December 31,2015 borrowing levels, we anticipate the full amount of unused borrowing capacity
under the Unitymedia Revolving Credit Facilities will be available to be borrowed. The Unitymedia Revolving Credit
Facilities may be used for general corporate and working capital purposes.

(b)  The UM Senior Secured Facility has a fee on unused commitments of 1.1% per year.

(c)  The UM Super Senior Secured Facility has a fee on unused commitments of 0.9% per year and is senior with respect to the
priority of proceeds received from the enforcement of shared collateral to (i) the Unitymedia Notes and (ii) the UM Senior
Secured Facility.

UPCB SPE Notes

The details of the UPCB SPE Notes as of December 31, 2015 are summarized in the following table:

Outstanding principal
amount
Original
Interest issue Borrowing US. $ Estimated Carrying
UPCB SPE Notes Maturity rate amount currency  equivalent fair value value
in millions
UPCB Finance IV Notes:
UPCB Finance 1V Dollar
Notes (a) coveeeereeeiereeeeene January 15, 2025 5.375% $1,140.0 $ 1,140.0 $ 1,140.0 $ 1,080.9 $1,1384
UPCB Finance IV Euro
NOES e January 15, 2027 4.000% € 600.0 € 600.0 652.0 616.5 652.0
UPCB Finance V Notes........ November 15, 2021 7.250% $ 750.0 $ 675.0 675.0 719.7 675.0
UPCB Finance VI Notes....... January 15, 2022 6.875% $ 7500 $ 675.0 675.0 714.6 675.0
] SRS $ 3,142.0 $3,131.7 $3,1404

(a)  The UPCB Finance IV Dollar Notes comprise (i) $800.0 million aggregate principal amount of senior secured notes (the
Original UPCB Finance IV Dollar Notes) and (ii) an additional $340.0 million principal amount of senior secured notes
(the Additional UPCB Finance IV Dollar Notes). The carrying value includes the impact of a discount with respect to the
Additional UPCB Finance IV Dollar Notes.
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Subject to the circumstances described below, the UPCB Finance IV Dollar Notes are non-callable until January 15, 2020,
the UPCB Finance IV Euro Notes are non-callable until January 15, 2021, the UPCB Finance V Notes are non-callable until
November 15, 2016 and the UPCB Finance VI Notes are non-callable until January 15, 2017 (each a UPCB SPE Notes Call
Date). If, however, at any time prior to the applicable UPCB SPE Notes Call Date, all or a portion of the loans under the related
UPCB SPE Funded Facility are voluntarily prepaid (a UPCB Early Redemption Event), then the applicable UPCB SPE will be
required to redeem an aggregate principal amount of its UPCB SPE Notes equal to the aggregate principal amount of the loans so
prepaid under the relevant UPCB SPE Funded Facility. In general, the redemption price payable will equal 100% of the principal
amount of the applicable UPCB SPE Notes to be redeemed and a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of all
remaining scheduled interest payments to the applicable UPCB SPE Notes Call Date using the discount rate (as specified in the
applicable indenture) as of the redemption date plus 50 basis points.

Upon the occurrence of a UPCB Early Redemption Event on or after the applicable UPCB SPE Notes Call Date, the applicable
UPCB SPE will redeem an aggregate principal amount of its UPCB SPE Notes equal to the principal amount of the related UPCB
SPE Funded Facility prepaid at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount), plus accrued
and unpaid interest and additional amounts (as specified in the applicable indenture), if any, to the applicable redemption date, as
set forth below:

Redemption price

UPCB Finance UPCB Finance UPCB Finance UPCB Finance

IV Dollar Notes IV Euro Notes V Notes VI Notes

12-month period commencing............cceceevereereeneennen. January 15 January 15 November 15 January 15
2016 . N.A. N.A. 103.625% N.A.

2017 ettt e N.A. N.A. 102.417% 103.438%
2018 e N.A. N.A. 101.208% 102.292%
2019 e e N.A. N.A. 100.000% 101.146%
2020 e e 102.688% N.A. 100.000% 100.000%
2021 ettt 101.792% 102.000% 100.000% 100.000%
2022 e e 100.896% 101.000% N.A. 100.000%
2023 et 100.000% 100.500% N.A. N.A.

2024 and thereafter...........cocveveeereeneeneineenccnieeens 100.000% 100.000% N.A. N.A.

2015 Refinancing Transactions. During 2015, UPCB Finance IV issued (i) the Original UPCB Finance IV Dollar Notes, (ii)
the UPCB Finance IV Euro Notes and (iii) the Additional UPCB Finance IV Dollar Notes, the proceeds of which were used to
fund UPC Facilities AL, AK and AL2, respectively. UPC Facility AL2 has been merged with UPC Facility AL. The net proceeds
from UPC Facility AL and UPC Facility AK were used to (a) prepay the remaining €190.0 million ($206.5 million) outstanding
principal amount of UPC Facility Y, together with accrued and unpaid interest and the related prepayment premium, to UPCB
Finance II and, in turn, UPCB Finance II used such proceeds to fully redeem the remaining outstanding amount of its UPCB
Finance II Notes, (b) prepay the $1.0 billion outstanding principal amount of UPC Facility Z, together with accrued and unpaid
interest and the related prepayment premium, to UPCB Finance III Limited (UPCB Finance III) and, in turn, UPCB Finance I1I
used such proceeds to fully redeem the $1.0 billion aggregate principal amount of its 6.625% senior secured notes, (c) prepay in
full the then outstanding €600.0 million ($652.0 million) amount under UPC Facility Al and (d) prepay 10% of the outstanding
principal amount of each of the following: (1) UPC Facility AC, together with accrued and unpaid interest and the related prepayment
premium, to UPCB Finance V and, in turn, UPCB Finance V used such proceeds to redeem 10% of the outstanding principal
amount of the UPCB Finance V Notes and (2) UPC Facility AD, together with accrued and unpaid interest and the related prepayment
premium, to UPCB Finance VI and, in turn, UPCB Finance VI used such proceeds to redeem 10% of the outstanding principal
amount of the UPCB Finance VI Notes. The redemption price for the UPCB Finance V Notes and the UPCB Finance VI Notes
was 103% of the applicable redeemed principal amount. In connection with these transactions, we recognized a loss on debt
modification and extinguishment, net, of $59.6 million. This loss includes (I) the payment of $54.3 million of redemption premium
and (1) the write-off of $5.3 million of deferred financing costs.
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UPC Holding Senior Notes

The details of the UPC Holding Senior Notes as of December 31, 2015 are summarized in the following table:

Outstanding principal
amount
X X X Borrowing US. 8 Estimated  Carrying
UPC Holding Senior Notes Maturity currency equivalent  fair value value

in millions

UPC Holding 6.375% Senior Notes (a).............. September 15,2022 € 6000 $ 6520 $ 6939 $ 6476
UPC Holding 6.75% Senior Notes:
UPC Holding 6.75% Euro Senior Notes ......... March 15, 2023 € 450.0 489.0 528.7 489.0
UPC Holding 6.75% CHF Senior Notes ......... March 15,2023 CHF 350.0 350.1 378.8 350.1
TORAL et e e e e e e s e ee e e e eee e eeenaees $ 1,491.1 $ 1,601.4 $ 1,486.7

(a)  Carrying value includes the impact of a discount.

At any time prior to September 15, 2017, in the case of the UPC Holding 6.375% Senior Notes, and March 15, 2018, in the
case of the UPC Holding 6.75% Senior Notes, UPC Holding may redeem some or all of such UPC Holding Senior Notes by paying
a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of all scheduled interest payments until September 15, 2017 or March 15,
2018 (as applicable) using the discount rate (as specified in the applicable indenture) as of the redemption date, plus 50 basis
points.

UPC Holding may redeem some or all of the UPC Holding Senior Notes at the following redemption prices (expressed as a
percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid interest and additional amounts (as specified in the applicable
indenture), if any, to the applicable redemption date, as set forth below:

Redemption price
UPC Holding UPC Holding

6.375% 6.75%
Senior Notes Senior Notes

12-month Period COMMENCING .......ccvervierierieieeierieeeerteetesteste e saesseesesseessesseensesseensesseensenses September 15 March 15
B (YOS N.A. N.A.
2017 e e ettt ettt bt et e e bt e sat e e bt e s hte e baeeabe e bt e eateenteesabeeneennts 103.188% N.A.
20 L8 ettt ettt ettt eh e h ekt be b et et e s et ensens et ententententeneeneeseeseteeseenennn 102.125% 103.375%
2019 bbb bbbttt a et a e bbbt bbb bbb ntennen 101.063% 102.250%
2020ttt ettt et ettt e st h ekt be b et et et et ensens et entententeneeneeneeseeseteeseenennn 100.000% 101.125%
2021 and ther@after.......ccviiieiieiesiieieceeeete ettt ettt re s e nee b ens 100.000% 100.000%

2015 Transaction. During the first quarter of 2015, UPC Holding used the cash consideration received in connection with the
UPC Ireland Transfer to redeem in full the €640.0 million ($695.4 million) principal amount of its 8.375% senior notes due August
15, 2020. In connection with this transaction, we recognized a loss on debt modification and extinguishment, net, of $69.3 million.
This loss includes (i) the payment of $59.2 million of redemption premium and (ii) the write-off of $10.1 million of deferred
financing costs.

2014 and 2013 Transactions. During 2014 and 2013, we completed a number of refinancing transactions that generally resulted
in lower interest rates and extended maturities. In connection with these transactions, we recognized losses on debt modification
and extinguishment, net, of $41.5 million and $85.5 million during 2014 and 2013, respectively, which includes (i) the payments
of redemption premium of $19.7 million and $35.6 million, respectively, (ii) the write-off of unamortized discount of $17.4 million
and $24.5 million, respectively, (iii) the write-off of deferred financing costs of $4.4 million and $19.0 million, respectively, and
(iv) aggregate interest expense of nil and $6.4 million, respectively.
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UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility

The UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility is the senior secured credit facility of certain subsidiaries of UPC Holding. The
details of our borrowings under the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility as of December 31, 2015 are summarized in the
following table:

Facility amount Unused
(in borrowing borrowing Carrying
UPC Broadband Holding Facility Maturity Interest rate currency) (a) capacity (b) value

in millions

AC (€)oo November 15, 2021 7.250% $ 675.0 $ — $ 6750
AD (€)vieeiereeeeeeeeeeee e January 15, 2022 6.875% $ 675.0 — 675.0
AH (d) v, June 30, 2021 LIBOR +2.50% (e) $ 1,305.0 — 1,302.4
AK (C) e January 15, 2027 4.000% € 600.0 — 652.0
AL (C) oo January 15, 2025 5.375% $ 1,140.0 — 1,140.0
AM .o December 31,2021 EURIBOR +2.75% € 990.1 1,075.8 —
Elimination of Facilities AC, AD, AK and AL in consolidation (C)..........cccervercverreecrereerienierieeeenenes — (3,142.0)

0] | RSP ORRURRRRRPRNE $ 1,075.8 $ 1,302.4

(a)  Except as described in (c) below, amounts represent total third-party facility amounts at December 31, 2015 without giving
effect to the impact of discounts.

(b) At December 31, 2015, our availability under the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility was limited to €716.4 million
($778.4 million). When the relevant December 31, 2015 compliance reporting requirements have been completed, and
assuming no changes from the December 31, 2015 borrowing levels, we anticipate that our availability under the UPC
Broadband Holding Bank Facility will be limited to €858.3 million ($932.6 million). UPC Facility AM has a fee on unused
commitments of 1.1% per year.

(c)  Asfurther discussed in the below description of the UPCB SPE Notes, the amounts borrowed by UPC Financing Partnership
(UPC Financing) outstanding under UPC Facilities AC, AD, AK and AL are eliminated in Liberty Global’s consolidated
financial statements.

(d)  The carrying value of UPC Facility AH includes the impact of a discount.
(e)  UPC Facility AH has a LIBOR floor of 0.75%.

2015 Transactions. During the first quarter of 2015, in connection with certain internal reorganizations of our broadband and
wireless communications businesses in Europe, (i) a controlling interest in UPC Broadband Ireland Ltd. and its subsidiaries was
transferred from a subsidiary of UPC Holding to a subsidiary of Virgin Media (the UPC Ireland Transfer), with the remaining
noncontrolling interest transferred to another subsidiary of Liberty Global outside the UPC Holding borrowing group and (ii)
Ziggo Services B.V. (Ziggo Services) and its subsidiaries were transferred from a subsidiary of UPC Holding to Ziggo Group
Holding (the Ziggo Services Transfer). UPC Holding used the cash consideration received in connection with the Ziggo Services
Transfer and the UPC Ireland Transfer to prepay (a) the full €500.0 million ($543.3 million) outstanding principal amount of UPC
Facility V, together with accrued and unpaid interest and the related prepayment premium to UPCB Finance I Limited (UPCB
Finance I) and, in turn, UPCB Finance [ used such proceeds to fully redeem the €500.0 million ($543.3 million) aggregate principal
amount of its 7.625% senior secured notes, (b) €560.0 million ($608.5 million) of its €750.0 million ($815.0 million) outstanding
principal amount of UPC Facility Y, together with accrued and unpaid interest and the related prepayment premium to UPCB
Finance II Limited (UPCB Finance II) and, in turn, UPCB Finance II used such proceeds to redeem €560.0 million ($608.5
million) of the €750.0 million ($815.0 million) aggregate principal amount of'its 6.375% senior secured notes (the UPCB Finance
II Notes) and (c) the remaining €870.2 million ($945.6 million) outstanding principal amount of UPC Facility AG, together with
accrued and unpaid interest. In connection with these transactions, we recognized a loss on debt modification and extinguishment,

II-71



LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

net, of $76.9 million. This loss includes (1) the payment of $53.5 million of redemption premium, (2) the write-off of $18.7 million
of deferred financing costs and (3) the write-off of $4.7 million of unamortized discount.

On August 3, 2015, UPC Financing entered into UPC Facility AM (a revolving term loan). In connection with this transaction,
the then existing undrawn revolving term loan UPC Facility Al was cancelled.

2014 and 2013 Refinancing Transactions. During 2014 and 2013, we completed a number of refinancing transactions that
generally resulted in additional borrowings or extended maturities under the the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility. In
connection with these transactions, we recognized losses on debt modification and extinguishment, net, of $16.5 million and $11.9
million during 2014 and 2013, respectively. These losses include (i) the write-off of deferred financing costs and unamortized
discounts of $16.5 million and $4.2 million, respectively, and (ii) third-party debt modification costs of nil and $7.7 million,
respectively.

Telenet SPE Notes

The details of the Telenet SPE Notes as of December 31, 2015 are summarized in the following table:

Outstanding
principal amount

. Borrowing US. $ Estimated  Carrying
Telenet SPEs Notes Maturity Interest rate currency  equivalent fair value value

in millions

Telenet Finance III Notes....  February 15, 2021 6.625% € 3000 $ 3260 $ 3374 $ 3260
Telenet Finance IV
NOLES oo June 15, 2021 EURIBOR +3.875% € 400.0 434.6 435.2 434.6
6.25% Telenet Finance V
NOLES oo August 15, 2022 6.250% € 450.0 489.0 529.0 489.0
6.75% Telenet Finance V
NOLES oo August 15,2024 6.750% € 250.0 271.7 298.8 271.7
Telenet Finance VI Notes ... July 15,2027 4.875% € 5300 575.9 555.4 575.9
TOTAL ..ottt ettt et ettt ettt st et aeeaeeaaae s $ 20972 $ 2,155.8 $ 2,097.2

Subject to the circumstances described below, the Telenet Finance III Notes are non-callable until February 15, 2016, the
Telenet Finance IV Notes are non-callable until June 15, 2014, the 6.25% Telenet Finance V Notes are non-callable until August
15,2017, the 6.75% Telenet Finance V Notes are non-callable until August 15, 2018 and the Telenet Finance VI Notes are non-
callable until July 15, 2021 (each a Telenet SPE Notes Call Date). If, however, at any time prior to the applicable Telenet SPE
Notes Call Date, all or a portion of the loans under the related Telenet SPE Funded Facility are voluntarily prepaid (a Telenet
Early Redemption Event), then the applicable Telenet SPE will be required to redeem an aggregate principal amount of'its Telenet
SPE Notes equal to the principal amount of the loans so prepaid under the relevant Telenet SPE Funded Facility. In general, the
redemption price payable will equal 100% of the principal amount of the applicable Telenet SPE Notes to be redeemed and a
“make-whole” premium, which is the present value of all remaining scheduled interest payments to the applicable Telenet SPE
Notes Call Date using the discount rate (as specified in the applicable indenture) as of the redemption date plus 50 basis points.
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Upon the occurrence of a Telenet Early Redemption Event on or after the applicable Telenet SPE Notes Call Date, the applicable
Telenet SPE will redeem an aggregate principal amount of its Telenet SPE Notes equal to the principal amount of the related
Telenet SPE Funded Facility prepaid at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount), plus
accrued and unpaid interest and additional amounts (as specified in the applicable indenture), if any, to the applicable redemption
date, as set for below:

Redemption price

Telenet Telenet 6.25% Telenet  6.75% Telenet Telenet
Finance I11 Finance IV Finance V Finance V Finance VI
Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes
12-month period commencing.................... February 15 June 15 August 15 August 15 July 15
2016 e 103.313% 100.000% N.A. N.A. N.A.
2017 et 102.209% 100.000% 103.125% N.A. N.A.
2018 et 101.104% 100.000% 102.083% 103.375% N.A.
2019 o 100.000% 100.000% 101.563% 102.531% N.A.
2020 it 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 101.688% N.A.
2021 it 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.844% 102.438%
2022 e N.A. N.A. 100.000% 100.000% 101.219%
2023 e N.A. N.A. N.A. 100.000% 100.609%
2024 and thereafter..........ccocvevvecverrieiennnns N.A. N.A. N.A. 100.000% 100.000%

2015 Refinancing Transactions. On July 24, 2015, Telenet Finance VI issued the Telenet Finance VI Notes. Telenet Finance
VI used the proceeds from the Telenet Finance VI Notes to fund Telenet Facility AB. The net proceeds from Telenet Facility AB
were used to prepay the full €500.0 million ($543.3 million) principal amount of Telenet Facility M, together with accrued and
unpaid interest and the related prepayment premium, to Telenet Finance Luxembourg S.C.A. (Telenet Finance) and, in turn,
Telenet Finance used such proceeds to fully redeem the €500.0 million ($543.3 million) principal amount of its 6.375% senior
secured notes. In connection with this transaction, we recognized a loss on debt modification and extinguishment, net, of $34.3
million, representing the payment of redemption premium.

II-73



LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Telenet Credit Facility

The Telenet Credit Facility is the senior secured credit facility of certain subsidiaries of Telenet. The details of our borrowings
under the Telenet Credit Facility as of December 31, 2015 are summarized in the following table:

Facility amount Unused
(in borrowing borrowing Carrying
Telenet Facility Maturity Interest rate currency) (a) capacity (b) value

in millions

O (C) vvvieiniiieierereece February 15, 2021 6.625% € 300.0 $ — $§ 3260
P ()i June 15,2021 EURIBOR +3.875% € 400.0 — 434.6
U (C) vevvieiniiiiiiiicicecee August 15,2022 6.250% € 450.0 — 489.0
V(C) ettt August 15, 2024 6.750% € 250.0 — 271.7
W (d) oo June 30, 2022 EURIBOR +3.25% € 474.1 — 514.2
D () ISR September 30,2020 EURIBOR +2.75% € 381.0 414.0 —
Y (d) oo June 30, 2023 EURIBOR +3.50% € 882.9 — 957.6
Zooteiesee e June 30, 2018 EURIBOR +2.25% € 200.0 ® —
AA June 30, 2023 EURIBOR +3.50% € 800.0 ) —
AB (C) ettt July 15,2027 4.875% € 530.0 — 575.9
Elimination of Telenet Facilities O, P, U, V and AB in consolidation (C)..........cceeeververrerveruesvernennnn. — (2,097.2)
TOUAL e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e s e e e e e e e e eseeeee e s eeeeee e e e e e ees et e e s et ereeeeeeee e eerens $ 4140 $ 14718

(a)  Except as described in (c) below, amounts represent total third-party facility amounts at December 31, 2015 without giving
effect to the impact of discounts.

(b)  Telenet Facility X has a fee on unused commitments of 1.1% per year.

(c)  As further discussed in the below description of the Telenet SPE Notes, the amounts outstanding under Telenet Facilities
O, P, U, V and AB are eliminated in Liberty Global’s consolidated financial statements.

(d)  The carrying values of Telenet Facilities W and Y include the impact of discounts.

()  On July 1, 2015, (i) the commitments under Telenet’s revolving credit facilities were increased by €85.0 million ($92.4
million) (Telenet Facility X2) and (ii) a lender under the then existing Telenet Facility S agreed to novate commitments of
€10.0 million ($10.9 million) to a subsidiary of Telenet and enter into the new Telenet Facility X2, which was subsequently
merged with Telenet Facility X, resulting in total increased availability under Telenet Facility X of €95.0 million ($103.3
million). In September 2015, Telenet Facility S, which was undrawn, was cancelled.

(f) OnMay 7,2015, Telenet International entered into a new revolving credit facility (Telenet Facility Z) and a new term loan

facility (Telenet Facility AA). At December 31,2015, Telenet Facility Z and Telenet Facility AA were undrawn. In February
2016, Telenet borrowed the full amount under Telenet Facility Z and Telenet Facility AA and €217.0 million ($245.9 million
at the transaction date) under Telenet Facility X to fund a portion of the cash consideration paid to acquire BASE Company
N.V. (BASE). Although Telenet currently has the ability, subject to certain restrictions and covenant limitations, to draw
certain amounts under Telenet Facility Z and Telenet Facility AA for general corporate purposes, we expect that these
facilities will remain undrawn until the closing of the acquisition of BASE. Accordingly, Telenet’s unused borrowing capacity
at December 31, 2015 excludes the availability under Telenet Facility Z and Telenet Facility AA. For information regarding
Telenet’s acquisition of BASE, see note 20.
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2014 Refinancing Transactions. During 2014, we completed a number of refinancing transactions that generally resulted in
lower interest rates and extended maturities. In connection with these transactions, we recognized a loss on debt modification and
extinguishment, net, of $11.9 million, which includes (i) the write-off of $7.1 million of deferred financing costs, (ii) the payment
of $3.6 million of redemption premium and (iii) the write-off of $1.2 million of unamortized discount.

VTR Finance Senior Secured Notes

On January 24, 2014, VTR Finance issued $1.4 billion principal amount of VTR Finance Senior Secured Notes. At any time
prior to January 15,2019, VTR Finance may redeem some or all of the VTR Finance Senior Secured Notes by paying a “make-
whole” premium, which is the present value of all remaining scheduled interest payments to January 15, 2019 using the discount
rate (as specified in the VTR Indenture) as of the applicable redemption date plus 50 basis points.

VTR Finance may redeem all or part of the VTR Finance Senior Secured Notes at the following redemption prices (expressed
as apercentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid interest and additional amounts (as specified in the VTR Indenture),
if any, to the applicable redemption date, as set forth below:

Redeqlption
price
12-month period commencing January 15:
2019ttt ettt et teae Rt ettt e Rtk e ke b e b e s s enbensentententeRteR e eR e Rt s e b e ese s enbensensensenteneaneeseenens 103.438%
2020, ettt a e h e a e eh ekt b e et ek b e eE et e a s ent e Rt entea e eh e eh e e bt ehe ekt b e b et et et et ententeneeneebeeneee 102.292%
202 L ettt ettt et e et e et et et et e et e e et e e et e e et et e et et ee et e et et ee et ee et en e e e e er e ereaes 101.146%
2022 AN thETEATIET .....eitiitiitiitete ettt b bbb b sttt e b et et e st e st eae bt ene e 100.000%

Liberty Puerto Rico Bank Facility

The Liberty Puerto Rico Bank Facility is the senior secured credit facility of certain subsidiaries of Liberty Puerto Rico. The
details of our borrowings under the Liberty Puerto Rico Bank Facility as of December 31, 2015 are summarized in the following
table:

Facility amount Unused
(in borrowing borrowing Carrying
Liberty Puerto Rico Facility Maturity Interest rate currency) capacity value (a)

in millions

LPR Term Loan B (b)........cc......... January 7, 2022 LIBOR +3.50% (c) $ 765.0 $ — $ 7570
LPR Term Loan C (b)......cccceueuuee. July 7, 2023 LIBOR +6.75% (¢) $ 177.5 — 176.9
Revolving Loan (d).......cccoeeveunee. July 7, 2020 LIBOR +3.50% $ 40.0 40.0 —

] PSR STURRR $ 400 $ 933.9

(@)  The carrying values of LPR Term Loan B and LPR Term Loan C include the impact of discounts.

(b)  InJune 2015, we increased the principal amount outstanding under (i) LPR Term Loan B by $235.0 million and (ii) LPR
Term Loan C by $32.5 million. Substantially all of the net proceeds from this borrowing were used to fund a portion of the
purchase price for the Choice Acquisition. For additional information regarding the Choice Acquisition, see note 4.

(¢) LPR Term Loan B and LPR Term Loan C each have a LIBOR floor of 1.0%.

(d)  The LPR Revolving Loan has a fee on unused commitments of 0.50% or 0.375% depending on the consolidated total net
leverage ratio (as specified in the Liberty Puerto Rico Bank Facility).

2014 Refinancing Transactions. During 2014, we completed various refinancing transactions that generally resulted in
additional borrowings or extended maturities under the Liberty Puerto Rico Bank Facility. In connection with these transactions,
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we recognized a loss on debt modification and extinguishment, net, of $9.8 million. This loss includes (i) third-party costs of $7.1
million, (ii) the write-off of deferred financing costs of $3.6 million and (iii) the write-off of unamortized premium of $0.9 million.

Maturities of Debt and Capital Lease Obligations
Maturities of our debt and capital lease obligations as of December 31, 2015 are presented below for the named entity and its

subsidiaries, unless otherwise noted. Amounts presented below represent U.S. dollar equivalents based on December 31, 2015
exchange rates:

Debt:
Liberty Global Group LiLAC Group
Ziggo Total
Group UPC Liberty Liberty Total
Virgin Holding Holding Telenet Global Puerto LiLAC
Media (a) Unitymedia (b) (c) Other Group VTR Rico Group Total

in millions

Year ending
December 31:

2016................. $1,0285 $ 1257 $ 2546 $ 5937 $ 80 $ 3702 $ 23807 $ — $ — $ — $ 23807
2017 s — 0.4 — — 80 5117 520.1 — — — 520.1
2018.mmrecrscnrres — — — — 80 12615 12695 — — — 12695
2019 — — — — 184 3516 370.0 — — — 370.0
2020..crvcvsesnrees — 77.9 — — 122 27.6 117.7 — — — 117.7
Thereafter........ 13,8049  7,783.4 75569.6 59381  3,657.1 27.6 38,7807  1,400.0 9425 23425 41,1232
Total debt
maturities ... 148334  7,987.4 78242 65318 37117 25502 434387  1,400.0 942.5 23425 4577812
Unamortized
premium
(discount)....... 16.8 252 — (8.6) 2.7) (68.8) (38.1) — (8.6) (8.6) (46.7)
Total debt..... §148502 $8012.6 $ 78242 $6523.2 $3,709.0 $2.481.4 $43400.6 $1,400.0 $ 933.9 $2.333.9 §$45734.5
Curre_nt - N — — ————— w
portion (d)........ $1,029 $ 1257 $ 2546 $ 5937 $ 80 $ 3702 $ 23821 $§ — $ — $ — $ 23821
Noncyrrent - N N — ————
portion............. $13,8203 $7.8869 S 7,569.6 $ 59295 $3701.0 $2,1112 $41,0185 $1400.0 $ 933.9 $2,333.9 §433524

(@)  Amounts include the Ziggo SPE Notes issued by the Ziggo SPEs. As described above, the Ziggo SPEs are consolidated by
Ziggo Group Holding and Liberty Global.

(b)  Amounts include the UPCB SPE Notes issued by the UPCB SPEs. As described above, the UPCB SPEs are consolidated
by UPC Holding and Liberty Global.

(c)  Amounts include the Telenet SPE Notes issued by the Telenet SPEs. As described above, the Telenet SPEs are consolidated
by Telenet and Liberty Global.

(d)  The outstanding principal amounts of our subsidiaries’ revolving credit facilities are included in our current debt maturities.
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Capital lease obligations:

Liberty Global Group
Total
Liberty Total
Virgin Global LiLAC
Unitymedia  Telenet Media Other Group Group Total
in millions
Year ending December 31:
2016 e $ 797 $ 636 $ 764 $ 240 $ 2437 § 0.8 $ 2445
2007 ettt 79.7 60.3 35.5 18.9 194.4 0.2 194.6
2008 e 79.7 58.2 12.0 12.7 162.6 — 162.6
2019 e 79.7 48.7 5.2 7.8 141.4 141.4
2020 i 79.7 46.0 4.2 55 1354 — 1354
Thereafter........covevveeveeecieeeeeeeeeeeee 787.5 218.4 206.0 42.8 1,254.7 1,254.7
Total principal and interest payments... 1,186.0 495.2 3393 111.7 2,132.2 1.0 2,133.2
Amounts representing interest................ (482.9) (124.1) (179.8) (23.5) (810.3) (0.1 (810.4)
Present value of net minimum lease
PAYMENES ..o $ 7031 $ 3711 § 1595 § 882 $ 11,3219 § 09 § 1,322.8
Current POTtioN.........eecveeveeverreeriereeeveseeennes W m $—691 W m W m
Noncurrent portion...........cecceeeerereeriennnens m m W W m W m

Non-cash Refinancing Transactions

During 2015, 2014 and 2013, certain of our refinancing transactions included non-cash borrowings and repayments of debt
aggregating $3,586.5 million, $5,418.8 million and $5,061.5 million, respectively. During 2013, we also recorded a $3,557.5
million non-cash increase to our debt as a result of certain financing transactions completed in contemplation of the execution of
the Virgin Media Merger Agreement. For additional information, see note 4.
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an Income Taxes

Liberty Global files its primary income tax return in the U.K. Its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.K., the U.S., the
Netherlands and a number of other jurisdictions. The income taxes of Liberty Global and its subsidiaries are presented on a separate
return basis for each tax-paying entity or group.

The components of our loss from continuing operations before income taxes are as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013
in millions

The NEtherlands ..........cooviiouiieieeeeeeeeeeee ettt eae e $ (1,3533) §  (6445) $ 799.9
L F OO T OO OO SOOI (924.5) (1,105.6) (306.3)
UL ettt ettt ettt ettt b et bt et e st et e st et et et et etetetensenen 778.1 585.7 (976.0)
SWIZEIIANM. ...ttt 395.3 326.1 284.3
CRULE ..ttt ettt ettt et et a et et be b se b ese b ene b eneebenene 182.3 43.1 (84.5)
7S] Feq L1 TSP 175.4 21.5 89.5
GOIINANY ...ttt et ettt ete et este et esbeetb e teessesseesbeeseesseeseesseessesaeessesseesbesseessenssansens 5. (294.7) (355.8)
OBRET ...ttt ettt ettt b ettt sttt ne et n ettt ee 67.2 12.5 224
TOUAL oo eeee e e e e e e e s e s e e e e s e eee e e s e e e s e eees e e s s eees e ees s ees e $  (684.6) $ (1,055.9) $  (526.5)
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Income tax benefit (expense) consists of:

Current Deferred Total
in millions

Year ended December 31, 2015:

Continuing operations:

UK ettt nenn $ (09) $ (208.5) § (209.4)
The Netherlands..........cccoecireineiineiiennceeeeeeee e 2.5 159.0 161.5
BEIGIUIML ...ttt (125.4) 11.1 (114.3)
SWItZETIANG ...ttt (63.2) (14.7) (77.9)
CRILE. ...ttt (57.4) 13.5 (43.9)
GETIMAINY ...ttt sttt ettt ettt et et b bt beebeeb e e bt sbe st e b e st et e aebeneenean (66.7) 24.3 (42.4)
US. (8) v s e (81.2) 58.7 (22.5)
OFRET ..ttt sttt (22.7) 6.7 (16.0)
Total — continuUINg OPErations.........cevveveruereriererieirieirieeneeeereeeseereseenens $ (415.0) $ 50.1 § (364.9)

Year ended December 31, 2014:

Continuing operations:

LK ettt $ Q2.1 $ 1134 $ 111.3
ULS. () ettt (22.5) 129.6 107.1
BeIGIUIML ..ttt (138.7) 31.7 (107.0)
SWItZETIANG ...t (76.8) 3.1 (73.7)
The Netherlands.........c.coveiiiiini e 11.1 42.5 53.6
GETTINANY ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt et sb et sateaesbeenaeeanenbens (22.6) 37.0 14.4
CRILE ...ttt 17.1 (24.1) (7.0)
ORET ..ttt sttt bt (41.1) 17.4 (23.7)
Total — continuUINg OPErations.........cevvevereereriererieirieerieeneeeereeeseereseenens $ (275.6) $ 350.6 $ 75.0
Discontinued OPEIation.........c..eeueruerierieienieieieieteitet ettt s $—(01) $—(01)

Year ended December 31, 2013:

Continuing operations:

UK ettt $ 24) $ (2452) § (247.6)
BeIGIUIML ..ttt (97.1) (16.2) (113.3)
The Netherlands..........cccoecerevirieiineninennceeeeeeee e 0.5 97.3 97.8
SWIZEIIANM ...t (53.6) 44 (58.0)
GETIMAINY ...ovevitiieitieteete sttt ettt ettt et et e b bt e bt sbe e bt e bt sbe st be st et e aeseneeneen (13.2) (38.1) (51.3)
CRLE ... (34.0) 56.0 22.0
ULS. () ettt (106.0) 104.9 (1.1)
ONET <. (31.1) 27.1 (4.0)
Total — continuing OPETations..........c.cvevevevririerereerririerereisiesereessesesesesennns $ (3369 $ (18.6) § (355.5)
Discontinued OPEration............eeeruerierierierienieieietetetec ettt $—(205) $—(22) $—(227)

(a) Includes federal and state income taxes. Our U.S. state income taxes were not material during any of the years presented.
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Income tax benefit (expense) attributable to our loss from continuing operations before income taxes differs from the amounts

computed using the applicable income tax rate as a result of the following factors:

Computed “expected” tax benefit (2).........cocevereririnereneieeeeee e

Change in valuation allowances (b):

DIECIEASE ...ttt ettt ettt sttt
TICTEASE. ...ttt sttt et
Enacted tax law and rate changes (C) .....ccoocvecverieiierieniesierie e
Tax effect of intercompany fiNANCING .........cccevieviirieniniieri et

International rate differences (b) (d):

3163 (T LT RRRN

DIECIRASE ... e e n

Basis and other differences in the treatment of items associated with investments
in subsidiaries and affiliates (b):

DICTCASE .ottt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e naaes

J 0163 (T LTS

Non-deductible or non-taxable interest and other expenses (b):

DIECTCASE .cooeeiiiieeeeeeeeeeeee ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaaae

INCT@ASE. ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e arrrararararaaaes

Non-deductible or non-taxable foreign currency exchange results (b):

INCTEASE....cuiiiiiiiiiii s
DECTEASE ...ttt ettt sttt e sbe e st
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax benefits............ccoeveveerieieneecieneeiennenns
Tax benefit associated with technology iNnovation............cceceeeeviererienenieneeieene
Change in subsidiary tax attributes due to a deemed change in control .....................
(011113 o 4 1< RO

Total income tax benefit (EXPENSe)........ccveverrierierierieieeieieesieseeie et eeenreens

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
in millions

$ 1369 $ 2217 % 121.1
(508.3) (373.1) (112.6)
6.8 11.9 31.7
(280.5) 23.9 (377.8)
154.9 166.9 82.7
200.8 266.4 148.2
(52.7) (27.6) (50.8)
(96.9) (168.0) (288.0)
33 32.6 284.0
(106.6) (236.5) (133.5)
48.1 58.0 85.2
53.2 71.9 0.5
(5.1) (16.3) (56.1)
444 29.5 —
21.0 — —
— — (88.0)
15.8 13.7 2.1
$ (364.9) $ 750 $ (355.5)

(a)  The statutory or “expected” tax rates are the U.K. rates 0of 20.0%, 21.0% and 23.0% for 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(b)  Country jurisdictions giving rise to increases are grouped together and shown separately from country jurisdictions giving

rise to decreases.

(¢)  In November 2015, it was announced that the U.K. corporate income tax rate will change from the current rate of 20.0%
t0 19.0% in April 2017 and 18.0% in April 2020. The impact of these rate changes on our deferred tax balances was recorded
in the fourth quarter of 2015 when the relevant legislation was enacted. In April 2014, the U.K. corporate income tax rate
decreased from 23.0% to 21.0%. Substantially all of the impact of the April 2014 rate change on our deferred tax balances
was recorded in the third quarter of 2013 when the relevant legislation was enacted.

(d)  Amounts reflect adjustments (either an increase or a decrease) to “expected” tax benefit for statutory rates in jurisdictions

in which we operate outside of the U.K.
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The current and non-current components of our deferred tax assets are as follows:

December 31,
2015 (a) 2014
in millions

Current deferred taX @SSELS......covuiiiiiiriiiriiieie ettt $ — 3 290.3
Non-current deferred tax aSSETS (D)....c..eeuertirieriiiieiiee ettt et 2,342.9 2,587.0
Current deferred tax Habilities ........covevieiriiiiiiirerrre ettt — (0.6)
Non-current deferred tax Habilities (D) .......ccoevieieiiiiiniiiiicccc e (1,785.7) (2,369.4)
Net dEferTed taX @SSEL......cveieteietiietit ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et be st se s s et enesbeneee $ 5572 % 507.3

(a) Inaccordance with ASU 2015-17, all of our deferred tax balances are reflected as noncurrent in our December 31, 2015
balance sheet. Our December 31, 2014 deferred tax balances have not been retroactively revised. For further information,
see note 2.

(b)  Our non-current deferred tax assets and liabilities are included in other assets: amounts recoverable in more than one year
and other non-current liabilities, respectively, in our consolidated balance sheets.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are presented below:

December 31,
2015 2014

in millions

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss and other Carryforwards ...........coccoevverirerenenienieneeeeeeese e $ 58732 $ 6,637.9
Property and eqUIPIMENE, NET......c..c.cceruiirieieiirerieetinetenteee ettt ettt ese s es st ne e aeaesseneenes 2,583.1 2,970.7
DIEDE ..ttt bbbt h bbbttt bbbttt enen 1,611.7 1,189.0
DErivatiVe INSLIUIMIEIIES ....c.cveuerieuirieeirieieteretee ettt ettt ettt esee et ese s ebe s es s st s e sesesseneenen 173.1 345.9
INEANGIDIE SSELS ....eveveniiiiiiiitieieie sttt ettt ettt s eae 112.4 149.6
Other future deductible amMOUNLS ...........ccovveiriiiriiirieieceecere ettt 272.5 265.3
DETRITEA TAX ASSELS...uvietieiiieitieeieetteete et e ste et estteebeesteeebeesseessbeessaeasseesaeasseenseesssansseessseenseenssas 10,626.0 11,558.4
Valuation alIOWANCE ........c.coueiriiirieiriiiiteiete ettt ettt eb et (6,395.6) (6,679.4)
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance............coceeverieieiiiiiinieieeeee e 4,230.4 4,879.0

Deferred tax liabilities:

INEANGIDIE SSELS ...evoveiiiiiiiiitieieie sttt ettt ettt e eae (1,826.5) (2,338.2)
Property and eqUIPIMENE, NET......c.co.ccuruiiriiieiiretiietinteientee ettt ettt ese s es st sne e aesesaeseenes (1,053.4) (1,362.9)
INVESTIMENES. ... e s (374.5) (367.6)
DErivatiVe INSIUIMEIIES ......coveuerieuiiteiirietetetetet ettt sttt sttt ettt ebe s ae s esesne st s e sesesneneenes (280.7) (142.7)
Other future taxable AMOUNES ......c..ccuiciriririiiieree ettt s aeae (138.1) (160.3)
Deferred tax HabIlItIes ......c.cocoviirieiirieineinicerecrec ettt (3,673.2) (4,371.7)
Net deferTed taX ASSEL......cciiiiiiiiiiiccite ettt ettt $ 5572 $ 507.3

Our deferred income tax valuation allowance decreased $283.8 million in 2015. This decrease reflects the net effect of (i) the
net tax expense related to our continuing operations of $501.5 million, (ii) foreign currency translation adjustments, (iii) the effect
of enacted tax law and rate changes and (iv) other individually insignificant items.
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Virgin Media had property and equipment on which future U.K. tax deductions can be claimed of $21.0 billion and $21.6
billion at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The maximum amount of these “capital allowances” that can be claimed in
any one year is 18% of the remaining balance, after additions, disposals and prior claims. The tax effects of the excess of these
capital allowances over the related financial reporting bases are included in the 2015 and 2014 deferred tax assets related to property
and equipment, net, in the above table.

At December 31, 2015, our unrecognized excess tax benefits aggregated $179.0 million. These excess tax benefits, which
represent tax deductions in excess of the financial reporting expense for share-based compensation, will not be recognized for
financial reporting purposes until such time as these tax benefits can be realized as a reduction of income taxes payable. The tax
effects of these unrecognized excess tax benefits are not included in the above table.

The significant components of our tax loss carryforwards and related tax assets at December 31, 2015 are as follows:

Tax loss Related Expiration
Country carryforward tax asset date

in millions

UK.:

Amount attributable to capital 10SSES .......cceevvierieriiiiieeie e $ 17,8226 § 3,208.0 Indefinite

Amount attributable to net operating loSSEs ........ceocvrverereierieiienieieeeeeeeenns 1,528.8 275.2 Indefinite
The Netherlands.........cooiiiiiii e 3,539.1 884.8  2016-2024
GETIMANY ...ttt sttt ettt ettt et sb et b e sbe bbbt et et et et eseeat et ebeebesbenee 2,002.2 321.8 Indefinite
L6 TSSO SU USSR 1,323.2 329.4  2019-2033
LUXEIMDOULE. ...ttt ettt ettt 1,052.0 307.4 Indefinite
BIIUML....oiiiiiiiiicicceeeeeee ettt et ettt et ereean e reennas 586.4 199.3 Indefinite
FTANCE ...ttt 522.7 180.0 Indefinite
TE@LANA ... e e 558.5 69.8 Indefinite
HUNGATY oottt 230.9 439  2020-2025
L0 11 1 1< GO 247.8 53.6 Various

TOTAL e e e e e es e seeseeeseee s eseeeeeseseseseseseseeseeeseeseeesesesanees $ 204142 $ 58732

Our tax loss carryforwards within each jurisdiction combine all companies’ tax losses (both capital and ordinary losses) in
that jurisdiction, however, certain tax jurisdictions limit the ability to offset taxable income of a separate company or different tax
group with the tax losses associated with another separate company or group. Further, tax jurisdictions restrict the type of taxable
income that the above losses are able to offset. The majority of the tax losses shown in the above table are not expected to be
realized, including certain losses that are limited in use due to change in control or same business tests.

We intend to indefinitely reinvest earnings from certain non-U.S. operations except to the extent the earnings are subject to
current income taxes. At December 31, 2015, income and withholding taxes for which a net deferred tax liability might otherwise
be required have not been provided on an estimated $9.1 billion of cumulative temporary differences (including, for this purpose,
any difference between the aggregate tax basis in stock of a consolidated subsidiary and the corresponding amount of the subsidiary’s
net equity, including cumulative translation adjustments, determined for financial reporting purposes) on non-U.S. entities. The
determination of the additional withholding tax that would arise upon a reversal of temporary differences is impractical to estimate
as it is subject to offset by available foreign tax credits and subject to certain limitations.

In general, a U.K. or U.S. corporation may claim a foreign tax credit against its income tax expense for foreign income taxes
paid or accrued. A U.S. corporation may also claim a credit for foreign income taxes paid or accrued on the earnings of a foreign
corporation paid to the U.S. corporation as a dividend.

Our ability to claim a foreign tax credit for dividends received from our foreign subsidiaries or foreign taxes paid or accrued
is subject to various significant limitations under U.S. tax laws including a limited carry back and carry forward period. Some of
our operating companies are located in countries with which the U.K. or U.S. does not have income tax treaties. Because we lack
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treaty protection in these countries, we may be subject to high rates of withholding taxes on distributions and other payments from
these operating companies and may be subject to double taxation on our income. Limitations on the ability to claim a foreign tax
credit, lack of treaty protection in some countries and the inability to offset losses in one jurisdiction against income earned in
another jurisdiction could result in a high effective tax rate on our earnings. Since a significant portion of our revenue is generated
outside of the U.K. and substantially all of our revenue is generated outside the U.S., including in jurisdictions that do not have
tax treaties with the U.K. or U.S., these risks are greater for us than for companies that generate most of their revenue in the U.K.
or U.S. or in jurisdictions that have these treaties.

Through our subsidiaries, we maintain a presence in many countries. Many of these countries maintain highly complex tax
regimes that differ significantly from the system of income taxation used in the U.K. and the U.S. We have accounted for the effect
of these taxes based on what we believe is reasonably expected to apply to us and our subsidiaries based on tax laws currently in
effect and reasonable interpretations of these laws. Because some jurisdictions do not have systems of taxation that are as well
established as the system of income taxation used in the U.K., U.S. or tax regimes used in other major industrialized countries, it
may be difficult to anticipate how other jurisdictions will tax our and our subsidiaries’ current and future operations.

Although we intend to take reasonable tax planning measures to limit our tax exposures, no assurance can be given that we
will be able to do so.

We and our subsidiaries file consolidated and standalone income tax returns in various jurisdictions. In the normal course of
business, our income tax filings are subject to review by various taxing authorities. In connection with such reviews, disputes
could arise with the taxing authorities over the interpretation or application of certain income tax rules related to our business in
that tax jurisdiction. Such disputes may result in future tax and interest and penalty assessments by these taxing authorities. The
ultimate resolution of tax contingencies will take place upon the earlier of (i) the settlement date with the applicable taxing authorities
in either cash or agreement of income tax positions or (ii) the date when the tax authorities are statutorily prohibited from adjusting
the company’s tax computations.

In general, tax returns filed by our company or our subsidiaries for years prior to 2008 are no longer subject to examination
by tax authorities. Certain of our subsidiaries are currently involved in income tax examinations in various jurisdictions in which
we operate, including Chile (2010 through 2012), the Czech Republic (2013), Germany (2008 through 2013), Hungary (2012
through 2013), the Netherlands (2013 through 2015), Poland (2013), Slovakia (2011), Switzerland (2011-2012) and the U.S. (2009
through 2015). Except as noted below, any adjustments that might arise from the foregoing examinations are not expected to have
amaterial impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations. In the U.S., we have received notices of adjustment
from the Internal Revenue Service with respect to our 2013, 2010 and 2009 income tax returns, as well as a proposed adjustment
to our 2013 withholding tax return. We have entered into the appeals process with respect to the 2010 and 2009 matters. While
we believe that the ultimate resolution of these proposed adjustments will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows, no assurance can be given that this will be the case given the amounts involved and
the complex nature of the related issues.

The changes in our unrecognized tax benefits are summarized below:

2015 2014 2013
in millions

Balance at JANUATY 1 .....ccocvoveuiieieieieiieieieece sttt sttt $ 5135 $ 4909 § 359.7
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year............ccocceeeeiineene 142.3 38.2 102.3
Reductions for tax positions Of Prior YEars.........cceevuererieierieieinenenesesiesesesieneens (42.2) (50.2) (14.2)
Additions for tax positions Of Prior YEArS .......ccceerereerierierierienieeie st 27.0 64.5 41.5
Foreign currency translation ...........cccceeierirenenienienenieieteeececei et (22.3) (27.0) 7.9
Lapse of statute of ImMitations..........cceevererirererenenienereieteeeeee e (8.3) (1.9) (6.3)
Settlements with tax aUthOTILIES ..........ccevveirieiriiieiieicee s (0.1) (1.0) —

Balance at DECEIMDBET 31 ..c..nneieeeeeee ettt e et e e et e e e e e eeeeeaeeseaeas $ 6099 §$ 5135 $ 490.9

No assurance can be given that any of these tax benefits will be recognized or realized.
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As of December 31, 2015, our unrecognized tax benefits included $299.4 million of tax benefits that would have a favorable
impact on our effective income tax rate if ultimately recognized, after considering amounts that we would expect to be offset by
valuation allowances and other factors.

During 2016, it is reasonably possible that the resolution of ongoing examinations by tax authorities as well as expiration of
statutes of limitation could result in significant reductions to our unrecognized tax benefits related to tax positions taken as of
December 31, 2015. The amount of any such reductions could range up to $250 million. Other than the potential impacts of these
ongoing examinations and the expected expiration of certain statutes of limitation, we do not expect any material changes to our
unrecognized tax benefits during 2016. No assurance can be given as to the nature or impact of any changes in our unrecognized
tax positions during 2016.

During 2015, 2014 and 2013, the income tax benefit (expense) of our continuing operations includes net income tax expense
of $10.3 million, $10.9 million and $14.0 million, respectively, representing the net accrual of interest and penalties during the
period. Our provisions for liabilities include accrued interest and penalties of $61.4 million at December 31, 2015.

(12) Equity
Capitalization

Our authorized share capital consists of an aggregate nominal amount of $20.0 million, consisting of any of the following:
(i) Liberty Global Shares (Class A, B or C), each with a nominal value of $0.01 per share, (ii) LILAC Shares (Class A, B or C),
each with a nominal value of $0.01 per share, (iii) preference shares, with a nominal value to be determined by the board of
directors, the issuance of one or more classes or series of which as may be authorized by the board of directors, and (iv) any other
shares of one or more classes as may be determined by the board of directors or by the shareholders of Liberty Global.

Under Liberty Global’s Articles of Association, effective as of July 1, 2015, holders of Liberty Global Class A ordinary shares
and LiLAC Class A ordinary shares are entitled to one vote for each such share held, and holders of Liberty Global Class B ordinary
shares and LiLAC Class B ordinary shares are entitled to 10 votes for each such share held, on all matters submitted to a vote of
Liberty Global shareholders at any general meeting (annual or special). Holders of Liberty Global Class C ordinary shares and
LiLAC Class C ordinary shares are not entitled to any voting powers except as required by law.

At the option of the holder, each Liberty Global Class B ordinary share is convertible into one Liberty Global Class A ordinary
share and each LiLAC Class B ordinary share is convertible into one LiLAC Class A ordinary share. One Liberty Global Class A
ordinary share is reserved for issuance for each Liberty Global Class B ordinary share that is issued (10,472,517 shares issued as
of December 31, 2015), and one LiLAC Class A ordinary share is reserved for issuance for each LiLAC Class B ordinary share
(523,423 shares issued as of December 31, 2015). At December 31, 2015, there were (i) 873,333 and 2,738,536 Liberty Global
Class A and Class C ordinary shares, respectively, reserved for issuance pursuant to outstanding stock options, (ii) 10,582,609 and
27,314,828 Liberty Global Class A and Class C ordinary shares, respectively, reserved for issuance pursuant to outstanding SARs
and PSARs and (iii) 2,255,176, 666,667 and 3,352,533 Liberty Global Class A, Class B and Class C ordinary shares, respectively,
reserved for issuance pursuant to outstanding PSUs, PGUs and RSUs. In addition, there were (a) 21,233 and 57,742 LiLAC Class
A and Class C ordinary shares, respectively, reserved for issuance pursuant to outstanding stock options, (b) 373,319 and 997,765
LiLAC Class A and Class C ordinary shares, respectively, reserved for issuance pursuant to outstanding SARs and PSARs and
(c) 88,016, 33,333 and 114,643 LiLAC Class A, Class B and Class C ordinary shares, respectively, reserved for issuance pursuant
to outstanding PSUs, PGUs and RSUs.

Subject to any preferential rights of any outstanding class of our preference shares, the holders of Liberty Global and LiLAC
Class A, Class B and Class C ordinary shares will be entitled to such dividends as may be declared from time to time by our board
of directors from funds available therefore. Such dividends may be declared in favor of Liberty Global Ordinary Shares and LiLAC
Ordinary Shares, in equal or unequal amounts, or only in favor of the Liberty Global Ordinary Shares or the LILAC Ordinary
Shares. There are currently no contractual restrictions on our ability to pay dividends in cash or shares.

In the event of our liquidation, dissolution and winding up, after payment or provision for payment of our debts and liabilities
and subject to the prior payment in full of any preferential amounts to which our preference shareholders may be entitled, the

holders of Liberty Global ordinary shares and LiLAC ordinary shares will be entitled to receive their proportionate interests,
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expressed in liquidation units, in any assets available for distribution to our ordinary shares regardless of whether such assets are
then attributed to the Liberty Global Group or the LiLAC Group. Liquidation units will be allocated to each Liberty Global ordinary
share and each LiLAC ordinary share, respectively, based on their respective volume-weighted average price over the 20 trading-
day period commencing shortly after the commencement of ordinary-course (regular-way) trading of the LiLAC Shares. Pursuant
to the terms of our articles of association, the liquidation units for each Liberty Global Share and each LiLAC Share are 1 and
0.94893, respectively.

On January 26, 2014, our board of directors approved a share split in the form of a share dividend (the 2014 Share Dividend),
which constitutes a bonus issue under our articles of association and English law, of one Liberty Global Class C ordinary share
on each outstanding Liberty Global Class A, Class B and Class C ordinary share as of the February 14, 2014 record date. The
distribution date for the 2014 Share Dividend was March 3, 2014. All Liberty Global share and per share amounts presented herein
give retrospective effect to the 2014 Share Dividend.

A summary of the changes in our share capital during 2015 is set forth in the table below:

Liberty Global Shares LiLAC Shares Old Liberty Global Shares
Class A ClassB ClassC ClassA ClassB ClassC Class A ClassB Class C

Balance at January 1, 2015................... $ — 5 — 5 — 5 — 5 — & — $ 25 % 01 $ 63

Repurchase and cancellation

of Old Liberty Global Shares......... — — — — — — — — (0.1)
Liberty Global call option

CONETACES .vveeeneenieneeeeeeee e — — — — — — — — (0.1)

Balance at June 30, 2015...................... — — — — — — 2.5 0.1 6.1
Impact of the LiLAC Transaction...... 2.5 0.1 6.1 0.1 — 0.3 (2.5) 0.1) (6.1)
Repurchase and cancellation

of Liberty Global Shares ................ — - 0.1) - - - — - -
Liberty Global call option
CONLTACES .venveeeveienereeiereecsaeeenene — — (0.1) — — — — — —

Balance at December 31, 2015............. $ 25 $ 01 $ 59 $ 01 § — $ 03 $§ — $ — § —

Share Repurchases

During 2015, 2014 and 2013, our board of directors authorized various share repurchase programs, the most recent of which
provides for the repurchase of up to $4.5 billion (before direct acquisition costs) of Liberty Global Class A and/or Class C ordinary
shares. Under these plans, we receive authorization to acquire up to the specified amount of Liberty Global Class A and Class C
ordinary shares or other authorized securities from time to time through open market or privately negotiated transactions, which
may include derivative transactions. The timing of the repurchase of shares or other securities pursuant to our equity repurchase
programs, which may be suspended or discontinued at any time, is dependent on a variety of factors, including market conditions.
As of December 31, 2015, the remaining amount authorized for share repurchases was $1,601.1 million. Subsequent to
December 31, 2015, our board of directors increased this amount to $4.0 billion.

As a U.K. incorporated company, we may only elect to repurchase shares or pay dividends to the extent of our “Distributable
Reserves.” Distributable Reserves, which are not linked to a GAAP reported amount, may be created through the earnings of the
U.K. parent company and, amongst other methods, through a reduction in share premium approved by the English Companies
Court. Based on the amounts set forth in our 2014 U.K. Companies Act Report dated April 27, 2015, which are our most recent
“Relevant Accounts” for the purposes of determining our Distributable Reserves under U.K. law, our Distributable Reserves are
$27.9 billion. This amount does not reflect earnings, share repurchases or other activity that occurred in 2015, each of which
impacts the amount of our Distributable Reserves.
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The following table provides details of our share repurchases during 2015, 2014 and 2013:

Class A Liberty Global Shares  Class C Liberty Global Shares

and Class/Series A Old and Class/Series C Old
Liberty Shares Liberty Shares
Average price Average price
Shares paid per Shares paid per
Purchase date purchased share (a) purchased share (a) Total cost (a)
in millions
Shares purchased pursuant to repurchase
programs during:
2015 (D) oot — 3 — 49,984,562 $ 4691 $ 2,344.5
2014 (€) weveereeeeenieeie et 8,062,792 $ 42.19 28,401,019 § 4425 % 1,596.9
2013 (€) oot 6,550,197 $ 37.70 24,761,397 $ 36.55 § 1,151.9

(a)  Includes direct acquisition costs and the effects of derivative instruments, where applicable.

(b)  Amounts include repurchases of (i) Old Liberty Global Shares from January 1 through June 30, 2015 and (ii) Liberty Global
Shares from July 1 through December 31, 2015.

(c)  Amounts include repurchases of Old Liberty Global Shares.
Call Option Contracts

From time to time, we enter into call option contracts pursuant to which we contemporaneously (i) sell call options on shares
of Liberty Global ordinary shares and (ii) purchase call options on an equivalent number of shares of Liberty Global ordinary
shares with an exercise price of zero. These contracts can result in the receipt of cash and shares of Liberty Global ordinary shares.
Shares acquired through the exercise of the call options are included in our share repurchases and the net gain on cash settled
contracts is recorded as an increase to additional paid-in capital in our consolidated statements of equity.

Acquisition of Interests in VTR and VTR Wireless

On March 14, 2014, a subsidiary of VTR Finance acquired each of the 20.0% noncontrolling ownership interests in VTR and
VTR Wireless SpA (VTR Wireless) from Inversiones Corp Comm 2 SpA (the VTR NCI Acquisition), formerly known as Corp
Comm S.A. (the VTR NCI Owner). VTR Wireless was an indirect subsidiary of Liberty Global that was merged with a subsidiary
of VTR in December 2014. The consideration for the VTR NCI Acquisition was satisfied by the allotment and issuance 0o£ 10,091,178
Old Liberty Global Class C ordinary shares to the VTR NCI Owner. The VTR NCI Acquisition has been accounted for as an equity
transaction, the net effect of which was to record the issued Old Liberty Global Class C shares at the $185.4 million carrying value
of the acquired noncontrolling interests.

Other

Telenet Tender. On December 17,2012, Binan Investments B.V. (Binan), our wholly-owned subsidiary, launched a voluntary
and conditional cash public offer (the Telenet Tender) for (i) all of Telenet’s issued shares that Binan did not already own or that
were not held by Telenet (the Telenet Bid Shares) and (ii) certain outstanding vested and unvested employee warrants (the Telenet
Bid Warrants). As of the February 1, 2013 transaction date of the Telenet Tender, the offer price for the Telenet Bid Shares was
€35.00 ($47.85) per share. The offer prices for the Telenet Bid Warrants, which were calculated using the Black Scholes option
pricing model and a price of €35.00 for each of the Telenet Bid Shares, ranged from €13.48 ($18.43) per share to €25.47 ($34.82)
per share.

Pursuant to the Telenet Tender, we paid aggregate consideration of €332.5 million ($454.6 million at the transaction date) to
acquire (i) 9,497,637 of the Telenet Bid Shares, increasing our ownership interest in Telenet’s issued and outstanding shares at
such date to 58.4%, and (ii) 3,000 of the Telenet Bid Warrants. As we owned a controlling financial interest in Telenet prior to the
launch of'the Telenet Tender, we accounted for the impact of the acquisition of the additional Telenet shares as an equity transaction.
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Subsidiary Distributions. From time to time, Telenet, VTR and certain other of our subsidiaries make cash distributions to
their respective shareholders. Our share of these distributions is eliminated in consolidation and the noncontrolling interest owners’
share of these distributions is reflected as a charge against noncontrolling interests in our consolidated statements of equity.

Restricted Net Assets

The ability of certain of our subsidiaries to distribute or loan all or a portion of their net assets to our company is limited by
the terms of applicable debt facilities. At December 31, 2015, substantially all of our net assets represented net assets of our
subsidiaries that were subject to such limitations.

a3) Share-based Compensation

Our share-based compensation expense is based on the share-based incentive awards held by our and our subsidiaries’
employees, including awards issued by Liberty Global.

A summary of our aggregate share-based compensation expense is set forth below:

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
in millions

Liberty Global shares:

Performance-based incentive aWards (&) ..........ccoeveveeveieveiereieieeeeeeee e $ 157.1 $ 129.9 3 58.6
Other share-based INCENtIVE AWATAS ...........ccvevvieviierieiiierieeteeieereeeeee e 149.6 99.7 182.9
Total Liberty Global shares (b) (C).....covvevverierieriieiiiieieciereeeere e 306.7 229.6 241.5
Telenet share-based incentive awards (d) ........c.occveevieieeieciiereeee e 9.2 14.6 56.5
ONET ..ottt ettt ettt ettt et e et e et b e bt e st esserseaseteeteereeteereerens 2.3 13.0 4.5
TOTAL ...ttt ettt ettt sttt b ettt se ettt es s et e b te st se b etesbeseebaneas $ 3182 § 2572 % 302.5

Included in:
Continuing operations:

Operating expense:

Liberty GLObal GIOUP........c.cveevevieieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt es e senenns $ 31§ 48 $ 10.8
LALAC GIOUP ...ttt ettt et et b e st sae s 0.3 2.8 1.3
Total OPErating EXPEINSEC.......cveeviereeereereeereeeeeteeteereeteeteereeteeereeteeereereeereereeereenas 3.4 7.6 12.1
SG&A expense:
Liberty Global GIroup.........cc.coieieeuieiieiieeieeeecee ettt ettt et 312.7 240.8 283.5
LILAC GIoup (€) (€) .veeeeeveererrieieriieiestieteseeseeseesesseessesssessesssessesssessesssessesssenses 2.1 8.8 5.1
TOtal SG&A EXPEINSC......ueevieveirierieeteeeeete et eteeteeteete et teeereeaeeere e e eereereeereenis 314.8 249.6 288.6
Total — coNtinUINg OPETALIONS..........ccverveeverreereeieieeeereeeesseeseesseeaeseeesesenas 318.2 257.2 300.7
Discontinued OPETALION .........ccveeviiiuiereerieieeteeteereeereeeeeteereeeteereeeteesaeereeseereeaseereens — — 1.8
TOAL ..ttt b e et $ 3182  $ 2572 $ 302.5

(a) Includes share-based compensation expense related to (i) Liberty Global PSUs, (ii) a challenge performance award plan
for certain executive officers and key employees (the Challenge Performance Awards) and (iii) for 2015 and 2014, PGUs
to our Chief Executive Officer, as described below. The Challenge Performance Awards include PSARs and PSUs.

(b)  In connection with the Virgin Media Acquisition, we issued Liberty Global share-based incentive awards (Virgin Media
Replacement Awards) to employees and former directors of Virgin Media in exchange for corresponding Virgin Media
awards. Virgin Media recorded share-based compensation expense of $54.1 million and $55.8 million during 2015 and
2014, respectively, including compensation expense related to the Virgin Media Replacement Awards and new awards that
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were granted after the Virgin Media Replacement Awards were issued. During 2013, Virgin Media recorded share-based
compensation expense of $134.3 million, primarily related to the Virgin Media Replacement Awards, including $80.1 million
that was charged to expense in recognition of the Virgin Media Replacement Awards that were fully vested on June 7,2013
or for which vesting was accelerated pursuant to the terms of the Virgin Media Merger Agreement on or prior to December 31,
2013.

In connection with the LiLAC Transaction, the compensation committee of our board of directors approved modifications
to our outstanding share-based incentive awards (the Award Modifications) in accordance with the underlying share-based
incentive plans. The objective of the compensation committee was to ensure a relatively unchanged intrinsic value of
outstanding equity awards before and after the bonus issuance of the LILAC Shares. The mechanism to modify outstanding
share-based incentive awards, as approved by the compensation committee, utilized the volume-weighted average price of
the respective shares for the five days prior to and the five days following the bonus issuance (Modification VWAPs). In
order to determine if any incremental stock-based compensation expense should be recorded as a result of the Award
Modifications, we are required to measure the changes in the fair values of the then outstanding share-based incentive
awards using market prices immediately before and immediately after the Award Modifications. Due to declines in the
share prices of our Class A and Class C Liberty Global Shares following the bonus issuance, the exercise prices of options,
SARs and PSARSs determined using the Modification VWAPs were lower than the exercise prices that would have resulted
if the market prices immediately before and after the Award Modifications had been used. Accordingly, the Black-Scholes
fair values of our options, SARs and PSARs increased as a result of the Award Modifications, resulting in incremental
stock-based compensation expense of $99.3 million. This amount includes $69.3 million of expense recognized during
2015 related to awards that vested on or prior to December 31, 2015 and $30.0 million of expense that will be recognized
in future periods through 2019 as the related awards vest.

Represents the share-based compensation expense associated with Telenet’s share-based incentive awards, which, at
December 31, 2015, included (i) warrants and employee stock options (1,813,815 awards outstanding at a weighted average
exercise price of €42.17 ($45.82)), (ii) performance-based specific stock option plans for the Chief Executive Officer
(745,000 awards outstanding at a weighted average exercise price of €40.60 ($44.12)), (iii) performance-based share award
(82,747 awards outstanding) and (iv) an employee share purchase plan. During 2013, Telenet modified the terms of certain
of its share-based incentive plans to provide for anti-dilution adjustments in connection with its shareholder returns. In
connection with these anti-dilution adjustments, Telenet recognized share-based compensation expense of $32.7 million
and continues to recognize additional share-based compensation expense as the underlying options vest. In addition, during
2013, Telenet recognized expense of $6.2 million related to the accelerated vesting of certain options.

The amount for 2015 includes the reversal of $1.8 million of share-based compensation expense, primarily related to
forfeitures of unvested PSUs during the first quarter of 2015.

The following table provides certain information related to share-based compensation not yet recognized for share-based

incentive awards related to Liberty Global ordinary shares as of December 31, 2015:

Liberty Liberty
Global Global
Shares and performance-

LiLAC Shares (a)  based awards (b)

Total compensation expense not yet recognized (in millions)..........ccccecevevererenencnenne. $ 1920 $ 85.5
Weighted average period remaining for expense recognition (in years).........cceceveeneenee. 2.7 0.9
(@)  Amounts relate to awards granted or assumed by Liberty Global under (i) the Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan (as

amended and restated effective February 24, 2015), (ii) the Liberty Global 2014 Nonemployee Director Incentive Plan, (iii)
the Liberty Global, Inc. 2005 Incentive Plan (as amended and restated effective June 7, 2013) (the Liberty Global 2005
Incentive Plan), (iv) the Liberty Global, Inc. 2005 Nonemployee Director Incentive Plan (as amended and restated effective
June 7, 2013) (the Liberty Global 2005 Director Incentive Plan) and (v) certain other incentive plans of Virgin Media,
including Virgin Media’s 2010 stock incentive plan (the VM Incentive Plan). All new awards are granted under the Liberty
Global 2014 Incentive Plan or the Liberty Global 2014 Nonemployee Director Incentive Plan. The Liberty Global 2014
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Incentive Plan, the Liberty Global 2014 Nonemployee Director Incentive Plan, the Liberty Global 2005 Incentive Plan, the
Liberty Global 2005 Director Incentive Plan and the VM Incentive Plan are described below.
(b)  Amounts relate to (i) the Challenge Performance Awards, (ii) PSUs and (iii) the PGUs.

The following table summarizes certain information related to the incentive awards granted and exercised with respect to
Liberty Global ordinary shares:

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

Assumptions used to estimate fair value of options, SARs and PSARs

granted:

RiSK-fTee INtETeSt TALE ... ..eeveuieeieiieiiiiieieiteric e 096-1.89% 0.81-1.77% 0.36-1.27%

EXpected 1ife (@) ...ccveveieieieieieieereeee ettt 3.0-55years 3.1-5.1years 3.2-7.1years

Expected VOIatility (2).....coveovereeieieiieieeieierieriesieste et 23.1-30.1%  25.1-287%  26.5-35.8%

Expected dividend yield........ccccocevviririnininininenicccceceeeeeeeeee none none none
Weighted average grant date fair value per share of awards granted:

OPLIONS 1.ttt ettt ettt ettt et e st e b e e st et e e st e steeneesneensesneeseeneenneennens $ 1473  $ 1140 $ 11.09

SARS oottt ettt et e e te et e s be e aee st e e ntaeenbe e saeebeenreeans $ 10.76  $ 893 § 8.36

PSARS .ttt b ettt a et nb st eneeneeneenes $ — 3 815 § 8.31

RISUS et et et ettt et ettt s be e aaeenbeas $ 5185 $ 40.68 $ 35.74

PSUS. ettt ettt ettt ettt et $ 5157 $ 4042 $ 34.94

PGUS - ettt $ — % 44.04 S —
Total intrinsic value of awards exercised (in millions):

OPLIOMIS ..ttt ettt ettt b ettt b ettt be e e et et eneeseebeeaea $ 106.8 $ 1266 $ 175.0

SA RS et e e et e e e b e e e bt e e eteeeenaaeenaaenn $ 517 $ 487 $ 73.2

PSARS e ettt $ 02 $ 04 $ —
Cash received from exercise of options (in millions) .........cccecevveveervereenenne. $ 40.5 $ 548 $ 81.0
Income tax benefit related to share-based compensation (in millions)............ $ 674 $ 546 $ 48.0

(a)  The 2013 ranges shown for these assumptions exclude the awards for certain former employees of Virgin Media who were
expected to exercise their awards immediately or soon after the Virgin Media Acquisition. For these awards, the assumptions
used for expected life and volatility were essentially nil.

Share Incentive Plans — Liberty Global Ordinary Shares
Incentive Plans

As of December 31, 2015, we are authorized to grant incentive awards under the Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan and the
Liberty Global 2014 Nonemployee Director Incentive Plan. Generally, we may grant non-qualified share options, SARs, restricted
shares, RSUs, cash awards, performance awards or any combination of the foregoing under either of these incentive plans
(collectively, awards). Ordinary shares issuable pursuant to awards made under these incentive plans will be made available from
either authorized but unissued shares or shares that have been issued but reacquired by our company. Awards may be granted at
or above fair value in any class of ordinary shares. The maximum number of Liberty Global ordinary shares with respect to which
awards may be issued under the Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan and the Liberty Global 2014 Nonemployee Director Incentive
Plan is 105 million (of which no more than 50.25 million shares may consist of Class B ordinary shares) and 10.5 million,
respectively, in each case, subject to anti-dilution and other adjustment provisions in the respective plan. As of December 31,2015,
the Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan and the Liberty Global 2014 Nonemployee Director Incentive Plan had 84,782,474 and
10,120,239 ordinary shares available for grant, respectively.
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In connection with the Virgin Media Acquisition, we assumed the VM Incentive Plan. Awards under the VM Incentive Plan
issued prior to June 7, 2013 have a 10-year term and become fully exercisable within five years of continued employment. Certain
performance-based awards that were granted during the first quarter of 2013 were canceled upon completion of the Virgin Media
Acquisition. These canceled awards were subsequently replaced by PSUs that were granted under the VM Incentive Plan on June
24, 2013. For the remaining performance-based awards that were outstanding prior to June 7, 2013, the performance objectives
lapsed upon the completion of the Virgin Media Acquisition and such awards vest on the third anniversary of the grant date.

Awards (other than performance-based awards) issued under the Liberty Global 2005 Incentive Plan and under the VM
Incentive Plan after June 7, 2013 generally (i) vest 12.5% on the six month anniversary of the grant date and then vest at a rate of
6.25% each quarter thereafter and (ii) expire seven years after the grant date. Awards (other than RSUs) issued under the Liberty
Global 2005 Director Incentive Plan generally vest in three equal annual installments, provided the director continues to serve as
director immediately prior to the vesting date, and expire 10 years after the grant date. RSUs vest on the date of the first annual
general meeting of shareholders following the grant date. No further awards will be granted under the Liberty Global 2005 Incentive
Plan, the Liberty Global 2005 Director Incentive Plan or the VM Incentive Plan.

Awards (other than performance-based awards) under the Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan generally (i) vest 12.5% on the
six month anniversary of the grant date and then vest at a rate of 6.25% each quarter thereafter and (ii) expire seven years after
the grant date. Awards (other than RSUs) issued under the Liberty Global 2014 Nonemployee Director Incentive Plan generally
vest in three equal annual installments, provided the director continues to serve as director immediately prior to the vesting date,
and expire seven years after the grant date. RSUs vest on the date of the first annual general meeting of shareholders following
the grant date. These awards may be granted at or above fair value in any class of ordinary shares.

Performance Awards

The following is a summary of the material terms and conditions with respect to our performance-based awards for certain
executive officers and key employees. These awards were granted under the Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan, the Liberty Global
2005 Incentive Plan and the VM Incentive Plan.

Liberty Global PSUs. PSUs are granted to executive officers and key employees annually based on a target annual equity
value for each executive and key employee, of which approximately two-thirds would be delivered in the form of an annual award
of PSUs and approximately one-third in the form of an annual award of SARs. Each currently-outstanding PSU represents the
right to receive one Liberty Global or LILAC Class A or Class C ordinary share, as applicable, subject to performance and vesting.
Generally, the performance period for the PSUs covers a two-year period and the performance target is based on the achievement
of a specified compound annual growth rate (CAGR) in a consolidated Adjusted OIBDA metric (as defined in note 18), adjusted
for events such as acquisitions, dispositions and changes in foreign currency exchange rates that affect comparability (Adjusted
OIBDA CAGR), and the participant’s annual performance ratings during the two-year performance period. A performance range
of 75% to 125% of the target Adjusted OIBDA CAGR generally results in award recipients earning 50% to 150% of their respective
PSUs, subject to reduction or forfeiture based on individual performance. The PSUs generally vest 50% on each of March 31 and
September 30 of the year following the end of the performance period.

Subsequent to December 31, 2015, the compensation committee of our board of directors approved the grant of up to 6.26
million PSU awards pursuant to a performance plan that is based on the achievement of a specified Adjusted OIBDA CAGR during
the three-year period ended December 31, 2018 (with 2015 as the base year). We expect that over 95% of these awards will cover
Liberty Global Shares and the remainder will cover LiLAC Shares.

Liberty Global Challenge Performance Awards. Effective June 24,2013, our compensation committee approved the Challenge
Performance Awards, which consisted solely of PSARs for our senior executive officers and a combination of PSARs and PSUs
for our other executive officers and key employees. Each PSU represents the right to receive one Liberty Global or LILAC Class
A or Class C ordinary share, as applicable, subject to performance and vesting. The performance criteria for the Challenge
Performance Awards will be based on the participant’s performance and achievement of individual goals in each of the years 2013,
2014 and 2015. Subject to forfeitures and the satisfaction of performance conditions, 100% of each participant’s Challenge
Performance Awards will vest on June 24, 2016. The PSARs have a term of seven years and base prices equal to the respective
market closing prices of the applicable class on the grant date.
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Liberty Global Performance Grant Award. Effective May 1, 2014, our compensation committee authorized the grant of PGUs
to our Chief Executive Officer, comprising a total of one million PGUs with respect to Class A Old Liberty Global Shares and
one million PGUs with respect to Class B Old Liberty Global Shares. The PGUs, which were subject to a performance condition
that was achieved in 2014, vest in three equal annual installments, the first of which occurred on March 15, 2015. As a result of
the LiLAC Transaction, our Chief Executive Officer also received 33,333 PGUs with respect to Class A LILAC Shares and 33,333
PGUs with respect to Class B LILAC Shares, each of which vest over the same period as the May 1, 2014 award grant described
above.

Share-based Award Activity — Liberty Global Ordinary Shares
The following tables summarize the share-based award activity during 2015 with respect to awards issued by Liberty Global:

Liberty Global Shares and Old Liberty Global Shares

Weighted
average
Weighted remaining  Aggregate
Number of average contractual intrinsic
Options — Class A ordinary shares shares exercise price term value
in years in millions
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 ......ccooiiiiinininieeeeeeeceeeee 1,726,259 % 18.01
GIaNteA........cuvieieeee e 61,763 $ 54.97
FOIfRItEd ....vvieiieircecctrrcee e (13,836) $ 23.59
EXEICISEA . eeiiiiiiieieee ettt e e saaee e e e eeanas (920,468) $ 14.03
Outstanding at June 30, 2015 ......ccooiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e 853,718 $ 24.90
Impact of Award Modifications...........coceveverenenenieneneeeieeeceenes 60,414 (2.32)
Outstanding at July 1, 2015 ..coceiviiriieeieeeeeeeeeee s 914,132 $ 22.58
FOITRITEA ..o e eaeeeas (7,718) $ 22.61
EXEICiSed......coiiiiiiiiiiiiiicc s (33,081) § 15.19
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 .......oocoiiriirieieeeeeeeee 873,333 $ 22.85 52 $ 17.5
Exercisable at December 31, 2015 ......cccoooiiininininieeeeeceeeee, 414,553 $ 1653 37 $ 107
Weighted
average
Weighted remaining  Aggregate
Number of average contractual intrinsic
Options — Class C ordinary shares shares exercise price term value
in years in millions
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 ......ccooiiiiinininireeeeeeeceeee 3,946,192 $ 17.67
(=1 4111 FO OSSR 622,301 $ 43.34
FOIfRIted ....cvvieiicircccier e (34,493) $ 2223
EXEICISEA . ittt e e e saaee e e e eenas (1,613,927) $ 14.99
Outstanding at June 30, 2015 ......ccoooiiiiiiiniieeeeeeeeeceeeee 2,920,073 $ 24.57
Impact of Award Modifications...........cocereverenenienieneneereeiececeene. 204,344 (2.24)
Outstanding at July 1, 2015 .....ocoiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee e 3,124,417  $ 22.33
FOTTRIEEA ..ot e e e e et e e e e e ee e e eeeeeeaan (41,208) $ 29.99
EXEICISCU ... ceeiiiiieiei et (344,673) $ 8.33
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 ......c.ccevinineninenenineciececeenen 2,738,536 $ 23.98 5.8 $ 46.8
Exercisable at December 31, 2015 ......cccoooiiiiinininieeeeececeee, 1,129,269 $ 1555 35 § 285
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Weighted
average
Weighted remaining  Aggregate
Number of average contractual  intrinsic
SARs — Class A ordinary shares shares base price term value
in years in millions
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 .....ccooininininininicciceeeececeee 5,607,988 % 31.07
GIaANLEd.......eevevieiieieieicetee ettt b et besesene s 2,252,602 $ 53.11
FOTTRILEA ..o et (106,696) $ 37.27
EXETCISEA.....c.vcviiiiiiiieiecteet ettt (354,800) $ 25.68
Outstanding at June 30, 2015 ......cccoooiiiiiieeeeeeeeeee e 7,399,094 $ 37.95
Impact of Award Modifications............ccoceverenieienienieieiececnencne 527,825 (3.36)
Outstanding at July 1, 2015 ...cccccooiirinininininicecceeeeeeeeeee 7,926,919 $ 34.59
GIANTEA. . .o.eeviieiiieieee ettt sttt sttt 70,845 $ 51.21
FOTTEILEA .. .vvviiiieeee e e (99,761) $ 41.67
EXETCISEA.....c.veeiieiieiiiieicteee et (204,851) $ 25.40
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 .......ccooiiiiiiiiiieeeeeceee 7,693,152 $ 34.89 4.6 $ 72.2
Exercisable at December 31, 2015.......cccoiinineniieieeeeccececee 3,642,857 $ 26.56 34 $ 593
Weighted
average
Weighted remaining  Aggregate
Number of average contractual intrinsic
SARs — Class C ordinary shares shares base price term value
in years in millions
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 .......ccoceviririeieiiirieeeeeeeeee s 14,689,045 $ 28.49
GIANTEA. .t e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaeaanaan 4,505,204 $ 51.41
FOTTRIEd.....vvveiiieiieiicieie e (262,502) $ 34.80
EXEICISE ettt e et e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeeeaan (1,062,945) $ 23.48
Outstanding at June 30, 2015 .....cccoooiiiiininirieeeeeeeeeece e 17,868,802 $ 34.47
Impact of Award Modifications...........cccevevuerverienieniecieieeeneneneeeene 1,250,817 (2.94)
Outstanding at July 1, 2015.....cccooiiiiiiininieeeeeeeeeeee e 19,119,619 §$ 31.53
L1 0 LT FO ORI 141,690 $ 48.11
FOTTRIEA.....vvveiiieieieicicieieete e (217,585) $ 38.57
EXEICISEA e e eae s (358,377) $ 25.17
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 .......cccooveveieiirieeiieieieeeeeereeenes 18,685,347 $ 31.70 4.3 § 1999
Exercisable at December 31, 2015 ......cccoooiiieiiiiiieeeeeeeee 10,003,440 $ 2431 3.2 S 1683
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Weighted
average
Weighted remaining  Aggregate
Number of average contractual  intrinsic
PSARs — Class A ordinary shares shares base price term value
in years in millions
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 .....ccooininininininicciceeeececeee 2,788,749 $ 35.10
FOTTRIEd. ... vttt (35,625) $ 35.03
EXEICISEA e e e e e (4,166) $ 35.03
Outstanding at June 30, 2015 .....cccoociiiiinininieeeeeeeeeee e 2,748,958 $ 35.10
Impact of Award Modifications...........cccevevevvenieneiecieieenincneenenen 142,250 (3.17)
Outstanding at July 1, 2015.....cccooiiiiiinininineeeeeeeeeee e 2,891,208 $ 31.93
FOTTEIEA ... e e e e e e e e e e e enaeaee (1,751) $ 31.87
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 .......cccoveveeeinirieeiieieieeeeeeieeeenes 2,889,457 $ 31.93 4.5 $ 30.1
Exercisable at December 31, 2015 ......cccoooiiieiiiieeeeee e 14,602 $ 31.87 1.4 $ 0.2
Weighted
average
Weighted remaining  Aggregate
Number of average contractual  intrinsic
PSARs — Class C ordinary shares shares base price term value
in years in millions
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 .....ccoconinininininiecceeeeceeeeen 8,366,248 $ 33.48
FOIfRIted.....c.ovimiieiriciciciccee e (106,875) $ 3341
EXEICISEA. ...t (12,499) $ 33.41
Outstanding at June 30, 2015 .....cccoooiiiiininirieeeeeeeeeece e 8,246,874 $ 33.48
Impact of Award Modifications...........ccceveveevverienieiecieieeeeencneenenne 387,836 (2.96)
Outstanding at July 1, 2015.....cccooiriiininiineeeeeeeeeeee e 8,634,710 $ 30.52
FOITEIted ... ..o (5,229) $ 30.46
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 .......ccoeviriiriieiieieeeeeeene 8,629,481 $ 30.52 4.5 $ 88.4
Exercisable at December 31, 2015 ........c.ooooiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e 43,671 $ 30.46 14 $ 0.5
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Liberty Global Shares and Old Liberty Global Shares — continued:

Weighted Weighted
average average
grant date remaining
Number of fair value contractual
RSUs — Class A ordinary shares shares per share term
in years
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 ....cccoooiiiiiiiiiienereeeeeeeeeee e 565,270 $ 38.27
GIANEEA .....eovieeieiieiietietecte ettt ettt ettt ettt te et et et e b e b e b e b essesbesseseessessereereas 298,713 $ 53.11
FOTTEILEA ...ttt ettt s e nse st seansneas (18,827) $ 37.52
Released from reStriCtIONS......c.coueveuirieuirierinieienctneeit ettt saenes (205,540) $ 37.16
Outstanding at June 30, 2015 ..o 639,616 $ 45.58
Impact of Award Modifications........c.cocecvruerirenieineieneenieneenee e 30,748 (2.17)
Outstanding at July 1, 2015 ...cooiiieieiiiieieieieeie et 670,364 $ 43.41
GIANEEA ...eeivievieiieiieteetecte ettt ettt ettt et teeteebe et e b e b e b e b e b essesbesseseeseassereereas 13,890 $ 52.46
FOTTEILEA ...ttt s s n et sesnansneas (21,544) $ 43.61
Released from reStriCtioNS.......cueveeeieireriininieresesest ettt (97,734) $ 40.93
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 ......cooiiiiiiiiieieee e 564,976 $ 44.06 34
Weighted Weighted
average average
grant date remaining
Number of fair value contractual
RSUs — Class C ordinary shares shares per share term
in years
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 ....cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiieneeeeeeeeeeee e 1,387,003 $ 35.59
GIANLEA ...eecvievieiieiieteeteete ettt ettt ettt ettt te et e e b e b e b e b e b e b essessesseseessessereereas 597,426 $ 51.40
FOITRIEEA ...ttt ettt e sttt e e et eseaeeesaaeean (45,611) $ 34.70
Released from reStriCtiONS........couevevirveuirieririeineiinietreeteieeeetee et naenes (553,929) $ 34.55
Outstanding at June 30, 2015 ... 1,384,889 $ 42.85
Impact of Award Modifications........c.cocccvvueeieenieeneenieenieeneeneeneenree e 67,240 (1.74)
Outstanding at July 1, 2015 ....coiiieieiieieieie ettt 1,452,129 $ 41.11
GIANLEA ..ottt ettt ettt ettt te et e eb e b e b e b e b e b essessessessessessereereas 27,780 $ 49.14
FOTTEILEA ...ttt s e n et s eaneneas (47,384) $ 41.03
Released from reStriCtioNS.......c.eveeeieireriininieresete ettt (238,343) $ 37.61
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 ......cooiiiiiiiieieee e 1,194,182 $ 41.99 33
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Liberty Global Shares and Old Liberty Global Shares — continued:

Weighted Weighted
average average
grant date remaining
Number of fair value contractual
PSUs and PGUs — Class A ordinary shares shares per share term
in years
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 ....cccoooiiiiiiiiiienereeeeeeeeeee e 1,989,693 $ 41.34
GITANLEA. ...ttt ettt et ettt et ebesbe e 410,716 $ 52.82
Performance adjustment () .......cceevereeriinieieeiese e 50,410 $ 37.31
FOITEIEA ...ttt (22,619) § 38.47
Released from restriCtions..........cccouioveuiiicuinicinciicircrceeeee s (543,707) $ 41.12
Outstanding at June 30, 2015 ....ccooiriiiiiiieeeeee e 1,884,493 §$ 43.84
Impact of Award ModifiCations.........ccceeveeirererinineneneieeeeeeeeeeeee e 1,185 (2.10)
Outstanding at July 1, 2015 ....couiriiiiiieieee e 1,885,678 $ 41.74
GIANTEA ..ot e e e e e e e et eeeeeeeaeeeeeeeaaaeaaaaan 15,410 $ 52.46
FOTTRILEA ...ttt (3,054) $ 38.66
Released from restriCtions. ... ....ccceuivveuiiieuiniciniciicirc s (207,834) $ 35.54
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 ....c..coooiiiiiiiiiiinereeeeeeeeeeeeee e 1,690,200 $ 42.61 1.2
Weighted Weighted
average average
grant date remaining
Number of fair value contractual
PGUs — Class B ordinary shares shares per share term
in years
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 ....ccooiiiiiiiiiiieee e 1,000,000 $ 44.55
Released fTOm TESIIICTIONS ... ..o eeeeeaeeens (333,333) § 44.55
Outstanding at June 30, 2015 .....c.ooiiiiiiiiiiiee e 666,667 $ 44.55
Impact of Award ModifiCations.........ccceeeeeirererinineneneieeeeeereeeeee e — (2.12)
Outstanding at July 1 and December 31, 2015.......cccooeiirininenenieieececececeen 666,667 $ 42.43 1.2
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Liberty Global Shares and Old Liberty Global Shares — continued:

Weighted Weighted
average average
grant date remaining
Number of fair value contractual
PSUs — Class C ordinary shares shares per share term
in years
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 ....cccoooiiiiiiiiiienereeeeeeeeeee e 2,442,767 % 36.71
GIANTEA ... ettt ettt ettt s b s sae st s besesbeneebe st eseneeseneas 821,432 $ 51.12
Performance adjustment () .......cceevereeriinieieeiese e 147,179 $ 34.80
FOITEIEA ...ttt (58,997) § 36.02
Released from IESIIICTIONS. ... ...eviiiiieerieieee et eeeieee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eenaaeeeeeeennes (614,341) $ 34.80
Outstanding at June 30, 2015 ....ccooiriiiiiiieeeeee e 2,738,040 $ 41.38
Impact of Award ModifiCations.........ccceeveeirererinineneneieeeeeeeeeeeee e 3,126 (1.98)
Outstanding at July 1, 2015 ....couiriiiiiieieee e 2,741,166 $ 39.40
GIANEEA ..ottt e e e e e et e et et e et e e e e eeeee s 30,820 $ 49.14
FOITEIEA ...ttt (6,292) § 36.74
Released from restriCtions. ... ....ccceuivveuiiieuiniciniciicirc s (607,343) $ 33.15
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 ....c..coooiiiiiiiiiiinereeeeeeeeeeeeee e 2,158351 $ 41.30 1.1

(a)  Represents the increase in PSUs associated with the first quarter 2015 determination that 113.6% of the PSUs that were
granted in 2013 (the 2013 PSUs) had been earned. As of December 31,2015, all of the earned 2013 PSUs have been released
from restrictions.

LiLAC Shares
Weighted
average
Weighted remaining  Aggregate
Number of average contractual intrinsic
Options — Class A ordinary shares shares exercise price term value
in years in millions
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 .....c.ccoevivienieieieeeeeee e — S —
Impact of Award Modifications.........ccceceeerervenerenenienenencnennenne. 21,233 24.29
Outstanding at July 1 and December 31, 2015.......ccccovecvivieiennennnnne. 21,233 $ 24.29 4.1 $ 0.4
Exercisable at December 31, 2015 .......ccoooiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e 14,145 $ 16.12 3.2 $ 0.4
Weighted
average
Weighted remaining  Aggregate
Number of average contractual intrinsic
Options — Class C ordinary shares shares exercise price term value
in years in millions
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 .....ccoooiiiiiiieeeeee e — —
Impact of Award Modifications............ccveereeeneninenieeneienecnenens 57,742 22.42
Outstanding at July 1 and December 31, 2015 .......cccccoeinieiinienne. 57,742 $ 22.42 3.8 $ 1.2
Exercisable at December 31, 2015 ....c.ccooiiiiiiiiiniiincnceeeeee 42,321  $ 15.97 3.1 $ 1.1
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LiLAC Shares — continued:

Weighted
average
Weighted remaining  Aggregate
Number of average contractual intrinsic
SARs — Class A ordinary shares shares base price term value
in years in millions
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 .....ccoooiiiiiiieeeeee e — —
Impact of Award Modifications...........ccceceeerererenininienenenenenens 223,823 30.54
Outstanding at July 1, 2015 ...coooiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 223823  $ 30.54
GIANLEA ...ttt st 10,107 $ 42.76
FOTfRILEd ..ot (381) $ 32.76
EXEICISEA ...ttt (357) $ 28.19
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 ......ccocvevirinininininenenesceeeee 233,192 $ 31.07 4.4 $ 2.6
Exercisable at December 31, 2015 ......c.cceciveineiineincinieerceriees 122,905 $ 23.93 33 s 22
Weighted
average
Weighted remaining  Aggregate
Number of average contractual intrinsic
SARs — Class C ordinary shares shares base price term value
in years in millions
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 .....ccooceeoiiiieiieieieeeeeeeee e — —
Impact of Award Modifications...........cceceverieenerenenenenenieieeene. 560,844 29.27
Outstanding at July 1, 2015 ...coooiiiiiiiii e 560,844 $ 29.27
GIANTEA ...ttt 20,214  $ 42.55
FOTTRILE ..ottt 909) $ 32.38
EXEICISEA ...ttt (876) $ 27.26
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 ......ccociviiininininineneneeeeee 579,273  $ 29.73 4.1 $ 8.0
Exercisable at December 31, 2015 ......ccccooiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeecee 339,951 §$ 23.28 3.1 $ 6.7
Weighted
average
Weighted remaining  Aggregate
Number of average contractual intrinsic
PSARs — Class A ordinary shares shares base price term value
in years in millions
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 ..o — —
Impact of Award Modifications...........cc.cecevereriinenenenenenenieieene 140,215 30.08
Outstanding at July 1, 2015 ...ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiceecceee 140,215 $ 30.08
FOTTRILE ...ttt 88) $ 30.02
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 ......ccocvvvirininininineneneiceenee 140,127  $ 30.08 4.5 $ 1.6
Exercisable at December 31, 2015 ......oooviiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeee e 305 $ 30.02 1.8 $ —
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Weighted
average
Weighted remaining  Aggregate
Number of average contractual intrinsic
PSARs — Class C ordinary shares shares base price term value
in years in millions
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 ..o — —
Impact of Award Modifications...........cc.cecevereriinenenenenenenieieene 418,753 30.30
Outstanding at July 1, 2015 ....coooiiiiiiieeee e 418,753 $ 30.30
FOrfeited ........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiic (261) $ 30.23
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 ......ccocvvirininiinininenenercieeneee 418492 § 30.30 4.5 $ 53
Exercisable at December 31, 2015 ......oooviiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeee e 913 §$ 30.23 1.8 $ —
Weighted Weighted
average average
grant date remaining
Number of fair value contractual
RSUs — Class A ordinary shares shares per share term
in years
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 ......ccoevviiieiiiiieiieieiieiere et eenens — 3 —
Impact of Award ModifiCations.........ccceeceeirereriniineneneieeceeeeeeeee e 397 52.94
Outstanding at July 1, 2015 ....couiiiiiiiiieiee e 397 $ 52.94
GIANTEA ..ot e e e e e e e e e et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaaaaanaan 1,316 $ 42.76
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 ......c.ccecinieineiineiniiineireeeeeeeeeeeneens 1,713 $ 45.12 3.0
Weighted Weighted
average average
grant date remaining
Number of fair value contractual
RSUs — Class C ordinary shares shares per share term
in years
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 .....cccoevviiieiiiiieieeieieeeere e se e eenens — 3 —
Impact of Award ModifiCations.........ccceeeeeirererinineneneieeeeeereeeeee e 796 48.68
Outstanding at July 1, 2015 ....couiiiiiiiieiee e 796 $ 48.68
L€ 5 1< SRS 2,632 $ 42.55
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 ....c..cooiiiiiiiiiiiereeeeeeeeeeeee e 3428 % 43.97 3.0
Weighted Weighted
average average
grant date remaining
Number of fair value contractual
PSUs and PGUs — Class A ordinary shares shares per share term
in years
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 ......ccoooveiieiiiiieiieieiceeere e se e eenens — 3 —
Impact of Award ModifiCations.........ccceeceeirererinrineneneieeeeeeeeeeeee e 92,932 41.85
Outstanding at July 1, 2015 ....couiiiiiiiieieie s 92,932 § 41.85
L€ 5 1< RSP SR 3,007 $ 42.76
FOTTRILE ...ttt (153) $ 38.63
Released from restriCtions. ... .....ccouivveuiiieuiriciniciicercrceecee s (9,483) § 35.72
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 ....c..couoiiiiiiiiiiiierereee e 86,303 $ 42.56 1.2
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LiLAC Shares — continued:

Weighted Weighted
average average
grant date remaining
Number of fair value contractual
PGUs — Class B ordinary shares shares per share term
in years
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 ....ooioiiiiiee e — —
Impact of Award Modifications........c.cocccvvueeirenieenieienieinieeneenee et 33,333 42.43
Outstanding at July 1 and December 31, 2015.......cccoveverinenenenieieicieincnceiennen 33,333 § 42.43 1.2
Weighted Weighted
average average
grant date remaining
Number of fair value contractual
PSUs — Class C ordinary shares shares per share term
in years
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 ....ooiioiiiieeeee e — —
Impact of Award ModifiCations.........c.cecveiriririnirinene et 133,609 39.59
Outstanding at July 1, 2015 ....co.ooiiiiiiiiiieieieeeee et 133,609 $ 39.59
GIANTEA ....iiiieieciieie ettt et ettt et st e et e s te e b e s teesbeesaesseesseseeseenseessesseennas 6,014 $ 42.55
FOTTRILEA ...ttt 317) $ 36.70
Released from reStriCtiONS.........ouevevirveuirieririeinieinietrieteieeeetee ettt naenes (28,091) $ 33.26
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 ......cooiiiiiiiieeieeeee e 111,215 $ 41.36 1.1
14) Restructuring Liabilities
A summary of changes in our restructuring liabilities during 2015 is set forth in the table below:
Employee
severance Contract
and Office termination
termination closures and other Total
in millions
Restructuring liability as of January 1, 2015 .....ccccocerinininininiennne $ 276 $ 125§ 116.0 $ 156.1
Restructuring charges (Credits).......ccoeoerrveeerirrieeenneeceseeeeees 102.3 (0.8) 2.3 103.8
Cash Paid ...ceoveieiic e (67.9) (5.8) (29.4) (103.1)
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other...................... 6.5 1.4 (18.2) (10.3)
Restructuring liability as of December 31, 2015 ........coccoeveniiienene $ 68.5 $ 73§ 70.7 $ 146.5
CUITENE POTTION .....tieueieiieieeeeeteeeeeteeee st eeeseeeeesteeeee s st esesseeneesseeneeene $ 63.7 $ 12 $ 341 $ 99.0
NONCUITENE POTLION ....veuvititiieieieie ettt 4.8 6.1 36.6 47.5
TOAL e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 685 $ 73 $ 707 $ 146.5

Our restructuring charges during 2015 included (i) employee severance and termination costs related to certain reorganization
and integration activities of $61.8 million in the Netherlands, $20.9 million in U.K./Ireland, $9.7 million in Germany, $3.5 million
in Switzerland/Austria and $2.6 million in Puerto Rico, (ii) contract termination charges of $8.1 million in Belgium, $6.0 million
in Chile and $4.5 million in Puerto Rico and (iii) a credit of $17.0 million recorded by Telenet during the fourth quarter following
the settlement of its digital terrestrial television (DTT) capacity contract obligations, the fair value of which were originally

recorded during 2014 when Telenet discontinued the provision of DTT services.
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We expect to record significant restructuring charges during 2016, due largely to our ongoing company-wide effort to optimize
our operating model. In addition, we expect to undertake restructuring programs in certain of our operating segments, including
programs to be undertaken in connection with the integration of acquired entities.

A summary of changes in our restructuring liabilities during 2014 is set forth in the table below:

Employee
severance
and Office Contract
termination closures termination Total
in millions
Restructuring liability as of January 1, 2014 .......cccooveineiiniieene $ 266 § 149 § 720 $ 113.5
Restructuring Charges ...........coceoeveieieieieincreeesesesee e 60.4 9.5 97.0 166.9
Cash PaId c..c.eoviiiieicicc e (66.3) (10.8) (34.4) (111.5)
Ziggo liability at acquisition date ..........cccceceverirenerenenieneneenes 8.2 — — 8.2
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other...................... (1.3) (1.1) (18.6) (21.0)
Restructuring liability as of December 31, 2014 .........cccceveenennnne. $ 276 $ 125 $ 116.0 $ 156.1
CUITENt POTLION.....eiveiiteeieieietetete ettt ettt ettt eenene $ 275 $ 44 3 204 S 52.3
NONCUITENE POTTION.....eeneieniieieniiriieieete ettt et 0.1 8.1 95.6 103.8
TOtAL .o $ 276 $ 125§ 116.0 $ 156.1

Prior to March 31, 2014, Telenet operated a DTT business that served a limited number of subscribers. The DTT network was
accessed by Telenet pursuant to third-party capacity contracts that were accounted for as operating agreements. On March 31,
2014, Telenet discontinued the provision of DTT services and, accordingly, recorded an $86.1 million restructuring charge during
the three months ended March 31, 2014. This charge was equal to the then fair value of the remaining payments due under the
DTT capacity contracts.

Our restructuring charges during 2014 also included $17.5 million, $11.2 million, $10.7 million, $10.1 million and $9.8 million
of employee severance and termination costs related to reorganization and integration activities, primarily in U.K./Ireland, the

Netherlands, Germany, Chile and the European Operations Division’s central operations, respectively.

A summary of changes in our restructuring liabilities during 2013 is set forth in the table below:

Employee
severance
and Office Contract
termination closures termination Total
in millions
Restructuring liability as of January 1, 2013 ......cccccoeiiriereiennen. $ 397 S 40 $ 13.1 $ 56.8
Restructuring charges ...........coccoeveincincincincreeeeceeeeeseenne 77.9 (0.1) 100.9 178.7
Cash Paid .....coooiiiiiiiic (91.5) (14.1) (17.6) (123.2)
Virgin Media liability at acquisition date.........c.ccecvreeerrreenenne. 0.1 233 — 23.4
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other...................... 1.2 1.8 (11.4) 8.4)
Reclassification of Chellomedia Disposal Group to discontinued
OPETALIONS ... st ees e e aesaeneeees s (0.8) — (13.0) (13.8)
Restructuring liability as of December 31,2013 ........ccceoieiinenene $ 266 $ 149 $ 72.0 $ 113.5

As further described in note 9, we recorded restructuring charges totaling $84.9 million during the third and fourth quarters
of 2013 as a result of VTR’s decision to cease commercial use of its mobile network. These restructuring charges included the
fair value of (i) the then remaining payments due under VTR’s tower and real estate operating leases of $71.5 million and (ii)
certain other required payments associated with VTR ’s mobile network. In addition, our restructuring charges during 2013 included
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$46.1 million, $14.1 million and $8.1 million of employee severance and termination costs related to reorganization and integration
activities in U.K./Ireland, Germany and Chile, respectively.

as) Defined Benefit Plans

Certain of our subsidiaries in Europe maintain various funded and unfunded defined benefit plans for their employees. A
significant portion of these defined benefit plans are closed to new entrants and existing participants do not accrue any additional
benefits.

The table below provides summary information on our defined benefit plans:

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013

in millions

Projected benefit ODIIZAtION. ......c.eueueururueieieieieieieieiete ettt $ 1,1883 $ 11,2476 $ 1,163.0
Fair value of plan asSets (@) ........coeveeiriririneninineseneeeteeeeeitee e m $ 1,227 $ 1,057.0
Nt DALY ... § 957 $§ 1249 § 1060
Net periodic Pension COSt (D).......ccuririririririnirenenieieieteiteeee ettt s seeaeeene $ 118 § 96 $ 21.5

(a)  The fair value of plan assets is primarily based on Level 1 inputs of the fair value hierarchy (as further described in note
8). Our plan assets comprise investments in debt securities, equity securities, hedge funds, insurance contracts and certain
other assets.

(b)  The 2015 amount excludes aggregate curtailment gains of $7.9 million, which are included in impairment, restructuring
and other operating items, net, in our consolidated statement of operations.

Based on December 31, 2015 exchange rates and information available as of that date, our subsidiaries’ contributions to their
respective defined benefit plans in 2016 are expected to aggregate $56.0 million.

(16) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive earnings included in our consolidated balance sheets and statements of equity reflect the
aggregate impact of foreign currency translation adjustments and pension-related adjustments and other. The changes in the
components of accumulated other comprehensive earnings, net of taxes, are summarized as follows:

Liberty Global shareholders

Total
Foreign Pension- Accumulated accumulated
currency related other Non- other
translation adjustments comprehensive controlling comprehensive
adjustments and other earnings interests earnings
in millions
Balance at January 1, 2013..................... $ 1,604.1 $ (3.6) $ 1,600.5 $ 373§ 1,637.8
Other comprehensive earnings............. 918.1 10.2 928.3 (16.9) 9114
Balance at December 31, 2013............... 2,522.2 6.6 2,528.8 20.4 2,549.2
Other comprehensive 10ss.................... (810.1) (72.1) (882.2) 0.5) (882.7)
Balance at December 31, 2014.............. 1,712.1 (65.5) 1,646.6 19.9 1,666.5
Other comprehensive loss.................... (732.9) (17.8) (750.7) 0.5 (750.2)
Balance at December 31, 2015............... $ 9792 $ 83.3) $ 8959 $ 204 $ 916.3
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The components of other comprehensive earnings, net of taxes, are reflected in our consolidated statements of comprehensive
earnings (loss). The following table summarizes the tax effects related to each component of other comprehensive earnings (loss),
net of amounts reclassified to our consolidated statements of operations:

Pre-tax Net-of-tax
amount Tax benefit amount

in millions

Year ended December 31, 2015:

Foreign currency translation adjustments ...........coccoeverenienienieneeneeneencnenennenn $ (737.1) $ 42 $ (732.9)
Pension-related adjustments and other..........c..coccoeveneniniiineneiicce (23.4) 6.1 (17.3)
Other compPrehensive 10SS.......cceeeeiriririinirinieenereeeeetee e (760.5) 10.3 (750.2)
Other comprehensive earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests (a) ..... (0.7) 0.2 (0.5)
Other comprehensive loss attributable to Liberty Global shareholders ...... $ (761.2) $ 105 $ (750.7)

Year ended December 31, 2014:

Foreign currency translation adjustments ...........c.ccocerererienieneeneieieeeceeeene $ 816.4) $ 63 § (810.1)

Pension-related adjustments ...........cccceceveririnienenineneneeeceeeeee e (89.9) 17.3 (72.6)
Other comPrehensive 10SS. ... ..ccvrieiririiriierierciese e (906.3) 23.6 (882.7)

Other comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (a)............. 0.8 (0.3) 0.5
Other comprehensive loss attributable to Liberty Global shareholders ...... $ (905.5) $ 233 $ (882.2)

Year ended December 31, 2013:

Foreign currency translation adjustments ..........coceeevenenvenienieniennenenceenennenn $ 8964 % 44 3 900.8
Pension-related adjustments...........cccceceveririnenenineneneeeeeee e 12.1 (1.5) 10.6

Other comprehensive €arnings ..........cceeeeeerverrenreniensereenrenreneeneeeeeeeennenne 908.5 2.9 911.4
Other comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (b) ............ 17.3 0.4) 16.9

Other comprehensive earnings attributable to Liberty Global
SHATEROIAETS ...t $ 925.8 § 25§ 928.3

(a)  Amounts represent the noncontrolling interest owners’ share of our pension-related adjustments.

(b)  Amounts represent the noncontrolling interest owners’ share of our foreign currency translation adjustments and pension-
related adjustments.
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a7 Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

In the normal course of business, we have entered into agreements that commit our company to make cash payments in future
periods with respect to programming contracts, network and connectivity commitments, non-cancellable operating leases,
purchases of customer premises and other equipment and other items. The following table sets forth the U.S. dollar equivalents
of such commitments as of December 31, 2015:

Payments due during:
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter Total
in millions

Programming commitments........... $ 1,0045 § 8837 § 6986 § 2722 § 11.0 $ 76 $ 2.877.6
Network and connectivity
COMMItMENtS ........voverrrerereeann. 647.0 241.7 130.9 90.7 58.2 916.3 2,084.8
Purchase commitments .................. 1,036.1 227.2 102.6 472 38.1 77.6 1,528.8
Operating 1€ases ..........ccocevververuennene 151.6 126.3 107.1 85.1 583 276.4 804.8
Other commitments............cccoeuee... 68.2 31.3 23.1 19.3 9.3 17.0 168.2
Total (8)..coveeeeeererinencreens $ 29074 § 1,5102 §$ 1,0623 $ 5145 $§ 1749 $ 1,2949 § 74642

(@)  The commitments included in this table do not reflect any liabilities that are included in our December 31,2015 consolidated
balance sheet.

Programming commitments consist of obligations associated with certain of our programming, studio output and sports rights
contracts that are enforceable and legally binding on us as we have agreed to pay minimum fees without regard to (i) the actual
number of subscribers to the programming services, (ii) whether we terminate service to a portion of our subscribers or dispose
of a portion of our distribution systems or (iii) whether we discontinue our premium sports services. In addition, programming
commitments do not include increases in future periods associated with contractual inflation or other price adjustments that are
not fixed. Accordingly, the amounts reflected in the above table with respect to these contracts are significantly less than the
amounts we expect to pay in these periods under these contracts. Historically, payments to programming vendors have represented
a significant portion of our operating costs, and we expect that this will continue to be the case in future periods. In this regard,
our total third-party programming and copyright costs aggregated $2,313.9 million (including $2,066.6 million for the Liberty
Global Group and $247.3 million for the LILAC Group), $2,160.0 million (including $1,928.0 million for the Liberty Global
Group and $232.0 million for the LILAC Group) and $1,631.0 million (including $1,385.1 million for the Liberty Global Group
and $245.9 million for the LILAC Group) during 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Network and connectivity commitments include (i) Telenet’s commitments for certain operating costs associated with its
leased network, (i1) commitments associated with our MVNO agreements, (iii) service commitments associated with our network
extension projects, primarily in the U.K. and (iv) certain repair and maintenance, fiber capacity and energy commitments of
Unitymedia. Effective October 1, 2015, Telenet’s commitments for certain operating costs are subject to adjustment based on
changes in the network operating costs incurred by Telenet with respect to its own networks. These potential adjustments are not
subject to reasonable estimation and, therefore, are not included in the above table. The amounts reflected in the above table with
respect to certain of our MVNO commitments represent fixed minimum amounts payable under these agreements and, therefore,
may be significantly less than the actual amounts we ultimately pay in these periods.

Purchase commitments include unconditional and legally binding obligations related to (i) the purchase of customer premises
and other equipment and (ii) certain service-related commitments, including call center, information technology and maintenance

services.

Commitments arising from acquisition agreements are not reflected in the above table. For information regarding our
commitments under acquisition agreements, see note 4.
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In addition to the commitments set forth in the table above, we have significant commitments under (i) derivative instruments
and (ii) defined benefit plans and similar agreements, pursuant to which we expect to make payments in future periods. For
information regarding our derivative instruments, including the net cash paid or received in connection with these instruments
during 2015, 2014 and 2013, see note 7. For information regarding our defined benefit plans, see note 15.

We also have commitments pursuant to agreements with, and obligations imposed by, franchise authorities and municipalities,
which may include obligations in certain markets to move aerial cable to underground ducts or to upgrade, rebuild or extend
portions of our broadband communication systems. Such amounts are not included in the above table because they are not fixed
or determinable.

Rental expense of our continuing operations under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements amounted to $219.0 million
(including $204.7 million for the Liberty Global Group and $14.3 million for the LILAC Group), $268.3 million (including $252.0
million for the Liberty Global Group and $16.3 million for the LILAC Group) and $238.6 million (including $203.7 million for
the Liberty Global Group and $34.9 million for the LiLAC Group) during 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. It is expected that
in the normal course of business, operating leases that expire generally will be renewed or replaced by similar leases.

We have established various defined contribution benefit plans for our and our subsidiaries’ employees. The aggregate expense
of our continuing operations for matching contributions under the various defined contribution employee benefit plans was $76.7
million (including $75.0 million for the Liberty Global Group and $1.7 million for the LiLAC Group), $63.2 million (including
$61.7 million for the Liberty Global Group and $1.5 million for the LIiLAC Group) and $48.2 million (including $47.6 million
for the Liberty Global Group and $0.6 million for the LiLAC Group) during 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Guarantees and Other Credit Enhancements

In the ordinary course of business, we may provide (i) indemnifications to our lenders, our vendors and certain other parties
and (ii) performance and/or financial guarantees to local municipalities, our customers and vendors. Historically, these arrangements
have not resulted in our company making any material payments and we do not believe that they will result in material payments
in the future.

Legal and Regulatory Proceedings and Other Contingencies

Interkabel Acquisition. On November 26, 2007, Telenet and the PICs announced a non-binding agreement-in-principle to
transfer the analog and digital television activities of the PICs, including all existing subscribers to Telenet. Subsequently, Telenet
and the PICs entered into a binding agreement (the 2008 PICs Agreement), which closed effective October 1, 2008. Beginning
in December 2007, Proximus NV/SA (Proximus), the incumbent telecommunications operator in Belgium, instituted several
proceedings seeking to block implementation of these agreements. Proximus lodged summary proceedings with the President of
the Court of First Instance of Antwerp to obtain a provisional injunction preventing the PICs from effecting the agreement-in-
principle and initiated a civil procedure on the merits claiming the annulment of the agreement-in-principle. In March 2008, the
President of the Court of First Instance of Antwerp ruled in favor of Proximus in the summary proceedings, which ruling was
overturned by the Court of Appeal of Antwerp in June 2008. Proximus brought this appeal judgment before the Cour de Cassation
(the Belgian Supreme Court), which confirmed the appeal judgment in September 2010. On April 6, 2009, the Court of First
Instance of Antwerp ruled in favor of the PICs and Telenet in the civil procedure on the merits, dismissing Proximus’s request for
the rescission of the agreement-in-principle and the 2008 PICs Agreement. On June 12, 2009, Proximus appealed this judgment
with the Court of Appeal of Antwerp. In this appeal, Proximus is now also seeking compensation for damages should the 2008
PICs Agreement not be rescinded. While these proceedings were suspended indefinitely, other proceedings were initiated, which
resulted in a ruling by the Belgian Council of State in May 2014 annulling (i) the decision of the PICs not to organize a public
market consultation and (ii) the decision from the PICs’ board of directors to approve the 2008 PICs Agreement. In December
2015, Proximus resumed the civil proceedings pending with the Court of Appeal of Antwerp seeking to have the 2008 PICs
Agreement annulled and claiming damages of €1.4 billion ($1.5 billion).

Telenet is in the process of evaluating the resumed proceedings and claim for damages and intends to defend itself vigorously.
No assurance can be given as to the outcome of these or other proceedings. However, an unfavorable outcome of existing or future
proceedings could potentially lead to the annulment of the 2008 PICs Agreement and/or to an obligation of Telenet to pay
compensation for damages, subject to the relevant provisions of the 2008 PICs Agreement, which stipulate that Telenet is only
responsible for damages in excess of €20.0 million ($21.7 million). We do not expect the ultimate resolution of this matter to have
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a material impact on our results of operations, cash flows or financial position. No amounts have been accrued by us with respect
to this matter as the likelihood of loss is not considered to be probable.

Deutsche Telekom Litigation. On December 28, 2012, Unitymedia filed a lawsuit against Deutsche Telekom in which
Unitymedia asserts that it pays excessive prices for the co-use of Deutsche Telekom’s cable ducts in Unitymedia’s footprint. The
Federal Network Agency approved rates for the co-use of certain ducts of Deutsche Telekom in March 2011. Based in part on
these approved rates, Unitymedia is seeking a reduction of the annual lease fees (approximately €76 million ($83 million) for
2012) by approximately two-thirds and the return of similarly calculated overpayments from 2009 through the ultimate settlement
date, plus accrued interest. While we expect a decision by the court of first instance during 2016, the resolution of this matter may
take several years and no assurance can be given that Unitymedia’s claims will be successful. Any recovery by Unitymedia will
not be reflected in our consolidated financial statements until such time as the final disposition of this matter has been reached.

Vivendi Litigation. A wholly-owned subsidiary of our company is a plaintiff in certain litigation titled Liberty Media
Corporation, et. al. v. Vivendi S.A. and Universal Studios. A predecessor of Liberty Global was a subsidiary of Liberty Media
Corporation (Liberty Media) through June 6, 2004. In connection with Liberty Media’s prosecution of the action, our subsidiary
assigned its rights to Liberty Media in exchange for a contingent payout in the event Liberty Media recovered any amounts as a
result of the action. Our subsidiary’s interest in any such recovery will be equal to 10% of the recovery amount, including any
interest awarded, less the amount to be retained by Liberty Media for (i) all fees and expenses incurred by Liberty Media in
connection with the action (including expenses to be incurred in connection with any appeals and the payment of certain deferred
legal fees) and (ii) agreed upon interest on such fees and expenses. On January 17, 2013, following a jury trial, the court entered
a final judgment in favor of the plaintiffs in the amount of €944 million ($1,026 million), including prejudgment interest. Vivendi
S.A. and Universal Studios have filed a notice of appeal of the court’s final judgment to the Second Circuit Court of Appeals. As
a result, the amount that our subsidiary may ultimately recover in connection with the final resolution of the action, if any, is
uncertain. Any recovery by our company will not be reflected in our consolidated financial statements until such time as the final
disposition of this matter has been reached.

Liberty Puerto Rico Matter. In November 2012, we completed a business combination that resulted in, among other matters,
the combination of our then operating subsidiary in Puerto Rico with San Juan Cable, LLC dba OneLink Communications
(OneLink). In connection with this transaction (the OneLink Acquisition), Liberty Puerto Rico, as the surviving entity, became
a party to certain claims previously asserted by the incumbent telephone operator against OneLink based on alleged conduct of
OneLink that occurred prior to the OneLink Acquisition (the PRTC Claim). The PRTC Claim includes an allegation that OneLink
acted in an anticompetitive manner in connection with a series of legal and regulatory proceedings it initiated against the incumbent
telephone operator in Puerto Rico beginning in 2009. In March 2014, a separate class action claim was filed in Puerto Rico (the
Class Action Claim) containing allegations substantially similar to those asserted in the PRTC Claim, but alleging ongoing injury
on behalf of a consumer class (as opposed to harm to a competitor). The former owners of OneLink have partially indemnified
us through November 27, 2016 for any losses we may incur in connection with the PRTC Claim up to a specified maximum
amount. However, the indemnity does not cover any potential losses resulting from the Class Action Claim. Liberty Puerto Rico
has recorded a provision and a related indemnification asset representing its best estimate of the net loss that it may incur upon
the ultimate resolution of the PRTC Claim. While Liberty Puerto Rico expects that the net amount required to satisfy these
contingencies will not materially differ from the estimated amount it has accrued, no assurance can be given that the ultimate
resolution of these matters will not have an adverse impact on our results of operations, cash flows or financial position in any
given period.

Belgium Regulatory Developments. In December 2010, the Belgisch Instituut voor Post en Telecommunicatie and the regional
regulators for the media sectors (together, the Belgium Regulatory Authorities) published their respective draft decisions
reflecting the results of their joint analysis of the broadcasting market in Belgium.

The Belgium Regulatory Authorities adopted a final decision on July 1, 2011 (the July 2011 Decision) with some minor
revisions. The regulatory obligations imposed by the July 2011 Decision include (i) an obligation to make a resale offer at “retail
minus” of the cable analog package available to third party operators (including Proximus), (ii) an obligation to grant third-party
operators (except Proximus) access to digital television platforms (including the basic digital video package) at “retail minus,”
and (iii) an obligation to make a resale offer at “retail minus” of broadband internet access available to beneficiaries of the digital
television access obligation that wish to offer bundles of digital video and broadband internet services to their customers (except
Proximus).
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In February 2012, Telenet submitted draft reference offers regarding the obligations described above, and the Belgium
Regulatory Authorities published the final decision on September 9, 2013. Telenet has implemented the access obligations as
described in its reference offers and, as of June 23, 2014, access to the Telenet network had become operational and can be applied
by wireless operator Mobistar SA (Mobistar). In addition, as a result of the November 2014 decision by the Brussels Court of
Appeal described below, on November 14, 2014, Proximus submitted a request to Telenet to commence access negotiations.
Telenet contests this request and has asked the Belgium Regulatory Authorities to assess the reasonableness of the Proximus
request. The timing for a decision regarding this assessment by the Belgium Regulatory Authorities is not known.

On December 14, 2015, the Belgium Regulatory Authorities published a draft decision, which amended previously-issued
decisions, that sets forth the “retail-minus” tariffs of minus 26% for basic television (basic analog and digital video package) and
minus 18% for the bundle of basic television and broadband internet services during an initial two-year period. Following this
two-year period, the tariffs would change to minus 15% and 7%, respectively. The draft decision was notified to the European
Commission. A “retail-minus” method of pricing involves a wholesale tariff calculated as the retail price for the offered service
by Telenet, excluding VAT and copyrights, and further deducting the retail costs avoided by offering the wholesale service (such
as costs for billing, franchise, consumer service, marketing and sales).

Telenet filed an appeal against the July 2011 Decision with the Brussels Court of Appeal. On November 12, 2014, the Brussels
Court of Appeal rejected Telenet’s appeal of the July 2011 Decision and accepted Proximus’s claim that Proximus should be
allowed access to Telenet’s, among other operators, digital television platform and the resale of bundles of digital video and
broadband internet services. On November 30, 2015, Telenet filed an appeal of this decision with the Belgian Supreme Court. In
2015, Telenet and wireless operator Mobistar each filed an appeal with the Brussels Court of Appeal against the decision regarding
the quantitative aspects of the reference offers. A decision with respect to these appeals is expected during 2016. There can be no
certainty that Telenet’s appeals will be successful.

The July 2011 Decision aims to, and in its application may, strengthen Telenet’s competitors by granting them resale access
to Telenet’s network to offer competing products and services notwithstanding Telenet’s substantial historical financial outlays in
developing the infrastructure. In addition, any resale access granted to competitors could (i) limit the bandwidth available to Telenet
to provide new or expanded products and services to the customers served by its network and (ii) adversely impact Telenet’s ability
to maintain or increase its revenue and cash flows. The extent of any such adverse impacts ultimately will be dependent on the
extent that competitors take advantage of the resale access ultimately afforded to Telenet’s network and other competitive factors
or market developments.

Financial Transactions Tax. Eleven countries in the EU, including Belgium, Germany, Austria and Slovakia, are participating
in an enhanced cooperation procedure to introduce a financial transactions tax (the FTT). Under the draft language of the FTT
proposal, a wide range of financial transactions could be taxed at rates of at least 0.01% for derivative transactions based on the
notional amount and 0.1% for other covered financial transactions based on the underlying transaction price. Each of the individual
countries would be permitted to determine an exact rate, which could be higher than the proposed rates of 0.01% and 0.1%. Any
implementation of the FTT could have a global impact because it would apply to all financial transactions where a financial
institution is involved (including unregulated entities that engage in certain types of covered activity) and either of the parties
(whether the financial institution or its counterparty) is in one of the eleven participating countries. Although ongoing debate in
the relevant countries demonstrates continued momentum around the FTT, uncertainty remains as to when the FTT would be
implemented and the breadth of its application. Based on our understanding of the current status of the potential FTT, we do not
expect that any implementation of the FTT would occur before January 2017. Any imposition of the FTT could increase banking
fees and introduce taxes on internal transactions that we currently perform. Due to the uncertainty regarding the FTT, we are
currently unable to estimate the financial impact that the FTT could have on our results of operations, cash flows or financial
position.

Virgin Media VAT Matters. Virgin Media’s application of VAT with respect to certain revenue generating activities has been
challenged by the U.K. tax authorities. Virgin Media has estimated its maximum exposure in the event of an unfavorable outcome
to be £45.2 million ($66.6 million) as of December 31, 2015. No portion of this exposure has been accrued by Virgin Media as
the likelihood of loss is not considered to be probable. A court hearing was held at the end of September 2014 in relation to the
U.K. tax authorities’ challenge and the court’s decision is expected prior to June 30, 2016.

On March 19, 2014, the U.K. government announced a change in legislation with respect to the charging of VAT in connection
with prompt payment discounts such as those that we offer to our fixed-line telephony customers. This change, which took effect
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on May 1, 2014, impacted our company and some of our competitors. As a result of this legislation, our revenue was $24.0 million
lower during 2015 as compared to 2014. The U.K. tax authority issued a decision in the fourth quarter of 2015 challenging our
application of the prompt payment discount rules prior to the May 1, 2014 change in legislation. We have appealed this decision.
As part of the appeal process, we were required to make aggregate payments of £67.0 million ($99.1 million at the respective
transaction dates), which included the challenged amount of £63.7 million and related interest of £3.3 million. The aggregate
amount paid does not include penalties, which could be significant in the unlikely event that penalties were to be assessed. This
matter will likely be subject to court proceedings that could delay the ultimate resolution for an extended period of time. No portion
of this potential exposure has been accrued by our company as the likelihood of loss is not considered to be probable.

Hungary VAT Matter. In September 2015, our DTH operations in Luxembourg received a first instance decision from the
Hungarian tax authorities as a result of an audit with respect to VAT payments that the Hungarian tax authorities conducted for
the years 2010 through 2012. The Hungarian tax authorities have assessed our DTH operations with an obligation to pay VAT for
the years audited of HUF 5,902.2 million ($20.3 million), excluding interest and penalties, which could be significant. We believe
that our DTH operations have operated in compliance with all applicable rules, regulations and interpretations thereof, including
abinding tax ruling that we received from the Hungarian government in 2010. Although we are appealing the first instance decision,
we may be required to pay all or a portion of the assessed amount during the pendency of the appeal. No portion of this exposure
has been accrued by us as the likelihood of loss is not considered to be probable.

Telenet MVNO Matter. Telenet and Mobistar are currently in dispute over amounts payable to Mobistar with respect to certain
provisions of Telenet’s MVNO agreement with Mobistar (the Mobistar MVNO Agreement). As part of this dispute, Mobistar
initiated legal proceedings against Telenet claiming, among other things, that the migration period after termination or expiration
of the Mobistar MVNO Agreement should be shortened from 24 months to six months. Telenet believes it has strong arguments
against Mobistar’s claims and intends to defend itself vigorously. We cannot currently predict the outcome of these proceedings;
however, in the unlikely event that the migration period is shortened, Telenet’s mobile business could be adversely impacted. The
oral hearing in this matter is currently scheduled for September 23, 2016.

Other Regulatory Issues. Video distribution, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony, mobile and content businesses are
regulated in each of the countries in which we operate. The scope of regulation varies from country to country, although in some
significant respects regulation in European markets is harmonized under the regulatory structure of the EU. Adverse regulatory
developments could subject our businesses to a number of risks. Regulation, including conditions imposed on us by competition
or other authorities as a requirement to close acquisitions or dispositions, could limit growth, revenue and the number and types
of services offered and could lead to increased operating costs and property and equipment additions. In addition, regulation may
restrict our operations and subject them to further competitive pressure, including pricing restrictions, interconnect and other
access obligations, and restrictions or controls on content, including content provided by third parties. Failure to comply with
current or future regulation could expose our businesses to various penalties. In this regard, beginning in September 2014, various
decreases to tariff rates have been proposed and implemented by Chilean regulatory authorities, and a further decrease to one tariff
rate is pending. None of these decreases had, or are expected to have, a material impact on VTR’s revenue or expenses.

We have security accreditations across a range of B2B products and services in order to increase our offerings to public sector
organizations in the U.K. These accreditations are granted subject to periodic reviews of our policies and procedures by U.K.
governmental authorities. If we were to fail to maintain these accreditations or obtain new accreditations when required, it could
impact our ability to provide certain offerings to the public sector.

In addition to the foregoing items, we have contingent liabilities related to matters arising in the ordinary course of business
including (i) legal proceedings, (ii) issues involving VAT and wage, property and other tax issues and (iii) disputes over
interconnection, programming, copyright and channel carriage fees. While we generally expect that the amounts required to satisfy
these contingencies will not materially differ from any estimated amounts we have accrued, no assurance can be given that the
resolution of one or more of these contingencies will not result in a material impact on our results of operations, cash flows or
financial position in any given period. Due, in general, to the complexity of the issues involved and, in certain cases, the lack of
a clear basis for predicting outcomes, we cannot provide a meaningful range of potential losses or cash outflows that might result
from any unfavorable outcomes.
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as) Segment Reporting

We generally identify our reportable segments as those consolidated subsidiaries that represent 10% or more of our revenue,
Adjusted OIBDA (as defined below) or total assets. In certain cases, we may elect to include an operating segment in our segment
disclosure that does not meet the above-described criteria for a reportable segment. We evaluate performance and make decisions
about allocating resources to our operating segments based on financial measures such as revenue and Adjusted OIBDA. In
addition, we review non-financial measures such as subscriber growth, as appropriate.

Adjusted operating income before depreciation and amortization (Adjusted OIBDA) is the primary measure used by our
chief operating decision maker to evaluate segment operating performance. Adjusted OIBDA is also a key factor that is used by
our internal decision makers to (i) determine how to allocate resources to segments and (ii) evaluate the effectiveness of our
management for purposes of annual and other incentive compensation plans. As we use the term, Adjusted OIBDA is defined as
operating income before depreciation and amortization, share-based compensation, provisions and provision releases related to
significant litigation and impairment, restructuring and other operating items. Other operating items include (a) gains and losses
on the disposition of long-lived assets, (b) third-party costs directly associated with successful and unsuccessful acquisitions and
dispositions, including legal, advisory and due diligence fees, as applicable, and (c) other acquisition-related items, such as gains
and losses on the settlement of contingent consideration. Our internal decision makers believe Adjusted OIBDA is a meaningful
measure and is superior to available GAAP measures because it represents a transparent view of our recurring operating performance
that is unaffected by our capital structure and allows management to (1) readily view operating trends, (2) perform analytical
comparisons and benchmarking between segments and (3) identify strategies to improve operating performance in the different
countries in which we operate. We believe our Adjusted OIBDA measure is useful to investors because it is one of the bases for
comparing our performance with the performance of other companies in the same or similar industries, although our measure may
not be directly comparable to similar measures used by other public companies. Adjusted OIBDA should be viewed as a measure
of operating performance that is a supplement to, and not a substitute for, operating income, net earnings or loss, cash flow from
operating activities and other GAAP measures of income or cash flows. A reconciliation of total segment Adjusted OIBDA to our
loss from continuing operations before income taxes is presented below.

We began presenting our operating segment in Puerto Rico as a separate reportable segment during the second quarter of 2015
in anticipation of the issuance of the LILAC Shares. Previously, this operating segment was included in our corporate and other
category. Segment information for all periods presented reflects the above-described change. We present only the reportable
segments of our continuing operations in the tables below.

As of December 31, 2015, our reportable segments are as follows:

*  European Operations Division:

* U.K/Ireland

*  The Netherlands

*  Germany

* Belgium

»  Switzerland/Austria

»  Central and Eastern Europe

e« LiLAC Division:
e Chile
e Puerto Rico

All of the reportable segments set forth above derive their revenue primarily from broadband communications services,
including video, broadband internet and fixed-line telephony services. Most of our reportable segments also provide B2B and
mobile services. At December 31, 2015, our operating segments in the European Operations Division provided broadband
communications services in 12 European countries and DTH services to customers in the Czech Republic, Hungary, Romania and
Slovakia through a Luxembourg-based organization that we refer to as “UPC DTH.” In addition to UPC DTH, our Central and
Eastern Europe segment includes our broadband communications operations in the Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland, Romania
and Slovakia. The European Operations Division’s central and other category includes (i) costs associated with certain centralized
functions, including billing systems, network operations, technology, marketing, facilities, finance and other administrative
functions, and (ii) intersegment eliminations within the European Operations Division. The corporate and other category for the
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Liberty Global Group includes less significant consolidated operating segments that provide programming and other services.
Intersegment eliminations primarily represent the elimination of intercompany transactions between our broadband
communications and programming operations. Inter-group eliminations primarily represent the elimination of intercompany
transactions between the Liberty Global Group and the LILAC Group.

Performance Measures of Our Reportable Segments

The amounts presented below represent 100% of each of our reportable segment’s revenue and Adjusted OIBDA. As we have
the ability to control Telenet and Liberty Puerto Rico, we consolidate 100% of the revenue and expenses of these entities in our
consolidated statements of operations despite the fact that third parties own significant interests in these entities. The noncontrolling
owners’ interests in the operating results of Telenet, Liberty Puerto Rico and other less significant majority-owned subsidiaries
are reflected in net earnings or loss attributable to noncontrolling interests in our consolidated statements of operations.

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013

Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted
Revenue OIBDA Revenue OIBDA Revenue OIBDA

in millions

Liberty Global Group:
European Operations Division:
U.K./Ireland () ..cveveeeeveveeeieeieieeiesieeeeeveeee e $ 7,058.7 $ 3,162.1 $ 7,409.9 $ 32357 $ 4,1174 $ 1,742.8
The Netherlands (D) .....ccocoeeverierierieieieieeeeeee, 2,745.3 1,519.5 1,498.5 857.9 1,242.4 721.7
GEIMANY ..ottt ees 2,399.5 1,502.1 2,711.5 1,678.2 2,559.2 1,541.1
Belium......ccoocviieiiiiiieieieeeeeee e 2,021.0 990.3 2,279.4 1,125.0 2,185.9 1,049.4
Switzerland/Austria.........c.cceerereereneneneieceeeans 1,758.2 1,040.1 1,846.1 1,056.4 1,767.1 1,005.7
Total Western EUrope........cocceeveveevievieiecieieiennns 15,982.7 8214.1 15,7454 7,953.2  11,872.0 6,060.7
Central and Eastern Europe.........c.ccccocovuveveniennnn. 1,066.6 474.0 1,259.5 583.0 1,272.0 584.5
Central and other............c.cccoiiiiiiiiies 5.4 (289.2) (7.1) (282.7) 0.4) (239.1)
Total European Operations Division................ 17,043.9 8,398.9 16,997.8 8,253.5 13,143.6 6,406.1
Corporate and other............cccocccoveoniniinnineens 423 (222.6) 70.8 (212.0) 77.1 (169.2)
Intersegment eliminations (C).......cccevvevveveeeennenne. (23.5) — (24.9) 4.0 (34.0) 44.8
Total Liberty Global Group .........ccccccevuvnnnee. 17,062.7 8,176.3  17,043.7 8,045.5 13,186.7 6,281.7
LiLAC Group:
LiLAC Division:
ChIle ..ot 838.1 328.1 898.5 351.0 991.6 353.6
Puerto Rico (d) c..covevveeeieeiieieeiicieeeecveeeeveee e, 379.2 167.2 306.1 128.9 297.2 107.3
Total LILAC DiviSION......cceoerienieieieieieeeenens 1,217.3 495.3 1,204.6 479.9 1,288.8 460.9
Corporate and other............cccocccveiininnincnens — 4.3) — 3.1 — (1.9)
Total LILAC Group......c.ccoceeveveeeeeeincneeeene 1,217.3 491.0 1,204.6 476.8 1,288.8 459.0
Inter-group eliminations...........cocceeevevvenveeeereeennenne. — — — — (1.3)
Total. .o $18,280.0 $ 8,667.3 $18,248.3 § 8,522.3 $14,4742 $ 6,740.7

(a)  The amounts presented for 2013 include the post-acquisition revenue and Adjusted OIBDA of Virgin Media from June 8,
2013 through December 31, 2013.

(b)  The amounts presented for 2014 include the post-acquisition revenue and Adjusted OIBDA of Ziggo from November 12,
2014 through December 31, 2014.
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(¢)  The intersegment eliminations that are applicable to revenue are primarily related to transactions between our European
Operations Division and our continuing programming operations. The intersegment eliminations that are applicable to
Adjusted OIBDA are related to transactions between our European Operations Division and the Chellomedia Disposal
Group, which eliminations are no longer recorded following the completion of the Chellomedia Transaction on January 31,
2014.

(d)  The amounts presented for 2015 include the post-acquisition revenue and Adjusted OIBDA of Choice, which was acquired
on June 3, 2015.

The following table provides a reconciliation of total segment Adjusted OIBDA from continuing operations to loss from
continuing operations before income taxes:

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013
in millions

Total segment Adjusted OIBDA from continuing operations............c.ccecceeeerereennenne $ 8,667.3 $ 8,5223 §$§ 6,740.7
Share-based cOMPENSAtION EXPEINSE .....c.ervirterrereenreteieieieteteieeteeie et sre s e sresreneens (318.2) (257.2) (300.7)
Depreciation and amortiZation ............ccceceeirereriinenenienieieeeereeee e (5,825.8) (5,500.1) (4,276.4)
Release of 1itigation PrOVISION ........cccceceeerireririinienienienteteteteit ettt — — 146.0
Impairment, restructuring and other operating items, Net.........c.cccevveereerercrercnrenenn. (174.1) (536.8) (297.5)
OPETAtING INCOIMIC. ...c.veuventintenienieiieiteiteteete ettt ettt st ettt e et et et e bt e bt sbeebesbesaesee b e 2,349.2 2,228.2 2,012.1
INEETESE EXPEIISE ...venvevereiirieierieierteit ettt sttt ettt ettt sttt st sttt et b et be e (2,441.4) (2,544.7) (2,286.9)
Interest and dividend INCOME ..........cc.cerieiireirieirieircceeeeeeeeee e 35.9 31.7 113.1
Gains (losses) on derivative INSTrUMENtS, NEL.........cceverierierierieieieieieeeene e 847.2 88.8 (1,020.4)
Foreign currency transaction gains (10SS€S), Nt .....c..ccevuerverieieiiieerencreneerese e (1,149.2) (836.5) 3493
Gains due to changes in fair values of certain investments, net............ccccecceveenennne 124.5 205.2 524.1
Losses on debt modification and extinguishment, net ..........cccccceeeeevervenicncnencnenennen (388.0) (186.2) (212.2)
Other EXPEINSE, NEL....c.ervevirieeirieiieteietesietetetetetetete e tesaetestesessesesbeseeseneeseseesensesensesenenns (62.8) (42.4) (5.6)
Loss from continuing operations before income taXxes..........ccceceeerererenereneneneens § (684.6) $ (1,0559) §  (526.5)
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Balance Sheet Data of our Reportable Segments

Selected balance sheet data of our reportable segments is set forth below:

Long-lived assets Total assets
December 31, December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014
in millions
Liberty Global Group:
European Operations Division:
U.K/Ireland .......ooveveieiiiiininencneeeeeeeeteteceeee e § 19,7899 § 21,7542 § 23,6476 $ 254872
The Netherlands.........c.coieieiiiiiniieiiceceeeeee s 14,741.7 17,092.7 15,132.1 17,387.0
GEIMANY ...eoviieiiieiieeieete ettt ettt ettt et et esbeesatesabeesbaesareenne 7,898.9 9,117.9 8,634.1 9,512.8
Bel@IUM.....oiiiiiieeee et 3,674.9 4,149.5 4,493.6 4,828.8
SWitzerland/AUSIIa .....c..coevievvieeiieieecieeeecee e 5,108.0 5,300.9 5,438.6 5,643.9
Total Western Europe........coeeveeierieiinieieiee e 51,2134 57,415.2 57,346.0 62,859.7
Central and Eastern EUrope ...........ccoovveveviiecieniecieniceceee e 2,268.0 2,459.9 2,357.5 2,566.4
Central and Other..........ccceveiieiieeciieeceecee e 543.9 499 4 1,574.3 2,613.2
Total European Operations DiviSion............cceeervererveniesnenennns 54,025.3 60,374.5 61,277.8 68,039.3
Corporate and Other ..........coocevieiiiieriieeeeeeee e 119.6 68.9 3,332.5 2,045.2
Total Liberty Global GIoUp .......c.eecveierierierierieeierieeieseeeveneens 54,144.9 60,443.4 64,610.3 70,084.5
LiLAC Group:
LiLAC Division:
CRILE ..ttt e 873.7 1,017.3 1,506.6 1,513.2
PUETTO RICO 1ttt 1,468.8 1,128.3 1,599.4 1,213.7
Total LILAC DiVISION ..ccueiutiiieiiiiiiiesieieseieieee e 2,342.5 2,145.6 3,106.0 2,726.9
Corporate and Other ...........ccoeveririeriinieieieeceee e — — 161.5 44.1
Total LILAC GIOUP......coiiiriireierierieesieieeeieee e sie e 2,342.5 2,145.6 3,267.5 2,771.0
Inter-group eliminations ...........o.coeverierierieieieieeeeneseseeese e — — (10.6) (13.6)
TOMAL e $ 56,4874 $ 62,589.0 $ 67.867.2 $ 72,841.9
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Property and Equipment Additions of our Reportable Segments

The property and equipment additions of our reportable segments (including capital additions financed under vendor financing
or capital lease arrangements) are presented below and reconciled to the capital expenditure amounts included in our consolidated
statements of cash flows. For additional information concerning capital additions financed under vendor financing and capital
lease arrangements, see note 9.

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013
in millions

Liberty Global Group:
European Operations Division:
L O (-1 o I ) T TSRS $ 1,5273 $ 1,506.7 $ 827.5
The Netherlands (D) .......cceoeeieiiiiiiieree e 536.1 268.0 242.4
GOITIAILY ....eeniiiietcee et 535.7 574.5 543.4
BEIGIUIM ...ttt sttt ns 371.6 448.9 453.7
SWItZErIANA/AUSTIIA ..c.viiiiieieeiie ettt e et e te e s abeebeesaseereans 315.6 3272 306.4
Total WeStern EUTOPE.......ccvivuieiieieiieiecieeeete ettt 3,286.3 3,125.3 2,373.4
Central and Eastern EUTOPE.........ccooucoiiiiiiiiniiiiieiceeeeeeeeereeeeee e 277.3 264.8 271.6
Central and OheT .......ccoeiviiirieinieicc ettt 280.7 257.9 256.0
Total European Operations DIVISION .........c.coevueirieirieinicinicieeeeereeeseeeseenene 3,844.3 3,648.0 2,901.0
Corporate and OtHET .........ccueiiiiiriieiie et 65.9 5.0 6.3
Total Liberty Global Group..........cccceereririenenienieieieeeieeeeeeeese e 3,910.2 3,653.0 2,907.3
LiLAC Group:
CRLE ..ttt bbbttt 149.0 195.8 188.5
PUCTLO RICO (€)1t st st 78.1 60.4 65.8
Total LILAC GIOUP...ccviieiiieiiiciiricieiceeieeeie e e 227.1 256.2 254.3
Total property and equipment additions ..........ccceeeeeieiieinininieenese e 4,137.3 3,909.2 3,161.6
Assets acquired under capital-related vendor financing arrangements....................... (1,481.5) (975.3) (573.5)
Assets acquired under capital [eaSses .........coceceveerieirieiriecineinetneeee e (106.1) (127.2) (143.0)
Changes in current liabilities related to capital expenditures............ccoccceeevrccenenenn (50.2) (122.3) 36.4
Total capital eXPenditures ..........cecereriererieneieee e $ 24995 § 26844 § 24815

(@)  The amount presented for 2013 includes the post-acquisition property and equipment additions of Virgin Media from June
8, 2013 through December 31, 2013.

(b)  The amount presented for 2014 includes the post-acquisition property and equipment additions of Ziggo from November
12, 2014 through December 31, 2014.

(c)  The amount presented for 2015 includes the post-acquisition property and equipment additions of Choice, which was
acquired on June 3, 2015.
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Revenue by Major Category

Our revenue by major category is set forth below:

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013
in millions

Subscription revenue (a):

V0. e $ 63836 $ 65383 $ 57207
Broadband INtEINEt...........ccueiuiiieiieieieeeeee et 5,079.7 4,718.5 3,535.0
Fixed-1ine telephony .........cooieiiieieiieiteeeee ettt 3,162.0 3,259.5 2,506.5
Cable SUDSCIIPHION TEVENUE ........eevuieeiereeeieeeeeie et sieeaeereete et enee e eeeeneeeeeneeneeens 14,625.3 14,516.3 11,762.2
Mobile subscription reVENUE (D) ........ceeeerireririirienierienieieieteceee et st 1,037.3 1,085.6 669.9
Total SUDSCIIPLION TEVEIUE. .......cueeeieeiereeeieeeeeeeseteteeieeieeteeae et et eeeeseeeneeeeeneeneeens 15,662.6 15,601.9 12,432.1
B2B TEVENUE (C) «.veenveriieieiiienieeiteieeitesteete ettt sttt st et sttt sbe st e e b eas 1,560.5 1,501.3 980.5
Other revenue (b) (d).....ccoeereiiiiieireeeeee e 1,056.9 1,145.1 1,061.6
TOTAL e s e s e e ees s eeseeeseese s eseees e se e s eeseeee e $ 18,2800 $ 182483 $ 14,4742

(a)  Subscription revenue includes amounts received from subscribers for ongoing services, excluding installation fees and late

(®)

(c)

(d

fees. Subscription revenue from subscribers who purchase bundled services at a discounted rate is generally allocated
proportionally to each service based on the standalone price for each individual service. As aresult, changes in the standalone
pricing of our cable and mobile products or the composition of bundles can contribute to changes in our product revenue
categories from period to period.

Mobile subscription revenue excludes mobile interconnect revenue of $212.7 million, $245.0 million and $175.2 million
during 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Mobile interconnect revenue and revenue from mobile handset sales are included
in other revenue.

B2B revenue includes revenue from business broadband internet, video, voice, mobile and data services offered to medium
to large enterprises and, on a wholesale basis, to other operators. We also provide services to certain small or home office
(SOHO) subscribers. SOHO subscribers pay a premium price to receive expanded service levels along with video, broadband
internet, fixed-line telephony or mobile services that are the same or similar to the mass marketed products offered to our
residential subscribers. Revenue from SOHO subscribers, which is included in cable subscription revenue, aggregated
$321.8 million, $220.7 million and $158.9 million during 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Other revenue includes, among other items, interconnect, mobile handset sales, channel carriage fee and installation revenue.
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Geographic Segments

The revenue of our geographic segments is set forth below:

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013
in millions

Liberty Global Group:
European Operations Division:
UKL (). $ 66633 $ 6941.1 $ 3,653.7
The Netherlands (D)......c.ooeieeieeeee e e 2,745.3 1,498.5 1,242.4
L 1S 41121 1) ST 2,399.5 2,711.5 2,559.2
BEIGIUM ..ottt ettt b e re b e e te e beesaesbeessesbeessenreens 2,021.0 2,279.4 2,185.9
SWIZETIAN ...ttt ne e e e s e e ens 1,390.3 1,414.4 1,332.1
POLANd ...t 399.7 469.9 460.4
TECIANM. ...ttt ens 3954 468.8 463.7
AUSITIA Lottt 367.9 431.7 435.0
HUIGATY -ttt 258.5 310.2 313.8
The Czech REPUDIIC ...t 176.6 221.0 248.9
ROMANIA ..ottt sttt ettt eneenneens 158.1 173.3 163.8
SIOVAKIA ...ttt sttt ettt 59.3 74.5 74.6
L 14 T<) ST 9.0 3.5 10.1
Total European Operations DIiVISION.........cccevererierienierienieieiieeee et 17,043.9 16,997.8 13,143.6
Other, including intersegment eliminations ...........cccceeeereereeiesenieneeieee e 18.8 45.9 431
Total Liberty Global GrOUP..........cceviririiririeieieeieeeeeecet et 17,062.7 17,043.7 13,186.7
LiLAC Group:
CRILE ..ttt 838.1 898.5 991.6
PUETEO RICO () ceuvineiiiciiieeiiiicteiceee e 379.2 306.1 297.2
TOtal LILAC GIOUP ..cuvievieiieeietieetesieete st etesteetesteessesteessesteessesssessesseessesseesseens 1,217.3 1,204.6 1,288.8
Inter-group elimMinations..........couevveeeiriririncrerteeere ettt ettt seenes — — (1.3)
TOTAL v eeee s eeeeeeeeseeee e eseees e eeseseeseeees e eeeseeeeseeees e eeseseeseeeeseeeeseeeees $ 18280.0 $ 182483 $ 14,4742

(@) The amount presented for 2013 reflects the post-acquisition revenue of Virgin Media from June 8, 2013 through
December 31, 2013.

(b)  The amount presented for 2014 reflects the post-acquisition revenue of Ziggo from November 12, 2014 through December
31,2014.

(c)  The amount presented for 2015 reflects the post-acquisition revenue of Choice, which was acquired on June 3, 2015.
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The long-lived assets of our geographic segments are set forth below:

December 31,

2015 2014

in millions
Liberty Global Group:

European Operations Division:

U K ettt ettt h bt bbbt ettt et et e n e a e e a e h e bt bt bt bttt sb et e benaennan $ 19,127.8 $ 21,098.3
The NEthETIandS ........ccoviiiiieie ettt e e e et esaaeebeesabeebeesabeessaessseensaesssennseens 14,741.7 17,092.7
GOTTIIANY ...ttt ettt ettt et b et b et b et eb e et e bt et s bt e nbeebtesbeemtesbeesaesbeenbesbeenbesbeenteene 7,898.9 9,117.9
N /53 ¥4 U« TSRS 4,117.7 4,218.9
BIGIUIMNL. ..ottt sttt ettt b ekttt eae 3,674.9 4,149.5
YN 3 o £ F PSRRIt 990.3 1,082.0
POLANM ..ttt ettt eh bbbt et nee s 893.2 983.5
=] 1 T PSPPSR 662.1 655.9
The CZeCh REPUDIIC.....ceiiiieieeee ettt st 534.8 580.4
HUDGATY ...ttt ettt 494.4 535.7
ROMANIA ...ttt b ettt ettt et e st e bt ebeebe et e s bt sbenbebeneenean 194.0 209.1
T (o)1« - TSRS 103.2 110.5
ORET (@) 1+ttt ettt ettt sttt ettt e et et e st eb e eatebeeb e e bt eb e ekt bt s be et e bebeneennan 592.3 540.1
Total European Operations DiVISION ...........ccveoieiierierieieciieieeeeie ettt nneas 54,025.3 60,374.5
ULS. AN OtHET (D) 1.ttt eb e bt st se et e b seenean 119.6 68.9
Total Liberty GLoDal GIOUP.......cccveruieieiieieeie ettt ettt ettt esee e seeeneesneeneennens 54,144.9 60,443.4
LiLAC Group:
PUETEO RICO ...ttt ettt et et e e v e e staeeabe e bbeesbe e teeesbeeseesssaaseessseeseensseenns 1,468.8 1,128.3
CRILE <.ttt b bbbt bttt s e a et a e bbbt bbbt besbe et e tenee 873.7 1,017.3
01 B YN O o] o SRS 2,342.5 2,145.6
TOtAL .ottt ettt et ettt et et e e b e te e b e ert e beere e beeraesaeesbesteenbeeteenseeseenraans $ 56,4874 $ 62,589.0

(a)  Primarily represents long-lived assets of the European Operations Division’s central operations, which are located in the
Netherlands.

(b)  Primarily represents the assets of our corporate offices.
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a9 Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

2015
1" quarter 2" quarter 3" quarter 4™ quarter
in millions, except per share amounts

REVEINUE.....c.oiiiiieiee e $ 4,5169 $ 4,566.5 $ 45974 % 4,599.2
Operating iNCOMEC......ccueerveereererreeseereesteeeesseeeesseeeeneeeneens $ 5575 $ 6249 $ 5455 $ 621.3
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Liberty Global
ShArehOIdErs. ...........cververereeieciceeceeeeee e $ (537.5) § (464.7) § 1333 $ (283.6)
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) attributable to Liberty
Global shareholders per share (note 3):
Liberty Global Shares........c.ccccecveeererieninineneneneneeenee $ 0.12 $ (0.32)
LILAC Shares.........covevieuinieinieinieineineeseeeeneeesenene $ 0.69 $ (0.30)
Old Liberty Global Shares..........ccccecevvevereeneineenennee $ 0.61) $ (0.53)
2014
1" quarter 2" quarter 3" quarter 4™ quarter
in millions, except per share amounts
REVENUE. oo eseee e ees e eeeseeeeseeeseeeeseeeees $ 45337 $ 46022 $ 44972 $ 4,615.2
Operating iNCOME...........ceeririerereriiereieeeeeeeeeesseseseseeeenees $ 5817 $ 669.5 $ 703.7 $ 273.3
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Liberty Global
ShArEhOIdErS. ...........overveeereeiecicee e $ (78.8) § (2499) § 1571 $ (523.4)
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) attributable to Liberty
Shares (note 3y o pershare - Ol MberyOlobl .5 ©IDS  ©3)s 020 s 0

20) Subsequent Events
BASE Acquisition

On February 11, 2016, pursuant to a definitive agreement and following regulatory approval, Telenet acquired BASE for a
cash purchase price of €1,324.4 million ($1,500.5 million at the transaction date) (the BASE Acquisition). BASE is the third-
largest mobile network operator in Belgium. We expect that the BASE Acquisition will provide Telenet with cost-effective long-
term mobile access to effectively compete for future growth opportunities in the Belgium mobile market. The BASE Acquisition
was funded through a combination of €1.0 billion ($1.1 billion at the transaction date) of new debt facilities and existing liquidity
of Telenet. On February 4, 2016, the European Commission approved Telenet’s acquisition of BASE following Telenet’s agreement
to divest both the JIM Mobile prepaid customer base and BASE’s 50% stake in Viking Co NV to MEDIALAAN NV, which was
announced in November 2015. Information with regard to the acquisition accounting and pro forma effect of the acquisition of
BASE is not yet available.

Pending Transaction

On February 15,2016, we and Liberty Global Europe Holding B.V., our wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into a Contribution
and Transfer Agreement (the Contribution Agreement) with Vodafone Group plc (Vodafone) and one of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. Pursuant to the Contribution Agreement, our company and Vodafone agreed to form a 50:50 joint venture (the Joint
Venture), which will combine our broadband communications business in the Netherlands, Ziggo Group Holding, and its Sport1
premium sports channel, with Vodafone’s mobile businesses in the Netherlands (Vodafone NL) to create a national unified
communications provider in the Netherlands with complementary strengths across video, broadband, mobile and B2B services.

At the closing of the transactions contemplated by the Contribution Agreement, Vodafone will pay to our company an
equalization payment equal to approximately €1.0 billion ($1.1 billion), as adjusted for the net debt of Ziggo Group Holding and
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Vodafone NL at the time of closing and certain working capital adjustments. Ziggo Group Holding will be contributed to the Joint
Venture together with its outstanding third-party debt and Vodafone’s business in the Netherlands will be contributed on a debt
and cash free basis.

The parties expect to raise additional debt financing at the Joint Venture to increase the Joint Venture’s net leverage ratio to
a level that ranges between 4.5 and 5 times EBITDA (as calculated pursuant to Ziggo Group Holding’s existing financing
arrangements) and to make a pro rata distribution of the net proceeds from the additional debt to our company and Vodafone. The
Joint Venture will be required to make regular cash distributions to the shareholders on a pro-rata basis equal to the unrestricted
cash held by the Joint Venture (subject to the Joint Venture maintaining a minimum amount of cash and complying with the terms
of'its financing arrangements). As an ongoing operation, it is intended that the Joint Venture will be funded solely from its net cash
flow from operations and third-party financing.

Following completion of the transaction, we will account for our 50% interest in the Joint Venture as an equity method
investment, and we will attribute our 50% interest in the Joint Venture to the Liberty Global Group.

The consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Contribution Agreement is subject to certain conditions, including
competition clearance by the applicable regulatory authority in the European Union. It is anticipated that the transaction will close
around the end of 2016. The Contribution Agreement also includes customary termination rights, including a right of the parties
to terminate the transaction if it has not closed by August 15, 2017.

Virgin Media Refinancing Transaction

On April 26, 2016, Virgin Media Secured Finance issued $750.0 million principal amount of 5.5% senior secured notes due
August 15,2026 (the August 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes). The net proceeds from the August 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes
were used to repay in full the outstanding amount under the VM Revolving Facility, and the remainder will be used for general
corporate purposes.

Subject to the circumstances described below, the August 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes are non-callable until August 15,
2021. At any time prior to August 15,2021, Virgin Media Secured Finance may redeem some or all of the August 2026 VM Senior
Secured Notes by paying a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of all remaining scheduled interest payments to
August 15, 2021 using the discount rate (as specified in the indenture) as of the redemption date plus 50 basis points.

Virgin Media Secured Finance may redeem some or all of the August 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes at the following
redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid interest and additional amounts
(as specified in the indenture), if any, to the applicable redemption date, as set forth below:

Redemption price

12-month Period COMIMENCING .......c.eeiiiiiiieiieieieee ettt ettt ettt et e bt te st en e e bt e e eseeteeneeseeeneesaeeneas August 15
2021 ettt ekttt stttk ekt ekt k ettt ae et e ettt a ettt et e 102.750%
2022 ettt bbbt b et b e h bt b e Rt h e et At ket ek et bt b et e bt et e bt e st st n et ene et et et et et e 101.375%
2023 etttk ekttt ettt ekt h ekt ekttt sttt ettt a et ettt e 100.688%
B O 1 Ta R TS (2 N 1<) SRR 100.000%
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1) Supplemental Companies Act Disclosures

Fair Value of Acquisitions
2015 Acquisition — Choice

The details of Choice’s book value compared to fair value on the June 3, 2015 acquisition date are set forth below:

Opening
Valuation balance sheet
Book value adjustments fair value
in millions
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS ............ccocuieveuieeeiiieeieieeeet ettt $ 36 $ — 3 3.6
Other CUITENE ASSELS .....eeueeireiieieeierieeie et ete ettt e e et e st eeesaeeneesseesesneesesneens 7.6 0.2 7.8
Property and equipment, NEt............ccuevvieieriiieriiiienie et eenas 40.1 39.7 79.8
GOOAWILL ...ttt ettt st et b bt e b et e st esseseeneeseenas 46.8 4.8 51.6
Intangible assets subject to amortization, NEt..........c.ceverererererienieeeeeeeeeeceeee 2.9 56.2 59.1
FranchiSe riIZHLS .....cc.eeiiiiieieeee e 46.6 101.2 147.8
OthEr @SSELS, TET.....c.uvviiiieiieiiiie ettt eee e et e e e e s eaeeeeaeeesnaeesenneesenaeeeenns 0.3 — 0.3
Other accrued and current Habilities. .........c.oovevvierieirieiieieeieeeceee et (13.4) 0.2 (13.2)
Non-current deferred tax Habilities ..........c.cceveeiiiiiieiiiieceeeeeeeee e — (60.4) (60.4)
TOTAL e+ttt ettt et e e e e eeee e e st ee et e eeeeeeeseseeeeseeseseneeesereenas $ 1345 $ 1419 $ 276.4
2014 Acquisition — Ziggo
The details of Ziggo's book value compared to fair value on the Ziggo Acquisition Date are set forth below:
Opening
Valuation balance sheet
Book value adjustments fair value
in millions
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES .............cocuieviuiiieeiiieeicieeeeeeeeeeeee et $ 1,889.7 $ — $ 1,889.7
Other CUITENE ASSELS.......eeueiriieieeeieieeiee st teste et et et e et este e e sseeneesseeaesneesesneenseennens 69.6 0.1 69.7
Property and eqUIPMENt, NEt .........c.cccvevvieeeriieierieeiecie ettt sre e see e 1,938.9 776.0 2,714.9
GOOAWILL ...ttt ettt et et b b b e sseseesaeseenseseenas 2,235.7 5,630.8 7,866.5
Intangible assets subject to amortization, NEt ............c.ccveveevveeeerreeienieeeesreeeeseeennns 1,955.5 2,901.5 4,857.0
OFNET ASSELS, NEL ...eiiiiiiiiiiiee ittt e ettt e e e e et e e e e e e et e e e s essaaaeeesessnteeesessnnraeees 347.3 35.5 382.8
Current portion of debt and capital lease obligations .............ccccceevevireerieiieniennnns (580.8) (23.2) (604.0)
Other accrued and current HabilitieS..........coeveevieieiieieeeeeeee e (452.5) 9.3) (461.8)
Long-term debt and capital lease 0bligations ..............ccveveevreeeeniieieniieienieeee e (5,317.6) (33.9) (5,351.5)
Other long-term Habilities...........ccueiieiiiiieiiieiceieeeecreee et eae e (565.2) (923.4) (1,488.6)
NONCONIOIING INEEIESE ......evieiiiieieiiciieieeteteeteee et e e saeesseere s (1,080.6) — (1,080.6)
0] 71 TP $ 440.0 $ 8,354.1 $ 8,794.1
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The details of Virgin Media's book value compared to fair value on the June 7, 2013 acquisition date are set forth below:

Cash and cash equivalents

Other current assets..........ecevveerreerrecrrenenne
Property and equipment, net
GOOAWIL ...
Intangible assets subject to amortization
Other assets, NEt .......cceevvvivieeeeeiieeeiieeens
Current portion of debt and capital lease obligations
Other accrued and current liabilities

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations

Other long-term liabilities

Opening

Valuation balance sheet

For further information regarding our acquisitions, see note 4.

Investments

Fair Value

Further details of our fair value investments at December 31, 2015 are set forth below:

SUMILOMO ...t
Lionsgate......ccovvevevueeieeieeieeeereeeeee e

ITI NEOVISION ...

Equity Method

Further details of our equity method investments at December 31, 2015 are set forth below:

For further information regarding our investments, see note 6.
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Book value adjustments fair value
in millions
............................................................. $ 6946 §$ — S 694.6
............................................................. 929.5 2.7 932.2
.................................................................................... 6,948.4 2,914.7 9,863.1
............................................................. 9,000.8 — 9,000.8
................................................................. — 3,925.8 3,925.8
............................................................. 6,034.5 (1,775.1) 4,259.4
.............................................. (127.7) (1,056.8) (1,184.5)
........................................................................ (1,861.8) (30.4) (1,892.2)
.......................................................... (9,263.3) 785.9 (8,477.4)
............................................................. (1,330.3) 4.0 (1,326.3)
............................................................. — (1,660.0) (1,660.0)
............................................................. $ 11,0247 $ 3,110.8 § 14,1355
Country of Parent Group
incorporation ownership %  ownership % Holdings
U.K. —% 9.9% Ordinary shares
Japan —% 3.6% Ordinary shares
Canada —% 3.3% Common shares
Poland —% 17.0% Shares
Various —% Various Various
Country of Parent Group
incorporation ownership %  ownership % Holdings
U.K. —% 50.0% Shares
Various —% Various Various
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As further discussed in note 1, in order to comply with the Companies Act, our accounting and the presentation of our
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2014 and our statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013 have been adjusted to use the equity method to account for our investment in Ziggo prior to the Ziggo Acquisition.

Changes in our proportionate share of the underlying share capital of an equity method investee, including those which result
from the issuance of additional equity securities by such equity investee, are recognized as gains or losses in our consolidated
statements of operations.

We continually review our equity method investments to determine whether a decline in fair value below the cost basis is
other than temporary. The primary factors we consider in our determination are the extent and length of time that the fair value of
the investment is below our company’s carrying value and the financial condition, operating performance and near-term prospects
of the investee, changes in the stock price or valuation subsequent to the balance sheet date, and the impacts of exchange rates, if
applicable. In addition, we consider the reason for the decline in fair value, such as (i) general market conditions and (ii) industry
specific or investee specific factors, as well as our intent and ability to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow
for a recovery in fair value. If the decline in fair value of an equity or cost method investment is deemed to be other than temporary,
the cost basis of the security is written down to fair value.

Changes in our investment in Ziggo as accounted for under the equity method of accounting, are set forth below (in millions):

Balance at January 1, 2013 ...ttt et b e e bttt e b e et b e e b bt et enee b enee $ —
PUICRASES ...ttt ettt et e te et e st e e ste s st esse s st enbeeseenseeseenseessenseeseenseensenseensesseensesseansesneensesseensensaens 2,026.2
SHAre Of CAIMINES (@) ...euveteeuteitieieit ettt ettt ettt et b et s b et e sb e e bt e bt e bt e s eeebeeaeesbeemaesbeenteebeenbesaeenbeeneenseeneenseenes 46.4
DiIVIAENAS TECEIVEM ...ttt sttt ettt et e b e bbbt bbbt ettt e st et et ebeebeebesbe b ebe e (78.7)
Cumulative translation adjuStMENT .............c.oiiiiiiiiiiiiiecc e (3.3)

Balance at December 31, 2013 (1)....eouereieiiieieieieicrteet ettt sttt ettt eae e 1,990.6
SNATE OF LOSS (@) ..uveuvenrenreiieiieiieiieiet ettt ettt et e b et s a e bbb s et b e st ettt et eb et eue bbbt et nes (68.8)
Use of shares to settle collar arrangement () «.....co.eeererererierierierieteteteeeteete ettt st ettt ettt ebeebe b bbb e (496.4)
Increase in investment resulting from gains due to changes in OWNErship ..........ccceveeoieniiiininnenec e 671.7
Cumulative translation adjUSTIMENT ........cc.eoueiiiiiiirirere ettt ettt sttt et et ese et et ebeebesbe b enes (81.7)
Acquisition of controlling INtErest (A) .......cccecuriririiiiiniierieecee ettt (2,015.4)

Balance at DeCemDET 31, 2014 ... ..oooieeieeeeee et et e e e e e e et e e ara e e et e e enreeearaeeanreaan $ —

(a) Share of earnings (loss) is included in other income (expense), net in our consolidated statements of operations.

(b) At December 31, 2013, the aggregate carrying value of our investment in Ziggo exceeded our proportionate share of Ziggo's
net assets by $1,498.5 million. Most of this excess basis was associated with goodwill and was therefore not amortized.

(¢) During 2014, we used 15.7 million Ziggo shares with a basis of $496.4 million and a market value of $754.8 million to settle
the Ziggo Collar, resulting in a gain of $258.4 million. For further information, see note 7.

(d) For further information regarding the Ziggo Acquisition, see note 4.
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Property and Equipment, Net

Changes in our property and equipment and the related accumulated depreciation are set forth below:

Support
Cable Customer equipment,
distribution premises buildings
systems equipment and land Total
in millions

Cost:

JanUATY 1, 2015 ooeoviieeiieiceeet ettt $ 26,0125 $§ 6,2139 $§ 42984 § 36,524.8
AAITIONS ..ottt 1,890.0 1,177.7 1,069.2 4,136.9
ACQUISTEIONS ...t 71.3 13.7 9.8 94.8
Retirements and diSposals.........cccoecereereerieinenerncnecneeeeeeeeene (245.8) (388.4) (299.9) (934.1)
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other...............c.....c..... (2,243.0) (564.4) (275.1) (3,082.5)

December 31, 2015 ..o $ 254850 § 64525 § 4,8024 § 36,739.9

Accumulated depreciation:

January 1, 2015 .o $ (8,281.4) § (2,656.7) § (1,746.1) $(12,684.2)
DEPIECIALION ...ttt ettt sttt ebe et sbe b e (2,582.6) (1,094.4) (824.4) (4,501.4)
Retirements and diSposals...........ccccccoeireiiiineiinciceeeeeeeeen 245.8 388.4 299.9 934.1
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other...........c..cccoceeeenenen. 722.0 285.2 188.4 1,195.6

December 31, 2015 ..o $ (9,896.2) $ (3,077.5) $ (2,082.2) $(15,055.9)

Property and equipment, net:
December 31, 2015 ..ot $ 15,588.8 § 33750 § 12,7202 $ 21,684.0
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Support
Cable Customer equipment,
distribution  premises buildings
systems equipment and land Total
in millions

Cost:

January 1, 2014 ..o e $ 25,0265 $§ 6,126.0 $ 3,748.5 $ 34,901.0
AAAITIONS ...viieiiiiiiie ettt ettt a et a e aeenre e 1,737.4 1,266.2 905.6 3,909.2
ACQUISTEIONS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt sttt st 2,028.7 155.0 590.1 2,773.8
Discontinued OPeration............cceeuerieveienreieieieieinene st seeeeneeenne — — 1.1 1.1
Retirements and diSPOSals ..........coerververienieieiiieinencnceeese e (204.0) (607.5) (292.5) (1,104.0)
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other...........c.ccoceccveenenne (2,576.1) (725.8) (654.4)  (3,956.3)

December 31, 2014 ...oviiieeeeeeeeee et e e $ 26,0125 $ 62139 § 42984 $ 36,524.8

Accumulated depreciation:

January 1, 2014 ..o $ (6,8354) $ (2,554.2) $ (1,536.7) $(10,926.3)
DEPIECIALION ...ttt ettt (2,615.2)  (1,065.1) (721.3) (4,401.6)
Discontinued OPEration..........c.ceeveeveriererieeerieerieenieenieenieesieseeseseereseenens — — (0.5) (0.5)
Retirements and diSPOSals ..........coerverierienieieiiininenereseese e 204.0 607.5 292.5 1,104.0
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other..............cccceceeeenene 965.2 355.1 219.9 1,540.2

December 31, 2014 ......cooouiiiiieiieiceeeeeeee s $ (8,281.4) § (2,656.7) § (1,746.1) $(12,684.2)

Property and equipment, net:
December 31, 2014 ..ot $ 17,731.1 § 3,5572 § 2,552.3 § 23,840.6
The details of our land and buildings are set forth below:

December 31,
2015 2014

in millions

(=T 10 e ORI $ 3563 $ 4073
SHhOTt 18SEROLA () ...vevetitiitietietet ettt bttt ettt b et ebeebe s bt sbe et e s bentens 50.8 60.4
) o) T (T2 TS 1 Lo} U () ISP 32.7 39.6

TIOBAL ¢ttt h et h bt b h bbbttt e st e a e et eb e bt bt bbb nten $ 4398 $ 5073

(a) Represents property and equipment subject to leases with an initial term of less than 50 years.
(b) Represents property and equipment subject to leases with an initial term of 50 years or more.

For further information regarding our property and equipment, see note 9.
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Intangible Assets Subject to Amortization, Net

Changes in our intangible assets and the related accumulated amortization are set forth below:

Customer
relationships Licenses Trademarks  Other Total
in millions

Cost:

January 1, 2015 .o § 12,1425 § 774 8§ 1102 $ 47.8 $12,377.9
ACQUISTHIONS ...t 73.7 — 22.0 — 95.7
Retirements and diSposals.........c.coccerveeerivneninineinecneennnes (678.5) — (7.9) 0.9) (687.3)
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other ................ (1,103.4) 8.2) (11.2) 23.7)  (1,146.5)

December 31, 2015 ..o $ 104343 $ 692 § 113.1 $ 232 $10,639.8

Accumulated amortization:

January 1, 2015 .o $§ (3,056.3) $ (12.1) $ (96.2) $ (23.5) $(3,188.1)
AMOTLIZATION ..ottt e (1,310.5) (1.7) (11.3) 0.9) (1,324.4)
Retirements and disposals...........ccceverererienienieneeenincncecene 678.5 — 7.9 0.9 687.3
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other ................ 245.9 1.0 10.1 20.9 277.9

December 31, 2015 ..ooueuiiieieieiieieieeeeie et $ (34424) $ (12.8) $ (89.5) $ (2.6) $(3,547.3)

Intangible assets subject to amortization, net:

December 31, 2015 ..o $ 69919 $§ 564 $ 236 $ 206 $ 7,092.5

Customer
relationships Licenses Trademarks Other Total
in millions

Cost:

January 1, 2014 ..o $ 81167 $ 86.1 § 1470 $ 55.0 $ 8,404.8
ACQUISTEIONS ...ttt 5,035.0 — — — 5,035.0
Discontinued Operation .........c..ecceeeveerereneenienieneereeeeeeenennene 3.1 — 0.1 — 3.2
Retirements and disposals ........c.ccocevererenienenieneieieeececen (152.3) — (21.2) — (173.5)
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other ................ (860.0) (8.7) 15.7) (7.2) (891.6)

December 31, 2014 .....c.ooveoiviiieiieicicnceneeeeeee e § 12,1425 § 774 § 1102 $ 478 $12,3779

Accumulated amortization:

January 1, 2014 ..o $§ (24584) § (11.8) § (114.1) § (25.1) $(2,609.4)
AMOTtIZATION. ...ttt (1,078.6) (1.9) (16.4) (1.6)  (1,098.5)
Discontinued OPeration .............cceeeevueeveuerverenreeruerennenesneennenns (1.4) — — — (1.4)
Retirements and diSposals ...........cccceeeerenieniniienieenceeneee, 152.3 — 21.2 — 173.5
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other ................ 329.8 1.6 13.1 32 347.7

December 31, 2014 .....coooiiiiiiiiinieineneeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ (3,056.3) §$ (12.1) $ (96.2) § (23.5) $(3,188.1)

Intangible assets subject to amortization, net:

December 31,2014 ... $ 90862 $ 653 § 140 $ 243 $ 9,189.8

For further information regarding our intangible assets subject to amortization, see note 9.
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Provisions

Changes in our provisions are set forth below:

Post- Asset
Tax Restructuring retirement retirement
liabilities liabilities liabilities obligations Other Total

in millions

January 1, 2015 ..o $ 4300 $ 156.1 $ 1406 $ 65.1 $ 3555 § 1,1473
ACQUISTHONS ... — 0.5 0.1 0.6
Charges (credits) to consolidated statement of

OPETALIONS ..o 45.3 103.8 (7.4) 26 (173.0) (28.7)
Payments........ccceceeevereninieneninisenseeene — (103.1) (41.3) (0.2) 9.3) (153.9)
Other comprehensive earnings ...........c..coueee.. — 25.6 — 25.6
Foreign currency translation adjustments and

OLHET .o (4.5) (10.3) 8.9 (42) (418 (51.9)

December 31,2015 ..o, $ 4708 $ 1465 $ 1264 $ 63.8 $ 131.5 $ 939.0

For further information regarding our tax liabilities and restructuring liabilities, see notes 11 and 14, respectively.
Employees

The details of our full-time equivalent employees are as follows:

December 31,
2015 2014
COUNLTY OPETALIONS......oiiiiiiiitiiiiee et 35,600 36,700
COTPOTALE. ... b s s b e b et e ettt e 1,400 1,300
1] | OSSPSR 37,000 38,000

The details of our personnel costs, including share-based compensation expense, are as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2015 2014

in millions

Continuing operations:

WaAZES AN SALATIES. .....eeiieieiieieet ettt ettt sttt ettt e s et e e st e bt e s e et et e s et et e eaeentesaeeaeenean $ 2,1104 $ 21359

Share-based COMPENSALION EXPEIISE .....e.veverererienieiieieiieieettete et sttt stesbesteseestess et eseeseeseeseebesbesaestenbenee 318.2 257.2
SOCIAL SECUITEY COSES ..evrvruieiiriiriiriietinte sttt ettt ettt ettt ettt e st et a e e ess et eneeaeeaeebeebesbesae st e b e 254.2 275.0
Pension and other post-retireMENt EXPEISE .......cceeuerreruirtirrerterierterterienteteeeseetesteseeseesesressesbesbesaeseenses 80.5 66.8
Employee benefits and Other ..........cc.ooiiiieiiiieee e e e 210.9 225.4
Total — CONINUING OPETATIONS ....c..evetiiiiiieieieiieteeett ettt ettt sttt ettt ebe bt sbeebesbeseeees $ 29742 $ 29603
DiSCONtINUEd OPEIALION ...ttt ettt sttt ettt ettt ettt ebe et besae e b e s — 8 66

Directors’ Remuneration

A discussion of our directors’ remuneration appears in the Directors’ Remuneration Report included in this report.
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Audit Fees and All Other Fees

The following table presents fees for professional audit services rendered by KPMG LLP and its international affiliates
(including KPMG LLP (U.K.)) during 2015 for the audit of our consolidated financial statements and the separate financial
statements of certain of our subsidiaries and for other services rendered by KPMG LLP and its international affiliates.

Fees billed in currencies other than U.S. dollars were translated into U.S. dollars at the average exchange rate in effect during
2015 (in millions).

Audit fees for these financial StAtEMENTS () .....eoueeruerierieiieieeiere ettt ettt et ee s e enaeeseensesneenes $ 14.7

Audit fees for financial statements of subsidiaries pursuant to le@iSlation ..............ccevvieeerieiereeciereeee e 23
TOLAL AUAIE FEES ... eeuietiete ettt ettt et et et e et e s et e ee s st eseesseenseeseenseensenseenee st enseeseensesneenseeneeseeneans T 170

AlL Other NON-AUAIL TEES (D) ..ouviieiiiieiiiiiieiietieie ettt ettt ettt e te e b e teesseeseesbesseesseeseesseessesseessensaessenssensenseenes 1.0
TOTAL Q11 SEIVICES .....uveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et e et e e et e e et e e e e e et e e et e e eeaseeeeseeeenseesenseeeesseeeenseeeeneeeeenseeeenseesennseeennneean W

(a)  Represents audit fees for our consolidated financial statements, including inseparable internal control and other audit
procedures performed during interim reviews.

(b)  Primarily relates to (i) audit services performed in connection with the pending acquisition of CWC, which we are required
to reimburse CWC for, (ii) accounting consultation services associated with the application of International Financial
Reporting Standards, (iii) internal control observations and recommendations associated with system implementations, (iv)
other assurance and attestation services not required by statute or regulation, (v) services related to our additional network
investment in the U.K., (vi) network security services and (vii) environmental and sustainability services.

22) Supplemental Companies Act Disclosures - Subsidiaries

At December 31, 2015, our subsidiaries are as follows:

Proportion
of voting

Country of rights and
Name of subsidiary incorporation Holdings shares held Nature of business
UPC Austria GmbH...........ccocovevieiiiiciieeee e, Austria Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UPC Austria Services GmbH .........cccccecevinininennnn. Austria Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UPC Business Austria GmbH..............cccceeevieiennnen. Austria Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UPC Cablecom Austria GmbH............ccccoceveninennenn. Austria Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UPC DSL Telecom GmbH..........cccooveveeienieirennen. Austria Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UPC Oberostereich GmbH .......c.cccecevivinincninennn Austria Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UPC Telekabel Wien GmbH............c.ccooevveviiniennnen. Austria Ordinary 95.0% Telecoms
UPC Telekabel-Fernsehnetz Region Baden Betriebe ) )

GINMDBH ..ot Austria Ordinary 95.0% Telecoms
UPC Telekabel-Fernsehnetz Wiener Neustadt ) )

Neunkirchen Betriebs GmbH...........ccoovvevveevveennn.. Austria Ordinary 95.0% Telecoms
BASE Company NV......ccccoovevveiieiieeeieeeeee e Belgium Ordinary 100.0% MNOY/Subholding
Allo Telecom NV......cooviiiiiieieiieieceeieeeeee e Belgium Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
GSM Services BVBA.......c.ooooiiiiiiieeceeeceeei, Belgium Ordinary 100.0% In liquidation
Ortel Mobile NV .......ooioiiiiiiiiiicieiececeeee e Belgium Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms

) Ordinary / Telecoms/
Telenet NV . ..o Belgium preferred 100.0% Subholding
Consumer

Telenet Finance BVBA.........cccoovevvieieveciececeeen, Belgium Ordinary 100.0% Financing
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Name of subsidiary

Telenet Group Holding NV ......ccoooiviiiiniiiee,
Telenet Mobile NV .......ocoooiieieniieiieeieceee e
Telenet Service Center BV/BA.........cccooeevvivvveieennnn.
Telenet Tecteo Bidco NV......ccoovveiiiieieiiciecieieee,

Telenet Vlaanderen NV ......coooveviiviiiveiiiieeiieieeeeeen.
T-VGAS NV ..o

De Vijver Media N V..o,

Idealabs Telenet Fund NV ......ccccooovvvviiieiiiiiiieeeen,

Pebble Media NV ......oovviiiieiiiicieeeeeee e
Diego Bidco Ltd. (@) ...ceccvevvieiecrieieereeieeeee e
LCPR Cayman Holding Inc........c.cccccveiniinincncnnnne.
United Chile Ventures, INC........ccccccoveeviiieeeeeeeenee.
Sociedad Televisora CBC Limitada..........................
VTR.COM SPA ..ottt
VTR Galaxy Chile S.p.A. oo,
VTR Global Carrier S.A.......cccooevieeieeeeeieeeeeene.
VTR Ingenieria S.A.....cocooeriniiieeieeeeseeeeen
VTR MoVl S.p.A. o
VTR Southam Chile S.p.A. ...ccoveiieieiieieeeeeeeen

UPC Ceska Republica Sro.......ccecveevenenencncnennenn

UPC Infrastructure S.I.0.......coovevevveeeieierieeeeeiinieeeeeenns

UPC Real EState S.I.0....cccuviiiiiieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e
UPC Broadband France S.A.S......ccoovvvvoieveeeiceieeeenn.

UPC Broadband France SNC.........cccccocvevveinvrrnnnne.
Arena Sport Rechte und Marketing GmbH..............
Unitymedia GmbH ............c.ocoeeiiviiiiiiecce,

Proportion
of voting
Country of rights and
incorporation Holdings shares held Nature of business
Ordinary/
Belgium Preferred 56.6% Telecoms/Holding
Belgium Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Belgium Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Belgium Ordinary 75.0% Holding
Ordinary/
Belgium Preferred 100.0% Telecoms
Belgium Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Ordinary
) (classes per . )
Belgium shareholder) 50.0% Holding/Media
Ordinary
(classes per .
) shareholder) + Holding/Start-up
Belgium profit 50.0% incubator
Ordinary
|
Belgium S(ﬁa?z;ec)sig:rr) 50.0% Holding/Media
Cayman Islands Common 100.0% Holding
Cayman Islands Common 100.0% Holding
Cayman Islands Common 100.0% Holding
Chile LLC interests 100.0% Inactive
Chile Common 100.0% Telecoms
Chile Common 100.0% Telecoms
Chile Common 100.0% Telecoms
Chile Common 100.0% Service
Chile Common 100.0% Telecoms
Chile Common 100.0% Dormant
no shares
(joint-stock)
issued,
comparable to
partnership
Czech Republic interest 100.0% Telecoms/Holding
no shares
(joint-stock)
issued,
comparable to
partnership
Czech Republic interest 100.0% Telecoms
no shares
(joint-stock)
issued,
comparable to
partnership
Czech Republic interest 100.0% Holding
France Ordinary 100.0% Holding
France Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Germany Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Germany Ordinary 100.0% Holding
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Unitymedia BW GmbH...........ccooooiiiiiiie Germany Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Partnership
Unitymedia Hessen GmbH & Co. KG...................... Germany Interests 100.0% Telecoms
Management
Unitymedia Hessen Verwaltungs GmbH.................... Germany Ordinary 100.0% Company
Unitymedia International GmbH................c..ccoeene. Germany Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Unitymedia Management GmbH ...........c..c..coccoeen Germany Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms/Holding
Unitymedia NRW GmbH .........c.ccooeiiiiiiiiii, Germany Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UPC Germany Financing Holding GmbH ................ Germany Ordinary 100.0% Holding
UPC Magyarorszag Kft.........cccoovevvivieciiiicicieenn. Hungary Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-Northern

CableTel Northern Ireland Limited.................c......... Ireland Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
Chorus Communications Limited.........cc.ccccecevenennene Ireland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Imminus (Ireland) Limited ...........ccocooevvvieenniiiennnen. Ireland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
LGIDTH Ireland..........cccovievieniieienieieeeee e Ireland Ordinary 100.0% Holding
NTL Communications (Ireland) Limited .................. Ireland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
NTL Irish Networks Limited..........ccccceecereneninennnn Ireland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Tara Television Limited...........ccocevevieviinieniiienenen, Ireland Ordinary 80.0% Telecoms
Tullamore Beta Limited..........ccccooevieincinicnncncnene. Ireland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
TVThree Sales Limited .........ccccooevveerieviiieniiieee, Ireland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
TVThree Enterprises Limited........c.cccecevverencncnnenne. Ireland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
TV3 Television Network Limited.............cccccuvenneneen. Ireland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Kish Media Limited..........cccecerievienienienieiesrenieennn Ireland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Channel 6 Broadcasting Limited..............cccccveuvennenn. Ireland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Ulana Business Management Limited....................... Ireland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UPC Broadband Ireland Limited...............c.cceennnnenn. Ireland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Virgin Media Ireland Limited..........ccccocovnincncnenne. Ireland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Finance Center Telenet Sarl..........c.cooeevvvvevniiiennnnen. Luxembourg Ordinary 100.0% Finance
Magrina Sarl........ccoccveviviiiieeeeee e Luxembourg Ordinary 100.0% Holding/Finance
Telenet International Finance Sarl..............c..ccoc........ Luxembourg Ordinary 100.0% Holding/Finance
Telenet Luxembourg Finance Center Sarl................. Luxembourg Ordinary 100.0% Finance
Telenet Solutions Luxemburg NV..........cccovevennnen. Luxembourg Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UPC DTH Leasing Sarl..........ccoceevvervenenieireieee, Luxembourg Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UPC DTH Sarl.......ccoooieiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeseeei, Luxembourg Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UPC DTH Slovakia Sarl........cccccecieeininininninenenn. Luxembourg Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Liberty Global Holding Company Limited................ Malta Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Liberty Global Insurance Company Limited............. Malta Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Amsterdamse Beheer-en Consultingmaatschappij

BV oottt Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Bicatobe Investments B.V..........ccccooveeviiieniiinenenn. Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Binan Investments B.V.........cccoocveviniiniiniiieee, Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Breedband Breda BV ........ccooooveviieiiiiciicicieceee, Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
CM Priofity B. V..ot Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
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Esprit Telecom BV ........ccoovveviiiieinene
FinCo Partner 1 BV ......ccoovvveveiee,
Labesa Holding B.V..........ccoecveevvevnnnnne.
LGCIHoldcoIBV ..o,

LGI China Holdings B.V......c..cccecenein.
LGIMobile BV .....ccooiiiiiiiieee
LGI Ventures B.V.....cccccovnninnincnns
Liberty Global B.V......cccccovviiiiiiienns

Liberty Global Content Investments BV
Liberty Global Content Netherlands BV

Liberty Global Europe Financing B.V....
Liberty Global Europe Holding B.V.......
Liberty Global Europe Investments B.V.

LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

() R

Liberty Global Europe Management B.V..................

Liberty Global Group Holding BV .........
Liberty Global Holding B.V...................
Liberty Global New Ventures B.V.........
Liberty Global Operations B.V...............
Liberty Global Services B.V...................
Liberty Global Ventures Holding BV.....
Lila Chile Holdings BV ........c.ccccceceninens
Lynx Global Europe I BV .....................
Plinius Investments BV ...........cccccccoeeie.
Priority Wireless B.V.......ccccoovveivennne
TeleCai Den Haag BV ..........ccocovvenvneene.
Torenspits BV......cccovevvievieciiciieeee
Torenspits I BV ......cccovveieviieiiiiciee,
UGC Australia BV......ccoooeiie
UPC Belgium B.V......ccccoevveiirieine,
UPC Broadband B.V.........cccooovvvreinne
UPC Broadband Holding B.V.................
UPC Broadband Ireland B.V..................
UPC Central Europe Holding B.V..........
UPC Chile Holding BV ........ccceveeennene
UPC CEE Holding BV .........cccovveuvnenne.
UPC Direct Programming Il B.V...........

Proportion
of voting
Country of rights and
incorporation Holdings shares held Nature of business
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Management

Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Company
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Operating
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
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UPC Equipment BV ........ccooiiiiiiieieeeceees
UPCExtra Il B.V....oooiiiiiiiiiiiiccccceee
UPC France Holding B.V.......cccoooviiiiiiciiiieies
UPC Germany Holding B.V.......ccccccevininnininennn
UPC Holding B.V.....ccoooviiiiiiceeceeeeeseee,
UPC Holding II B.V..cooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiinncnecee
UPC International Operations BV .............ccccoevennn.
UPC Internet Holding B.V.....cccoooiiiiiinnninienen
UPC Luxembourg Holding B.V.........c.ccooeoviiiennnn,
UPC Nederland Holding IBV.......c.cccovvveveireiene
UPC Nederland Holding I BV .........ccccooveviiiienenn,
UPC Nederland Holding Il BV .......ccocvinininennnn.
UPC Poland Holding B.V...........cccooiiiiiieiiiieie,
UPC Romania Holding B.V........cccccooveieieireiee
UPC Southern Europe Holding BV..........cc.cceeuvae.
UPC Switzerland Holding BV..........cccovvveviveienne.
UPC Western Europe Holding 2 BV ...
UPC Western Europe Holding B.V........cccoceoienenn.
VTR Finance BV ...,
XB Facilities BV ...c..cocooivininiiiiiiecncncncncee,
ZeSKO BV ..o

Ziggo Deelnemingen BV ..o,
Ziggo Finance 2 BV ...,
Ziggo Group Holding BV ...,
Ziggo Holding BV .....cooiiiiiiieee,
Ziggo Netwerk BV ..o,
Ziggo Netwerk I BV,
Ziggo Services B.V ...
Ziggo Services Employment B.V.............cccooeiae.
Ziggo Services Mobile B.V.......ccocecivvninnncnnne,
Ziggo Services Netwerk 2 B.V......ccocoviinininnnenn.
Ziggo Toestel Financiering BV ..o
Ziggo Zakelijk Services B.V......cocoovoniniiiniine,
Zomerwind Holding B.V.......coooiiiiininiin,

Zoranet Connectivity Services BV ..........cccccoevennen.

ZUMB B.V.oiiiiit e
FinCo Partner 1 BV ..ot
Cooperatic HBO Nederland Cooperatief U.A...........

Proportion
of voting
Country of rights and

incorporation Holdings shares held Nature of business
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Netherlands Ordinary 50.0% Telecoms
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HBO Netherlands Distribution BV............c..coc........ Netherlands Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
AZart-Sat SP Z0O0 ......oovvieieiieieeeeee e Poland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UPC Polska Sp. Z 0.0....ccoovieieiieiiecieceeeceeein, Poland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms/Holding
Net-Sat Media Sp Z00 ......cooveeereeiecieieeieeevee e Poland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
AWONET SP Z00 ..ot Poland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Liberty Cablevision of Puerto Rico LLC .................. Puerto Rico Common 100.0% Telecoms
Puerto Rico Cable Acquisition Company LLC......... Puerto Rico Common 100.0% Telecoms
Focus Sat Romania Srl (aka Focus Sat Srl)............... Romania Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UPC Romania Stl.........cccooievveiiiiinieieieeieceeens Romania Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
CableTel Scotland Limited...........ccceoeirincnencncnnne UK-Scotland Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
Capital City Cablevision Limited..............cccccvevennenns UK-Scotland Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
Hieronymous Limited.........ccoceverevieinninincncncnenne. UK-Scotland Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
ntl Glasgow Holdings Limited ............c.ccocevvrvrennnnen. UK-Scotland Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
Perth Cable Television Limited..........cccccccecerenennnne. UK-Scotland Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
Telewest Communications (Cumbernauld)

LAMIEEA ..o UK-Scotland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Telewest Communications (Dumbarton) Limited..... UK-Scotland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Telewest Communications (Dundee & Perth)

LATNIECA e+ttt neaes UK-Scotland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Telewest Communications (Falkirk) Limited............ UK-Scotland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Telewest Communications (Glenrothes) Limited...... UK-Scotland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Telewest Communications (Motherwell) Limited..... UK-Scotland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Telewest Communications (Scotland Holdings) )

LAMIEC e+ aees UK-Scotland Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
Telewest Communications (Scotland) Limited......... UK-Scotland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms

Partnership
Telewest Communications (Scotland) Venture......... UK-Scotland Interests 100.0% Partnership
no shares
(joint-stock)
issued,
comparable to
partnership
UPC Broadband Slovakia S1o.........ccccceeveeveirenernnnnne. Slovak Republic interest 100.0% Telecoms/Holding
Ordinary/
istered
RAE Regionalantenne Ermatingen AG..................... Switzerland resgﬁzre;rse 55.0% Telecoms
Ordinary/bearer
STEEL SA e Switzerland shares 66.7% Telecoms
Ordinary/
istered
Telelavaux SA..........ccccoooviiiiiiiiiiic Switzerland resgﬁzre;rse 80.0% Telecoms
Ordinary/
istered
Teledistal SA.........cccooviiiiiii Switzerland resgﬁzreerse 58.3% Telecoms
UPC Cablecom GmbH ...........c.cooviiiiiiiiiiieie, Switzerland Ordinary 100.0% Holding
Ordinary/
istered
Video 2000 SA.......ccocoiiiiiiiiiccceee Switzerland regﬁzér: 60.0% Telecoms
upe schweiz GmbH............cccooeevieiiiieieieeeee Switzerland Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
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All3Media Holdings Ltd..........cccoeoveeieiiiieiicieenen, United Kingdom Ordinary 50.0% Holding

DLG Acquisitions Limited.........ccccceceveenvenencncnenne. United Kingdom Ordinary 50.0% Holding

DLG Financing 1 Limited ........c.cocoeieviiiennicienenen. United Kingdom Ordinary 50.0% Holding

DLG Financing 2 Limited .......ccccoceceeeivinienencncnenne. United Kingdom Ordinary 50.0% Holding
UK-England &

Action Stations (2000) Limited..........c..cccoevvrereennen.. Wales Ordinary 92.5% Dormant
UK-England &

Action Stations (Lakeside) Limited............c..c.......... Wales Ordinary 92.5% Dormant
UK-England &

Avon Cable Investments Limited..............cc.cvenennen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England & Partnership

Avon Cable Joint Venture............cccoevevveeeevneerennenen. Wales Interests 100.0% Partnership
UK-England &

Barnsley Cable Communications Limited................. Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &

BCMV Leasing Limited........cccccoeeverievienienienreenenn Wales Ordinary 100.0% Leasing
UK-England &

BCMY LIMItEd.....oeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Birmingham Cable Corporation Limited................... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Birmingham Cable Limited..........c..cccooevvevrriiennnnen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Bitbuzz UK Limited .........cccoeevevieviinieieceeie e, Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Blue Yonder Workwise Limited........cccccceevvvennneeennn. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Bluebottle Call Limited.........cccccvecverierienieienreieeenn Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &

Bradford Cable Communications Limited ................ Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &

Cable Adnet Limited.........cooeoeeeeeeeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeene Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Cable Camden Limited.........c.cccoevevuieieneeiiiieienns Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Cable Communications Limited.............cccccccverennenn. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Cable Enfield Limited ..........ccooceeeveveeieneeieiieies Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Cable Hackney & Islington Limited................c......... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Cable Haringey Limited ........ccccoooeveeenieiecieeee Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Cable Internet Limited........cccovveeeeveeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeene Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Cable London Limited..........ccccceevviviieieiiciiiieiens Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Cable on Demand Limited...........c.ccoeeveveevuiieenennnns Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

CableTel (UK) Limited...........ccceeevieeieeiieiriecieenea, Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

CableTel Herts and Beds Limited...........cccccvvveeennenn. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
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UK-England &

CableTel Surrey and Hampshire Limited.................. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

CableTel West Riding Limited..............ccocovevvrenennenn. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England & )

Cambridge Holding Company Limited..................... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Holding
UK-England & o

Credit-Track Debt Recovery Limited........................ Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &

Crystal Palace Radio Limited.............c.cceevververenn. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Crystalvision Productions Limited............c...cceuenenn. Wales Ordinary 50.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Diamond Cable Communications Limited................ Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Doncaster Cable Communications Limited............... Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England & )

Eurobell (Holdings) Limited ...........cccoveeevvieeennnen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Holding
UK-England &

Eurobell (IDA) Limited.........ccccoeevvivieieniericreenee. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Eurobell (No 2) Limited ........c.cccoeevevievrenieiecreienen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Eurobell (No 3) Limited..........cccceeeveeeieecieireeieenen Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Eurobell (South West) Limited...........c.ccoeevvreneennnn.. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Eurobell (Sussex ) Limited..........cccoevevveeeeenienienenen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Eurobell (West Kent) Limited...........cccoeeveeviiiennnen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Eurobell Internet Services Limited.............c..coene.eee. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Eurobell Limited...........ccccovvievierieienieieeeec e Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Filegale Limited...........cccverieieniecienieieseeee e Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Flextech (1992) Limited..........cccceevvvevveecieirieieenen Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Flextech (Kindernet Investment) Limited ................. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Flextech B Limited.........c.ccooevveviieiiniciicieie e, Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Flextech Broadband Holdings Limited ..................... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Flextech Broadband Limited ..............cccooevevvirrennnen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Flextech Broadcasting Limited............c.ccceevvrvennnen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

FIeXteCh C..oooeiieieeeeeeeee e Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Flextech Childrens Channel Limited......................... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Flextech Communications Limited ........................... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
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UK-England &

Flextech Homeshopping Limited ............ccccceveveneenee. Wales Ordinary 80.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Flextech Interactive Limited..........ccoveeveveeeeeeeeeeeenn. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Flextech Limited.........c..ccoovvieieiieiiiicieceee e, Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Flextech Media Holdings Limited..............c..coene.en. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Flextech T Limited .........ccccveveerieienieieeieee e Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

General Cable Group Limited ............cccccvevverveienne Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England & Ordinary & )

General Cable Holdings Limited.............ccccoccvenennen. Wales Deferred 100.0% Holding
UK-England &

General Cable Investments Limited ........ccccoveeveenn.... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

General Cable Limited .........ccocceevveviieieiieiiieeiene, Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

General Cable Programming Limited ...................... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England & o )

Global Handset Finco Ltd (2) ......ccceoeieinencncncnene Wales Ordinary 100.0% Mobile Financing
UK-England & o

Halifax Cable Communications Limited................... Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &

Interactive Digital Sales Limited............cccccvrvennnnee. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Jewel Holdings ........c.covvevveeiieieiiicieeeeeceee e Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant

LG Ireland Group Limited.......c.ccccevveirerienencncnenne. United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding

LGCI HoldCo IIT Ltd (8) ..eovvevvereeeieereeieeveeie e United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding

LGCI Holding Limited (2).......ccceoereeinerenenencnenne. United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding

LGE Coral Holdco Ltd (2).....ccovveveerieiieieiiceieienee, United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding

LGE Coral Mergerco Ltd .......ccceoeieineniencncncnenne, United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding

Liberty Global Broadband I Limited (a) ................... United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding

Liberty Global Broadband II Limited........................ United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding

Liberty Global CIHB Ltd (2)....c..coeevvereeieiieirenenen. United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding

Liberty Global Content Investments Holding Ltd..... United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding

Liberty Global Content Investments Ltd................... United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding

Liberty Global Europe 2 Limited ()........c.ccccceeuenne. United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding

Liberty Global Europe Ltd. ......c.ccooeveevieieciiienen. United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding

Liberty Global Finance I (UK) Ltd. .........cccccccvennne. United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding

Liberty Global Incorporated Limited (a)................... United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding

Liberty Global Ventures Group Limited (a).............. United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding

Lynx Europe 4 Limited..........cccccoevvevvieviieieciecienenen. United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding
UK-England &

M&NW Network II Limited...........ccceeveeeeeniiienennen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

M&NW Network Limited..........cccoeveeveeeenniieenenen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms

II-133



Name of subsidiary

Matchco Limited
Mayfair Way Management Limited.

Middlesex Cable Limited
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ntl (Aylesbury and Chiltern) Limited.......................

ntl (B) Limited

ntl (BCM Plan) Pension Trustees Limited.................

ntl (Broadland) Limited
ntl (CWC Holdings)
ntl (CWC) Corporation Limited

ntl (CWC) Limited

ntl (CWC) UK

ntl (Leeds) Limited
ntl (Norwich) Limited
ntl (Peterborough) Limited
ntl (South East) Limited
ntl (South Hertfordshire) Limited

ntl (South London) Limited

ntl (York) Limited

ntl Acquisition Company Limited

ntl Bolton Cablevision Holding Company ................

ntl Business (Ireland) Limited
ntl Business Limited

ntl CableComms Bolton
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incorporation Holdings shares held Nature of business

UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 76.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 83.3% In Liquidation
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England & Ordinary & )

Wales Preference 100.0% Holding
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms

1I-134



Name of subsidiary

LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

ntl CableComms Bolton Leasing Limited.................

ntl CableComms Bromley ..................

ntl CableComms Bromley Leasing Limited..............

ntl CableComms Bury and Rochdale .
ntl CableComms Cheshire..................

ntl CableComms Derby......................

ntl CableComms Derby Leasing Limited..................

ntl CableComms East Lancashire.......

ntl CableComms Greater Manchester

ntl CableComms Greater Manchester
Limited......coovviveiieiiieiieeeeee,

ntl CableComms Group Limited ........

Leasing

ntl CableComms Holdings No I Limited..................

ntl CableComms Holdings No 2 Limited..................

ntl CableComms Limited ...................

ntl CableComms Macclesfield ...........

ntl CableComms Manchester Limited

ntl CableComms Oldham and Tameside...................

ntl CableComms Solent......................
ntl CableComms Staffordshire............
ntl CableComms Stockport.................

ntl CableComms Surrey .....................

ntl CableComms Surrey Leasing Limited.................

nt]l CableComms SuSS€X.......cccouuune....

ntl CableComms Sussex Leasing Limited.................

ntl CableComms WesseX.......ccouuue......

ntl CableComms Wessex Leasing Limited................

ntl CableComms Wirral......................

Proportion
of voting
Country of rights and
incorporation Holdings shares held Nature of business

UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Leasing
UK-England & Ordinary &

Wales Preference 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Leasing
UK-England & Ordinary &

Wales Preference 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England & Ordinary &

Wales Preference 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Leasing
UK-England & Ordinary &

Wales Preference 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Leasing
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Holding
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England & Ordinary &

Wales Preference 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England & Ordinary &

Wales Preference 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England & Ordinary &

Wales Preference 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England & Ordinary &

Wales Preference 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England & Ordinary &

Wales Preference 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England & Ordinary &

Wales Preference 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Leasing
UK-England & Ordinary &

Wales Preference 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Leasing
UK-England & Ordinary &

Wales Preference 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Leasing
UK-England & Ordinary &

Wales Preference 100.0% Telecoms
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ntl CableComms Wirral Leasing Limited..................

ntl Cambridge Limited ....................

ntl Chartwell Holdings Limited.......

ntl Communications Services Limited ......................

ntl Darlington Limited.....................

ntl Derby Cablevision Holding Company .................

ntl Digital Ventures Limited............
ntl Fawnspring Limited ...................
ntl Funding Limited...........c.c.cc.......
ntl GlasgoW.......ccovevvevieeienrieiene,
ntl Glasgow Holdings Limited ........
ntl Holdings (Broadland) Limited ...
ntl Holdings (East London) Limited
ntl Holdings (Leeds) Limited ..........

ntl Holdings (Norwich) Limited......

ntl Holdings (Peterborough) Limited .......................

ntl Internet Services Limited ...........
ntl Kirklees .......coovvvevevevveeeeienenee,

ntl Kirklees Holdings Limited.........

ntl Manchester Cablevision Holding Company ........

ntl Microclock Services Limited .....
ntl Midlands Leasing Limited .........

ntl Midlands Limited........................

ntl Partcheer Company Limited.......
ntl Pension Trustees Limited...........

ntl Rectangle Limited ......................

Proportion
of voting
Country of rights and
incorporation Holdings shares held Nature of business

UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Leasing
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England & Ordinary & )

Wales Preference 100.0% Holding
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Financing
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England & Ordinary & )

Wales Preference 100.0% Holding
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Leasing
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &

Wales Ordinary 100.0% Holding
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Proportion
of voting
. _ Country of . rights and .
Name of subsidiary incorporation Holdings shares held Nature of business
UK-England & Ordinary &
ntl Sideoffer Limited ...........ooovevviviiiiiiiiieiiiiiieeeene Wagles Defererd 100.0% Dormant
ntl Solent Telephone and Cable TV Company UK-England &
LAMItEd . .ovcvvieiecieieiiceieree et Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
ntl South Central Limited...........cccoeveeviiienniiienenen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
ntl South Wales Limited...........ccccevvevvinieniiieinnen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
ntl Streetunique Projects Limited ............c.ccccccvennennen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
ntl Streetunit Projects Limited............cccoecvevvvrrennnen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
ntl Streetusual Services Limited........ccceeeeueeveveeenenens Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
ntl Streetvision Services Limited.......ccccveeeeveeeeeeeenn.. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
ntl Streetvital Services Limited ...........cccceeeviiuvennen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England & Ordinary &
ntl Streetwarm Services Limited .............cccceevennenen. Wales Deferred 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
ntl Streetwide Services Limited...........c.ccccevvirvennnen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
ntl Strikeagent Trading Limited.............c.ccccvvrvennen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
ntl Strikeamount Trading Limited..............cc.coeee.... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
ntl Strikeapart Trading Limited...........c..cccevvevennen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
ntl Telecom Services Limited............ccccoeeeeviiienennen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
ntl Trustees Limited..........ccecvevieviinieciinieiecieienen, Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
ntl UK Telephone and Cable TV Holding Company UK-England & Ordinary &
LAMIted...ovoveveveveeeieieiereieeeereeeee e Wales Deferred 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
ntl Victoria IT Limited..........cccovvevienieienieecieeenn Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
ntl Victoria Limited ..........oooovvveiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiieeeee Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
ntl Winston Holdings Limited.............cccoveevierennnnen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
ntl Wirral Telephone and Cable TV Company.......... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
ntl Wirral Telephone and Cable TV Company UK-England & ) )
Leasing Limited .........ccocvveevrierinieieeieeieeieeene Wales Ordinary 100.0% Leasing
UK-England &
Omne Telecommunications Limited...........c..c.cccc... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
Rapid Business Solutions Limited..............cccccvennenen. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
Rapid Travel Solutions Limited..........c...ccccevveveennee.. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
Screenshop Limited............ccooieiiviieiiiiciireeiee Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
Sheffield Cable Communications Limited................ Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
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Proportion
of voting
Country of rights and
Name of subsidiary incorporation Holdings shares held Nature of business
UK-England &
Smallworld Cable Limited .........coovveeeeieieieeieeeenaann. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Smashedatom Limited ......cc.eeveeeeeoeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenn. Wales Ordinary 60.0% Dormant
UK-England &
Southwestern Bell International Holdings Limited... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
Telewest Communications (Central Lancashire) UK-England &
LAMIted....covieviieieieeiiiee e Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Telewest Communications (Cotswolds) Limited....... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England & Partnership
Telewest Communications (Cotswolds) Venture...... Wales Interests 100.0% Partnership
Telewest Communications (Fylde & Wyre) UK-England &
LAMItEd oo Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Telewest Communications (Liverpool) Limited........ Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Telewest Communications (London South) Joint UK-England & Partnership )
VENIULE. ....coeeeeeeeceeeceeeceeeceeeceeesesecaeeseeeeeseeaeasesenenanans Wales Interests 100.0% Partnership
Telewest Communications (London South) UK-England &
Limited ...coeeiiieeieiieeeee e Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Telewest Communications (Midlands and North UK-England & )
West) Leasing Limited..........ccceeveeeenreeeenreenenenne. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Telewest Communications (Midlands and North UK-England & ]
West) Limited.........coovoveveieieieierieeeeeeceeeeeeeenna Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Telewest Communications (Midlands) Limited........ Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Telewest Communications (North East) Limited...... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Telewest Communications (North East) UK-England & Partnership )
Partnership .......c.ceeeeeerecerececeeecececececececececeeeceseeeeeeans Wales Interests 100.0% Partnership
UK-England &
Telewest Communications (North West) Limited..... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
Telewest Communications (South East) Limited...... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Telewest Communications (South East) UK-England & Partnership )
Partnership .........ocoveveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e Wales Interests 100.0% Partnership
Telewest Communications (South Thames Estuary) UK-England &
LAMItEd .o Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Telewest Communications (South West) Limited..... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Telewest Communications (Southport) Limited........ Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
Telewest Communications (St Helens & Knowsley) UK-England &
LAMIted....covieeiieiiieeieeieeee e Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Telewest Communications (Telford) Limited............ Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Telewest Communications (Tyneside) Limited......... Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Telewest Communications (Wigan) Limited............. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Telewest Communications Cable Limited................. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
Telewest Communications Holdco Limited.............. Wales Ordinary 100.0% Holding
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Telewest Communications Holdings Limited............

Telewest Communications Network

s Limited...........

Telewest Limited..........ooooveiiiiiiiiiiiieieeceeee e

Telewest Parliamentary Holdings Limited................

Telewest Trustees Limited...........cccovveeeveeeeivvcneeeennnn.

Telewest UK Limited...........cccooveeveeieieiiiieeeereeenen.

Telewest Workwise Limited...........coooevvveviiviinneeeeenn.

The Cable Corporation Limited...........c..ccocevveurennennen.

The Yorkshire Cable Group Limited.........................

Theseus No. 1 Limited ....................

Theseus No.2 Limited .....................

Tyneside Cable Limited Partnership.
UPC Broadband UK Limited ..........

Virgin Media Business Limited.......

Virgin Media Communications Lim

ited.....ocoovveennnnn.

Virgin Media Communications Networks Limited...

Virgin Media Employee Medical Trust Limited........

Virgin Media Finance plc................

Virgin Media Finco Limited............

Virgin Media Investment Holdings Limited..............

Virgin Media Investments Limited..

Virgin Media Limited......................

Virgin Media Mobile Finance Limited......................

Virgin Media Payments Limited......
Virgin Media Sales Limited.............

Virgin Media Secretaries Limited....

Proportion
of voting
Country of rights and
incorporation Holdings shares held Nature of business
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Holding
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Holding
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England & Partnership
Wales Interests 100.0% Partnership
United Kingdom Ordinary 100.0% Holding
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Financing
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Financing
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Holding
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England & Guarantor (PPF
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Levy)
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Name of subsidiary

Virgin Media Secured Finance plc.........cccccvvvenenee.
Virgin Media SFA Finance Limited..........................
Virgin Media Transfers (No 3) Limited.....................
Virgin Media Wholesale Limited.............cccccccvrnenee.
Virgin Mobile Group (UK) Limited.........c..c.ccoeneee.
Virgin Mobile Holdings (UK) Limited......................
Virgin Mobile Telecoms Limited............ccccceoveneenen.
Virgin Net Limited..........ccooovevvevieviieieieceee e,
VM Real Estate Limited.........cccccoeieeieienenineneenne.
VM Sundial Limited.........coocooeieneiiiiiiicincncee,

VMEFH Limited.......cccocecinecineiniininineinceeeneeeneene

VMWH Limited ......cccooviiiiieieieieeeeseee e
W Television Leasing Limited.............ccccoeevievrennnen.
Wakefield Cable Communications Limited...............
Windsor Television Limited.........c.cccceoereirininnnnnne.
Workplace Technologies Trustees Company
LAMIted....coveeeiieiieeeieieseeeee e
X-TANT Limited.......cccooverireririireieeeeereeeeeene
Yorkshire Cable Communications Limited...............
Yorkshire Cable Finance Limited...............cccoournneee.
Avon Cable Limited Partnership.............ccceveeuvennenee.
Cotswolds Cable Limited Partnership.......................

Edinburgh Cable Limited Partnership.........c..c..........

Estuaries Cable Limited Partnership ........................
LGI International Holdings, Inc. .........c.ccoevvveurennnnnen.
LGI Technology Holdings Inc.........ccccccecerinencnnenne.
Liberty Global Management, LLC.............ccccceeene.
Liberty Global Services, LLC ......c..cccocvvvevivrrenennen.

Proportion
of voting
Country of rights and
incorporation Holdings shares held Nature of business
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Financing
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Financing
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England & Ordinary &
Wales Deferred 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Dormant
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Leasing
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% Telecoms
UK-England &
Wales Ordinary 100.0% In Liquidation
Partnership
USA-Colorado Interests 100.0% Partnership
Partnership
USA-Colorado Interests 100.0% Partnership
Partnership
USA-Colorado Interests 100.0% Partnership
Partnership
USA-Colorado Interests 100.0% Partnership
USA-Colorado Common 100.0% Holding
USA-Colorado Common 100.0% Holding
USA-Colorado Common 100.0% Services
USA-Colorado Common 100.0% Services
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of voting
Country of rights and
Name of subsidiary incorporation Holdings shares held Nature of business
Liberty Home Shop International, Inc....................... USA-Colorado Common 100.0% Dormant
Partnership
London South Cable Partnership.............ccccceevvennennen. USA-Colorado Interests 100.0% Partnership
Common;
Lynx Finance 1 LLC......ccccooiiiiiniiiiiicnccncee, USA-Colorado preferred 100.0% Holding
Virgin Media Finance Holdings Inc. ..........cccocuene..e. USA-Colorado  Common Stock 100.0% Holding
Partnership
TCI US West Cable Communications Group............ USA-Colorado Interests 100.0% Partnership
Partnership
UIM Aircraft, LLC ...ooooiiiiieeeeeceeccce USA-Colorado Interests 100.0% Partnership
Partnership
United Cable (London South) Limited Partnership... USA-Colorado Interests 100.0% Partnership
United Chile, LLC ......c..coooovieiiiiciieeeeeeee e, USA-Colorado Common 100.0% Holding
Virgin Media Group LLC........ccccvvieiinieiecreeen, USA-Colorado  Common Stock 100.0% Holding
Virgin Media InC.........ccocveevieieiiiciieiceceee e, USA-Colorado  Common Stock 100.0% Holding
Associated SMR, INC. c..evvvvviiiniiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen USA-Delaware Common 100.0% Holding
Partnership
Chartwell Investors, LP .......ccccvvviivveiiiieiiiieiieeeeeens USA-Delaware Interests 100.0% Partnership
LCPR Ventures LLC.........ccooeovevieiiniecieceee e USA-Delaware Common 100.0% Holding
Partnership
Int ts; .
L0 Cable LLC ..o USA-Delaware  aoonomis 60.0% Holding
Partnership
Int ts;
L0 Cable LP ..o USA-Delaware  cconomia 60.0% Holding
Partnership
LG Financing Partnership............cccooeeeeviieevriirennnnen. USA-Delaware Interests 100.0% Holding
LGI International, InC........ccooeveneieininnnencene, USA-Delaware Common 100.0% Holding
LGI Ventures Management, Inc...........ccoccevvriennnnen. USA-Delaware Common 100.0% Holding
Liberty Global Europe LLC .........ccccvevvvvieviiiieenen. USA-Delaware Common 100.0% Holding
Liberty Global Japan, LLC...........cccooeevieieiricrennen. USA-Delaware Common 100.0% Holding
Liberty Global, Inc. (2)......cccecevieverieienieieeeeieenenn USA-Delaware Common 100.0% Holding
Liberty Japan MC, LLC ........ccccooevvieieviieieiecreeee. USA-Delaware Common 100.0% Holding
Liberty Japan V, INC......ccccevvveieniieiinieiecieie e USA-Delaware Common 100.0% Holding
Liberty Media International Holdings, LLC ............. USA-Delaware Common 100.0% Holding
Liberty Programming Japan, LLC.........c..ccccccevinnne. USA-Delaware Common 100.0% Holding
Liberty Spectrum Inc.........ccocovevvieiinieiiicicieceeee, USA-Delaware Common 100.0% Holding
LiLAC Holdings InC.......c.cccoeeveviieienieieceeee e USA-Delaware Common 100.0% Holding
NNS UK Holdings 1 LLC .....ccooveieieieieieeeeeeee USA-Delaware =~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NNS UK Holdings 2, InC.......ccceoeeieineninenininiennn USA-Delaware =~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
North CableComms Holdings, Inc. ..........ccccoovnneee. USA-Delaware =~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
Common
North CableComms LLC .......cccccoeiiiiiiiiieicne. USA-Delaware Interests 100.0% Holding
North CableComms Management, Inc. ........c....c...... USA-Delaware =~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NTL (Triangle) LLC......ccooovieiiirieiieeeieeeee e USA-Delaware ~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NTL Bromley Company........c.cccecueeverenenenenennen USA-Delaware =~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NTL CableComms Group, Inc. .......ccccecvrvrirenrnnenne. USA-Delaware ~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
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NTL Chartwell Holdings 2, InC.......c.cceceevvrrrrrunnnene. USA-Delaware =~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NTL Chartwell Holdings, Inc.........ccccccecininininennenn. USA-Delaware =~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NTL North CableComms Holdings, Inc.................... USA-Delaware =~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NTL North CableComms Management, Inc. ............ USA-Delaware =~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NTL Programming Subsidiary Company.................. USA-Delaware ~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NTL Solent Company............ccceeeeevereervenvenreeseerneenns USA-Delaware ~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NTL South CableComms Holdings, Inc.................... USA-Delaware =~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NTL South CableComms Management, Inc. ............ USA-Delaware =~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NTL Surrey COmMPany ...........ccceeeeeveereerreereeereevenneenns USA-Delaware ~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NTL Sussex Company..........ccccceecueerveerreenveereeennennnes USA-Delaware ~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NTL UK CableComms Holdings, Inc........................ USA-Delaware =~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NTL Wessex Company.........cccceecveerveerreeneeeseeennennnes USA-Delaware ~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NTL Winston Holdings, Inc. ........cccceeveirinininiennne. USA-Delaware =~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
NTL Wirral Company...........ccceeeerverreerreeeenreneenneenns USA-Delaware ~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
South CableComms Holdings, Inc. ..........cccvvvnnnen. USA-Delaware =~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
Common
South CableComms LLC ........cccceoiiiiiininiiiiiieee USA-Delaware Interests 100.0% Holding
South CableComms Management, Inc. .........c.......... USA-Delaware =~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
Telewest Global Finance LLC..........cccccoeoveininrnnne. USA-Delaware ~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
UnitedGlobalCom LLC .........ccceceiiiiinininincnenen USA-Delaware ~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
UPC Financing Partnership ............cccccevveeviiiienenen, USA-Delaware ~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
Virgin Media Bristol LLC.......c..ccccceciiiniinincninene. USA-Delaware ~ Common Stock 100.0% Holding
Common
Winston Investors LLC .......ooooiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeene USA-Delaware Interests 100.0% Holding
Partnership
Ziggo Financing Partnership ...........cccocevveviiieennnen. USA-Delaware Interests 100.0% Holding

(a)  Subsidiary is a direct subsidiary of Liberty Global plc.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Liberty Global plc for the year ended December 31, 2015 set out on
pages I1I-3 to III-17. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK
Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 101, Reduced
Disclosure Framework.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 1I-1, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit, and
express an opinion on, the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the parent company financial statements:

» give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at December 31, 2015;

*  have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
*  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion:

» the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006; and

+ theinformation given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the parent company financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our
opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

«  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
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we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Other matter

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Liberty Global plc for the year ended December 31, 2015.

/s/ JOHN CAIN

John Cain (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square, London, E14 SGL
April 25,2016
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC

BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2015 and 2014
(Parent Company Only)
Fixed assets:
Investments — group undertakings (NOTE 3) ........eecveruierierierierieeie ettt ees
Property and equipment, Nt (NOT€ 9) ......cueevvieieriieieiieeiecie ettt re b ree s eee
Intangible assets not subject to amortization (N0t 9) ........cocevuieriiiirienieeeeeee e
TOtAl fIXEA @SSELS ...euvevitetertertet ettt ettt ettt st een

Current assets:

Notes receivable — group undertakings (including $9,727.1 million and $9,657.0 million,
respectively, due after more than one year) (NOt€ 4) ......ceccvevvieiiiieriiiieieeiesieeie e

Accrued interest receivable — group undertakings (NOt€ 4)........cccceevuereerienienienieneeceeeceee e
Other receivables — group undertakings (NOt€ 4) .......c.coveruerierienienieieieieeeinene e
Other assets: amounts recoverable in less than one year ............ccocvveveveecieniecienieieeiee e

Deferred income taxes (including $3.3 million and nil, respectively, due after more than one
FBAT) uveeuteeeureenteesureeteesueeenseessaeesteesaseeateesateenbeesseeeabeensaeeab e e st e eateeehteeabe e taeenbeenteeenbeenateenteennreenbeennn
Total debtors and Other ASSELS........coueueierieieiiieeeteete ettt

Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS ........ccoiiiiiiiiie e
Restricted cash (held by JSOP — N0LE 6) .....ceevieuiriririiriiniiriiniesteretetetetetet et

Total current assets (including $9,730.4 million and $9,657.0 million, respectively, due
after MOTe than ONE YEAT) ......cceeviiieiieieciee ettt sttt eneeneeens

TOtAL ASSELS.....euevenieieieteeeteree ettt sttt
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year:
Note payable — group undertakings (NOt€ 4) ........ccuevuieiirierieniereeeeenee et see et eee e seeens
TTAAE CTEATLOTS. ...ttt ettt sttt sttt ne
Other accrued and current liabilities:
Group undertakings (NOTE 4) ......cc.evuerirririerieieieieteee sttt ettt ettt see b saenen
TRILA-PATLY ..ottt ettt sttt te et e s teesbeeseesbeesaesseessenseesseseeseesseensesseensennean
Total creditors: amounts falling due within one year............ccccooceiiiiniiiiiniiinc e

Net current assets (including $9,730.4 million and $9,657.0 million, respectively, due after
MOTE thAN ONE YEAL).....uiiieiiiieitieieitieieeteet et ete et et e eteesbesttesbesstessesssesseessesseessesseessesssensenseensenses

Total assets less current Habilities. ........coeverierierieieiiieeercr ettt

Creditors: amounts falling due after one year:
Notes payable — group undertakings (NOt€ 4)........c.eoueeiirieriirieie et
Other non-current HabIlItIEs ........cccecveiriiriiiiiniier sttt
Total creditors: amounts falling due after one year............ccvevveeeevieiineecieneeieceeee e
TOtAl LHADIIIEIES -ttt ettt ettt et ettt e bt et et e e e s et e eneeneeene

INCE @SSELS .oeeiiiieieieii ittt e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s s saasaaaeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeeesesaensassrarrerrnnnnneees

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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December 31,

2015 2014

in millions

26,6523 § 20,8392

42 —
3.0 3.0
26,659.5 20,8422
9,727.1 15,323.8
446.2 448.7
58.4 11.9
100.3 48.3
33 —
10,335.3 15,8327
24.6 36.7

5.6 6.7
10,365.5 15,876.1
37,025.0 36,718.3
1,121.7 679.2
5.6 23.6
1,593.4 1,479.8
13.4 14.7
2,734.1 2,197.3
7,631.4 13,678.8
34,290.9 34,521.0
1,336.9 18.9
2.8 1.9
1,339.7 20.8
4,073.8 22181

32,9512 §  34,500.2




LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
BALANCE SHEETS — (Continued)
December 31, 2015 and 2014

(Parent Company Only)
December 31,
2015 2014
in millions
Capital and reserves (note 6):

Called up share capital (NOLE 5) ..eccveeriierieeiieiieeie ettt et aeebeeseaeebeessaeenseensne s $ 89 § 8.9
Share PremMiUM FESEIVE .....c.coueteteteeeririeritrteetertesttstesteseestetetetenseasenteneeseeseeseesessessessessessensens 6,580.8 6,496.8
Capital TedCMPLION FESCIVE ...uvivvereieieiieieieetesteeteeteeteeseessesseessesssesseessesseessessaessenseensenseensenses 0.9 0.4
ORI TESEIVES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e a et s bt e bt s st e s bt eatesbeem e e sbeenteebeentesseeneeeae 131.7 131.7
Profit and 10SS QCCOUNT .........ccoviiiieiie et e e e et e e e e e eeareeeenreeeenes 26,229.3 27,866.6
Treasury Shares, 8t COSt......oiviiiriiiirieieiietere ettt ettt se et e st e e etaebeesaenseeseeseesneseens (0.4) 4.2)

Shareholders” TUNAS.......cooviiiiiiieeeee ettt e e e st e e eeaveeeeneeas $ 329512 $ 34,500.2

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on April 25, 2016 and were signed on its behalf by:

/s/ MICHAEL T. FRIES
Michael T. Fries

President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director
Company registered number: 8379990

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC

STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
December 31, 2015 and 2014
(Parent Company Only)
Called up Share Capital Profit and Treasury
share premium redemption Other loss shares, at
capital reserve reserve reserves account cost
in millions
Balance at January 1,2014..........ccceovvevverieierenee, $ 39 § 4490 § 0.1 $ 131.7 $28,6908 § (7.7
Profit for the financial period............cccevvrrennnen. — — — — 565.9 —
Share issues, 1ess €XPenses.........ccecveevveveereevennennn. 14 6,047.8 — — — —
Purchase and cancellation of our shares................ (0.3) — 0.3 — (1,596.9) —
Share-based compensation..............cccoeeveeveenvenenne. — — — — 215.9 —
Exercises of Liberty Global JSOP share-based
AWATAS ..o — — — — (5.2) —
Share dividend............cccoeevevieviiiiiiicieeeeee 3.9 — — — (3.9) —
Treasury shares...........ccoveeevevieciinieneeieneeeeeenn, — — — — — 3.5
Balance at December 31, 2014 ........cococvvvvveeenenennn. 8.9 6,496.8 0.4 131.7 27,866.6 4.2)
Profit for the financial period..............cccovvevennnn. — — — — 544.0 —
Share issues, 1ess €XPenses........cooeeveeveecveereeveeneenn. 0.5 84.0 — — — —
Purchase and cancellation of our shares................ 0.5) — 0.5 — (2,344.7) —
Share-based compensation..............cccoeeveeveevenenne. — — — — 168.2 —
Exercises of Liberty Global JSOP share-based

AWATAS ... — — — — (4.8) —
Treasury shares...........cccvveeevieciinieneeiese e, — — — — — 3.8
Balance at December 31, 2015 .......cccevveeeereeeennne. $ 89 § 65808 $ 09 $ 131.7 $262293 $ (0.4)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Parent Company Only Balance Sheets
December 31, 2015 and 2014

a Basis of Presentation

Liberty Global plc (Liberty Global) was formed on January 29, 2013 as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Liberty Global, Inc
(LGI). Liberty Global is an international provider of video, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services, with
consolidated operations at December 31, 2015 in 14 countries.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101, Reduced Disclosure
Framework (FRS 101). The amendments to FRS 101 issued in July 2015 were effective immediately and have been applied to
our financial statements.

For the transition to FRS 101, we have applied International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 1 and ensured that our
assets and liabilities are measured in compliance with FRS 101. The transition to FRS 101 had no material affect on our financial

statements.

IFRS 1 grants certain exemptions from the full requirements of IFRS as adopted by the European Union in the transition
period. The following exemptions have been taken in these financial statements:

» IFRS 2, Share Based Payments, is being applied to equity instruments that were granted after November 7, 2002 and that
had not vested by January 1, 2014.

In these financial statements, the company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of the following
disclosures:

Cash Flow Statement and related notes;

Comparative period reconciliations for share capital, tangible fixed assets and intangible assets;
Disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries;

Disclosures in respect of capital management;

The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs;

Disclosures in respect of the compensation of Key Management Personnel; and

Disclosures of transactions with a management entity that provides key management personnel services to the
company.

As the consolidated financial statements of Liberty Global include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has also taken
the exemptions under FRS 101 available in respect of the following disclosures:

* IFRS 2, Share Based Payments, in respect of group settled share-based payments.

These accounts present information about Liberty Global as an individual undertaking and not about its consolidated group.
Under section 408 of the United Kingdom (U.K.) Companies Act 2006, we are exempt from the requirement to present our own
profit and loss account.

On July 1, 2015, Liberty Global completed the approved steps of the “LiLAC Transaction” whereby Liberty Global (i)
reclassified its then outstanding Class A, Class B and Class C Liberty Global ordinary shares into corresponding classes of new
Liberty Global ordinary shares (collectively, the Liberty Global Shares) and (ii) capitalized a portion of its share premium account
and distributed as a dividend (or a “bonus issue” under U.K. law) its LiLAC Class A, Class B and Class C ordinary shares
(collectively, the LILAC Shares). In these notes, the term “Old Liberty Global Shares” may refer, as the context requires, to (a)
Liberty Global’s previously-outstanding Class A, Class B and Class C Liberty Global ordinary shares and/or (b) the previously-
outstanding Series A, Series B and Series C common stock of LGI. Pursuant to the LiLAC Transaction, each holder of Class A,
Class B and Class C Old Liberty Global Shares remained a holder of the same amount and class of Liberty Global Shares and
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Parent Company Only Balance Sheets — (Continued)
December 31, 2015 and 2014

received one share of the corresponding class of LILAC Shares for each 20 Old Liberty Global Shares held as of the record date
for such distribution.

Unless otherwise indicated, translations into United States (U.S.) dollars are calculated as of December 31, 2015.

2 < 2 ¢

In these notes, the terms “we,” “our,” “our company” and “us” refer to Liberty Global.

) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set forth below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements and in preparing an opening FRS 101 IFRS balance sheet at January 1, 2014 for the purposes of the
transition to FRS 101 Adopted IFRSs.

Foreign Currency
Our presentation and functional currency is the U.S. dollar.
Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.K. Accounting Standards requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates and assumptions are used in accounting for, among other
things, loss contingencies, fair value measurements, impairment assessments and share-based payments. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements are prepared under the assumption that we will continue to operate as a going concern,
which contemplates the realization of assets and the liquidation of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. Our ability to
continue as a going concern is dependent upon our ability to generate sufficient cash flows and earnings from our group undertakings’
operations. We have evaluated and consider our business to be a going concern based on our capital resources, the historical
operating profitability of our group undertakings, the long-term nature of our commitments and the prospects of our group
undertakings.

Share Issues
Share issues are recorded at fair value of the net proceeds.
Investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost. Where investments are acquired in exchange for a share issue we
record the investment at fair value of the underlying share capital on the transaction date. For further information regarding our
investments, see note 3.

Derivative Instruments
Derivative instruments are recorded at fair value.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the underlying asset. Useful lives

used to depreciate our property and equipment are assessed periodically and are adjusted when warranted. For additional information
regarding the useful lives of our property and equipment, see note 9.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Parent Company Only Balance Sheets — (Continued)
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Additions, replacements and improvements that extend the asset life are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance are charged to
operations.

Impairment of Property and Equipment

We review, when circumstances warrant, the carrying amounts of our property and equipment to determine whether such
carrying amounts continue to be recoverable. Such changes in circumstance may include (i) an expectation of a sale or disposal
ofalong-lived asset or asset group, (ii) adverse changes in market or competitive conditions, (iii) an adverse change in legal factors
or business climate in the markets in which we operate and (iv) operating or cash flow losses. For purposes of impairment testing,
long-lived assets are grouped at the lowest level for which cash flows are largely independent of other assets and liabilities, generally
at or below the reporting unit level (see below). If the carrying amount of the asset or asset group is greater than the expected
discounted cash flows to be generated by such asset or asset group, an impairment adjustment is recognized. Such adjustment is
measured by the amount that the carrying value of such asset or asset group exceeds its fair value. We generally measure fair value
by considering (a) sale prices for similar assets, (b) discounted estimated future cash flows using an appropriate discount rate and/
or (c) estimated replacement cost. Assets to be disposed of are carried at the lower of their financial statement carrying amount or
fair value less costs to sell.

Interest-bearing Borrowings

Debt is stated at the fair value of the consideration received on the issue of the capital instrument after deduction of issue
costs. The finance cost of the debt is amortized over the term of the debt at a constant rate on the carrying amount.

Share-Based Compensation

We recognize all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee share incentive awards based on their
grant-date fair values and our estimates of forfeitures. We recognize the fair value of outstanding awards as a charge to operations
over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity.

We have calculated the expected life of options and share appreciation rights (SARs) granted by Liberty Global to employees
based on historical exercise trends. The expected volatility for Liberty Global options and SARs is generally based on a combination
of (i) historical volatilities of Liberty Global ordinary shares for a period equal to the expected average life of the Liberty Global
awards and (ii) volatilities implied from publicly traded Liberty Global options.

Where we grant options over our own shares to the employees of our subsidiaries we recognize an increase in the cost of
investment in our subsidiaries equivalent to the equity-settled share-based payment charge recognized in our subsidiary’s financial
statements with the corresponding credit being recognized directly in equity. Amounts recharged to and reimbursed by the subsidiary
are recognized as a reduction in the cost of investment in subsidiary. If the cumulative amount recharged and reimbursed exceeds
the increase in the cost of investment the excess is recognized as a dividend.

We generally issue new shares of Liberty Global ordinary shares when Liberty Global options or SARs are exercised and
when restricted share units and performance-based restricted share units vest. Although we repurchase Liberty Global ordinary
shares from time to time, the parameters of our share purchase and redemption activities are not established solely with reference
to the dilutive impact of our share-based compensation plans.

Income Taxes

The charge for taxation is based on the earnings or loss for the period and takes into account deferred taxation related to
temporary differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.

Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which differences
reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that the directors consider it more likely than not that there will be suitable
taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying temporary differences can be deducted.

1-8



LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Parent Company Only Balance Sheets — (Continued)
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions denominated in currencies other than our functional currency are recorded based on exchange rates at the time
such transactions arise. Changes in exchange rates with respect to amounts recorded in our balance sheets related to these non-
functional currency transactions result in transaction gains or losses that are reflected in our profit and loss accounts as unrealized
(based on the applicable period end exchange rates) or realized upon settlement of the transactions.

Own Shares Held by JSOP Trust

Transactions of the Liberty Global sponsored joint stock ownership plan (JSOP) Jersey Trust (the Liberty Global JSOP)
are treated as being those of our company and are therefore reflected as treasury shares in our financial statements. In particular,
the Liberty Global JSOP’s purchases and sales of shares of Liberty Global are debited and credited directly to equity.

3) Investments in Group Undertakings

The details of our investment in group undertakings during 2015 and 2014 are set forth below (in millions):

Balance at JANUATY 1, 2014 .......oviouiieieeeeeeeeeceeeeee ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e et e eteeteets et et e eaeeteere et et e eteeteereersentenes $ 19,160.0
Additions, other than share-based COMPENSAION (Q).....eecvierrieriieriieiieiiiieeieeeesee st e steesteeteebeebeessessaessaesssesssesseesees 1,298.3
Additions arising from share-based cOmMPENSation (D) ............ccceeieriiriiiiiieieieesieete ettt ss e reere e esnens 380.9
Balance at DECEIMDET 31, 2014 ....coonneiieeeeeeee ettt et e e e et e e e e et eeeseateeseeaeeeseeeaeeesasraseeesesteesaerseesssasseessssaneas 20,839.2
Additions, other than share-based COMPENSALION (C)....ccuuiiviiiuieiuieiiieiiieiieieete ettt e et e et eereesteebeebeeareebeesseessesnseses 5,562.3
Additions arising from share-based cOmMPENSAION (D) .....c..ccviiriieriieiiiiiiiiieieeieeie sttt b e reeaesbee e e sseesseenses 250.8
Balance at DecemMDbEr 31, 2015 .. ..ottt ettt e e e e e e et e e e eenan $ 26,652.3

(@)  The increase in our investment during 2014 is primarily due to the acquisition of Ziggo Holding B.V.

(b)  Represents additions attributable to share-based compensation associated with employees of our subsidiaries, less amounts
that we recharge to our subsidiaries in connection with the exercise of our SARs and options and the vesting of our restricted
share awards held by employees of our subsidiaries, as adjusted to reflect any deemed dividends arising from amounts
charged in excess of the allocated share-based compensation with respect to certain of our subsidiaries.

(c)  The increase in our investment during 2015 is primarily due to our company subscribing to 342,832,194 ordinary shares
of Liberty Global Broadband II Limited (LG Broadband II Limited) for $5,218.4 million following the cash settlement
of our note receivable from LG Broadband II Limited. For additional information, see note 4.

Subsidiaries

For a listing of our subsidiaries at December 31, 2015, see note 22 to Liberty Global plc’s consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Parent Company Only Balance Sheets — (Continued)
December 31, 2015 and 2014

@) Transactions with Group Undertakings

The following table provides details of our group undertaking balances:

December 31,

2015 2014
in millions

LGI NOte RECEIVADIE () ..evviviiiiiictieeiiecieeeteeete ettt ettt et et e e ettt teeeteeebe e veenseenseenbeenbeeaseeanesaneaees $ 9,557.6 $ 9,557.6
LG Broadband IT Limited NOE (D) ...c..coviiiiiiiiieiieiieii ettt et et ve e eaveeabeeaveesaeeaneseneses — 5,205.2
LG HOIAING BV INOTE (€) ..evviiuieiiiiitieriieitiestiesteesieeteeteetessteestesssesssesssesseesssesseesseesseessesssesssesssesssessessssssses — 461.6
LG Content Investments BV NOtE (d)......ccevvirrieiiieiiiiriiieciieieieseste ettt et se s eseesae e sveeseesaesnens 92.7 99.4
LGCI Holdings Limited NOLE (€) ....c.eeeerverierieriieieieieiesiesieeseeseetessessesseeseessessessessessssssessessessessessesssensens 47.5 —
LG Ventures Group Limited NOE (£).......cceiiieiiiiiiiiieiieieeteeie ettt ettt et eb e e veeane e e 13.7 —
LGCIT HOIACO TIT LEA () .veevveevreiereereesiesiiesieeieeieeteeteeteeteesteseaeseaesasessaesseeseesseesseesseessessseessesssesssessessses 8.8 —
Interest receivable — 10NG-term (h) .......ccoeviiiiiiiiieieiee e st raerens 6.8 —
TOtA]l NOTES TECEIVADIE.......vieiieeieeeeeeee et et e ettt e e e e e e e et e e seaaeesseaeeesesaaeeeeseaeeesssneeeeas 9,727.1 15,323.8
Other TECEIVADIES (1) .uvivieireieieierieetietieieie ettt et et et sttt et e e aeste et e eseenaensansessesseeseensansessessenseensensens 58.4 11.9
INterest TECEIVADIE (1) ...icuiieeiiieiiiiieciieeeeee ettt ettt et e e e esbeesbeesbeesbeesaeesaensaenees 446.2 448.7
TOLAL ettt ettt a et h ket a bt et eh e et en ettt en e bt et et eneeaenneneas $10,231.7 $15,784.4
LG Broadband T Limited NOE (1) .....eeveerrerrerieririeierinieieresieiesesseseseeseseseesessessesessessesessessessssessessssessesens $ 1,317.6 $ —
TSOP INOLE (K) ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e s et et et e st et e e eseesesses e et e s eseeseesaneeseesenseseasanseneesesenens 19.3 18.9
TOtal NOLES PAYADIEC......c.eiiiiiticiiciiceee ettt ettt ettt b e b et et re st esb b eaeeteetseneennas 1,336.9 18.9
Current NOE PAYADIE (1)...veeuieieieiieieiieieeee ettt sttt b e b sreesaesaeaesreeseeseenaensens 1,121.7 679.2
Other accrued and current Habilities (IN)........ecveeeeieierierireeieeerere et aeaens 1,593.4 1,479.8
TOLAL ettt ettt ettt ettt et et et et en et et en e Re e ent Rt esent et e benteneesenteneenenneneas § 4,052.0 $ 2,177.9

(a)  Represents a note receivable from LGI (the LGI Note Receivable). The LGI Note Receivable bears interest at 8.0% per
annum and is due on June 3, 2021 with interest payments due and receivable annually on the anniversary date of the LGI
Note Receivable. The LGI Note Receivable shall be subject to a guarantee and pledge agreement, as a condition to the
continuing effectiveness of the LGI Note Receivable, providing for the pledge of (i) 100% of the shares of LGI International,
Inc. and (ii) 66% of the shares of Liberty Global Holding BV (LG Holding BV), both of which are group undertakings.

LGI may redeem, in whole or in part, the principal amount of the LGI Note Receivable at the following redemption prices
(expressed as a percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid interest and any Breakage Amount (as defined
in the applicable indenture) due to us, if any, on the applicable redemption date, if redeemed during the twelve-month period

commencing on June 3 as set forth below:

Period

JUNE 3, 2013 ——JUNC 2, 2017 oottt e ettt e e e e e e et ettt e e e e e sesaaaaaeeeeeseessnaaaaaeees
JUNE 3, 2017 and ther@after.........viiiiiiiiiieeiiee ettt ettt et e et e e ettt e e et et e e et it e e seaaeeeeans

Premium
price

101.0%
100.0%

(b)  Represents a note receivable from LG Broadband II Limited. This note bore interest at a rate of 6.09% as of December 31,

2014 and was settled during the first quarter of 2015.

(¢)  Represents a note receivable from LG Holding BV. This note bore interest at a rate of 5.76% and had a principal balance
of €381.5 million ($461.6 million at the December 31, 2014 rate) at December 31, 2014. This note was settled during the

first quarter of 2015.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Parent Company Only Balance Sheets — (Continued)
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Represents a note receivable from Liberty Global Content Investments BV (LG Content Investments BV). Pursuant to
the loan agreement the maturity date is September 23, 2022, however Liberty Global may agree to advance additional
amounts to LG Content Investments BV at any time and LG Content Investments BV may, with agreement from Liberty
Global, repay all or part of the outstanding principal at any time prior to the maturity date. The note receivable is subject
to further borrowings and repayments. The interest rate on this loan, which is subject to adjustment, was 7.33% as of
December 31, 2015. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, this note had a principal balance of €85.3 million ($92.7 million)
and €82.1 million ($99.4 million at the December 31, 2014 rate), respectively.

Represents a note receivable from LGCI Holdings Limited. Pursuant to the loan agreement the maturity date is March 9,
2024, however Liberty Global may agree to advance additional amounts to LGCI Holdings Limited at any time and LGCI
Holdings Limited may, with agreement from Liberty Global, repay all or part of the outstanding principal at any time prior
to the maturity date. The note receivable is subject to further borrowings and repayments. The interest rate on this loan,
which is subject to adjustment, was 5.16% as of December 31,2015. At December 31,2015, this note had a principal balance
of €43.7 million ($47.5 million).

Represents a note receivable from Liberty Global Ventures Group Limited (LG Ventures Group Limited). Pursuant to the
loan agreement the maturity date is August 3, 2024, however Liberty Global may agree to advance additional amounts to
LG Ventures Group Limited at any time and LG Ventures Group Limited may, with agreement from Liberty Global, repay
all or part of the outstanding principal at any time prior to the maturity date. The note receivable is subject to further
borrowings and repayments. The interest rate on this loan, which is subject to adjustment, was 6.95% as of December 31,
2015.

Represents a note receivable from LGCI Holdco III Ltd. Pursuant to the loan agreement the maturity date is September 11,
2024, however Liberty Global may agree to advance additional amounts to LGCI Holdco III Ltd at any time and LGCI
Holdco IIT Ltd may, with agreement from Liberty Global, repay all or part of the outstanding principal at any time prior to
the maturity date. The note receivable is subject to further borrowings and repayments. The interest rate on this loan, which
is subject to adjustment, was 6.74% as of December 31, 2015. At December 31, 2015, this note had a principal balance of
£6.0 million ($8.8 million).

Represents interest related to our various notes receivable as discussed above.
Represents certain receivables from other Liberty Global subsidiaries arising in the normal course of business.

Represents anote payable to Liberty Global Broadband I Limited (LG Broadband I Limited). Pursuant to the loan agreement
the maturity date is January 31, 2024, however LG Broadband I Limited may agree to advance additional amounts to our
company at any time and our company may, with agreement from LG Broadband I Limited, repay all or part of the outstanding
principal at any time prior to the maturity date. The note payable is subject to further borrowings and repayments. The
interest rate on this loan, which is subject to adjustment, was 4.88% as of December 31, 2015. At December 31, 2015, this
note had a principal balance of €1,212.6 million ($1,317.6 million).

Prior to the acquisition of Virgin Media Inc. (Virgin Media) by our company (the Virgin Media Acquisition), Virgin Media
and its employees held interests in a Delaware Trust set up to hold a JSOP (the Virgin Media JSOP). On June 4, 2013,
Liberty Global established the Liberty Global JSOP and issued a promissory note (the JSOP Note) to fund the trust (principal
balance as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 was $19.3 million and $18.9 million, respectively). As of December 31, 2015
and 2014, the JSOP Note bore interest at 1.76% and 1.81% per annum, respectively. The interest rate is subject to adjustment
on each of January 1 and July 1 during the remainder of the term to a certain U.S. Federal statutory rate, and interest shall
compound semi-annually on January 1 and July 1 of each year. The principal balance is due and payable on June 4, 2018.

On closing of the Virgin Media Acquisition, the Liberty Global JSOP exchanged (i) the JSOP Note for the Virgin Media
JSOP and (ii) the underlying shares of the Virgin Media JSOP awards for certain of our Class A and Class C Old Liberty
Global Shares. For additional information, see note 6.

Represents a note payable to Liberty Global Europe 2 Limited (LG Europe 2). Pursuant to the loan agreement the maturity
date is July 16, 2023, however LG Europe 2 may agree to advance additional amounts to our company at any time and our
company may, with agreement from LG Europe 2, repay all or part of the outstanding principal at any time prior to the
maturity date. The note payable is subject to further borrowings and repayments. The interest rate on this loan, which is
subject to adjustment, was 5.68% as of December 31, 2015.
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(m) Represents (i) a $973.9 million and $1,146.4 million payable at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, to Liberty Global
Incorporated Limited and (ii) certain payables at December 31, 2015 and 2014 to other Liberty Global subsidiaries arising
in the normal course of business.

5) Called Up Share Capital

Our share capital is comprised of the following at December 31, 2015:

Shares Amount

in millions

Allotted, called up and fully paid:

Liberty Global Shares — Class A of $0.01 €aCh..........ccecvviiviirieiiiiieieieeeee e 252,766,455 $ 2.5
Liberty Global Shares — Class B 0f $0.01 €acCh.........c.cccoevievieiiiiiiiiiiieeceececeee e 10,472,517 0.1
Liberty Global Shares — Class C of $0.01 €ach..........cccocvviiieieiiiiicieeeeeeee e 584,044,394 5.9
LiLAC Shares — Class A OF $0.01 €ACH......cooueieeeeeee et eeeeseeeeeee e 12,630,580 0.1
LiLAC Shares — Class B 0f $0.01 €aCK c...ceouvveieiieeeeeeeeeeeee et 523,423 —
LiLAC Shares — Class C 0f $0.01 €aCH .......coviiiiiiieie et 30,772,874 03

Total SHATE CAPILAL.......cviiviieiieiciicicece ettt sttt et b e b e teeteess e st e sesbesbeeseessessesbassesreereernans $ 8.9

The details of our share activity during 2015 are set forth below:

Liberty Global Shares LiLAC Shares Old Liberty Global Shares

Class A of Class B of Class C of Class Aof ClassBof  Class Cof Class A of Class B of Class C of
$0.01 each $0.01 each $0.01 each $0.01 each  $0.01 each  $0.01 each $0.01 each $0.01 each $0.01 each Total shares

Balance at January

1,2015.....c... — — — — — — 251,167,686 10,139,184 630,353,372 891,660,242
Repurchases
(note 6) ............. — — — — — — — — (18,653,356)  (18,653,356)
Additional
issuances........... — — — — — — 1,338,062 333,333 2,757,468 4,428,863
Other........ccocoevienne — — — — — — 26 — 66 92
Balance at June 30,
2015 oo, — — — — — — 252,505,774 10,472,517 614,457,550 877,435,841
Impact of the
LiLAC
Transaction....... 252,505,774 10,472,517 614,457,550 12,625,362 523,626 30,776,883 (252,505,774)  (10,472,517) (614,457,550) 43,925,871
Repurchases
(note 6) ............. — — (31,331,206) — — — — — —  (31,331,206)
Additional
issuances........... 260,639 — 917,945 5,015 — 14,915 — — — 1,198,514
Other........cccoovrnnne 42 — 105 203 (203) (18,924) — — — (18,777)
Balance at
December 31,
2015 e 252,766,455 10,472,517 584,044,394 12,630,580 523,423 30,772,874 — — — 891,210,243
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6) Reserves
Our called up share capital and reserves are comprised of the following at December 31, 2015 and 2014:
Called up Share Capital Profitand Treasury
share premium  redemption Other loss shares, at
capital reserve reserve reserves account cost
in millions
Balance at January 1, 2014 ........cccocveeiviieriiiennen $ 39§ 4490 § 0.1 $ 131.7 $28,6908 $ (7.7)
Profit for the financial period.............ccccveruvennnne. — — — — 565.9 —
Share issues, 1ess eXPenses..........cevvevverrerreereeneenns 1.4 6,047.8 — — — —
Purchase and cancellation of our shares................ (0.3) — 0.3 — (1,596.9) —
Share-based compensation.............ccceeeveeveeeeennnne — — — — 215.9 —
Exercises of Liberty Global JSOP share-based
AWALAS () v.vveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e — — — — (5.2) —
Share dividend..........c.ccooevviiiiiieciicieeeeeeee, 3.9 — — — 3.9 —
Treasury Shares..........ceeevverierenieeeieiene e — — — — — 3.5
Balance at December 31,2014 .........cccoeeevvveeveennnen. 8.9 6,496.8 0.4 131.7 27,866.6 4.2)
Profit for the financial period.............cccccvevvenneene. — — — — 544.0 —
Share issues, 1ess eXPenses.........ccevvevververreereereennns 0.5 84.0 — — — —
Purchase and cancellation of our shares................ (0.5) — 0.5 — (2,344.7) —
Share-based compensation.............ccceeeveeeeeeennnnne — — — — 168.2 —
Exercises of Liberty Global JSOP share-based
AWALAS () v.vvveeeeceeeeeeeeeee e — — — — (4.8) —
Treasury Shares..........cecvevvevierreeeeeeiesiese e — — — — — 3.8
Balance at December 31,2015........ccccvevvievvenrennnnen. $ 89 §$ 6,580.8 $ 09 $ 1317 $262293 $ (0.4

(a)  For further information regarding the Liberty Global JSOP, see below.

Share Repurchases

During 2015 and 2014, our board of directors authorized various share repurchase programs, the most recent of which provides
for the repurchase of up to $4.5 billion (before direct acquisition costs) of Liberty Global Class A and/or Class C ordinary shares.
In accordance with English law, we may implement the program in conjunction with our brokers and other financial institutions
with whom we have relationships within certain preset parameters. The timing of the repurchase of shares pursuant to our share
repurchase programs, which may be suspended or discontinued at any time, is dependent on a variety of factors, including market
conditions and applicable law and may continue during closed periods in accordance with applicable restrictions. As of
December 31, 2015, the remaining amount authorized for share repurchases was $1,601.1 million. Subsequent to December 31,

2015, our board of directors increased this amount to $4.0 billion.

The following table provides details of our share repurchases during 2015 and 2014:

Class A Liberty Global Shares
and Class A Old Liberty Shares

Class C Liberty Global Shares
and Class C Old Liberty Shares

Average price

Average price

Shares paid per Shares paid per
Purchase date purchased share (a) purchased share (a) Total cost (a)
in millions
Shares purchased pursuant to
repurchase programs during:
2015 (D) eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e — 3 — 49,984,562 $ 4691 $ 2,344.5
2014 (C) eovereeeeeeenieeieeeeee e 8,062,792 § 42.19 28,401,019 §$ 4425 ' $ 1,596.9
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(a)  Includes direct acquisition costs and the effects of derivative instruments, where applicable.

(b)  Amounts include repurchases of (i) Old Liberty Global Shares from January 1 through June 30,2015 and (ii) Liberty Global
Shares from July 1 through December 31, 2015.

(c)  Amounts include repurchases of Old Liberty Global Shares.
Call Option Contracts

From time to time, we enter into call option contracts pursuant to which we contemporaneously (i) sell call options on shares
of Liberty Global ordinary shares and (ii) purchase call options on an equivalent number of shares of Liberty Global ordinary
shares with an exercise price of zero. These contracts can result in the receipt of cash and shares of Liberty Global ordinary shares.
Shares acquired through the exercise of the call options are included in our share repurchases and the net gain on cash settled
contracts is recorded as an increase to additional paid-in capital in our consolidated statements of equity.

JSOP Trust

Prior to the Virgin Media Acquisition, under the Virgin Media JSOP, participating executives and other key employees of
Virgin Media in the U.K. purchased, at fair value, jointly held interests in shares of Virgin Media’s stock. Participation in the Virgin
Media JSOP was voluntary. On June 7, 2013, the assets held in trust by the Virgin Media Delaware grantor trust, which were
comprised solely of Virgin Media shares, were transferred to the Liberty Global JSOP in exchange for the JSOP Note.

During 2015, certain participants exercised a portion of their interests in the Liberty Global JSOP, resulting in an aggregate
distribution of (i) 29,187 Class A Liberty Global / Old Liberty Global Shares, (ii) 73,991 Class C Liberty Global / Old Liberty
Global Shares and (iii) $1.0 million in cash.

During 2014, certain participants exercised a portion of their interests in the Liberty Global JSOP, resulting in an aggregate
distribution of (i) 32,335 Class A Old Liberty Global Shares, (ii) 81,119 Class C Old Liberty Global Shares and (iii) $0.9 million
in cash.

At December 31, 2015, the Liberty Global JSOP held $5.6 million of cash, 2,833 Class A Liberty Global Shares, 8,190 Class
C Liberty Global Shares, 321 Class A LiLAC Shares and 869 Class C LiLAC Shares.

At December 31, 2014, the Liberty Global JSOP held $6.7 million of cash, 32,020 Class A Old Liberty Global Shares and
82,181 Class C Old Liberty Global Shares.

Vesting of certain Liberty Global JSOP awards is subject to performance targets. The Liberty Global JSOP trustee will return
to us any cash or shares underlying awards that do not vest, and will return any dividends on the shares in the trust to our company
until the awards are exercised. The Liberty Global JSOP trustee will vote shares in the trust in proportion to the votes of other
shareholders of Liberty Global until the awards vest. Participation in the Liberty Global JSOP is closed to new participation.
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@) Debtors and Other Assets
Debtors and other assets consist of the following:

December 31,
2015 2014

in millions

Amounts owed by group undertakings:

INOLES TECEIVADIE () ...veuvivieeieeeeeretiete ettt ettt et ettt ete ettt ens et e eteeteeteeat e s e eseeteeseensensenseeseersensensenes $ 9,727.1 $ 15,323.8
Interest and other receivables (NOTE 4) ......ccviiuiiiuieirieiieieete ettt ettt b e ve e eabeeaae e e saeeeais 504.6 460.6
Total amounts owed by group Undertakings..........ccoevevierierieiiieie ettt esre e aeeaeeeae e 10,231.7 15,784.4
ONET @SSEES ....vietieiieteeieeteeteete et te st e st es et ete e bt esbeeaeeseesssesssesseesseesseesseensaensessseasseessaassenseenseessseseensennsenn 100.3 48.3
DEferred INCOME tAXES ...c.vevveiitietieiieieieste et eteeteetete s e teeteeseessessessessesseessessessessesseeseeseessessensensessesssessenes 33 —
Total debtors and OtNET ASSEES.......ciiiuiieiieiiie ettt ettt et e et e e et e e seaeeeesaaeesesraneeesan $ 10,3353 §$ 15,832.7

(a)  AtDecember 31,2015 and 2014, $9,730.4 million and $9,657.0 million, respectively, is due after more than one year. For
further information see note 4.

8 Creditors
Creditors consists of the following:

December 31,
2015 2014

in millions

Amounts falling due within one year:

Note payable — group undertakings (NOLE 4) .......cceevuieriieriieiieeieeie et e ettt ste e e aeebeeebeesesseesseeseeas $1,121.7 $§ 679.2
Other accrued and current liabilities — group undertakings (NOt€ 4).........c.cccevveeieievierieniiieieeeeeeiennns 1,593.4 1,479.8
Other accrued and current liabilities — third-party ...........ccccceeveririiiieiecieeeceee e 13.4 14.7
TTAAC CTEAILOTS. .. e euvieiiieeie ettt ettt ettt ettt et e et e e teeeteesteesta e beesbeesbeesseesseessesssesssassseseesseesseenseenseessesens 5.6 23.6

Total creditors — amounts falling due Within ONE YEar .........c.cccevieiierieiieiiecieeie e se e $2,734.1 $2,197.3

Amounts falling due after one year:

Notes payable — group undertakings (NOt€ 4) .........ccevuirerieienienerieietetetee ettt ae e e e $1,3369 $ 189
Other NON-CUITENt LHADIIIEICS ....eviiiieieiiee et ettt ettt neeee e 2.8 1.9
Total creditors — amounts falling due after 0ne year............cccoovvieieeeierienicc e $1,339.7 § 2038
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(&) Long-lived Assets

Property and Equipment, Net

Changes in our property and equipment and the related accumulated depreciation are set forth below:

Support
equipment,
buildings
and land (2)

Cost:

JANUATY 1, 2015 ettt b e bttt e b et e e e at e sh e s ht e e bt e bt e e bt e s bt e sb e e bt et et et e et eaeesaee s $ —
ALQAITIONS 1.ttt a e bt e ettt s h e b bt e a et bbbt st e s et h e e bt bt a e et e s bt e bt eb e bt et et et e ebeeneas 4.0
ORET <.ttt sttt et s bbbt e a et b et e a e e bbbt bt bt ae et e bbbt ettt shesae et 0.4

DECEMDET 31, 2015 ..oiiiiiiiieieeeee ettt ettt et et e st eete e bt e be et e ebe e b e etbeetbeerbeeabeerbeeteesteeetsebeebeenbeenbeenbeenaeeanens $—44

Accumulated depreciation:

JANUATY 1, 2015 oottt et ettt st e st e e st e e bt e bt e bt e bt enbeeabesabesebe e st e e st enhteshee bt e beenbeenbeenbeenbeentesneenn $ —
DIEPTECIALION ...ttt ettt ettt et b et a e bttt e bt s bt eb e et et e bt b et ebe e b e s e eseeb et eneeb et et ebenbe e ebenaens (0.2)

DECEIMDET 31, 2015 ooooooooeooeeeeeeeee e s (02)

Property and equipment, net:

DECEMDET 31, 2015 ..ottt et ettt et e st eete e te e bt e be e b e eabeeabeetbeetbeeabeeabeetbestaeabs e beebeenbeenbeenbeenaeennens $ 4.2

(a)  The estimated useful lives at December 31, 2015 range from 3 to 10 years.

Other Indefinite-lived Intangible Assets

Our intangible assets are comprised of domain names. These intangible assets are considered to have indefinite lives and had
an aggregate carrying value of $3.0 million at each of December 31, 2015 and 2014.

10 Guarantees

On June 11, 2013, we issued guarantees for intra-group debt A and B of LG Europe 2, which guarantees were subsequently
confirmed in November 2013 in connection with amendments of the underlying loan evidencing the loan to LG Europe 2 from
Virgin Media Finco Limited. Interest on the loans is either (i) payable semi-annually at the applicable rate on April 15 and October
15 each year or (ii) upon mutual agreement between the debtor and creditor, is added to the principal outstanding.

On June 5, 2015, we issued a guarantee for intra-group debt C of the loan to LG Europe 2 from Virgin Media Finco Limited.

Interest on the loan is either (i) payable semi-annually at the applicable rate on April 15 and October 15 each year or (ii) upon
mutual agreement between the debtor and creditor, is added to the principal outstanding.
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In aggregate, the debt outstanding at December 31, 2015 subject to these guarantees is $4,968.4 million.

Interest Borrowing US. $
Debt: Maturity date rate currency equivalent
in millions
Intra-group debt A........c.ooveviiriiieeeee e April 15,2023 8.500% £ 8246 § 1,215.0
Intra-group debt B......c.ccoevieiiiiiiciceceeeee April 15,2023 8.500% £ 1,350.0 1,989.1
Intra-group debt C......coovveieieiiieciceceeeee e July 16, 2023 5.659% £ 1,197.4 1,764.3
TOTAL .ottt e e et e e et e e e e e a e e ea e e e aee et e e e et e et e e seaeeeeateeeaaeeete e et eaaaeesaatesanteseaeenreeas $ 4,968.4

1) Directors’ Remuneration

Information regarding directors’ compensation (remuneration), interests in shares and share options for consolidated Liberty
Global is included within the Directors’ Remuneration Report contained in this report.

12) Subsequent Events

For subsequent events that impact our subsidiaries, see note 20 to Liberty Global plc’s consolidated financial statements.
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